STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/16/2018 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

i CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
58 DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for January 16, 2018.




10.

CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $398,434.35 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $669,395.92.

Il For possible action, approval of the Treasurers Report for December 2017.

[II  For possible action, approval of First reading for General Business License - CCW
Instructor. Applicant is James Wes Francis, owner of First Shot, 176 Rind Rd.
Dayton, NV.

IV For possible action, approval of Justice Court Quarterly Report.

V' For possible action, approval of Business Licnes First Readings:
A. INTERNATION FLOW TECHNOLOGIES, INC - Contractor / 30230 Los Alamos
Rd ~ Murrieta, CA
B. CONCRETE NORTH, INC - Contractor / 10274 Iron Rock Way ~ Elk Grove, CA
C. ENCORE - Contractor / 14830 Kivett Ln ~ Reno, NV
D. FREMOUW ENVIRONMENT SERVICES, INC - Transportation / 6940 Tremont
Rd ~ Dixon, CA
E. MIKE HICKEY CONSTRUCTION, DBA: 3M ROOFING / Contractor / 3046
Achilles Dr ~ Reno, NV

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

National Radon Action Month Proclamation
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

A resolution honoring Bruce and Linda Larson & Botcha-Caloops as the 2017 Storey
county business of the year.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of reimbursable costs through the voucher program
payable to TRI Center for its extension of Milan Drive in the amount of $ 825,647.23
which amount includes an overage of $28,921.00 over the estimated costs previously
approved.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of agreement with VIEVU Solution Services LLC to
provide 18 body cameras and associated services to the Storey County Sheriff’s Office




11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

for a subscription fee of $47.00 per month per camera, an approximate total amount
$50,000.00.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Second reading for General Business License. Applicant is Carol Maley, owner of
Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Second reading for Off-sale Liquor License. Applicant is Carol Maley, owner of
Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
DISCUSSION/WORKSHOP (No Action):

Discussion of administrative policies that give the county manager either significant
job duties or the responsibility for making sure the policies are approved by the board
and are followed by staff.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of revised county manager’s job description.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

File 2016-030-A1-2017. A request to amend Special Use Permit 2016-030, Condition 5,
by the applicant Sally Summers to allow for additional time for the onsite temporary
trailer (watchperson’s dwelling) to remain on the property. No other changes or
modifications to the original Special Use Permit are proposed. The property is located
at 199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-331-08, 004-331-
22 & 004-331-40, Amended Special Use File 2016-030-A1-2017.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-279 amending Storey County Code Title 16
Subdivisions to adopt new codes for land subdivisions, parcel maps, division of land
into large parcels, surety requirements, land readjustments, boundary line
adjustments, and reversions to acreage/lot consolidations. In addition to provisions of
the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission
a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code.
Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-
1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.




19.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-278 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning,
including Chapter 17.56 Planned Unit Developments to revise the procedure for
approval and standards of planned unit developments. In addition to provisions of
the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission
a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code
and zoning ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the Planning
Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org,.

20.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-280 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning
including chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions, 17.10 Definitions, 17.12 General
Provisions, 17.15 Public Zone, 17.24 Agriculture Zone, 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.30
Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32 Forestry Zone, 17.34 Light Industrial Zone, 17.35
Heavy Industrial Zone, 17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning Review Zone; and
17.84 Signs and Billboards. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may
complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement supporting or
opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance.
Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-
1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

21.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-281 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning
including Chapter 17.06 Nonconforming Uses pertaining to legally nonconforming
uses and adding language pertaining to substandard development. In addition to
provisions of the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning
Commission a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the
county code and zoning ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the
Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

22.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-276 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning
to provide for design criteria and improvement standards for certain types of
development and a design review process with review by the planning director with
appeal to the planning commission and board. In addition to provisions of the NRS,
any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a
statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and
zoning ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the Planning
Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.




23:

24

25.

26.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-282 amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning
including Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions to revise the procedure for the
expiration of development permits. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any person
may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement
supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning
ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at
775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution No. 18-474 to the Board of County Commissioners with
recommendation by the Planning Commission adopting a design criteria and
improvement manual setting forth certain development and design standards and
guidelines for residential and non-residential planned unit developments, multi-
family residential complexes, and other uses.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution No. 18-481 determining and consolidating all planning fees,
including removing certain fees from code and placing them into resolution.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: New (Section Text)

A. BSTREEET HOUSE BED & BREAKFAST - General / 58 N “B” St ~ Virginia City, NV
B. AIRGUYS LLC - General / 1211 Avian Dr. ~ Sparks, NV

C. NEW ELECTRIC STERLING HEIGHTS LLC- General / 6475 19 Y2 Mi. ~ Sterling
Hghts, MI

D. URTON LTD - Contractor / 1512 Hwy 395 N ~ Gardnerville, NV

E. SUGINO CORP - General / 1380 Hamilton Pkwy ~ Itasca, IL

F. LIBERTY INDUSTRIAL GROUP INC - Contractor / 1132 S 500 W ~ Salt Lake City,
UT

G. AQ&B, LLC - General / 5470 Sidehill Dr ~ Sun Valley, NV

H. KYYBA, INC - General / 28230 Orchard Lk ~ Farmington Hills, MI

. YBD TECH MOVING, LLC - General / 1 East First St ~ Reno, NV

J.SHRED IT USA - General / 28161 N. Keith Dr - Lake Forest, IL

K. COMSTOCK COPYWRITING - General / 21335 Saddleback ~ VC Highlands, NV
L. GO SOLAR GROUP, LLC - Contractor / 4892 S Commerce Dr ~ Murray, UT

M. TANAMERA CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 5560 Longley Ln ~ Reno, NV
N. GULF COAST PROTECTIVE WRAP, LLC - General / 5301 Longley Ln ~ Reno, NV
O. MASKINE LLC - General / 704 Mill Rd ~ Webster, IN

P. AMAZON.COM.KYDC, LLC - General / 410 Terry Ave N ~ Seattle, WA

Q. COSCO FIRE PROTECTION INC - Contractor / 3620 W. Reno ~ Las Vegas, NV

R. COMSTOCK CRITTER TAXIDERMY - Home Business / 2247 S. Main St ~ Virginia
City, NV




S. THERMAL RESOURCE SALES, INC - General / 750 Yellow Pine Rd ~ Reno, NV

T. ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC - Contractor / 6265 San Fernando ~ Glendale,
CA

U. TESLA, INC - General / 3550 Deer Cr Rd ~ Palo Alto, CA

V. APPLIED MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGIES LLC - 219 Kay Industrial Dr ~
Orion, MI

W. CALIFORNIA-NEVADA ILLUMINATION, INC - General / 4000 Executive Pkwy ~
San Ramon, CA

X. QUALITY TELECOM CONSULTANTS, INC - Contractor / 3740 Cincinnati Ave ~
Rocklin, CA

Y. EAGLE NEST PARTNERS - General / 2255 Green Vista ~ Sparks, NV

Z. ELWEMA AUTOMOTICE GMBH - General / 21 Schneider-Strasse 21 ~ Ellwanger
Wagst, Germany

AA.SPARKS ELECTRIC MOTOR REPAIR, LLC - General / 845 Marietta Way ~ Sparks,
NV

BB. INMAN'’S JEWELRY - Home Business / 204 Wagon Wheel ~ Dayton, NV

CC. BOURQUE ENTERPRISES - General / 5017 S 36th St ~ Phoenix, AZ

27.  PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
28. ADJOURNMENT
NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

[tems may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact




the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 1/17/2018; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

By @um_t_‘;‘h__lM__

e e S N N N ——

Vanessa Stephen@AC]erk-Treasurer \




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 16, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1.

g2

8

Title: For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $398,434.35 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $669,395.92.

Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.
Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

L
( Wmcnt Head Department Name: Treasurer

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ 1 Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




TYNIZ
4

abeg

YINOISSTIWACD

AIANSYIIL

HIATTIOULANOD

HANOISSIMNOD NYWIIVHO

ISIDPUOTSSTUWO) JO paeog Ajuno) Aax03s a3yl Aq paaoxddy

62 LVL €2 :pIsSINQSTU TBIOL
00" $I030NpPI( 031 I\JSuURIL I9SN TEIOL
00" 18114 dag 2T uo pa3IX sSpag vekordwm TBIOL
00" :31sodag 303xtQ @2AKotdug Te3lOL
82 LED'9T 1 8)09y) sakorduz TeICL
00° 1EX09YD IOojomnpag Te3IoL
T0"0TL‘L 84138 103 I93ISUEBIL I8SN TeIOL
Iunowy asked # paa # aa
/# dug  /3o9uD
6 8 L 9 S ¥ € ¢ 1 :isdnoin Tr10xAEd
LT/TT/80 :23eQ Pua-potiad LT/62/2T :83BA ¥08Yd Tetoads :adAL [rozdea
z93s163y ¥o3yd ET 69 YT LI/62/2T :uny
WELSAS TTO¥AYd ALNNOD ATNOLS Y0TS0¥d :3dey




VIANSTIAL

ATTTOALINOD

EENCISSIWWNOD FIANOISSTIWHOD

NYWNIVHD

LT/vZ/zt

AAVNINITZEL

S

abed

90°L89 ' VLE

8E"SY0‘E

%0°06S’S :91td daq

98 T1E’162
TZT'ETO0'T
£€8°922°01

€L'667'€9

unouy

6 8 L 9 S
:331eQ PUI-POTIAZ LT/62/2ZT :33eA Y293YD
x23stbay yoeyd
WEISAS TTO¥AYd ALNNOD ATAOLS

v

:SI9UCTSSTUWO) JO pxeog Ajunc) 4A3xo3s ayl Aq psaoiaddy

ipasangsIa

:X030Npag 03 IADFSURI]L X9SN
210 U0 PI3IX Spag a3korduzm
:31s0dag 302xT@ 224orduyg
rsyoayD) asfordum

19309y xoljonpeq

18dL4d I0F X3FSuea] II3sN

39Aea # pea
/# duwg

€ ¢ 1 :sdnoan TroaAed
zernbBay :adAl TTOxARg

Te3cL

Te3or
Te3l01
18301
12301
1e3or

Te301

# aa
/A23ud

BZITS:9T LT/LZ/ZT uny
Y0150¥d :3day



T

I8°SLT’2C1

T8 SLT’2T

TY¥LOL

ebeg

88796
00- 98
S0°Té6
00" 0S€E
00°0€0°T
66°69L
S9° 0S¢t
26°622
S6°6ET
9Z°9s¢
21 12
16" »L
00 0ss
go*ss
00° szt
00°S8
08" TL
09*918
29° S0€
Sé6°LZ
L9° 019
£8°BL
00761
00" 66
13 28 443
00" S€eT
00" S¥
0%° 09T
86°TT
L6*L
9L TT
25" 6€
vv'6€
96° 1S
v 108
00" 662
9L" 68
05" 0EY
96° 807
go ot
00°'s2
09°69L°L
88°8L8
SE°0ET
00" 69
00- 66T
88" SL
00°0T
00°0ST
00" L6t
18°201

LNNOWY

aiva

NOIIVZTHOHLAY (NY MIIAZY 4O LNIWIDATTMONIDY

1621
1621
T6Z1
8821
S8ZT
161
1621
1621
1621
1621
6821
¥ZST
14418
¥Zst
68Z1
6821
6821
vZst
12401
ZeZ1
LBCT
0621
6821
8821
8821
8821
9821
1821
vzst
vest
v2st
»2sT
vZsT
vZst
¥2st
$ZST
¥2ST
vZst
2821
2821
1821
¥ZST
6821
€821
T8TT
9821
¥8Z1
2821
88CT
8821
68CT

#SNWAL

8T/S0/1
8T/S0/1
8T/S0/1
8T/S0/1
8T/S0/1
81/s0/1
8T/S0/1
81/S0/1
81/50/1
81/S0/1
81/S0/1
8T/S0/T1
BT/S0/T
8T/S0/T
81/s0/1
8T/S0/1
B8I/S0/1
81/S0/1
81/S0/1
8T/¥0/1
81/S0/1
81/S0/1
81/50/1
8r/s0/1
81/S0/1
81/50/1
81/50/1
81/S0/1
81/s0/1
81/50/1
81/S0/1
8t1/s0/1
81/s0/1
81/50/1
81/S0/1
81/50/1
BI/S0/T
81/S0/1
8T/S0/1
BL/S0/T
81/S0/T
81/S0/1
8L/S0/1
81/s0/1
81/50/1
8T/S0/1
81/S0/1
81/50/1
8T/S0/1
81/50/1
81/50/1

aLYd

1Sa A3A WOD

15a ¥L1S

1Sa O0SDA

VYads - TRV

SVEE VA JIONVT ENNV
MENIY S OL dn AQa¥a 0D
SYILNIAd AZd WOD

NEZ¥ TUVNNNY Dd AW OL 09
TYMINTE FOVHEOIS NOSEVO
LNIFREINOE SOIHAVYED VA
FONUYNIINIVIW LNVEJAH
ST00L

TZZ9S D1dA

T Q0 ONIDAOT dIIWAAN
T13Nd FYId SYWOHL

TENd TYIA SYWOHL

STIVEAK FAIA SVWOEL

NVA KWOD

QOOH NEHOLIX DSOA

S3ITddNS TVATHOYEY
SYVANATYO

TYMANZE LW

UNIEEM INSWEDHOINT MVT
NOY.LINNNWY

dIHSHHEEWAN ALIAUNDIS
¥ads - WY

S9vd LYIHS L

OIIVLS ¥HJAVI LIITOL
YOLDEANNOD LHOIT HO

HIIVEH JIILYM HD

TI0 M¥S NIVHD

TAAOHS MONS

WOOYHIVE HD
HOYOL-¥-130d

MTVHD dva

1ddNS EINIATAE-LNEAIAT
HIIZ dSNI/SINVYLS/TANL
¥OWE QIVd/DHD TYNOS¥ZEd

004 ALVWANI d3VD ODNIM
SANIT HOYVAS FAILDITHA
FJdOTIANST ONY SWIOd XVIL
dod FYIJ SSYID ENIT NO
¥a 430 2§ - 114

TYLS I S ZLE -LIANYTINI
HSVM ¥VD

a0 4dIHSUIEWIN FLOLILSNI
SN dTHSYIWAW D0SSY
SATVAEN MYSNIVHD

NOILdT¥OSHEA

MZ0BZ0d6MANL IS
£XLIZONEMANLIAS
0D0ZLZONEMANLIIS

SENAd ¥vd VEOM 8102
SANA ¥VE LYLS 8102
ZELOGBLEZT

TEOT8O

L92LZIS0

SZSYSO

099LED

SEMOT NISWOHL

9T/2ZT VILINWNS "L
vI/2T VILIYNS "L
O¥d S4sSn SS

QJATVA Z173dS
TIZHS ZL1EdS

HONVY SIN¥VH Z173dS
9Z/2T ¥IONITAEIE 'S
$T/2T ¥IONITAZNE S
FISYHOENd TYNOSVEA
LELSTZIZTH Q¥O

104=2a E2Idd0

SAE AN NIAEN

TYdAYd AW

STTANMONE MW

ENITINO TLNI SISV MW
ONAL FTOD - FEONVI
ONIOWDUYE MS QX
LZ/TT NWWIOH "C
LZ/ZT NYWIOH "L
LZ/ZT NYWIOH "D
61/2T NWWIOH O
6T/2T NVWIOH °C
61/21 NYWIOH 'O
¥1/2T NVYWIOH D
92/21T sdamod "I
9Z/21 S¥amod I
AGNWVNEE ‘VONIAYD
aTard

Q1214

AQY ANTAAND XOOHEIVA
ANOL ‘NISOQ

AAWLIM W NOXIO
TIIND WL/MD

SILAND

NOILAT¥DSENS 1D
LLY -NIAEN'D
ATAAVIE
NOILVDIAILNED ¥H OV
ONINNY'Td NYDIAIWY OV
LSNOD NWLIL SNINAV

+T®30L PIeds

ININAVA  (qEYD TVIDUIWWOD dNO STI1dmM ST

# IDIOANI Id3C-aNNA

YILEIDIE AUVO HISYHOUNG

ALNNOD AZ¥OLS

MOANZEA HAGWNN
24
8T/v0/T0 ¢ ®3eQ uny

LS087SEd ON 3x0day



4

IYLIOL
@IvO

sbeq

YANOISSTWWOD

NYWH ITVHD

HITANSYAAL

YITTOALAWOD

LNOOWY #SNWAL ALYa NOILEI¥DSZEa

YILSIDIE qEYD ISYHOUNA
ALNAOD AZAOLS

# FDIOANI 1d3Q-aNNd

HIAWAN

od
S3Rg uny
ON 3jaoday



0s° 121 evits 81/S0/1 ADNVOVA JINOISSIWWOD OIOA

957921 9V1ES 81/S0/1 HDILON HOH
90" L9T 9¥TES 8T/S0/T SYTXVAXVL OL FDTION
88 TST 9¥TE8  8T/S0O/T ZOILON NOILDITI RYVWINA
1£°892 LZTE8  8T/S0/T LANWY ENOZ HDILON DITENd
(JA) FTOINCYHD XDOLSHWOD L0606
0Z €ve 0Z'Eve TSTES 8T/S0/1 008-9%992T ¥N/A¥ WII-OWT
7705 INWONW WNDOQ FLATIWOD 90606
66°676'VT 66°6VL ‘YT £90€8  8T/S0/T I¥0ddNS WVHD0¥d 8T0Z NUL
00°00¢ TOTES  8T/S0/T
ONI LSFHD ALINNWKWOD S0606
vy LT Py 9L T60€8  8T/S0/T QISUNESIA INIWHS INAYD
AEN 40 FDIA¥IS NOIIDETTIOD Y0606
00°69S°¢C 9T 0%5°T ¥S0€8 8T/S0/T SHYIL 10669 OS
¥8°€09 7S0€8 8T/S0/T SHYIL S¥S9tmd
00°08 »S0€8  8T/S0/T INIWNDITY -8SZ¥SLI
00°S¥E vS0€8  8T/S0/T TIYD EOIA¥ES -FrvSMd
ONI FAIL OWO £0606
SY 60T SY 60T 660€8  8T/S0/T SHITAdNS WOONHIVH
ATddNS AAVLINVS TYEINID Z0606
8L 1%S T0"08 69TES 81/S0/T avdI HDLIVASIA
9L 197 CSTES 8T/S0/T LELEEBLELE
dIHSJINIEYd ODTTdD T0606
06" L9E 06" L9E 880€8  8T/S0/T OYH QEVOE NENOISSIWWOD
SEELEO4TY TOLIAYD 00606
00°96€ 00°9¢ 690€E8 8T/S0/T
00°09¢€ 690€8 8T/S0/T L10Z Lez/zZT-p1/21
SIMET LIOJS ‘7T7I¥dnd 66806
00°09€ 00°09€ LSTE8  B8T/SO/T AEHSTEAFTA D IQINVAVA
NIE ‘NMO¥E 86806
00°09 00°09 980€E8  BT/S0/T NOTIWNLISINIWAY DITEnd
a 17ESSN¥ ' NOANW¥E L6806
00°00T 00°00T Y0TER 8T/S0/T
NATODP AENLIHM ‘dAO€ 96806
0s 102 €912 Zeoee 8T/S0/T HIOTO HSWVM -TIVC
L8°6LT £60€8  8T/S0/T SM¥0dS ‘TLSVAHIOOL ‘dWVHS
ONI ANVAWOD ¥ANUVE HOH S6806
00°052°9 00°0SZ°9 650€8  8T/S0/T IA0ddNS WWIDO¥d ATIALIVNO
(LAWOD) SINIDTE JO a¥VOL v6806
T2 6%T°€E 00°96 89TER  8T/S0/T ONINWYEDONd
00" 82T 89T€EB  8T/SO/T FIADIYHD YD
SE°69 LSTES 8T/S0/T OIAVd NALLIHMd
€6°LZV'T 89TES 8T/S0/T HOLVASIA OIAVH MAN
€6°LZY'T L9TEB 8T/S0/T 0Iavd NILLIHMA
SASTAdEALNT AuddH £6806
00°¥SE’TT 00" PSE'TT Eb1Es 8T/S0/1T JHOISUIAO dOTIATA WWOD
AS ONILTINSNOD N¥O€ FTLLVE Z6806
¥8°0TT ¥8°0TT LSOEB 8T/s0/T avar
OTT II ALITIEOR I3ZLY 16806
Z8°6S8 Z8°658 9LOEB 8T/S0/1T TSS6E0T0Z #I1DOV
47 ANVAONE SYOINIWY 06806
L9° 1S 28" 0T 96TES 8T/S0/1 ANANOYT L LS
85" 8T 9STER  BT/SO/T AMANOYT SL IS
LL 8 9GTES 81/S0/1 AMANOYT 2L LS
08 €T 9STER 8T/S0/T AMANNYT TL 1S
ONI 0281V 68806
TYLOL INNOWY #SNYIL HIVa # 0/d NOILJI¥OSEA FOIOANI JOaANIA AZEWNN
HOHHD MOEHD
61/50/T WALSIDAY ADEHD 8T/%0/T0 : 33eq uny

T abeg ALNNOD AJAOLS STETEd ON 3x0daY




[4

95 LES

L9°80S'T

00" 1SV

S0"¥81‘Z

T9°0SL’¢E
0S°CT6
¥s° 102

LT 6061

00" TI¥ 65
L8 0886
00°50s8°1

SL" 86T

18°0T0'T

TYLOL
ADFHD

abeg

-0Z°66
80°SSS
89°18E

28 ves
S8 €LY

00" 1SV

€2° %96
SP 2PE
LETLLB

T9°0SL'E
0S°216
vS 102

oV €¢
L8y
9% 8
297 €2
LL' 6
Le's
¥9-o0z
LLEE
LT 90T
98°S¢E
€6°12
9%"2sT
PLTIPT
LB'¥
959°2S
08°8T2Z
v0°8E€T
9z ez
DE"62Z
BE TES
60°9
TS5° 91
00" TT¥'6S
L8°'088°'6
00°S0S'T
S6°SZ
S6°0€
S6°9¢€
S6°0¢
S6°EL
0SS SLT

LINOOWY

80TE8  8T/SO/T ¥Fdvd L
BOTE8  8T/SO/T ¥IAV L
BOTER 8T1/S0/1 dFavd L
0TTEE  8T/SO/T €ST SIA 0SZ 939 M1
0TTER  8T/SO/T STZ SIA 0TT 934 I¥L
6LTE8  8T/S0/T SEXYL 40 INIWAVEIZNO
LOTER 81/S0/1T INYTd dIM
6STE8  8T/S0/T ANVI0¥d TL 1S
LOTE8  8T/S0/T a¥ 7170l 00T
99T€8  81/S0/T TTYLSNI WALSAS HNOHA
6£TE8  8T/S0/T NOILUNICQ¥O0D SID AA¥S Wi

ZLTER 81/50/T

SS0E8  8T/S0/T FOLOANNOD -S068S0S
§S0€8  81/S0/1 ¥ILIId FENT -8LOOEATAWOD
SSpE8  8T/S0/T HSYHETA¥ (OOH-SSTRZLI
SS0E@  B8T/S0/T dWWT -TZZT9SOIOA
SS0€E8  8T/S0/T ITASYD S068S0S
SS0€8  BT/S0/T ¥ILITd TENI ZTPLEOMA
§s0£8  BT/SO/T JETAT AOVEIOIYD BPRISOS
§S0€8  8T/S0/T MOISNZL €¥%8TSOS
SS0€E8 81/50/1 YILTIIS FENT S068S OS
SS0€8  BT/SO/T YOLOANNOD £SZSZMd
SS0E8 8T/S0/T N¥d TIO S068S0S
5S0€8 8T/S0/1 ADOHS -ZEPISMd
SSO0ES 8T/S0/1 Z¥3 TINV -B8LOO0EAIAWOD
SS0€E8  BT/SO/T YELTIZ FE0T 8LO0EATAWOD
SS0€E8  8T/S0/T TI0 AYID -8LOOEAZAWOD
§S0€8  8T/S0/T JOLAVAY S068S0S
5S0€8  8T/S0/T WYY TOYINOD -€SZTPSLI
SS0€8  8T/S0/T SYELTIII-OS
SSOER 81/50/1 9459 TIA -TLTYH
SS0E8  8T/S0/1 SYELTIS - SAYOYR
SS0E8  8T/S0/T VALTIA dWQd SYD Md
SS0€E8  8T/S0/T ¥ILTI HE0T -¥YNTLO¥E I¥L

TL1ES 8T/50/1

YLTES 81/50/1 YYIA LST LNWILSNI Qi€
860€8  81/50/T SOTHAYYD ZTOIHIA
£ZTE®  BT/S0/T TYINZE JIIVM
8STE8  8T/S0/T JFLYM SL IS
8STE8  B8T/S0/T AILVM »L IS
BSTES  BT/SO/T JALYM TL LS
BSTES 8T/S0/T YELVM ZL IS
8YTES 81/50/1 WM FONUNIINIVW Id DIDA
#SNYAL CAR (o8 # 0/d NOILdI¥DSEA EDIOANI

8T/S0/T ¥WILSIOFE XDFHD
AINNOD AZMOLS

WOL ‘AYIESNVID

YIONIVID

WNIATOYLAEd 13S/ILWD NIATOD

NYIWNYAd ‘ZESIdI

dT S¥OTTINAAL
OTT 'SNOIIWDINAWWOD D04
ONI¥HEANIONE 1SEM Jddvd

NId TYIDYHWWOD MNVEIIAT

ONI X74d0S OlN¥ 1IOITIZ
I SKELSAS ONILOA NOINIWOA
ONI ‘1INAZA

0717 ANIN EDNEd

ONI ¥Sn SHOIVA

FOANIA

81/%0/T0
STETEd

02606

61606

8T606

LT606

91606
ST606
71606

€ET606

21606
11606
0T606

60606

B0606

AIEWOAN

MDdHD
ajeq uny
oN 3jaoday



€

L9°999°1

0S°S¥

00-s8z’‘z
007005
00°00S'¥
00°00S‘T
00°000°€
00°000°LE
00°000°8
€E"8T
8% 80T
00°00S°2T
00°0sL’z
00°00T
00°0ST

SE°ITL

00°00S

ZS'ST0‘?

123024 20 41
897 67T
00°0SL €2
TE"TLO'Y

00°88Ss

0s°z62

TYLOL
JADEHD

abeg

L9°999°T

057 8¢
007 ¢

00°s8zZ'2
00°00S
00°00S'%®
00°00S'T
00°000°'€
00°000°‘LE
00°000'8
€EE"8T
8%'80T
00°00S°‘T
00°0SL'2Z
007 00T
00°0ST

9L 8EY
65" LLZ

00°00S
19°090'T
29" 9€S
9S°L2T'T
LL'BET'T
ST 1ST
S92V P
8376Vl
00°0SL'€e

88 VIL'Z
YYULSE'T

00" 88S

00" 08T
0s° 21T

LNNOWY

190€8  8T1/S0/T 1¥0ddNS WY¥D0dd 8T0Z NWC
0LOE®  B8T/S0/T LT0Z LZ/2T-%1/2T
0LOE8  8T/S0/T

S80E8  8T/S0/T VANIVIEN XUYONYL
EBOES 8T/S0/T JNVE TIAEA
z80€8  8T/S0/T JNVE ¥ALSAO
I80E8  8T/S0/T MNVE AVd dd
080E8  8T/S0/T ASNAIXE LEDANE TIAIA
6L0€E8  8T/S0/T FSNIAXE LIADANE ¥ALSKO
8LOE8  BT/S0/T ESNEAXE LEDANg
LETES  BT/SO/T FIIT ITIIIFN
09TER BT/S0/1 SHITdANS SWHA
090€8 8T/S0/T 130ddNS WYEO0dd ATIILINYD
¥Y1ES  BT/S50/T LT0Z/1T/21 ¥4040
E0TE8  BT/S0/T

TYTES  BT/S0/T LT0Z/ST/2T ¥3AI0
L90E8  B8T/SO/T STANVE TE999 FUIL
L90ES  8T/S0/T LI TYES €L-IM
zZ90€8  BT/50/T ¥IDIISC HITYEH B8T0Z NWL
LLTES  BT/SO/T SINNOW TIYM YILNID YIVA
LLTE8  BT/S0/T WAINED VIV NV
LLTES  BT/S0/T ¥ELNED VIVA SETEVD HOIVA
LLTE8  BT/S0/T Md LINIHVD dFALOAWOD
LLTES  BT/S0/T MOV YEINED ¥IVA
€€TE8  BT/S0/T ZETOTOST
9LTES  8T/S0/T WYEEY ANV SOVTE AMId ¥Sn
8S0€8  8T/S0/T 1¥04dNS WYYOOud ATEILIVAD
990€8  8T1/S0/T SaAvod
990€8  8T1/S0/T SAvou
8LTES  BT/S0/T

LYIE8  B8T/S0/T LTI0Z ‘ZZ-8T D3A
LYTES  8T/S0/T LT0Z ‘62-ST DaEa
HSNYEL HIYA NOILdT¥DSEA ZDICANI

NI SNOILNTOS EDIJI0 OFLIN vv606
AULD ALINNWWOD NIWVMI NAVW £EP606
NOISNWYW AWADWYW 2606
OT1 SINIAZ En7T€ AIndIil %606
07T SINIAZ ENTd AINOIT 0v606
D71 SINIAH FNTE AINdIT 6€606
07T SINIAZ 2NTE AINOIT BEE06
D71 SINIAZ ENTE AINOIT LEGOG
OTT SINIAE ENT€ AINdI1 9¢606
OTT SINIAZ INTE AINDIT SE€606
41T TVNOILWN NTOONIT VE6Q6
ONI ISISS¥Y-ddI1l £€606
T ON OO ENIONIT ALYIEIT TE606
‘L NHOL ‘DITAvM T€606
§ HLIZX 'Nosanr 0€606
SOILSITUYNIWI¥ND sdr 62606
o171 adr 8Z606
JddiW NVNNATOW O SIWYD LZe06
077 dD¥N0S TIT 9zZ606
HLIIVEH NMOLAWOH SZ606
EDIA¥ES LIAEID I1O0d3d FWOH vZ606
OHOS Q¥VM HI¥NOA JIVUOLSIH £Z606
ar1 ‘LvH 2ge06
AJYO ANNINIHAD 126086

HOANZA VIEWAN
ADHHD

8T/S0/T WILSIDIW NDAHD
AINQOD AZVOLS

8I/Y0/T0 : ®3ed uny
STETEd :ON 3jxoday



00°9L9°T
00°89
go-og

BL"0TT

00" %98

Z6°0€2

007 00T
0002
00°0SZ°€
08 vz

8L T6E'E
L6 9EY'0BZ
v9 9S8

00°L6Z'L

00°862'11T

6672V

00" LeE
00°008'%

£5°68

TVLOL
prelci:te}

¥ abedq

S8 6LT
00°SL
00°SL
S8 6LT
00°s8
00°9L9'T
0089
00°0€

0Z°s0T
8S°ST

00 %95

0E LET
L9zt
(3284
LB'CT
6L°CY
08’0z
00°00T
0002
00°0sZ’€E
08'%Z

BL TI6E'E
L6'9EV 08T
v9°9s8
00°T8V’'S
00° 106
00°0s9
00°59T
00°00T
00°86Z°TT

8% ST
1s°Le

00°LZE
00°'008'¥%
LLroz
18- 02
ST LY

LNOOWY

oLTIES
oLtES
0LTES
oLTER
oLTER
E9T1€ES8
TLOES
SSTES

9Z1¢ES8
9z1¢8

[4:an:]
TITES
TI1TER
T17€E8
T1TER
TT1ES
TITER
6TTES
S0TES
ELTES
780¢€8
ETTES
ZB1ER
T81€8
90TER
9071€ES
S0TES
901€E8
90TER
0STEB

I91€ER
I9TER

ZETER
SZ1E8
3s0¢€s
Zv1ee
680€E8

#SNVAL

8T/S0/T
81/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/50/1
81/50/1
81/S0/1
81/50/1
8T/50/1

81/50/1
8T/S0/T

81/50/T
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/T
81/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/T
81/S0/1
8I/S0/T
8T/50/1
8T/S0/1
8T/S0/T
81/s0/t
8T/S0/T
8T/s0/1
81/s0/1T
8T/S0/T
8T/s0/1T
8T/S0/T

8T/S0/T
81/50/1

§T/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/SC/T
8T/SC/T
q1va

8T/50/T

# 0/a

ONIYOLINOW HJYIL OO IAL
YOLINOW LIFALS D S0Z
ONIXOLINOW SM¥OMd
ONIVOLINOW FIYTIJI FSH IO
HNIT dANOHd ¥IVATA
SYTYATE FOLINOW JVIMAYD
LTO0T LT/TI-PT/TT

q¥VYL €YD

FdV¥1 ¥IANIE SETIIZ INI
F0Idd0 ¥Od SNId

STYOISAHd ddn

ATEWESSY d/4 SST8ZLL
YANVETD WIHL /HSNYE IveE
ONILLIA

SONTd JHEENH

JILTIA

L1d8-A

aNNITE A HILVYM

FaInd WOLISIA 8T0Z AQY
WSTANOL ALID YINIDAIA
HOLYW ALNNOD

SEdd NOILIVINdOd

E55Y NIWAVY I¥N0D LOI¥NLSIA

az

BTI0C SEANA 4dIHSATEAWIN OD¥YN

FONYNHINIVW L30d YHOS
dONVNIINIVW I30d VHEDS

TYINIA FLYANI ADNIOAIWI
LNEWELYLS LT0C dFEWEDIA
TIDNEd /43dV¥d /Ad0D
SEITIANS

SAITIANS

NOILdI¥DSAA HOIOANI

YILSIDFE ADHHO
ALNNCOD AHAOLS

ONI S3DIAEd NOILDHLO¥d
ONI TOMNINOD OISAHd
d OTIONY 'ININLAd

NILSOV ‘ENNOESO

ONT LO43d dADIJI0

HINED HLIVEAE TYNOILVANDD0

SESTEEYEINT OLAY ATIIE™. O
ESIM JOLTYIY-VATIN
YIYNSYEIL ASN

YAVAAN 40 LS-INIZVOWN AIN
NOILVXVL 1d3d A3IN
SEUNOSEY NYWNH IdIT AIN
YATIOULAWOD AAN

YIATTIOULIWOD AN

YITTOULAWOD AIN

0DV¥N

LD} d5 ADNIDYEAWE TYAIDINOKW
2071 TYINIZA SdW

L I¥IE0N “STUAOW

HJOANIA

81/v0/10
STETEd

£9606
29606
19606

039606

€S606

85606

LS606
95606
$5606
%5606
€S606
25606
TS5606

05606

6V606

8¥606

LY606
9v606

Sv606

ATHWAN
p.oiciite]
o3eq uny
ON 3x0d3y



6%°CL PITES 8T/S0/T 1S D TLE/OA LINA IS D S

(43843 vITEB  B8T/S0/T FOV¥VD IS € S ¥0T
96 ZE vITER  8T/S0/T IS NOIINS
zZE'2€ vITE8  8T/S0/T M¥¥E DA IS T N S02Z
16°LE vITEB  BT/S0/T wAu Q¥ ENIAVY TTVINVAS 00§
vE FTIC PITES  BT/S0/T OWISY¥D IS D S T2
%1 €SS PITES  B8T/S0/T INTd ¥IM IS HINOS M00T
¥ 02 PTITER  8T/S0/T MEYd  SNEWITD WYS 06%
ov' S8 vITEB  BT/S0/T TI¥C TPE AMH SO TT6
85 82T PITE8  8T/S0/T 0S IS D S So¢
67 €21 vITER  8T/S0/T 0S IS D S €02
€€ 8L »ITES  8T/S0/T ¥a IS 2 § 102
69°062 vITEB  8T/S0/T Z/1T dOHS a¥ T70L 00T
LS TLT PITEB  8T/SO/T 9078 d¥ TI0L OTT
80 8% PITER 8T/S0/T 9a78 a¥ TI0L OET
99921 vITES  8T/S0/T JOLSLSEY IS O N 18E
00°6ZT vITEE  8T/S0/T LINR IS O N SPT
86°9L PITES  8T/S0/T SEY Q¥ LHOIYMLYYD ZT9Z
69 672 PITER  8T/S0/T ¥ 1S AVM NOANVD TE¥
L9 88 vITES  8T/S0/T ISHAWNE LHDIAMLAVYD 0192
LT LTI ¥ITEE  8T/S0/T IHDIT IS SYENOISSIWWOD DS
86106 yITEE  8T/SO/T SIHOIT IS ALID WINIDNIA
0D ¥IMOE DIJIDVd WHNEIS SL606
00 €S2 00'S0T SITEE  8T/S0/T EOJITO) /NEDOYIIN
00 87T S1TES 8T/S0/T SaI10s /SAOE /HdA
TYINIWNOYIANT WHYIIS PLE06
0S'9T 0S'9T ZLOE8  BT/SO/T LT0Z L2Z/2T-v1/21
N2TTV¥ NVINE ‘JVOHS €L606
00°2ZTT 00°9S 960€8  8TI/S0/T ATIN FLVANI
00° 9% v60€E8  8T/S0/T VTIN FLYWNI
ONI SHOINEIVLSIA NAVWAFHS Z2L606
0S5 €LT'2 0S5 €LT'2 LITES  8T/S0/T SHOCE MOTId
FLLENO0OHD HIAILS TL606
00°000°0T 00°000°0T ¥90€8  8T/S0/T I¥0ddNS WY¥O0¥d AT¥ILYYAD
ONI JAINFADLEY SANYW INIVS 0L606
0L %81 6L'SET 8TITES 81/s0/1T DIT MYVYAS /NOILVOITAdY AW
16°8% 8ITEE  8T/S0/T ANITALEDY /NIDAXO
ONI 024dn¥ 69606
19° %92 19°%92 D60€E8  8T/S0/T aISANESTA INIWHSINNYD
NVEQ I9€0d 'SINEH0R 89606
00" ¥¥9 00" ¥%9 v9TE8  8T/S0/1 WELSAS ONIL¥OAT SWE/FHIJ
ONI ‘SWIISAS ONIL¥OJTH L9606
00708 0005 I2TES  8T/S0/T dIMM
ONI ‘Esnamy 99606
00°SL8'¥ 00°000°‘2 ESTER 81/50/1 HOVA¥LNO I¥L VIAEW
00°000°'2 ESTER  8T/S0/T ONILDIYVYW TYIDS SNOILYTHN
00°SLE ESTER 8T1/50/1 ONILIJOdTY ‘ONINOLINOW
00° 008 ESTE8  8T/S0/T ¥d ¥ ONILINIYNW
ONI SHIDALVYELS avd 59606
00°006°T 00°006°T 0%1€8  BT/S0/T LTO0Z/ST/2T T1149¥
¥IMOd ESVHOUNL ¥9606
$9°5L0°2 2Z'6%9 0ETES 8T/S0/T HD - OIQWY H¥Id WWOD
ZL 909 0ETE8  BTL/SO/T SL NLS - OIQYd HdId WWOD
00" SL 890€8  BT/S0/T I¥H4008 YHINED AOOMADOT
00°SL 890€8  BT/S0/T IZAALS D S ZLE
00°SL OLTES  BT/SO/T 000A
TYIOL INNOWY #SNWEL FLYA # 0/d NOILAI¥OSEA FOIOANIL YOANIA MHEWON
MOFHD MDEHD
8T/S0/T ¥ILSIDANW ¥DFHD 81/¥0/10 : @3eq uny

s abeg ALNNOD AZHOLS STETEd :ON 3z0day




9

29'9%
VS SPE’EE
0L LBE'T

60°98%

00°sZt

00°002

11°850°'1T

B afenn
AOEHD

abeg

6S'8TT
68°L6S
CSTLTT
ZZ'1Ivy
[4 2RI

65°8CL
0Z°8L

0z 8L

16°282
96°BET
26°¢S

SL°2ST
65° 82T
£€8° 991
L9 07T
65" 82T
gz 8L

6L°BST

29" 9%
¥S SPEEE
oL"L86'T

9S8 LLE
68°9T1
-9¢€°8

00-s2T

00°0S
00°0ST

¥8° 202
LS PP9
I0°TOT
€£€°LOT
91" €€
zg' e
gL* €12
€9°EVE
€9° 99
8STLEO'T
99°9¢€T
6S°9ET
v8-0Z1l
vr°oe
6V VES
28°S08°T
¥Z' 9t
v0"PSE
LE" S8BT
91" ¢t
81" LCT
0¥ 6€

LINOOWY

zeies
[4A%%:]
[4A%x:]
zeZtes
zetes
ceties
zzies
zzties
[ax:]
CCTES
(4493 ]
(444 ]
(449 :]
[4412"]
zZT1eR
zzZtee
60TER
60TES

Z0TE®
s90¢es
SYTER

S9TES
S9TES
G9TES

¥v2TES

TETER
S60€E8

Y11€E8
»11ES
YITES
vitES
?11E8
pITES
YIi1ES
pl1ER
YT1ES
yTIER
14931
498X
yiies
vitee
vitlER
y11ES
y11€E8
yI1€ES
¥11ES
PTLIES
YT1ES
YIIES

#SNTUL

81/S0/1T
8T/S0/1
8T/SC/T
8T/S0/1T
8T/sc/t
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/1T
8T/so/t
8T/S0/T
81/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/1
8T/S0/1
81/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/1
81/S0/T

81/S0/1T
8T/S0/T
8§1/50/1

81/S0/1
81/50/T
81/S0/1

81/50/1

81/50/1
8T/S0/T

8T1/50/1
8T/S0/T
8T/50/T
8T/50/T
8T/50/T
81/50/1
8T/50/T
8T/50/T
81/50/1
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/T
B8T/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/50/1
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/SC/T
81/50/1
8T/S0/T
8T/S0/T
8T/50/1
8T/50/1

4L9a

8T/S0/T

IS O 2Lt

LOd3a HO
JLOA

1¥0ddNS WY¥D0dd ATIZLAYND
SEXVYL dSNOH Y¥ddO0

SEITANS ONINVITO
SHITdANS ONINVITD
ANNATE

SHdOTIANE ONINNVI4

TO¥INOD LSEd dOCMMDOT
TOJLNOD 1sdd

ESHE¥IA IHOINMIYVYD 0T9T
(NIVINNOJ) @d3d g¥ TIOL 00T
SILHOIT d¥LS HD 30 NMOL

¥ 40 € /LS NOINN 09T
M¥Vd (J¥ HONWY T¥3d 000T
XAV¥d HOA Q¥ S¥IdWE Tv1Z
¥ LINN AM NOANUD 0Z7%

g LINN AYM NOANYD 0C%

LS D N S8T

¥a Nd¥3d SOLT

JQ¥ HONWY I¥Hd 008

SIHO9IT 1S D S TES
SIHO9IT 1S D S 2Zvt
SLHDIT IS O N 9LT
ESA0OHIAINOD 1Is & § 92
NOANYD HTIW XIS 0222
LO0ddd HO LINA 1S NIVW
(ONINIWVIL) IS O N T¥T
SHEJIId IS O N

AYYdTIVE LS NOSIYO

OA IINN IS O §

IHOIT T¥d/JY00ALNO LS O §

NOILdT¥DSHEA ZDIOANI

¥ELSIDAY MDFHD
ALNOQD AZUOLS

WELSAS ¥ILYM 02 1S
d3ATYIHS 0D 1S
(DA) YEINED dOINIS 0D IS

IDI¥LISIA TOOHDS OO LS

III £ JINIWOQ 'INOTIVAES

¥Ed D77 SEIALSNANI HIITS

ONI TOXLNOD 1LS3d WJdHIS

JOANEA

81/%0/10
STeTEd

Z8606
18606
08606

6L606

BLE06

LLEDS

9L606

YIEWON
ADIHD

93eg uny

ON 3x0day



T1°022°LSS IYIOL SMOEHD

61" 8T 61 8T 9€TES  BI/SO/T JITdLS ALOA RAYEH
SSITHOD ‘TOOM 86606
09° 80T 09° 8¢ ozTEe  8T/S0/T AVEL INVND
0005 0ZTE8  8T/SO/T WJ04IT00 TVIOL
BYT TYINZWNONIANT N¥ILSaM L6606
LE"89T'T L6 89T'T 8ZTIER 8T/S0/T qOOMMD0T LTI0Z YHAEWIAON
AY¥ES ¥OINAS XINNOD FOHSYMA 96606
0T L02 0T L0ZT YETEB  BT/SO/T ADOTODIXOL MOO¥EANIVLS
YANONOD 0D FOHSYM 56606
Z8 082 zZB'0SzZ 8ETER  8T/SO/T FHYILAY TTE8990€S6
ONI ‘NYTd SDIANES NOISIA ¥6606
00°9S% 00°2ZE vL0E8  BT/SO/T
00" %Z¥ 7LOE8  8T/S0/T LT0Z LZ/T1-%1/21
ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIOWIA £6606
TL 2ZPT'T TL2vT T SETE®  BI/SO/T T d¥D SNI TYLNHQ FEWILHY
0D SNI HAUVOHLIVAHAILINA Z6606
00" 0EL'Z 00°0EL 2 ZETER  BT/SO/T
ONT ‘SEIDOTONHOAL ¥HTAL 16606
00°0BZ L 00°08Z'L SLTER  8T/SO/T NO¥ IINANOD FSNOHIVNOD
ONI DJI¥LOETE HAWAINEL 06606
90°6%2°S 8V EEE‘T 911€8  8I/SO/1 SLTSIA 85 9IF
Ly Lst‘e 91T€E8  BI/SO/T FNFIENS AHD 6ST OTIA DHD
TT'8SL'T 9TTE®  8T/S0/T 092 SIQ 009 DFY
071 WNAFTOELEd SYWOHL 68606
SL 696 SL 696 L60EB  8T/S0/T TI¥L I¥ SIHOIT FAILSNO
ANFIYWNHEHL 88606
0S°21T 05°2IT SLOE8  BT/SO0/T
HSNOH ONILSYOY FHL L8606
00°00S 00°00§ LLOE8  BT/SO/T NDISEA QWD ILNZEAHT DHJAS DA
AONEOV SOINV HHL 98606
00°S€ 00°SE 00TES  8T/S0/T
JT1 IDILON ISHL S8606
00°0%6 00°2¢L €LOE8  BT/SO/T
00°898 €LOES 8T/S0/Y LT0Z LZ/ZI-%1/2T
SESIUJYILNG ¥VEd NNS ¥8606
S$§°z0T ss'zoz 6YTE8  BT/SO/T €/¢ JATVAHS
‘SNOILVOINAWWOD ¥Y.LSZIYLS £8606
z9'Z8T'€E 96" ¥E ZZTE8  BT/SO/T
Z8° 99 Z2TE8  BT/SO/T
TYLOL INNOWY #SNWAL FL¥A % 0/4 NOILJI¥DSEA EDIOANI HOANEA HAEWON
MDEHD MDFHD
8T/S0/T N¥ALSIOIW MDIHD 81/%0/T0 : @3eQ uny

L abeq ALNNOD AZAOLS STETEd :ON 3Jxodey




YINOISSINWOD

81/S0/T dLVA XDAHD

TT°0TZT LSS

IYLOL SADFHO

NOILVZI¥OHLOY UNY MIIAZE A0 LNEWIDTITMONIOV




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 16, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1. Title: For possible action, approval of the Treasurers Report for December 2017.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Report is attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:

y — Department Head Department Name: Treasurer

\/_D \'\"(& ounty Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved ] Approved with Modification

[
] Denied [ ] Continued




LB'TSIWLLT § TEL88'TS 6Z'EIWS 787555 606665 E€LI1€98 S OSTIESZS OT680L S BTILEWBES 90'69T'v9S § T0°'89Y'9LE §  1VIOL ANWIOD

- $ = S - $ < $ = S - S 1SI0 2d
& $ 1510 xd
= $ - $ =5 5 = s - S - $ 1510 XW
- $ = S = $ . $ = $ 1510 2d'Xd
2SIW
VU9BE'Y6 § TEZL88'TS - S BYT99'SS ITTC  $ 9L099ET § [BTIT 5 OUSLE $ 0905 5 OBVSCY S LOVSIT $ U6G6C9E § BIUISBSI § BUEE6Etr 5 bGBIS $  DISNNIVIOL
uawdedsang
9vSZ'v6  § 86'V88T S 16¥S9's S LLS $ TEEPIET $ TLTT $§ €9GLE § 6T0ST $ SSESTY § TSTSTT S LVSTIE S 6VIGLBT $ 898/8Er $ ¥SBIS S 8T0Z/LT0Z
89°TET § E£C L] L6'9 $ wESI $ S891 $ ST0 $ Lo $ 180§ STS $ SST S vy $ 6I'€T S 08¥S s - $  ¥ORd IWVLOL
BITET § €£7 S 169 $ VEST $ 5891 $ STO S o $ 1£0 $ §TS $ SST S Wy S BTET $ 08vs $ £102/9102
- 5 = $ = $ - $ $ = $§ = $ s $ = $ = $ °# $ = 5 = §f I% S 1e303qns
5 s 910Z/5102
- S S10Z/¥10Z
vI0T/€102
= S €107/710T
= s 2107/1102
- $ T10Z/0102
- S 0102/6002
* $ 6002/8002
< S 8007/£00¢
YOSSISSY
€£'S97°089°T § - S 6TEWwS = $ TUEPE'y § 6V'960°€97 § OVLTT'ZS ZL'SLY'LS 6v8hL'v S €6°(b0°78 S EVLSO'DZS TZGSY'OLS 09T95S9E § 85'SE202S § LU'6P6'SEE S SIVIOL L¥0d3y
= s pamndas punyay
££°692°089'T $ - $ 6TEWS . $ ITEPEY $§ 60'960'€9Z $ OV L2T'T$ 2LSLI'LS 6vBYL'Y S E6'Lv0'TB § EV'LSO'VZ $ ZT6Sb'0L$ 09°T95'S9E § BS'SET'OTS §  LV'6V6'SEE $  QIYNDISIVIOL
0S°€5Z'T99°T § . $ - $ 00428 $ 0€0££'09Z $ 6L'80T'ZS 6b2TL'L$ 10S0L'v$ bYEGOETB S 0ZOVR'ET S TSOEB'69$ V6'ZOEZ9E $ B8S'SEC'0ZS $ VETSZ'BCE $  BT/LTIVIOL
- S 55955V [2199dS
0SEST'TIOT § 00£Z8 § O0£0££09Z $ 648017 $ 6VZITLS TOSOL'Y S PEGOET8 § 0ZOYS'ET $ TSOE869 S vEZOC'ZT9E & 8SSETOTS § YETIST'8LE § 8102/L102
v6'8rs'8T  § - $ - s - $ TTIIS'E $§ 6T'99gc $ T9BT $ €ZE9 $ 8YEr S 6SBEL $ €TULICZ 0§ TLBL9  § 998§TE S . $ €1'869°L $ HONdIVLOL
8906TIT S - S < § = S 68ELE'T $ TEISYT $ 60TT  § 600y $§ ££97 0§ LLvSy  $ GLEET S €UUU8E S 8v900'T S SLU6EL'Y  §  (T0Z/9toz M0
ssassy |enads
68EE6'T S TEOSK'T S 60TT S 600v S L£9 0§ LLwSy S GLEET S €T48E S 8¥'9007 S SLeEL'Y  $ £102/9102
9T'8SE'L $ ZT8S'T § LT'606 $ TsL $ YI'EZ § TLOT  § I8EsT  § wvEs $ 8wz $ srset § 0 - $ 8e8S6'T $ |e303gns
98'6EC'Y S L9TEOT $ 8T'SOS $ BV $ 10§ 6C6 $ 89LST § 9E9v S OUYET S (9569 S = S T9EP9T  §  9T0Z/ST0Z |eioL
55355y |e1padg
L9TEQT $ 8BI'SOS S BI'P $ 10T § 626 $ 894ST  § 99y S OTYEL S 19569 S T9EP9T S stoz/stoz
20°LEY S 6TOST  $ 8Z'8Y $ oro $ €£T S 680 $ LostT S ey S €87r $ 0599 $ - $ OT4ST $  sT02/bT0Z e30L
ssassy |enads
20LEY S 6TOET $ 878y $ oo S €€T $ 680 S Lost $ vy $ €871 $ 0599 S 0T ST $ ST0Z/%T02
PLLIY S 16091 S 88y $ oro S E€£T S 680 $ LO0ST S E¥Y $ €8 $ 0599 S OT'LST S vI0T/€10T
s S £107/2102
POETT'T S SYesT $ EsL0E $ €52 S Lt'S $ t9's $ 0096 s e $ s S TISETY S £5°000T S TT07/T10T
. $ 1107/0T02
- 3 0102/600T
- $ 6002/8007
. S 8002/L00T
- S £002/9002
w101 %TY/V  LNJYAO  %9¥/V  SAINIYN3d  ¥IWI/3HiE H1NOA DIVANI  a3W ANy avis nov dvd 80 HJS dOHIS a9 1SNANI L EELED] HIWNSYIYL
S9T 90S9€-T00 tOIYE-TO0 100 0sz 100 S8T 010 (745 050 091 oSt 00S-T00 100

L107 J3qanag



00" 00"
00" co*
-007000°000°T 0"
-Z9-022'SET 00"
-€8°0¥T1°LOZ 60"
~SE°6YE'BEL'E 00"
00* 00"
9€°L68°0TT 00*
00" 00"
“LBTLBL YTZL 06"
~E0°BTIE 00"
-ZT°08% €01 00"
-¥E0SE 6LL°T 00"
-06°LSE ‘22T 00"
00" 00"
-B6'EE€Z‘SE 00"
-ST*¥SE b2 00"
-BLTOLS'EY 00"
-0%"€9%°956 00"
-2Z E€€9°S0T 00~
-29° L0926 00"
~8L 6LT 'EBY 00"
-00° 08 00"
-EL°9ET'E90°E 00~
-€L"6LL ZES (]
00° 00"
-00°039 00"
-00° 000 ‘000 00"
-Te'LTYesT Y oo*
~ELTSBZ PSE°T oo~
-ZT 6E9°E82°Y 60"
-LS"SE6EYS 60"
G0*STZ ‘€% 00°
-LZT*9L8 78 co*
00" 00"
€o" 6o~
¥ 6¥9°65 00"
-TT° 116 00"
-18°6T6'TES 00"
00°* 00"
-98°CEL 06w 00*
-08°9TL 6ET 00"
00°002 00"
00°060°C 00"
06700T'T 00"
0E"6EY 00"
0L*%E8'BLT'® 00"
05°202'6ST L 00~
LETIT' LSY'S 00*
00° o0*
00° 00°
0L €21°§ 00"
9E* L¥6'B 0o"
oo’ 00"
FONTIVE ONIOGNE 100 SHZ4SNval

T abeg

00°
00"
00°
00"
00"
00"
00"
00’
00’
00"
00"
oo’

0o’
0o’
00°
00°
00’
00°
00"

00’
00"

00’

00"
00’
00’
00"
00"
00"
00"
00’
00"
00°

NI suzasnvar

00"
00~
00"
00°
00"
61°BET'T
00
81" te
o0”
00"
Qo*
00"
oo
eo*
oo*
oo*
co*
o0
oo
(]
co*
oo
00"
00"
00"
oo*
00"
00"
-S6°Z€9
co*
oo*
oo”
oo
oo
oo
[l
oo*
oo*
0% 919" T
00*
00"
~Z8"¥8I'E
00"
00°
o0
00"
00"
oo
00"
00
00"
00°
0o*
oo*

00"

00"

00"
¥2-0ZTL'8BE
0o0*
TS"SOT'6LY
op*
69°6PL 0%
oo*

00"

00"

o0"

oo*

oo*

00"

00°

00"

00*

00*

00°

00"

g0

00"

00"
ZLTTOL'ET
00"

g0*

90°
€L°9S€'S2
00°

00*

00"

00°*

00°

oo

00"

00"

06"

T16* ¥86 ‘12
00

oo

0S*' 818 “vS6
00"

00"

00"

00"

00"

00"

-TE"LE€6 "ELS Y

00"
00"
00"
00"
00*

SEAEONOA NEAOL STI0UAYA

L1I0Z/21 ¥0a

Q0"

00"

00-

£6°692

00"
SL°91P’9S
00°
50°5€9°5Z¢
00°

00"

00
TL709€E°T
00"

00~

00"

8L T®9°T
00"

00"69¢
0S°LED'6
00"
(3004 T A% 44
9Tt LLe“9tT
oe*oZ

18" LSS €LY
£0°652’¢6
0e”

00"

00"
90°3BE€°0T
00~

¥0 ¥8L €T
00~

00°

0o~

00"

00"

00"

00° 00T

€8 LSZ'6ET
00°
85'S8S‘E
LB Z99'6LL 0T
00°

00"

00*

00°

00°

00"
~¥LTE9°SET TT
0o*

00°

oo”

00~

00"

SINIWESANESTA

LIZHS ONIDNYTIVE ATHLNOW
ONTLNNODDY S.dZANSYIEL
YIUNSVEUL ALNNOD XHAQLS

00"
00"

00"

-YZ TET¥S
oo’

-TY' 990'LE9
00"

-90' 16Z°LS
00°

00°

00"
-00"SL¥'¥E
00"

00’

oo*
-¥S'006°T
-Z8 TS5 ‘¢
-00' 066
-%6'8€0 ' TIST
-18°%99'2
-9T' 660 ¥L
-8T'3LT VEE
-00°0S
-00°099°'T¥9
=49 T09'TE
00"

00°

00"
-9T°60L'9Y
-¥E'836°ST
00
-08°TIE°S2
00

00"

00"

00"

00-
-00°00¥

-%S 98E 2L
00"
-60°666'Y
-08'909°SBS €
00*

00"

00*

00°

00"

00"

L BIT TIER 'S
00"

00"

00"

00"

00"

S14I303¥

00"

00
-00°000°000°T
-567 610022
-€870FT LOZ
~0P EVIEEET

00"
~0G'6L9°L6T

00”

-LBLBL ¥TL
~€0“BIE
-£B°S9E'D8
-vE'0SET6LL T
-06°LS8'221

00"
-ZZ'SL6'BE
-€£€'208'5T
-BL'SS6'8Y
-96° 125518
-T%" 896 ‘20T
-66"65L°09
-9L'08L LIE
-00*0S
-$5 YE0'S60 '
-1B'BET ' ¥¥E

00"

-00"0399
-00°000'000°T
-6¥°89L'9%2'T
~6E LTE'BTE T
-9T E€THLOE'T
-L0°b29'8TS
00°STZT'E%
-LT°9LB P8

00*

00"

¥5'679'66
-Tt 119
-T%*2z6€229

0o*
-S€°220'68¥
-§5°90¥‘sez’s

00002

00" 0002

o 00T T

0L'6EF

oL"v68'8LT S

05°Z0DZ'6ST L

S9°S9¥SET LT

00"

00"

0L EZT'S

9E LYE R

00"

qEvYM¥0d "IV

ONIOTIOH SaXYL QZ¥NDES
ONICTOH SIXYL QEANDISNA
FEId 1J300¥d TVIIAWD
ary TYnINW

ADNZDEIWE T¥IS
LOI¥LSIC FALd

HSNOE Y¥Ed0 §¥3dId
KOISSIWWOD WSIMNOL A
NOISSIWACD I5A

LOELO¥E TIVE oA

aNN3 OUTE TIYL §,32I¥FHS
SINYNO TYIZAFS

NOVEAYA TWl

aNng xued

L3N Idl

AN L¥N0D FITLSAC
INIQIDOV INEDIANI
I¥N0D LOINULSIC

EIVLS

aNNa AOOTONEITL

1830 TOOHDS

T00EIS

L¥N0J SN¥a

00¥YA STIEM ANOE ¥asn
¥EMES FAIAIQ VINIODNWIA
ALID VINID¥IA S0 NMOL
T7IH Q709 30 NMOL
NOILWZITIAYLS

WILSAS YALYM

ANOE  FUOIONULSYAANT
SLOECONd TYII4WD
NOILIISINDOY INIWAINDA
FOINHAS

AI¥ TYOLON

IOINLSIA F¥Id
ADNEOWEWE 2UId

FHId

NOIINLILSEY

savwoy

X¥L- FONVISISSY INIOIANI
TYOIQEW INSOTIANT
TRIINES

YOSSESSY HSYD ALLIEd
44I¥IHS HSYD ALLEE
HSYO ALLE&

SNICD @10

INNOJDY dIST ILYLS
LIDAYH ASNOW 0DWVE 5TTEM
LXOCJOY IO 02EYE STIIM
SATYS ALN¥IC0Ed ¥ J0 €
SO¥YDD NNWE SSENISNE
MNVWE NI HSWO

ONIQTOH LdNOD IOIYLSIA
HSYD ¥asSn 09¥¥E STI3M

008
oce
08¢
oce
09T
0se
1314
0ET
ize
oze
(g4
902
00z

68T
LBT

¥Zo0
0zZo
SsT0

T00

ROIId1¥05ad Lov

TS*BE*8C §T/60/T0 =uny
00TZHL ‘ON 3x0day



JuUnowy

LT/2z/eT
Lt/ze/et
Lr/zez/et
LT/zz/ZT
LT/zz/et
L1/zz/Ct
LT/90/2T
LT/90/2T
LT/90/2T
LT/90/CT
LT/90/2T
LT/90/2T
LT/90/2T
LT/TT/TT
LT/TT/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/60/TT
LT/€T/0T
LT/ET/0T
LTI/ET/0T
LT/T0/6
LT/T0/6
LT/8T/8
LTI/%0/8
LT/0Z/L
LI/0Z/L
LT/LO/L
LI/€Z/9
LT/€0/¢
91/60/CT
91/60/2T
91/LZ/0T
9T1/% T
91/
wa“
9T
9T/

w0
—
—~
OOMAONATNNNWOVY
ANOAHAAOONHOOO Hrird
e e T e T T e T e e T e
CUVWCNOMOVEEERARNNORNO

n
~
=2
o~
~
SN

23ed 23Yd

LT/TE/2T - 00/00/0C
#309UD woxd
syoayD butpueisano
ONIILNNODDY S.,¥3dNSYIYL

666666 UBNOAUL T

ALNOOCD AHYOLS

d T7IssnNd ‘ NOANY¥d
NII¥YN ‘OQIATZY

QLT LNIWAOTAAAG SAY
IA¥ES HONIYHANODHTAL LRIV
AIOONY ‘0AO¥AY
JIZI¥YOHLAV SINIIGIVYO NYIY
ONI ‘HAILYZED NOXT HOVZ
ONI S¥N0L ALID YWINIDIIA
(0A) 3DI3J0LSO4d SN
FTLIVO 3 ANY'I ONHY

d OIZONY ‘INIY¥LIA4

¥LD ALINQMWWOD NIVML MIYW
0d FOVEYD AYIHIIAO NIASNVH
ONI S¥N0L ALID WINIDIIA
d OTAODNY ‘INIYLIE4

SI¥HD 'dOOH

O ENAYM ‘MOIMA¥YH

DNOd ‘SNOYE

SX0dMOD INOLSHWOL FHL
YSSITEW ‘dTdId

YIDINIVE ® INYd ‘SIAVI
a¥Y0d ONIZVED YAVAEN
HIIYHH NMOLEWOH

FAYS ¥ SSYIO ‘MO0T M R D
I¥d ‘NALILIHM

YEAINNAL ‘SLLIO&

NOYVHS 'CauvNaad

OTT TIIW ATI09 XDOLSWOD
SHSI¥d¥IING XVYad NAS
dJ0D ONINDNEL FLITIIANIO
OTT HOILON LS3EL

HSUHAWIW FATYSITOHM ODLS0D
SHSI¥d¥AING MVdad NOS
¥SIT ¥ LIODS ‘NOSIAQYW
SNOISSA¥YAWI HAILYAONNI
NYEd ‘SYOWAWH
SESIYIYIING NYdd NAS
BISETIED 3 NNIETO ‘NOLHDIAT
SNOISSEIdNI FAILYAONNI
Or dIgdod ‘IsIng

NOSYL ‘SNIMMVHE

qIY0d ONIZVID VAYAIN
YANOL ‘MOTIYH

EI¥EHL "HONA'T

ONI DJIDOTHIOD

NOOVEY IIYVW NNY ‘ATdEOW
VHITEYL ‘NOSHOH

ONI 999 HFF¥HL

HONH ‘L¥ODdd4Er

A¥¥VYE ¥ YANIT ‘¥EdId
NHOLD ENSZHEJING

NHOL ' A¥ES

avHD 'SNYAZ

HY¥0€dd "¥3aaNag

sweN s3Aordwm/zopuap
woxg

61:8%:80

yEOVO0?
8LTSO?
G8200T
6T9€0%
69TTOY
L90SOV
60LP07
£68E07
S¥B8TO0T
T8TSOP
S68E0¥
169%0%
£Z20S07%
£68E07%
S68E07
SZLYOY
T6TVO7
791507
T06E0¥
00TSO%
LSTSO0%
9SC1I0T
99€EV0Y
Se00T

S¥6T0T1
LTTSO?
8TISO¥
L8BEODY
C68E0Y
¥S900T
8I8%0%
LYZEOT
T68E0Y
£99707%
0PE€E0T
LL8OOT
268¢€0¥
£S6V07
0VEE0T
9€670%
80670¥
SSZTIO0T
S6870%
€L8VOP
LLIEDY
L69VO0Y
9E€LYOD
8€6E0¥
9LOVOV
0L9VOP
Z8EeE0d
6TSV0¥
T29%0%
6S6E0F

C0 66T
0C 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
0C 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
CC 661
0 66T
00 66T
CO 66T
C0 66T
CO 661
C0O 661
CO0 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
0 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661

# ucsxagd bag ueg

T 2wty unyg

8T1/80/T0

88L06 MO
98L06 AD
S8L06 MD
€8L06 MO
Z28LO6 D
LLLOBG D
0LL0O6 D
€9L06 D
19406 D
€E€L06 MO
82L06 D
80L06 D
¥6906 D
TSS06 XD
ZZS06 D
LSH06 D
£3%06 A0
8Z¥06 D
£8206 D
60206 D
¥0206 AD
£S868 MO
82868 D
95968 D
6€£968 D
65¥68 D
08€68 D
€5268 D
00268 D
61188 D
$EGL8 MO
6€PLE  MD
SHPTLS MD
L9698 D
€%.958 YD
8ELSS8 AD
9L998 MD
¥2998 MO
11998 MO
67598 MD
S6T198 D
€098 D
1z098 D
19468 D
66678 D
06£€8 MD
05Z€8 D
L1628 D
16S28 MO
SL¥Z8 MO
¥o¥zZ8 MO
€L6TS MO
LEGTS MO
ZT6T8 D
# yoayp dr
T 93eq uny

Z9LTxg :oN jaodsy



LI"0LS L1/62/21 SENA NOINN/IWDSAY
SS°6T19 L1/6C/TT XVL ¥HLAY SNI HSYM/AIAdWA
00" 0S LT/6C/CT 0D SNI FJAIT DIJIDVA
82 ¥%LZ LT/62/21 XYL dILIY IVI14Y/aId dWA
£9°628 L1/62/C1 N¥Id SZT OV14dY/a3d dwWd
00°609°S L1/6t/TT dWOD QIEIAAHA
0S°ZTL LI/62/2T (XYL-JIALIY) JWOD QIIFIIAA
€L°0S LT/6C/CT SZT °"SNI H4IT TYINOTOD
T€°8 LT/62/CT INIGIDOVY TYINOTOD
99° 9% LT/62/CT gdd S¥Hd QIZI¥YOHINY STdWH
€6°9€L 91/80/% FONYINSNI FAIT
€S EFT'T ST/60/0T1 dNANg FIAOTINWI/TYOIAENW
€L°08 ST/¥1/8 SZT °"SNI JJIT TYINOTIOD
TL°0T ¥1/S1/8 ¥O/NOILDITIOD dFF3d JIIITES
00°000°9 :Te3oL 9dAL
00°000°9 LT/%0/21 0717 dNO¥D ddLIod
€€ L¥6‘T0C :Te30L °dAL
9T TLS LT/2Z/21 YT TYLNIWNCAIANT NIALSIM
05°L8S‘L L1/2z/CT H0IAA0 SAITYIHS 0D HTOHSUYM
00°88T L1/ze/ct ONI S¥N0L ALID VINIDIIA
00°00T L1/zz/zt MIYd ANDA
00°62 LT/ze/zT MEIANY ‘SYWOHL
05°600°‘S L1jee/zt MAYW ' QY0JdIVILS
00°S6C Lt/Tz/TT TYLNEWNOIIANT TAEAIS
00°L02 L1j/zz/TT ONI ©Dddand
00°0S2 LT/22/21 DONI SZEIDHELYELS ¥y
00°L02 L1jzez/et ONI SdIMOE AANLId
00°29 LT/ce/TT d OTEONY ‘INI¥lAd
68°L0C L1/jze/et NIISNY ‘INJOESO
SL ELZ Lt/zZ/TT ONI IHOISNIWNLJO
0S"TTI¥‘C Ltjzz/ecT HINZD HILIVIH TYNOILYINDDO
00°S6 Ltjze/et HITH TYNOIIVANDDO YAVAEN
00°SZT Lt/zz/zt SAINJOLLY IOINISIA YAVAIN
00° 00T LT/22/2°1 (ONY) i1 NI YAYAEN
00" LE Lr/ze/zt g0TYA EOYL ISONO0H ANACK
00°SSZ LT/TZ/TT dId00 ATIWYS dO¥HLY'I
6%° 8 LT/2C/CT NI SHOIA¥ES ENIT FOVNONYT
00°S2 Lt/zz/et ¥Oo3Edy NYQdoLr
0€°85L°'82T Lt/zz/et TYES AYdNTS NIYINNOWAZINI
08°CS¢E Lr/zefet SNOISSHIIWI HFAILTAONNI
0528 Lt/zz/et ONT ANVIavods 10dS LOH
00°0€ET LT/2z/CT SIY¥HD 'dOOH
00°0S2 LT/2z/CT SI¥HO ‘NITHEWYH
PETTEE’T Lt/zz/eT WNFTO¥LAd LEAS/ELYD NIAATOD
I H9E’T LI/zz/et 47 SYDTIFIIAA
00°000'% LI/zz/et 107T0S ONILINSNOD FAILYIED
00°¥¥T LI/ez/eT IYANQOE A¥ILEWED MOOLSHOD
I%#°1%€ LT/ze/ect AN 40 FDIAYES NOILDITIOD
€L LEE'Z Lt/ze/et dIES¥INIIYd O0DTTIID
00°S2 Lt/zz/TT TO¥VYD ‘' IYHOOL
86° €2 L1/ze/et TYNOISSEAOEd 3 SSEANISNS
0S°STT LT/ce/Tt SIMIT LILODS ‘TI73ddnd
Junowy 223ed o3 sweN 29AcTdwg/Iopuss

666666 UbnoIylL T

z abeg

LT/TE/TT - 00/00/0
s3o3ud burtpurasano

ONILNNODDY S.YTINSTIAL

woxs

#309UD wozxd

€T:8%:80

ALNNCD ZAHYOLS

Z0%006
LOEOOS
€£0€006
ZOE006
TOE006
00€E006
662006
T0Z006
002006
S$50006
€1TI006
LOTOO6
T02006
ST9006

TLOVOV

LETEOT
CE6TOT
£68t07
£€8TS0¥
£6TS0%
8v8C0%
Z9vZ01
92001

86EP0Y
VPEVIOT
S68E0Y
L86C207
S8TT®0¥
50866

LSEVOY
60CT0T
Z2e9¢07¥
TLP00T
£€60507%
9SEYOY
88TS0%
O¥SEO¥
0PEE0T
€SLEOY
STLYOP
T6TSOV
968%0%
SLEEOD
T08%0%
066€0%
ZZ8E0Y
89Z¢E0¥
L8TSOV
€9%00T
TL9E0F

00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 661
CO0 661
CO 66T
00 66T
C0 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 6561
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
C0 66T
0 661
00 661

# uosxag besg xyueg

ORWTI unyg

8T/80/1T0
z9LTxd

666S€ dd
8§665¢ ud
L66GE ¥d
966G€ ¥d
S665€ ud
¥665€  ¥d
£66G€ ¥4
Z66G€ ¥d
166S€ ¥4
0665t ¥d
£T0GE ¥d
PLLYE ¥4
S0LPE dad
T€Zve  ud
€1 okt
88806 D
98806 D
€8806 MO
18806 D
9L806 MD
69806 D
£9806 XD
86806 D
96806 MO
T€806 D
05806 D
8%806 MO
L%806 MD
S¥806 MO
€806 D
Z¥806 D
19806 MO
S£806 M
0€£806 D
62806 D
LZ806 D
€2806 D
12806 D
0Z806 D
61806 D
91806 D
Z1806 MO
60806 D
20806 D
10806 D
66L06 YO
L6L06 D
S6L06 D
Z6L06 D
T6L06 D

# yoeyp di

: 93ed uny
tON 23xodsy



88 LYT 618 :Te3olL

88 LYT1'618 :Te30L yueg
ZE€ 186 °'18S :Te305 2dAL
00°002°S L1/%T/21 DNI TYEOTOONO 29150V 00 66T 0€LLO6 dA
TE TBL 9LS LT/%T/1T NOILONYLSNOD SHWY SE670V 00 66T 05506 dA
- €z 61T ‘62 :Te305 =dAL
8Z LE€0'9T L1/62/CT dIAYd ‘SILIND Sv6 00 661 z009€ ¥4
ZZET0‘T L1/6z/CT L DE¥D ‘SSIH (AN 00 66T 1009€ ¥4
00°09% T LT/62/2T LZZ%# DOSSY dALHOIA HJIIdA T0S006 00 66T 0009¢ ¥4
Jjunowy 23ed I23Ud 2weN ss4oTdug/Iopuss # uosIad besg jqueg # osyd di
LTI/T€/2T - 00/00/0 woxg
666666 Ubnoayl T #3o°ud woxg
S)MO8YD burtpurasano
ONILNNODDY SudTINSYIAL 61:8%:80 :* awry uny 8T/80/T0 : =23eg uny
€ abeg ALNOOD AHJOLS z9LTag :oN 3xodsy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/16/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: First reading for General Business License — CCW Instructor. Applicant is James Wes
Francis, owner of First Shot, 176 Rind Rd. Dayton NV.

2. Recommended motion: | motion to approve as part of the consent agenda the first reading,
General Business License — CCW Instructor. Applicant is James Wes Francis, owner of
First Shot, 176 Rind Rd. Dayton NV.
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Administrative Assistant
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: First reading for General Business License — CCW Instructor. Applicant is
James Wes Francis, owner of First Shot, 176 Rind Rd. Dayton NV.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

" District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
- X Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro
ZI

/h«_,..‘,// ¢/L/ (e
—

/j\v’tclﬁﬁt; Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

fr— p—
[ C—

Agenda Item No.



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

December 26, 2017

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda

Please add the following item(s) to the January 16, 2017 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSE BOARD
First Reading:
A. General Business License — CCW Instructor. Applicant is James
Wes Francis, owner of First Shot, 176 Rind Rd. Dayton NV.

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



FILED

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
Stérey Lo. Clerk
A
YNV Deputy
Meeting Date: Tuesday, January 02, 2018 Estimate of Time Required: 5 min
Agenda: Consent X Regular [] Public Hearing Required [J

1.

2,

Recommended Motion:

Department: Justice Court
Staff Summary:

Supporting Materials:

Fiscal Impact: None X
Funds Available: n/a
Legal Review Required:
Reviewed By:

J Department Head

-

&“Li/}Z-LCounty Manager

9%

Title: Justice Court Quarterly Report
Approve

Prepared By: E.F. Herrington, Justice of the Peace

775-847-0962

EOP Listings for October, November, and December 2017

Fund: [ Comptroller [

District Attorney [

Department Name: Commissioners’ Office

[l Other Agency Review

Board Action:
L1 Approve

[J Denied

[0 Approved with Modifications
[J Continued

Agenda Item No.




Virginia Township Justice Court ~ Storey County, Nevada

26 South B Street, Second Floor
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

775-847-0962 ° Facsimile: 775-847-0915
www.storeycounty.org

January 2, 2018

QUARTERLY REPORT

Pursuant to NRS 4.100, attached please find End of Period Listing Reports for October, November, and
December, 2017.

I, E.F. Herrington, Virginia Township Justice of the Peace, Storey County, Nevada, do hereby certify that
to the best of my knowledge and belief, the attached information is a full, true and correct statement of
NRS 4.100.

E.F. Herrington
Justice of the Peace

Subscribed and sworn before me
this ____ day of 20

Justice Court Clerk




VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP COURT EOP - OCTOBER 2017

ACCOUNT PAYEE DISBURSED AMOUNT
170-000-34206 AA Fee - State (AOC) NV State Controller S 6,793.00
187-000-35104 AA Fee - Justice Court Virginia Township Justice Court S 1,173.00
001-000-35103 AA Fee - Juvenile Storey County Treasurer S 338.00
170-000-35114 AA Fee - State (General) NV State Controller S 826.00
180-000-35101 AA Fee Genetic Marker Analysis Storey County Treasurer S 516.00
001-000-34245 Attorney Reimbursement Fee Storey County Treasurer S 65.00
Appeal Fee Storey County Treasurer S -
001-000-34204 Bond Processing Fee Storey County Treasurer S 131.25
001-000-34204 Civil Fees Storey County Treasurer S 161.25
187-000-35104 Civil Fees - Justice Court Virginia Township Justice Court S 241.37
001-000-35101 Chemical Analysis Fee Storey County Treasurer ) -
001-000-34204 Certified Mailing Storey County Treasurer S -
001-000-34204 Copy Fees Storey County Treasurer S 6.38
170-000-34208 Domestic Violence Fees NV State Controller S -
170-000-34214 NHP NV State Controlier S 50.00
001-000-35109 Fine - County Storey County Treasurer S 14,920.00
187-000-35111 Court Facility Fee Virginia Township Justice Court S 1,706.94
170-000-34212 Marriage Fee NV State Treasurer S 40.00
001-000-35109 Overpayments to County Storey County Treasurer S 11.00
187-000-29709 Pretrial Services Virginia Township Justice Court S 96.00
001-000-34204 Records Search Storey County Treasurer S 425.25
170-000-34217 Specialty Court Fee (MM) NV State Controller S 1,189.00
170-000-34206 DUI Specialty Court Fee NV State Controlier S -
001-000-34204 Small Claims Fee Storey County Treasurer S -
170-000-34201 Census Fee Storey County Treasurer S 2.00
170-000-35108 Bond Filing Fee VOC NV State Controller S 175.00
DISBURSED TOTAL:| $ 28,866.44
After-Hours Marriage Fees: JP S 350.00




VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT EOP - NOVEMBER 2017

ACCOUNT PAYEE DISBURSED AMOUNT
170-000-34206 AA Fee - State (AOC) NV State Controller S 5,035.00
187-000-35104 AA Fee - Justice Court Virginia Township Justice Court S 875.00
001-000-35103 AA Fee - Juvenile Storey County Treasurer S 250.00
170-000-35114 AA Fee - State (General) NV State Controller S 620.00
180-000-35101 AA Fee Genetic Marker Analysis Storey County Treasurer S 369.00
001-000-34245 Attorney Reimbursement Fee Storey County Treasurer S 2,385.00
Appeal Fee Storey County Treasurer S -
001-000-34204 Bond Processing Fee Storey County Treasurer S 93.75
001-000-34204 Civil Fees Storey County Treasurer S 146.25
187-000-35104 Civil Fees - Justice Court Virginia Township Justice Court S 258.50
001-000-35101 Chemical Analysis Fee Storey County Treasurer S -
001-000-34204 Certified Mailing Storey County Treasurer
001-000-34204 Copy Fees Storey County Treasurer
170-000-34208 Domestic Violence Fees NV State Controller S 35.00
001-000-35109 Fine - County Storey County Treasurer S 9,179.44
187-000-35111 Court Facility Fee Virginia Township Justice Court S 1,233.06
170-000-34212 Marriage Fee NV State Treasurer S 15.00
001-000-35109 Overpayments to County Storey County Treasurer S 2.00
187-000-29709 Pretrial Services Virginia Township Justice Court S 50.00
001-000-34204 Records Search Storey County Treasurer S 486.75
170-000-34217 Specialty Court Fee (MM) NV State Controller S 861.00
170-000-34206 DUI Specialty Court Fee NV State Controller S 135.00
001-000-34204 Small Claims Fee Storey County Treasurer S 48.75
170-000-34201 Census Fee Storey County Treasurer S 3.00
170-000-35108 Bond Filing Fee VOC NV State Controller S 125.00
DISBURSED TOTAL:| $ 22,206.50
After-Hours Marriage Fees: P S 210.00




VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT EOP - DECEMBER 2017

Account PAYEE DISBURSED AMOUNT
170-000-34206 AA Fee - State (AOC) NV State Controller S 5,481.00
187-000-35104 AA Fee - Justice Court Virginia Township Justice Court S 928.00
001-000-35103 AA Fee - Juvenile Storey County Treasurer S 262.00
170-000-35114 AA Fee - State (General) NV State Controller S 650.00
180-000-35101 AA Fee Genetic Marker Analysis Storey County Treasurer S 384.00
001-000-34245 Attorney Reimbursement Fee Storey County Treasurer S -
Appeal Fee Storey County Treasurer S -
001-000-34204 Bond Processing Fee Storey County Treasurer S 75.00
001-000-34204 Civil Fees Storey County Treasurer S 206.25
187-000-35104 Civil Fees - Justice Court Virginia Township Justice Court S 309.50
001-000-35101 Chemical Analysis Fee Storey County Treasurer S 180.00
001-000-34204 Certified Mailing Storey County Treasurer $ =
001-000-34204 Copy Fees Storey County Treasurer S -
170-000-34208 Domestic Violence Fees NV State Controller S -
001-000-35109 Fine - County Storey County Treasurer S 10,562.50
187-000-35111 Court Facility Fee Virginia Township Justice Court S 1,300.00
170-000-34212 Marriage Fee NV State Treasurer S 20.00
001-000-35109 Overpayments to County Storey County Treasurer S 12.00
187-000-29709 Pretrial Services Virginia Township Justice Court S 318.00
001-000-34204 Records Search Storey County Treasurer S 647.25
170-000-34217 Specialty Court Fee (MM) NV State Controlier S 901.00
170-000-34206 DUI Specialty Court Fee NV State Controller S 165.00
001-000-34204 Small Claims Fee Storey County Treasurer S -
170-000-34201 Census Fee Storey County Treasurer S 3.00
170-000-35108 Bond Filing Fee VOC NV State Controller S 100.00
DISBURSED TOTAL:| $ 22,504.50
After-Hours Marriage Fees: P S 210.00




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1-16-18 Estimate of time required: 0- 5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda (] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next

Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: . Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

___ District Attorney

Department Name:

Other agency review:

9. Board action:
(] Approved [1 Approved with Modifications
1 Denied [ Continued

Agenda Item No.



Storey County Community Bebelopment
Buginess

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 = Fax (775) 847-0935 *mfield@storeycounty.org

(AR

&2 b
i

A Licensing

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office January 8, 2017
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the January 16, 2018, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD ‘

FIRST READINGS:

A. INTERNATION FLOW TECHNOLOGIES, INC — Contractor/ 30230 Los Alamos Rd ~ Murrieta, CA
B. CONCRETE NORTH, INC - Contractor/ 10274 Iron Rock Way ~ Elk Grove, CA

C. ENCORE. — Contractor / 14830 Kivett Ln ~ Reno, NV

D. FREMOUW ENVIRONMENT SERVICES, INC — Transportation / 6940 Tremont Rd ~ Dixon, CA

E. MIKE HICKEY CONSTRUCTION, DBA: 3M ROOFING / Contractor/ 3046 Achilles Dr ~ Reno, NV

Ec: Community Development Planning Department. Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent | | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: National Radon Action Month Proclamation

2. Recommended motion: I move to proclaim January 2018 as National Radon Action Month in
Storey County.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 775-847-0986

4, Staff summary:

January is National Radon Action Month (NRAM). In Nevada, test results show that radon is
present at elevated concentrations in about one in four tested homes. In Storey County, test results
show that 31.4% of homes tested had elevated radon concentrations. Every home needs to be
tested for radon, and we are far from that goal. We hope this proclamation will help inspire more
testing in Storey County.

In recognition of National Radon Action Month, University of Nevada Cooperative Extension, the
Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health, in conjunction with the EPA, will strengthen
efforts to educate the public about the dangers of radon and what can be done to minimize the
health risk from exposure to elevated levels of indoor radon. Free radon test kits will be offered to
Nevadans during January and February. These free test kits will be available at the Storey County
Library in January and February, or by mail from the University of Nevada Cooperative Extension
office in Reno, by calling the Radon Hotline at 1-888-723-6610 to order a test kit during the
NRAM free kit period.

5. Supporting materials: Request and Proclamation

6. Fiscal impact: NONE

Funds Available: Fund: _____ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
_L~ District Attorney
8. Revi(;vgﬁy:
Q Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
KQV""\_/County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[

[] Denied ] Continued
Agenda Item No.



A PROCLAMATION DECLARING JANUARY 2018 AS “NATIONAL RADON ACTION
MONTH IN STOREY, NEVADA”

WHEREAS, many Storey County residents don’t know about radon, yet need to know, for the
safety and health of their families, as radon is a colorless, odorless, naturally occurring radioactive
gas that is the primary cause of lung cancer among nonsmokers; the second leading cause of lung
cancer in smokers and

WHEREAS, the U.S. EPA estimates 21,000 people in the U.S. die each year from lung cancer
caused by indoor radon exposure, and lung and bronchus cancer kill more people in a year than
any other cancer; and

WHEREAS, radon kills more people than secondhand smoke, drunk driving, choking, drowning
or home fires; and

WHEREAS, any home in Storey County may have elevated levels of radon, even if neighboring
homes do not, and living in a home with an average radon level of 4 picocuries per liter of air poses
a similar risk of developing lung cancer as smoking half a pack of cigarettes a day; and

WHEREAS, testing is the only way to know if a home has an elevated radon level, and testing is
casy and inexpensive, and when identified, homes can be fixed; and

WHEREAS, University of Nevada Cooperative Extension, the Nevada Division of Public and
Behavioral Health, and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency support efforts to encourage all
Storey County residents to test their homes for radon, mitigate elevated levels of radon, and have
new homes built with radon-reducing materials and features.

NOW, THEREFORE, We, the Storey County Board of Commissioners, do hereby proclaim
2018, as

“NATIONAL RADON ACTION MONTH”
In Storey County, Nevada

ADOPTED this 16" day of January, 2018

(Signature and Seal of Official)




Cherie Nevin

From: Nadia Noel <noeln@unce.unr.edu>
Sent: Monday, November 20, 2017 1:00 PM
To: Cherie Nevin

Subject: RE: Radon Presentation in Storey County
Attachments: Storey County Proclamation 2018.docx

Good afternoon Cherie,
Here is the proclamation and accompanying email. Thank you!

Nadia

Dear Storey County Board of Commissioners,

Although many people are aware that smoking causes lung cancer, not everyone knows that
breathing the air in their home can also have the same effect. In fact, an elevated radon concentration
in buildings is the primary cause of lung cancer for nonsmokers and the second leading cause for
smokers. The gas kills more people than secondhand smoke, drunk driving and home fires combined.
The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency estimates 21,000 Americans die each year from lung
cancer caused by indoor radon exposure.

I am writing to request that you proclaim the month of January as National Radon Action Month
(NRAM) in Storey County. A proclamation from the Board of Commissioners will help bring
awareness to residents in Storey County that radon is a health risk. Your proclamation would be in
conjunction with other cities and states around the country who, in partnership with the U.S. EPA, are
taking the lead in observing National Radon Action Month. We had 27 proclamations throughout the
state last year (including one from the governor and Nevada Association of Counties) and are
working to multiply our efforts this NRAM.

In Nevada, test results show that radon is present at elevated concentrations in about one in four
tested homes. In Storey County, test results show that 28.6% of homes tested had elevated radon
concentrations. Every home needs to be tested for the gas, and we are far from that goal. We hope
this proclamation will help inspire more testing in Storey County, as winter is the best time to test for
radon.

In recognition of National Radon Action Month, University of Nevada Cooperative Extension, the
Nevada Division of Public and Behavioral Health, in conjunction with the EPA, will strengthen efforts
to educate the public about the dangers of the gas and what can be done to minimize the health risk
from exposure to elevated levels of indoor radon. As part of our education efforts, we will offer
presentations across the state, so that citizens can learn more about the dangers of radon. We will
also offer free radon test kits to Nevadans during January and February, a savings of $10 per kit. For
those not able to attend a presentation, free test kits are available at the Storey County Community
Library, 175 Carson St., Virginia City, Monday through Friday from 10 a.m. to 5 p.m. Kits are also
available by mail from the University of Nevada Cooperative Extension office in Reno, NV, for a
shipping fee of $4 a kit. Storey County residents can call 1-888-723-6610 or visit www.radonnv.com
to order a test kit.




A representative from the Nevada Radon Education program will hopefully give a radon presentation
in Storey County but that date is being finalized.

Please look over the attached proclamation for January 2018 and help us educate the public on the
dangers of radon gas.

Sincerely,

Nadia Noel

Nadia Noel Radon Education Coordinator noeln@unce.unr.edu
Like us on Facebook! Nevada Radon Education

Follow us on Twitter: @NVRadonProgram

4955 Energy Way, Reno, NV 89502

tel 775.336.0252 fax 775.784.4881

Radon Hotline: 888-RADON-10 (888.723.6610)

www.RadonNV.com

University of Nevada
Cooperative Extension

The University of Nevada, Reno is committed to Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action in recruitment of its students and employees and
does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, creed, national origin, veteran status, physical or mental disability, sexual
orientation, genetic information, gender identity, or gender expression. The University of Nevada employs only United States citizens and aliens
lawfully authorized to work in the United States. Women, under-represented groups, individuals with disabilities, and veterans are encouraged to

apply.

From: Cherie Nevin [mailto:cnevin@storeycounty.org]
Sent: Monday, November 20, 2017 10:04 AM

To: Nadia Noel <noeln@unce.unr.edu>

Subject: RE: Radon Presentation in Storey County

Hi Nadia-

If you can please send me a sample proclamation and any other supporting materials by Jan 5, that would be
great. Thank you!

Wishing you the best,
Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator

Storey County, Nevada

P.O. Box 7 . 372 South C Street - Virginia City, Nevada 839440
Phone: 775-847-0986 | Cell: 775-230-1474

cnevin@storeycounty.org
Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Employer & Provider




From: Nadia Noel [mailto:noeln@unce.unr.edu]
Sent: Friday, November 17, 2017 10:01 AM

To: Cherie Nevin <cnevin@storeycounty.org>
Subject: RE: Radon Presentation in Storey County

Hello,

We would like to give a mini presentation when we receive the proclamation and an hour long presentation for the
public. We will put Jan. 16 on our calendars.
Nadia

Nadia Noel Radon Education Coordinator noeln@unce.unr.edu
Like us on Facebook! Nevada Radon Education

Follow us on Twitter; @NVRadonProgram

4955 Energy Way, Reno, NV 89502

tel 775.336.0252 fax 775.784.4881

Radon Hotline: 888-RADON-10 (888.723.6610)

www.RadonNV.com

University of Nevada
Cooperative Extension

The University of Nevada, Reno is committed to Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action in recruitment of its students and employees and
does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, creed, national origin, veteran status, physical or mental disability, sexual
orientation, genetic information, gender identity, or gender expression. The University of Nevada employs only United States citizens and aliens
lawfully authorized to work in the United States. Women, under-represented groups, individuals with disabilities, and veterans are encouraged to

apply.

From: Cherie Nevin [mailto:cnevin@storevcounty.org]
Sent: Friday, November 17, 2017 5:12 AM

To: Nadia Noel <noeln@unce.unr.edu>

Subject: Re: Radon Presentation in Storey County

Hi Nadia-

I would be happy to help in getting a presentation setup. Are you thinking of doing it at our commission meeting
again? If so, January 16 would be the date we are looking at. Please let me know what you think.

Cherie Nevin

Community Relations Coordinator
Storey County

On Nov 16, 2017, at 5:26 PM, Nadia Noel <noeln@unce.unr.edu> wrote:

Good evening Cherie,



Susan and | are working on setting up presentations for National Radon Action Month. Would you be
willing to help us set up a presentation in Storey County? | hope your week is going well and that | hear
from you soon.

Nadia

Nadia Noel Radon Education Coordinator noeln@unce.unr.edu
Like us on Facebook! Nevada Radon Education

Follow us on Twitter: @ NVRadonProgram

4955 Energy Way, Reno, NV 89502

tel 775.336.0252 fax 775.784.4881

Radon Hotline: 888-RADON-10 (888.723.6610)

www.RadonNV.com

<image002.jpg>

The University of Nevada, Reno is committed to Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action in recruitment of its students
and employees and does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, creed, national origin, veteran status,
physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, genetic information, gender identity, or gender expression. The University of
Nevada employs only United States citizens and aliens lawfully authorized to work in the United States. Women, under-
represented groups, individuals with disabilities, and veterans are encouraged to apply.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: J(Li’\ _ “01 20! 8  Estimate of time required: 0S5 min,

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title:
Review and possible approval of Infrastructure costs for the extension of Milan Drive in
the amount of $ 825,647.23.

2. Recommended motion
[ hereby approve the Infrastructure costs for the extension of Milan Drive in the amount of
$ 825,647.23.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher

Department: Comptroller Telephone: (775)847-1006

4. Staff summary: During a regularly schedule meeting of the Storey County Commission on
September 1, 2015, the Board approved improvements to Milan Drive Extension in the
amount of § 796,725. The final billing reflects and overage of $ 28.921.87 which must be
approved by the Board. This overage results from additional design and materials and has
been approved by County Manager Whitten as the Administrator for the Public Private
Partnership Capital Improvement Plan under the TRE Center Development Agreement.

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Yes Fund: Water Fund _x__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
/_/?> o\ County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. q



September |, 2015

the dirt and rock. The lot shouid be semi-graded and usable in two weeks and in time for
Street Vibrations. There may be a wall in the southwest corner.

e An Assessor's Conference, with approximately 70 attendees, will be held September 16
and 17. Tours of TRI and the Marlette Water System will be conducted as part of the
conference. This is the third government conference for Virginia City this year.

« Last weekend was the end of seven weeks of special events. The racers participating in
the weekend hill climb were very generous in donating to the senior class project.

11.BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

Commissioner McGuffey :

e The annual One Acre Association meeting was held in the Highlands last weekend.
Commissioner McBride attended and there was a good turn-out.

» Commissioner McGuffey attended a tour, along with other member of the V& T
Commission, of the rail yard. This was an opportunity to see what is going on there,
including the weekly, monthly and annual maintenance of the steam engines.

e There was a lot of very positive news coverage of the hill climb event. It sounds like this
eventis growing.

12.DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Milan Drive Extension Reimbursement of Bid Approval

Vice-Chairman Gilman recused himself from the item due to having a pecuniary interest in the
project.

Mr. Haymore presented an overview of the bid. There is a new company going in at the end of
Milan Drive in TRI, which means the road must be extended. There are two separate bids, one
for the pavement and installation in the amount of $653,787. An additional bid is required for the
design and engineering of the project. That is an additional $142,938. Some of the work was
already completed when Tesla came in.

Mr. Haymore recommends pre-approval for reimbursement when vouchers are submitted and
when the funds are available, for a total of $796,725.

Chuck Reno, Project Manager, with Farr West Engineering provided additional information
regarding the project.

County Manager Whitten said that all work done previously was considered urgent to be
completed and was done with County staff approval.

Mr. Haymore noted that Mike Nevin, Public Works Director, and Fire Chief Gary Hames provided
a lot of input regarding this project.

Mike Nevin said the project does include project management and some oversight inspections to
insure the project is being built to specifications. When it is time for the County to accept
dedication of that portion of Milan Drive, all of the paperwork will be in hand. This project will be
completed with a new type of asphailt that has a 20 year life expectancy.

Mr. Whitten stated that what the Commission is doing today is authorizing the project to go
forward. The $700,000+ will be fronted by the developer and upon completion the road will be
offered for dedication to the County. When County accepts dedication of the roadway, it will
become an obligation of the County to reimburse the developer under the Developer Agreement.

4




Commissioner McGuffey thanked Mr. Whitten for describing how this work is paid for.
Mr. McGuffey also expressed appreciation that this bid is well under the highest bid.

No public comment.

Motion: Approve the Milan Drive Extension Reimbursement of Bid Approval, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Commissioner McGuffey Seconded by: Chair McBride Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (Summary: Yes=2)

13.DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve application by Dr. Vincent Malfitano for Liquor and
General Business licenses for The Bonanza & The Delta.

District Attorney Anne Langer presented this item on behalf of Sheriff Antinoro.

Ms. Langer stated the licenses being requested by Dr. Malfitano are the general business license,
liquor license and a gaming license. At present, Bruce Dewing, the lessee of the Bonanza and
the Delta, has these three licenses in place. According to Storey County ordinances, it appears
that the County cannot issue licenses for two different entities for the same location. Mr. Dewing,
the license holder, is current through September 30, 2015.

The alternatives of the Board are to deny the licenses at this time because the request is
premature, or if approval is granted with some sort of follow-up, the licenses would not be issued
by the Sheriff because presently there is already one person with the licenses in place.

Chair McBride explained that it is staff recommendation to deny the licenses as it would be a
duplication of licenses for establishments already in operation. If Dr. Malfitano were to sever
relations with Dewing Gaming to operate the businesses himself, there would be no delay in
obtaining the licenses. There is no reason not to license Dr. Malfitano except for the fact that it
would be a duplication.

Dr. Mailfitano said it is his position to have the licenses approved but not issued. It is clear that
there cannot be two licenses in the same location. The properties will be operated as non-
gaming properties. The lease with Mr. Dewing will be terminated within days. Dr. Malfitano again
stated he would like to have the licenses approved but not issued and then he would not have to
come back to the Board at a later time.

Chair McBride explained in the past there has never been an issue of approving a license and not
having it issued. Licenses are issued immediately upon approval. Upon Dr. Malfitano taking
control of the businesses, the application will be approved soon after. With approval of the
Sheriff, the businesses could be operated before final approval from the Commissioners.

County Manager Whitten stated that Sheriff Antinoro asked Mr. Whitten to explain the licenses will
be considered for approval. In the meantime, the Sheriff has traditional powers and authority to
issue interim licenses. The Sheriff indicated that as long as the application is reconsidered within
a reasonable amount of time, there would be no additional fees for background checks and,
based on past practice, to refund any of the quarterly or annual payments made upon application.

Mr. Whitten reviewed what is received for the funds paid out for a background check. There are
three levels of licensing: the general license for non-liquor business with no real background

5




Storey County Road Voucher Cost Breakdown - FINAL BREAKDOWN
Milan Drive ~ Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center

U507

R T MG T —
———— LT i 1 I % 1 o
B T A Y1 R—— S ¢t
Grading & Deainoge Sub-Yotel. § waneg § s LR LTS

-‘.‘ﬁ;so" : M%L‘m. S l[___ﬁﬁl?‘ F—T

= 1S : 01973
Paversat Sod-Tow: 4 u:.mm 5 xu»w 5 . 0‘..5(041

| Constiucton Tetal. § 22520400 | 5 229365 1426151 |

Prelimi E
3 _MAMW%@_\W AV OF Boletton ey n des g duun%. 15 1% Ai :g ; ; ; :L;!‘?

T Prallminary fngineenog Sco-Youl 3 Mpsia s s 207513
Final Enginoering & Construction nt . .
T Fival wrmament m-u;p._g s Yo 200+ x o288 R =" 1 4 ﬁ&;
oy y S Aadrg JK! y%mumm i 1 b S )
3 £ “!“!!!" 8,200 MRSt WS Revrw €5 4.!5_“1&1115“3 L ! <.
: v e ic:-f:'_ Rl oo {0 W‘dlﬂ% o) 217, 1] = LETI BB B v
O at SOMad (An G T it . DMBena CompeLen | pay st 042 | (83 hrra) 7Y X =
it TE Sb-Tour: 251,00 195420 26,8820

[_Engonenng Tout § ATAILLG [§ Jaaan e 37956 |

| Qowod Yot 3 79613535 | 5 238 l 3 05647 ) l




| ses2L'96L $ %0} puels |

ER4% $ 1m0} Buusawmbuy |
00'089'2¢ $ :101-qng juawabeuejy uogorusuoy § buussuibu3z jeuy
{ 00 00Z'Y $ 2umn 4 (5IN0y OF) | 912 15enD2) ABd |BUY LONDWL00 [BRURISANS SUBIS JNg-SY) 1N03500 12910)d BULBSUIBUS 1S9 e S
i go0zZe 3 amn g (SHS3M § /O] NOaMSINOY g} SLIOG3: DAY PBIRIAD 1UDIS AAC UOHINSUCIUONDACSY| AYS ‘SBunaal ANAIAA Buussuibuz jsapp 1y vy
000 e S aIming (S92am g J0) NIDWSINOY 1) | 018 'MBINaY W0 S1SenDal ABT 'S|JY SIPRIWQNS DUNSal U0D-ald) JUalabBUel 10ai0id DULSaUDUT 1S9 L2 R
00 002 ¥ s 21mng ] {SNOY 0v) (912 Buluad pig Dunaow pig-aid SWpUappy DUIpPIg) S99/AJSS DUIPPI] 10210)d BuUSBLIBUS 1S\ 10ES F 2
1 0000C ¥ S aumng {SINOY OF) (:BwS3 sJ8a0ibuz L) DUIPDG 10y SUOYEOUINAAS PUE SUEIT JUBLIBACICWI [BUt 4 BuussUbug 1S9MA 1Ued iy
L INNOWY | 31va | . NOLLJI¥OS30 HOLOVHINOD ON W3l
JUaWabeusy UOJINASUCY § bulJaaulbul |euld
9E'TSLY2 $ 1mo)-gng Buusauibuz Aeuunjaig
ST 15207 S SLGZIS Ol »L/bZiLL UBSAD UiseC UONUAIAD BURDAINS A1 SUOHEDYIoSS DUZ SUBIT 1UWAA0IIW) RIAUA|  BUUARUIBUS 1SAM 183 ] i'g
[_innowy | 3iva 1 NOILJRIOS3C | _HOIOWNINOD | ONW3all m
butiaauibug Aeurwijald
| 00°p6Z'6vL $ |0} uonangsuo) |
00°£8ST99 $ 1|01-gng uAWsARy
00 287 €59 S 51025028 (Z0+301 O) Z¥=Z0} UOUTDS BARID Zr+Z0L Ol C0+vC UCHDAS IUAWBAEG) 1816 Dig LoNSNUISUO]) 494 zZ
00008 2 B N4 (SIAd PUR Ld "Dd SFEAKIT 100) 001 SPe0) JO 8509 JO DUNE:s) DUUGAINS F¥S|  DUUGaUIbUS ISOM 174 ¥4
INSOWY 31va NOLLINOS3G HOLOVHINOD ON W31l
(Z0+304 ©) 00+¥S :21S) AEMPEOY [9ABID g JudWAAE]
00°£04°¢8 $ ‘1|01-qns abeureiq g Bupeso
00'59%'92 s GL0216r9 ONSISZTL 1esodld U0ISARSUOD) P4 [
002¥e bh s SLOULLR OWS111£0 /esodoid UOIONABUO) 94 Ty
ANNONY ETUL] NOLLIRIOS3A BVOLOVHINOD oM W3LI
(zo+901 01 00+01 :&15) ebeureiq ¢ buipess
SLoZrze

13jua) [eUISNPU| OUBY-30YEB| ~ BALI] UBIN
umopealg 3s0) JaYdnop peoy AJuno) A101g



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/16/18 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion & possible action for the purchase of body cameras for the Storey County
" Sheriff's Office.

2. Recommended motion: Approve the expenditure for the purpose of body cameras for the
Storey County Sheriff’s Office that are outside the projected budget for fiscal year 17/18
and augment the budget accordingly.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: Discussion and possible action for the purchase of body cameras for the

Storcy County Sheriff’s office that are outside the projected budget for fiscal year 17/18
and augment the budget accordingly.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: ____ Comptroller

7. Legal review required: District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X  Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro

@f&‘_ /fﬂ7"?74§

/ ; QJJQ @ty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

f— —

Agenda Item No. ‘ o



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

January 8, 2018

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Brandy Gavenda
Please add the following item(s) to the January 16, 2018 Commissioners Agenda:

Discussion & Possible action for the purchase of Body Cameras for the SCSO.

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Estimate

Date 10/10/2017
Estimate # 13041
PO #

Billl To

Deputy Chief Tony Dosen

Storey County Sheriffs Office (NV)
205 South C Street

Virginia City NV 89440

ShipTo

Deputy Chief Tony Dosen
Storey County Sheriffs Office (NV)

205 South C Street

Virginia City NV 89440

VIEVU Salulion - Unlimited Plus Plan 18
LE4 20
Multl-Dock Network (LE4) 2
VIEVU Deploymenl Kit 18

Thank you for your bellef in our products.
We have several options if you like to process this estimate.

VIEVU

.3 845 Elliatl Ave.W.
Suite 370
Snoltio WA 98119

1,088 285.4648

|

Expires 11/30/2017
Sales Rep Michael Pisciotta
Shipping Method FedEx Ground

A 36 monih plen thal provides a camera, exlended warranty end 2,880.00
access lo our Microsoft Azure Cloud ensbled sofiware. Unlimitad

slorage for 366 days or less Retentlon Policy - must be SO end from &

VIEVU camera. Cernera must be asslgned io an Individual officer.

Includes addlitional 25GB dala per camera for ali othar data not

Included In prior description, $48/month per camera.

LE4 Body Worn Videc Camera 899.96
Mull-Dock network download staticn for LE4 cameras 1.460.88
includes Semple Policles, Pra-Deployment IT Conauil, Onsile Selup 196.00

and Tralning, Warrenly, 24/7/365 Customer Supporl.

A tic Video Redacllon - Red 1 Software License $298 /
month (not Included In quole)

All VIEVU suppiled Hardware Is rofrashed at 30 manths,

VIEVU Solution Smart Phone App - Included In prico and avall o
8l VIEVU licensad users

Unlimited DA Licenses Included in prico.

Subtotal
Shipping Cost (FedEx Ground)
Total

1. Forward a purchase order via emall to michael.pisciotta@vlevu.com, or

2. Fax a purchase order to 206-299-3380 or,
3. Contact Mike Pisclotta directiy at 1-206-482-3028, or

4. Return this estimate signed and approved with a Lieutenant or above signature.

‘lf rou are lax exempt, please fax your certificate to 206.299.3380 or emall to
nfo

@vlevu.com.

If you need any additional information or assistance, please let us know.

Thank you.

Fax: 206 209.2380

51,840 00

0.00
0.00

0.00

13041



VIEVU Solution Services Agreement
THIS VIEVU SOLUTION SERVICES AGREEMENT (THE "AGREEMENT") IS MADE AND ENTERED INTO BY AND BETWEEN

VIEVU, LLC, A STATE OF WASHINGTON LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ("VIEVU"), WITH A PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

LOCATED AT 645 Elliott Ave W Suite #370 Seattle, WA 88119, AND THE CUSTOMER LISTED BELOW (THE "CUSTOMER").
CUSTOMER AND VIEVU ARE EACH A "PARTY," AND TOGETHER, THE "PARTIES" TO THIS AGREEMENT. CAPITALIZED

TERMS NOT DEFINED IN THIS COVER SHEET (“COVER SHEET") SHALL HAVE THE MEANINGS GIVEN THEM IN THE EXHIBITS
ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN. THE STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS ARE ATTACHED HERETO
AS EXHIBIT A.

Customer Name: Storey County

(Full Legal Name of Customer)

Principal Place of

Business: 205 S. C Street, Virginia City, NV 83440
(Street Address)
1. VIEVU Solution. VIEVU will provide: (a) the cameras listed below to Customer (the "Cameras"); and (b) web-based saoftware

application provided on a "software as a service" (SaaS) basis (the "Subscription Software”, and, together with the Cameras,
the “VIEVU Solution’) used to facilitate the upload and management of audio, video and other files created by a Camera, or
other file content, and stored via the Camera Software (as defined in Exhibit A) at the price listed in the table below (the “Solution
Fees"), in each case subject to the standard terms an conditions set forth on Exhibit A.

Camera Descriplion Number of Subscriplions Subscription Fee
LE4 L8 $47/month (5 yr Agreccment)
2 Add-On Software. In addition to the VIEVU Solution, Customer is purchasing the following add-on services (the “Add-On

Services") at the prices listed below (the “Add-On Fees”, and, together with the Solution Fees, the "Subscription Fees") subject
to the Standard Terms and Conditions set forth on Exhibit A;

0O Redaction Functionality® Authorized Users @ $ per Authorized User per month
0O [Other Add-ons] $
Add-On Fees — Monthly Total: §

Storage. Per Exhibit B - Unlimited storage of VIEVU Body-Worn Camera Video. Includes additional 25GB of storage per camera
for other data. ;

Professional Services. In connection with the VIEVU Solution, VIEVU may provide certain professional services to Customer.
Any professional services performed by VIEVU will be pursuant to a separate agreement entered into between the parties.

Deployment Fee. Within thirty (30) days following the Effective Date (as defined below), Customer will pay a one-time
deployment fee of $199.00 per Camera, uniess waived by VIEVU. WAIVED for Storey County

Term and Termination Charge. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date that VIEVU provides Customer with access
to the VIEVU Solution by VIEVU (the “Effective Date") and shall remain in effect for sixty (60) months following the Effective
Date (the "Initial Term"). After the Initial Term, this Agreement shall automatically extend successive twelve (12) month periods
unless Customer provides written notice of termination to VIEVU at least sixty (60) days befaore the end of the then current Term
(the "Extended Term", and together with the Initial Term, the “Term"). If this Agreement is terminated after the fifteenth day
following the Effective Date, but prior to the end of the initial Term, Customer agrees to pay an early termination charge in an
amount equal to $899.95 per Camera minus $25 for each month Customer has paid the Subscription Fee paid (the “Termination
Charges").

Orders. The terms of this Agreement shall be incorporated into and be binding upon any quote, purchase order or delivery of
Cameras and/or Subscription Software that is signed, issued or accepted by Customer. Any additional or different terms set
forth by Customer are expressly rejected and shall be void and without effect.

The Parties agree to the terms of this Agreement, including the terms of this Cover Sheet and Exhibits A and B attached hereto which
are incorporated herein and made a part hereof. This Agreement shall only be binding when executed by VIEVU, LLC.

VIEVU, LLC CUSTOMER
Authorized Signature: Authorized Signature:
Title: Title:

* Indicates Third Party Programs January 1,2016




1.2

13

Standdand V(™

Exhibit A
VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions

RIGHTS TO THE VIEVU SOLUTION

License Grant. During the Term and subject to the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, VIEVU hereby grants to
Customer a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable, non-
sublicenseable right and license to: (a) access and use,
solely in object code form, VIEVU's proprietary software
(the "Camera Scftware") solely to the extent installed on the
Cameras; and (b) the right to display, access and use the
Subscription Software solely for Customer's internal
operations. The Customer acknowledges that use of the
Subscription Services requires the installation and use of
certain on-premise software (the "On Premise Software"),
each of which is subject to a separate license agreement
between the Parties. As between the Parties, all Inteilectual
Property rights, distribution rights and ali other proprietary
rights to the VIEVU Solution remain solely with VIEVU

License Restrictions. Customer will not and will not attempt
to: (a) reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble, or
otherwise attempt to derive the source code or structure of
the software used in the VIEVU Solution or in any Add- On
Services; (b) provide, lease or lend the VIEVU Solution or
any Add-On Services to any third party except as expressly
authorized hereunder; (c) remove any proprietary notices or
labels displayed on the VIEVU Solution, an Add-On Service
or the Documentation; (d) create a derivative work of any
part of the VIEVU Solution or any Add On Service; (e) use
the VIEVU Solution or any Add-On Service for any uniawful
purpose; or (f) create Internet "links” to or from the VIEVU
Solution or any Add- On Service, or “frame” or "mirror’ any
of VIEVU's content which forms part of any Add-On Service
or the VIEVU Solution. Customer may use the VIEVU
Solution and the Add-On Services only for Customer's
legitimate business purposes and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, including without limitation
laws and regulations applying to privacy and personal
information. Customer is solely responsible for ensuring
that only authorized personnel of Customer have access to
the VIEVU Solution and the Add-On Services.

Use Restrictions. Customer agrees that it will not and will
not knowingly permit any Authorized User to use VIEVU
Solution or any of the Add-On Services to: (a) intentionally
or unintentionally violate any applicable local, state,
national or international law, including, but not limited to,
any regulations having the force of law; (b) upload, post, e-
mail, otherwise transmit or post links to any content that the
Customer does not have a right to transmit under any law
or regulation or under contractual or fiduciary relationships
(such as inside information, or proprietary and confidential
information learned or disclosed as part of employment
relationships or under nondisclosure agreements); (c) to
upload, post, e-mail, otherwise transmit, or post links to any
material that contains software viruses, worms, Trojan
horses, time bombs, trap doors or any other computer code,
files or programs or repetitive requests for information
designed to interrupt, destroy or limit the functionality of any
computer software or hardware or telecommunications
equipment or to diminish the quality of, interfere with the
performance of, or impair the functionality of the network
of VIEVU; and/or

(d) to infringe any patent, trademark, service mark, trade
secret, copyright or other proprietary rights of any party, or
contribute to inducing or facilitating such infringement.
VIEVU reserves the right to delete or remove any content
that may violate a third party's copyright upon receipt of
notice of such violation by the third party holder of said

14

15

16.

22

23

right. Customer agrees to indemnify and hold VIEVU and its
officers, directors, employees and agents of any of the
foregoing ("VIEVU Indemnitee”) harmless from and against
claims, losses, damages, liabilities, fines, penalties, costs
and expenses incurred by any VIEVU Indemnitee as a
result of Customer's breach of any of the provisions of this
Section 11 of this Agreement. Customer is responsible for
maintaining the confidentiality of any non-publiic
authentication credentials associated used to gain access
to the VIEVU Solution and Customer agrees to promptly
notify VIEVU about any possible misuse of any logon or any
security incident related to the VIEVU Solution,

Third Parly Programs. The Add-On Services are Third Party
Programs. The third party owner, author or provider of such
Third Parly Programs retains all ownership and intellectual
property rights in and to that content, and Customer's rights
to use such Third Party Programs are subject to, and
governed by, the terms applicable to such programs as
specified by such third party owner, author or provider,
unless otherwise specified on the Cover Sheet.

Aulhorized User Accounts. For the Add-On Services,
Customer is entitled to the number of users set forth on the
Cover Page. Customer is permitted to assign a user
account oniy to its Cusiomer's employees, agents,
contractors and subcontractors and other authorized third
parties (each an "Authorized User”). Customer will be fully
responsible for the acts of its Authorized Users. If in any
period it is determined that the number of users in a period
exceeds the amount of Authorized User subscriptions
purchased, VIEVU will notify Customer in writing and
Customer will immediately pay to VIEVU any amounts that
should have been paid.

Storage Access. Data storage is subject to the usage limits
specified on the Cover Sheet.

CONFIGURATION AND UPDATES

Camera Configuration. Unless otherwise set forth on the
Cover Sheet, Customer is responsible for configuring the
Cameras and implementing the VIEVU Solution in
accordance with the instructions provided by VIEVU (the
"“Deployment Setup Guide").

Updates to Subscrption Software. VIEVU may make
changes or updates to the Subscription Software (such as
infrastructure,  security, technical configurations,
application features, etc.) during the Term, including to
reflect changes in technology, industry practices, patterns
of system use, and availability of Third Party Programs, The
functionality of the Subscription Software is subject to
change at VIEVU's discretion; however, such changes or
updates will not result in a material reduction in the
functionality of the Subscription Software. All
improvements, enhancements, modifications, and/or
changes to the Subscription Software will be done
automatically and remotely by VIEVU.

Software Updates. To enable optimal access, VIEVU may
verify the version of the Camera Software and/or the On
Premise Software used by Customer and recommend
Customer download and install updates, with or without
notice, to the Cameras. Faiiure to install updates to the
Camera Software or the On Premise Software, as
applicable, may affect Customer's ability to use certain
functions of the VIEVU Solution.

SERVICE SPECIFICATIONS AND THIRD PARTY
PROGRAMS



3.1.

32

6.1

72

Ntandard &'

Exhibit A
VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions

Service Specifications. The VIEVU Solution is subject to
and governed by the Service Specifications. Customer
acknowledges that use of the VIEVU Solution in a manner
not consistent with the Service Specifications may
adversely affect the performance of the VIEVU Solution, the
availability of any applicable warranty, and/or may result in
additional fees.

Camera Specifications. The Cameras are subject to and
governed by the Hardware Specifications. Customer
acknowledges that use of the Cameras in a manner not
consistent with the Hardware Specifications may adversely
affect the performance of the Cameras, the availability of
any applicable warranty, and/or may result in additional
fees.

PAYMENT

Subscription Fees. The Subscription Fees are set forth on
the Cover Sheet, as may be amended or modified by the
Parties from time to time. Subscription Fees will be
reviewed from time to time. Subscription Fees shall be paid
on a monthly basis during the Term.

PAYMENT TERMS.

Customer agrees to pay to VIEVU all Subscription Fees and
other amounts contained in each invoice within thirty
(30) days of the invoice date. All amounts due under this
Agreement will be paid in US Dollars. Subscription Fees
are non-refundable.. VIEVU reserves the right to charge
interest at the rate of 1.5% per month (or, the highest rate
permitted by law, if less) on all iate payments. Customer is
responsible for any applicable taxes, duties or other
charges

SERVICE LEVELS,
MAINTENANCE.

VIEVU will use commercially reasonable efforis to provide
the VIEVU Solution, the Add-On Services and the support,
updates and maintenance related thereto in accordance
with industry standards. Customer is entitled to technical
support in English during business hours as set by VIEVU
from time to time at no additional cost. Additionally, during
the Term, the Customer will be entitled to maintenance
upgrades and bug fixes at no additional cost.

SECURITY

VIEVU will use commercially reasonable efforts to: (a)
cause its agents and employees to be informed of and to
agree to be bound by applicable data privacy laws, rules,
regulations, codes, policies, or procedures, and (b)
maintain industry standard safeguards reasonably
designed to protect the confidentiality and integrity of, and
to prevent unauthorized access to or use of Customer Data.
VIEVU agrees to notify Customer in the event of an actual
breach of its security resulting in unauthorized access to or
use of Customer Data as soon as practical, but in any event
within forty eight (48) hours of discovery of the breach.

SUPPORT, UPDATES AND

Customer will provide any required notices to, and obtain
and keep in effect all consents, authorizations, permits or
licenses that may be required for the installation and
operation of the Cameras, the Add-On Services, and the
VIEVU Solution, including, without limitation any required
consents regarding the processing and/or storage of
Customer Data.

8.
81

82

83.

84

85

Pape 2ol

CONFIDENTIALITY

Disclosure. The Parties acknowiedge that, in the course of
performance of this Agreement, one Party (the "Disclosing
Party”’) may find it necessary to disclose or permit access
to Confidential Information to the other Party (the
“Receiving Party”) and its personnel. Disclosing Party's
disclosure of or provision of access to, Confidential
Information to Receiving Party’s personnel is solely for the
purposes agreed under this Agreement.

Confidential Treatment. Confidential Information disclosed
to a Receiving Party will be held in confidence by the
Receiving Party and not disclosed to others or used except
as expressly permitted under this Agreement or as
expressly authorized in writing by the Disclosing Party.
Each Party will use the same degree of care to protect the
other Party's Confidential Information as it uses to protect
its own information of like nature, but in no circumstances
less than reasonable care.

Allowances. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this
Section 8.3, Confidential Information may be disclosed by a
Receiving Party: (a) to those of its employees, agents, and
consultants who require it in connection with their duties in
performing such Party's obligations under this Agreement
and who are contractually or legally obligated to hold such
Confidential Information in confidence and restrict its use
consistent with the Receiving Party's obligations under this
Agreement; (b) to the Receiving Party’s auditors, outside
counsel, accountants and other similar business advisors,
or in connection with an actual or prospective sale or
transfer of assels; and (c) to the extent required by law,
pursuant to a duly authorized subpoena, court order or
government authority, provided that: (i) the Receiving Party
provides the Disclosing Party with sufficient advance notice
of such disclosure requirement or obligation to permit
Disclosing Party to seek a protective order or other
appropriate remedy protecting its Confidential Information
from disclosure; and (ii) Receiving Party limits the release
of the Confidential Information to the greatest extent
possible under the circumstances.

Exceptions. Obligations under Section 8 will not apply to
information which: (a) was in the public domain or generally
available to the public prior to receipt thereof by the
Receiving Party from the Disclosing Parly, or which
subsequently becomes part of the public domain or
generally available to the public before any wrongful act of
the Receiving Party or an employee or agent of the
Receiving Party; (b) is later received by the Receiving Party
from a third party, unless the Receiving Party knows or has
reason {o know of an obligation of secrecy of the third party
to the Disclosing Party with respect to such information; or
(c) is developed by the Receiving Party independent of such
information received from the Disclosing Party. The terms
of confidentiality under this Agreement will not be construed
to limit VIEVU's ability to use for any purpose the residuals
resulting from access to or work with the Confidential
Information. The term ‘residuals” means information in a
non-tangible form which may be retained by persons who
have access to the Confidential Information, including
ideas, concepts, know- how, or techniques contained
therein.

Public Records. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or
documents received from VIEVU may be open to public
inspection and copying. Customer has a legal obligation to
disclose suchinformation unless a particular record is made
confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.
VIEVU may label specific parts of an individual document

as a "trade secret” or “confidential” in accordance with NRS
January 1, 2016



Exhibit A

VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions
333.333, provided that VIEVU thereby agrees to indemnify
and defend the Customer for honoring such a designation.
The failura to so labal any dociiment that is relrased hy
the Customer shall constitute a complete waiver of any
and all claims for damages caused by any release of the
records.

TERMINATION

91 Termination for Cause. This Agreement may be
terminated for a breach of this Agreement by either Party
upon thirty (30) days' prior written notice to the other Party

Standard T&C's Page 3 of 6 January 1, 2016



9.2.

93.

10.
101

102

103

11.

Standard T&C's

Exhibit A

VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions

is such breach is not cured within such thirty (30) day
period.

Termination for non-appropriation. The continuation of this
Contract beyond the terms of office of the county
commissioners approving this contract is subject to and
contingent upon sufficient funds being appropriated,
budgeted, and otherwise made available by the Board of
County Commissioners of Storey County. Customer may
terminate this Contract, and VIEVU waives any and all
claims(s) for damages, effective immediately upon receipt
of written notice (or any date specified therein) if for any
reason the funding for this Contract or a like item or service
is not appropriated or is withdrawn, limited, or impaired.

Obligations _on__Terminalion. Upon termination: (a)
Cuslomer agrees to pay VIEVU the Subscription Fees

through the effective date of termination of this Agreement
and any applicable Termination Charges: (b) each Party wili
deliver to the other Party all Confidential Information;

© VIEVU will retain Customer Data in a limited
functionality account for thirty (30) days after expiration or
termination of this Agreement and (d) Customer shall
immediately uninstall the On Premise Software. It is
Customer's responsibilily to remove any Customer Data
within thirty (30) days. After thirty (30) days, VIEVU will
disable all login credentials and delete or otherwise render
inaccessible all Customer Data Deleted Customer Data is
not recoverable.

OWNERSHIP

Ownership of VIEVU Solution. The VIEVU Solution, the
Add-On Services and ali information which is provided to
Customer by VIEVU under this Agreement is confidential
and considered Confidential Information, inciuding, but not
limited to, drawings, documentation, object code, source
cade, computer program listings, techniques, algorithms,
processes, technical and marketing information producits,
specifications, formulae, equipment, business strategies,
customer lists, know-how, drawings, pricing information,
inventions, ideas, and their potential uses. As between the
parties, all right, title and interest in and to the VIEVU
Solution, the Add-On Services and all modifications,
enhancements and derivatives thereto and all intellectual
property contained in any of the foregoing, shall be owned
by VIEVU. All use rights in and to the VIEVU Solution or the
Add-On Services not expressly granted herein are reserved
to VIEVU.

Ownership of Customer Data. As between VIEVU and
Customer, Customer owns and will continue to own all right,
titte and interest in and to the Customer Data. Customer is
responsible for uploading, sharing, withdrawing, managing
and deleting Customer Data. Customer grants VIEVU the
limited right to view, madify, coltect and use Customer Data,
solely for the purpose of providing the VIEVU Solution.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, VIEVU may use
anonymized or general information derived from such
Customer Data and aggregate it with information from other
customers ("Non- |dentifiable Aggregated Data") for
VIEVU's business purposes, including without limitation for
analyzing customer needs and improving its services, and
VIEVU will own all right, title and interest in any such Non-
Identifiable Aggregated Data.

Delivery and Title to Camera. Delivery of Camera(s) sold
pursuant to this Agreement shall be made FCA - VIEVU's
delivery point, and risk of loss of shall pass to Customer at
such delivery point.

MICROSOFT AZURE REPRESENTATIONS

Pape 4 of 6

11.1. The Microsoft Azure Government Cloud provided as part of

the VIEVU Solution are only available for the benefit of
memhbers of Federal Agancies, State/l acal Fntities, or Tribal
Entities, in each case, acting in its governmental capacity
(the "Community”). As such, Customer certifies that it is a
member of the Community and Customer agrees to use
Azure Government Services component of the VIEVU
Solution solely in Customer's capacity as a member of the
Community and for the benefit of Authorized Users that are
members of the Community.

January 1, 2016



12.
121

122,

12.3.

13.

Standurd

Exhibit A
VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions

Use of Azure Government Services by an entity that is not
a member of the Community or to provide services to non-
Community members is strictly prohibited and could result
in termination of the Azure Government Services
component of the VIEVU Solution, or the entire VIEVU
Solution, in each case, without notice. Customer agrees
that it meets these respective eligibility requirements, and
covenants that it will continue to meet the respective
eligibility requirements throughout the Term. VIEVU
reserves the right to verify eligibility at any time and
suspend the VIEVU Solution or any portion thereof if the
eligibility requirements are not met.

INDEMNIFICATION
Customer agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
VIEVU, its officers, agents, employees, affiliates,

subsidiaries, assigns and successors in interest from and
against any claims, liabilities, losses, suits, and damages
asserted by a third party based on (a) Customer's
improper or misuse of the VIEVU Solution or any Add-On
Services (including without limitation, in violation of
applicable laws, rules, regulations or this Agreement); (b)
Customer Data, content or other materials supplied by
Customer, or (c) any breach or alleged breach by
Customer of the Agreement. VIEVU agrees to indemnify,
defend and hold harmless Customer, its officers, agents,
employees and volunteers from and against any claims,
liabilities, losses, suits and damages asserted by a third
party based upon the actions of VIEVU, its officers,
employees and agents or based upon any breach or
alleged breach by VIEVU of this Agreement

Infringement. VIEVU will have the obligation and right to
defend any claim, suit, or proceeding brought against
Customer so far as it is based on a claim that the VIEVU
Solution infringes a United States copyright existing as of
the Effective Date or a United States patent issued as of
the Effective Date. VIEVU’s obligation specified in this
paragraph will be conditioned on Customer notifying
VIEVU promptly in writing of the claim or threat thereof
and giving VIEVU full and exclusive authority for, and
information for and assistance with, the defense and
settlement thereof. If such claim has occurred, or in
VIEVU's opinion is likely to occur, Customer agrees to
permit VIEVU, at its option and expense, either to: (a)
procure for Customer the right to continue using the
VIEVU Solution; (b) replace or modify the same so that it
becomes non-infringing; or (c) if neither of the foregoing
alternatives is reasonably available, immediately
terminate VIEVU's obligations (and Customers rights)
under the Agreement with regard to such VIEVU Solution,
and grant to Customer a credit for the unused portion of
any license fees and refund any deposits paid by
Customer for the VIEVU Solution.

Limitation. Notwithstanding any other provisions hereof,
VIEVU will not be liable for any claim, based on
Customer's use of the VIEVU Solution or the Add-On
Services other than as specified by VIEVU. THE
FOREGOING STATES THE ENTIRE OBLIGATION OF
VIEVU, ITS LICENSORS AND ITS SUPPLIERS, AND
THE EXCLUSIVE REMEDY OF CUSTOMER, WITH
RESPECT TO INFRINGEMENT OF INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY OR PROPRIETARY RIGHTS. THE
FOREGOING IS GIVEN TO CUSTOMER SOLELY FOR
ITS BENEFIT AND IN LIEU OF, AND VIEVU DISCLAIMS,
ALL WARRANTIES OF TITLE AND NON-
INFRINGEMENT WITH RESPECT TO THE VIEVU
SOLUTION.

WARRANTIES AND RETURN POLICIES

r&C's

131

Customer may return any Camera in accordance with
VIEVU's Camera Return Policy as set forth in
hilp/hwww vievu comisupportwacranty-repair within fifteen
(15) calendar days of the original date of delivery. Ali

lanuary |, 2016



132

133

13 4.

Exhibit A
VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions

returns must be packed in the original, unmarked packaging
including any accessories, manuals, and documentation
that shipped with the product. All Cameras that are returned
unopened are subject to a restocking fee of 10 percent of
the purchase price. All opened but undamaged Cameras
are subject to a restocking fee of 25 percent of the purchase
price. Damaged Cameras are ineligible for return under this
Section 13.1. All return shipping costs are the responsibility
of Customer and will not be refunded. No returned Camera
will be accepted without the original manufacturer's
packaging and a Retum Material Authorization (RMA).

Camera Warranly. VIEVU warrants to Customer that,
provided that the Camera has been stored and used in
accordance with the Hardware Specifications and ordinary
industry practices and conditions, each Camera shall be
free from defects in materials and workmanship and shall
conform in all material respect to the Hardware
Specifications for a period of ninety (90) days from the date
of delivery (the "Initial Warranty Period"), provided,
however, that VIEVU will extend the Initial Warranty Period
for up to a thirty-six (36) months if Customer maintains an
active subscription to the Subscription Software and at the
time of the warranty claim, Customer has paid in full all
amounts due and payable to VIEVU (the "Extended
Warranty Period”). The warranty does not cover: (a)
intentional damage, (b) use that is not consistent with its
intended operation or the Hardware Specifications; (c) any
damage caused by an attempt to open or alter the Camera
or (d) the use of non-VIEVU branded or approved
accessories or replacement parts. VIEVU DOES NOT
WARRANT THAT THE OPERATION OF THE CAMERAS
WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE

Camera Replacement Under Warranty. In the event that a
Camera does not comply with the warranty set forth above,

Customer should return such non-conforming Camera to
VIEVU in accordance with the instructions located at
http://iwww.vievu.com/support/warranty-repair/  within the
Initial Warranty Period or the Extended Warranty Period (if
applicable). Upon receipt of the returned Camera during the
Initial Warranty Period or the Extended Warranty Period (if
applicable), VIEVU will repair or replace such non-
conforming Camera at no additional charge to Customer.
Customer agrees that repair or replacement is the sole
remedy available for any Camera maifunction or failure and
agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold VIEVU harmiess in
the event any claim is made for remedy, including monetary
damages other than as specifically allowed in this
paragraph.

Oisclaimer of Warranty. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET
FORTH IN THIS SECTION 13, VIEVU DOES NOT
GUARANTEE THAT (A) THE VIEVU SOLUTION OR ANY
ADD-ON SERVICES WILL BE PERFORMED ERROR-
FREE OR UNINTERRUPTED, OR THAT VIEVU WILL
CORRECT ALL SERVICES ERRORS, (B) THE SERVICES
WILL OPERATE IN COMBINATION WITH CUSTOMER
CONTENT OR APPLICATIONS, OR WITH ANY OTHER
HARDWARE, SOFTWARE, SYSTEMS, SERVICES OR
DATA NOT PROVIDED BY VIEVU, AND

(C) THE VIEVU SOLUTION OR ANY ADD-ON SERVICE
WILL MEET CUSTOMER REQUIREMENTS,
SPECIFICATIONS OR EXPECTATIONS. CUSTOMER
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT VIEVU DOES NOT CONTROL
THE TRANSFER OF DATA OVER COMMUNICATIONS
FACILITIES, INCLUDING THE INTERNET, AND THAT
THE VIEVU SOLUTION AND ADD-ON SERVICES MAY

14.
141

14.2

143

144

16.
15.1

Page 60(6

BE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS, DELAYS, AND OTHER
PROBLEMS INHERENT IN THE USE OF SUCH
COMMUNICATIONS FACILITIES. VIEVU IS NOT
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DELAYS, DELIVERY
FAILURES, OR OTHER DAMAGE RESULTING FROM
SUCH PROBLEMS. VIEVU IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR
ANY ISSUES RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE,
OPERATION OR SECURITY OF THE VIEVU SOLUTION
OR THE ADD-ON SERVICES THAT ARISE FROM
CUSTOMER DATA, APPLICATIONS PROVIDED BY
CUSTOMER OR ANY THIRD PARTY CONTENT. The
foregoing express warranties are limited to VIEVU and are
not transferable and are in lieu of any other warranty by
VIEVU with respect to the VIEVU Solution or the Add-On
Services. VIEVU GRANTS NO OTHER WARRANTY,
EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT
LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

Maintenance of Content. The Customer, not VIEVU is
responsible for maintaining all evidence and videos taken
with Cameras. Customer should routinely back up
Customer Data and downtoad all Customer Data from the
Cameras before returning any Camera to VIEVU for repair
or replacement. Customer agrees to indemnify and hold
VIEVU harmless for any evidence or videos that cannot be
recovered from Cameras.

Disclaimer of Consequential Damages. NEITHER PARTY
WILL HAVE LIABILITY WITH RESPECT TO ITS

OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE AGREEMENT OR
OTHERWISE, FOR CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY,
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE DAMAGES, LOSS OF
PROFITS, LOSS DATA, THE COST OF COVER,
SECURITY AND DATA BREACHES, AND FAILURE TO
ACCESS THE VIEVU SOLUTION OR ANY ADD-ON
SERVICES, EVEN IF SUCH PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED
OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

Limitation of Liability. VIEVU'S AGGREGATE LIABILITY
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE
AMOUNT ACTUALLY PAID BY CUSTOMER FOR THE
VIEVU SOLUTION DURING THE 12 MONTHS
PRECEDING THE CLAIM.

Other Limitations. The obligations of VIEVU and Customer
under this Agreement run only to each other and not to their
affiliates, their customers or any other persons. Under no
circumstances will any other person be considered a third-
party beneficiary of the Agreement or otherwise entitled to
any rights or remedies under the Agreement. Neither
VIEVU or Customer will have rights or remedies against
each other except as specificaily provided in the
Agreement. No action or claim of any type relating to the
Agreement may be brought or made by Customer or
VIEVU more than one (1) year after Customer or VIEVU
first has knowledge of the basis for the action or
claimCustomer's aggregate liability under this Agreement
shall be limited to an amount equal to one year of
subscription fees. In addition, Customer will not waive and
intends to assert available NRS Chapter 41 liability

limitations in all cases per_camera.
GENERAL TERMS

Representation _and Warranly. Customer and VIEVU

represent and warrant that (A) each has the power and
authority to execute, deliver and fully perform this
Agreement, and (B) the signatories have the legal authority
to bind their respective principals

January 1,2016



Exhlbit A
VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions
15.2. Other Agreements. All references to the Agreement
includes all documents referenced by hyperlink herein,
such documents and Aagreements heing  expressly
incorporated herein by reference and include certain legal
terms. The Agreement contains the entire agreement
between the partles. All understandings have been

Standiud T&C < Page 7 of 6 Tanwary 1, 20146



153

1654

155

156

Exhibit A
VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions

included in the Agreement. Representations which may
have been made by any party to the Agreement may in
some way be inconsistent with this final written Agreement.
All such statements are declared to be of no value in the
Agreement. Only the written terms of the Agreement will
bind the parties. Use of the VIEVU Solution is subject to
the VIEVU Privacy Policy located at
hitp:/fwww.vievu com/about-us/privacy-policy/ and all other
terms referenced by hyperlink in this Exhibit A, each of
which are hereby incorporated by reference and made a
part hereof.

Miscellaneous. The Agreement can only be modified in
writing signed by both VIEVU and Customer. The
Agreement does not create or imply any relationship in
agency or partnership between VIEVU and Customer.
Headings are inserted for the convenience of the Parties
only and are not to be considered when interpreting the
Agreement. Words in the singular mean and include the
plural and vice versa. Words in the masculine gender
include the feminine gender and vice versa. Words in the
neuter gender include the masculine gender and the
feminine gender and vice versa. If any term, covenant,
condition or provision of the Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable,
it is the parties' intent that such provision be reduced in
scope by the court only to the extent deemed necessary by
that court to render the provision reasonable and
enforceable and the remainder of the provisions of the
Agreement will in no way be affected, impaired or
invalidated as a result. The Agreement and the terms and
conditions contained in the Agreement apply to and are
binding upon the VIEVU's successors and assigns

Assignment. The Agreement shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective
permitted successors and assigns. VIEVU may assign or
otherwise transfer its interest or any part thereof under the
Agreement to another party without the consent of
Customer except that such party must expressly assume
responsibility for all obligations hereunder in writing.
Customer may assign or otherwise transfer its interest or
any part thereof under the Agreement to any person or
entity only upon the written consent of VIEVU.

Compliance with Legal Requirements. Each Party shall be
responsible, at its expense, for complying with all applicable
laws and regulations of each jurisdiction where the VIEVU
Solution are used, including laws and regulations pertaining
to access or use of the VIEVU Solution.

Force Majeure. "Force Majeure Event’ means any act or
event that: (a) prevents a party (the ‘Nonperforming
Party”) from performing its obligations or satisfying a
condition to the other party’s (the “Performing Party’)
obligations under the Agreement; (b) is beyond the
reasonable control of and not the fault of the Nonperforming
Party, and (c) the Nonperforming Party has not, through
commercially reasonable efforts, been able to avoid or
overcome. A Force Majeure Event does not include
economic hardship, changes in market conditions, and
insufficiency of funds. If a Force Majeure Event occurs, the
Nonperforming Party is excused from the performance
thereby prevented and from satisfying any conditions
precedent to the other party's performance that cannot be
satisfied, in each case to the extent limited or prevented by
the Force Majeure Event. When the Nonperforming Party is
able to resume its performance or satisfy the conditions
precedent to the other party's

167

159

1510

15.11.

1512

1513

Page B ot

obligations, the Nonperforming Party will immediately
resume performance under the Agreement. The relief
offered by this paragraph is the exclusive remedy available
to the Performing Party with respect to a Force Majeure
Event.

Audit. VIEVU, or its designee, will have the right to perform
audits regarding Customer's use of the VIEVU Solution and
the Add-On Services, at reasonable intervals, upon
reasonable notice during the term and a period of one (1)
year after termination of the Agreement. Customer agrees
to make all relevant information available to VIEVU, and as
appropriate, to VIEVU's designee.

Applicable Law. The provisions of NRS Chapter 41
respecting the liability of Customer and the limitations on
liability of Customer are incorporated herein as part of this
agreement and may be asseried in any suit brought within
the State of Washington.

Waiver of Jury Tnal. EACH PARTY IRREVOCABLY AND
UNCONDITIONALLY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY
RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY
LEGAL ACTION, PROCEEDING, CAUSE OF ACTION OR
COUNTERCLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO
THE AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ANY EXHIBITS,
SCHEDULES, AND APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THE
AGREEMENT, OR THE TRANSACTIONS
CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

Attorneys’ Fees. If VIEVU prevails in any suit or proceeding
relating to the Agreement, VIEVU will have the right to
recover from Customer its costs and reasonable fees and
expenses of attorneys, accountants, and other
professionals incurred in connection with the suit or
proceeding, including costs, fees and expenses upon
appeal, separately from and in addition to any other amount
included in such judgment.

Severability Except as provided below, each provision of
the Agreement will be interpreted in such a manner and to
such an extent as to be effective and valid under applicable
law. If any provision is prohibited by or invalid under
applicable law, that provision will be ineffective only to the
extent of such prohibition orinvalidity.

Survival The terms, provisions, representations, and
warranties contained in the Agreement whereby their sense
and context are intended to survive the performance and
termination of the Agreement, shall so survive the
completion of performance and termination of the
Agreement, including, but not limited to, the making of any
and all payments due hereunder and Sections 1.2, 1.2, 4,
5, 8.1, 82, 83, 84,92, 13, 15.7, 15.8, 15.8, 15.10, and
15.11.

Notices. All notices required to be given in writing under the
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be given or made by
delivery in person, by courier service, by confirmed
facsimile, or by registered or certified mail (postage prepaid,
return receipt requested) at the following address:

VIEVU, LLC
645 Elliott Ave W Suite #370
Seattle, WA 98119

lanuary 1. 2016



16.

16.1.

162

16.3.

16 4.

165

16.6

Staclard T&('s

Exhibit A
VIEVU Solution - Standard Terms and Conditions

Attn: Legal Department
DEFINITIONS

‘Authorized User Account” means the arrangement under
the Agreement authorizing online access of an Authorized
User to the VIEVU Solution, whether actually used or not.

‘Confidential Informalion” means information and technical
data derived from or disclosed to a Receiving Party or
Affiliates of the Receiving Party by the Disclosing Party or
its employees, vendors, customers, representatives,
Affiliates, agents and other independent contractors during
the performance of obligations under the Agreement and
which is not generally known to the public, including the
Disclosing Party's customers or competitors or any
customers or competitors of any Affiliate of the Disclosing
Party. Examples of Confidential Information include, but are
not limited to Customer Data, and information or data
disclosed in oral, written, graphic or machine-readable
form, or in forms otherwise embodying or displaying such
information, or which is visible or audible to Receiving Party
by virtue of the Receiving Party visiting or performing its
obligations at a facility controlled by the Disclosing Party or
an Affiliate of the Disclosing Party, subsidiaries, agents or
subcontractors, or by having access to the Disclosing
Party's systems including, but not limited to, business plans,
specifications, designs, methods, processes, ideas,
concepls, drawings, software, pricing, operational plans
and know-how, employee information, sharehoider
information, vendor information, customer information, and
consumer information.

"Customer Data" means all data provided to or created by
Customer, including without limitation all video and images
captured by a Camera and uploaded onto the VIEVU
Solution.

“Documentation” means all operating manuals and user
manuals, training and marketing materials, guides, product
descriptions, product specifications, technical manuals,
supporting materials, and other information relating to the
VIEVU Solution and provided by VIEVU to Customer.

“Federal _Agency" means a bureau, office, agency,
department or other entity of the United States
Government.

"Hardware Specifications" means: (a) the product manuals
(including the Quick Start Guide and Detailed Service
Specifications located at [hyperlink] Camera, or such other
address specified by VIEVU from time to time; (b) and the
product manuals (including the Quick Start Guide, the
VIEVU Smartphone App User Guide, the Detailed
Specifications, and the VIEVU2 Configuration Utility User
Guide) located at hittp://www.vievu.com/supportvievu?-
camera-support/ for the VIEVU2 Camera such other

16.7

168

16.9.

16 10

16 11

16.12

Page 6 ol'6

address specified by VIEVU from time to time; and (c) for
all other Camera, the address specified by VIEVU from time
to time

"Intellectual Property” means any trademarks, service
marks, trade names, distinctive words, logos, drawings, art
work, pictures, colors, designs, design and/or utility models
or copyrights, or any marks or works similar thereto, and
any modifications, derivations, improvements or
adaptations thereof. Intellectual Property includes, but is
not limited to, the look and feel of the VIEVU Solution, the
Camera and any portions thereof.

"State/Local Entity" means (a) any agency of a state or local
government in the United States, or (b) any United States
county, borough, commonwealth, city, municipality, town,
township, special purpose district, or other similar type of
governmental instrumentality established by the laws of a
Customer's state and located within the Customer's state’s
jurisdiction and geographic boundaries.

"Tribal Enlity" means a federally recognized tribal entity
eligible for funding and services from the U.S. Department
of Interior by virtue of its status as an Indiantribe.

"Service Specificalions" means collectively, (a) the system
requirements located at
hilp /iwww vievu comisupportivievu-solution-support/;  (b)
the applicable portions of the VIEVU Solution User Guide
located at hip/iwww.vievu com/supportivievu-solulion-
support/; (c) the Deployment Setup Guide located at
hitpwww.vievu.comisupport/vievu-solution-support/: and
©© any other specifications posted by VIEVU from time to
time on  hitp//Amww.vievu com/support/vievu-solution-
support/. The Service Specifications are subject to change
at VIEVU's discretion; however, VIEVU changes to the
Service Specifications will not result in a material reduction
in the level of performance, security or availability of the
applicable portion of the VIEVU Solution during the Term

"Third Party Programs" means all text, files, images,
graphics, illustrations, information, data, audio, video,
photographs, and other content and material, in any format,
or services that are obtained or derived from third party
sources outside of VIEVU and made available to Customer
through, within, or in conjunction with Customer's use of the
VIEVU Solution. Examples of Third Party Content include
data feeds from social network services, rss feeds from blog
posts, data libraries and dictionaries, third party add on
applications and marketing data.

"VIEVU Solution" means, collectively, the Camera, Camera
Software, Subscription Software, and any Third Party
Programs selected by Customer.

Jansary 1, 2016



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: _| 1 [ I‘JO (S Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Second reading for General Business License. Applicant is Carol Maley, owner of
Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

2. Recommended motion: Motion to approve the second reading, a General Business License for
Carol Maley, owner of Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia
City, NV 89440.

3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Second reading for General Business License. Applicant is Carol Maley,
owner of Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

5. Supporting materials: None
6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required: District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
X Department Head Department Name; Sheriff, Gerald Antinoro
7 = N

=

f @ LC/@}/ Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

fr— g
e et

Agenda Item No.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: l / [b ) A0 (] Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Second reading for Off-sale Liquor License. Applicant is Carol Maley, owner of Virginia
City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

2. Recommended motion: Motion to approve the second reading, an Off-sale Liquor License for
Carol Maley, owner of Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia
City, NV 89440.
3. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4, Staff summary: Second reading for an Off-sale Liquor License. Applicant is Carol Maley,
owner of Virginia City RV Park LLC located at 355 N F Street, Virginia City, NV 89440.

5. Supporting materials: None

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: _ Comptroller
7. Legal review required: ~_ District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
~ X Department Head Department Name: Sheriff, Gerald Antmpro
L e
_ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e Sd

Agenda Item No. \3



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Workshop. Discussion only. Discussion of administrative policies that give the county
manager either significant job duties or the responsibility for making sure the policies are approved
by the board and are followed by staff.

2. Recommended motion: No motion necessary.

3. Prepared by: Prepared for Marshall McBride, Chair, by Robert Morris, outside counsel.

Department: County Commissioners Tel: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: On November 7, 2017 the Board considered the county manager job description
in conjunction with several administrative policies that set out county manager job duties and
responsibilities. The discussion included how the county manager’s job description did not include
specific duties that are included in county administrative policies. The board has an opportunity to
complement the county manager’s job description with policies that contain specific county manager
job duties and responsibilities. This agenda item gives the board an opportunity to review and make
changes to existing policies as well creating new policies for specific duties for the county manager.
The Board will not consider the current county manager’s job performance in connection with this
agenda item. (Continued on next page)

5. Supporting materials: Administrative policies that include some of the county manager job
duties and responsibilities.

6. Fiscal impact: None
7. Legal review required: No District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
W@anmem Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

N Q/Calrt)" Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued 5
Agenda Item No.

—_—
e bt



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 000

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 1-16-2018
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOC

DRAFT (Blue underline-Austin; Black = Bob Morris.)) = COUNTY MANAGER:

SUBJECT: VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

IL

I11.

PURPOSE: The voluntary retirement program is designed to encourage eligible
employees to voluntarily agree to leave county employment as a budget reduction
measure.

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:
A. The-board-or-ils-designee-must-approve-all-agreements. Only the board of county

commissioners and board of county fire commissioners ((or its designee)) is authorized to

approve an agreement for voluntary retirement.

B. Participation in the program is voluntary. The employee, department head or the
county manager may initiate the process of selecting participants for consideration in
the program.

C. Upon final approval of the Board-of County-Commissioners board, eligible
employees may receive up to 2 years of time in the Nevada PERS system purchased
on their behalf by the county.

D. The purchase of service payment will not be included as compensation for the purpose
of PhRS

1 - P-4

pes*t»tensrbe{er&the—pe&mm’:s—beeeme—ﬁﬁ&l- The board wzll con.szder budget savings

cause by the early retirement, and the board may request from the department head or
the county manager’s office a budget savings analysis showing budget savings caused
by the early retirement, inclusive of filling the vacated position.

F. The board, in its sole discretion, may modify or cancel this program at any time and it
may deny any reques! for early retirement buy-out. Participation by the county and the
board’s decision on any particular request is also dependent on the county’s fiscal
ability to fund any proposed purchase of service.

PROGRAM CONDITIONS:

A. Anemployee’s participation in the program is-requires the-separating-employee’s
pesition-being-downgraded-at-least 3-pay-grades—that the person filling the vacated

position starl at a lower step than that of the emplovee participating in the program
such that there will be substantial budgetary Savings yNote: Many positions are set by bargaining

agreements and other positions grades are set by comprehensive salary and benefits analyses. Mandating that grades be reduced
Sfor the next-in-line does nol conform to the county compensation and benefits plan. Changes should be related to budgetary
savings instead.))

C. The amount of purchase of service is conditioned on the ability of the department to
recover the purchase of service expense within three years and the department being

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page | of 5



IV.

able to show an on-going personnel cost reduction to cover the expense.
D. The maximum purchase of service payment is $30,000.

ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS:

A. Full-time regular employees who have 10 or more years of continuous service with
the county, are vested in the PERS system, and are eligible to participate in the PERS
program.

OO0

(19 s B
.

ith-supervisory-duties-and-respensibilities—positions-providing-mandated itiea
WQWMMW[(NUIW There are cases when
department heads, emergency personnel. efc., may want (o retire early and the county would benefit_ Also, Carson City wrote
“critical employees " and it cause a bit of a marale storm. [ recommend that everyone is eligible, even

some polictes referenci

the highest department heads, etc..))
C. Elected officialsr-unelassified-employees; , regular part-time and less-than part-time

employees; contract employees, er-and employees hired with or paid by a grant are
not eligible for the program. (Note: iwe should discuss how 1o address grant employees. Many emplovees, such as
certain firefighters and deputies, may be paid substantially by a grant, but they are wruly county/district emplovees. I would like to
discuss how to approach these emplovees.))

N 3

Heriafo a-proeram-Uncludineseet 3 e-app ¢
Geuﬂt‘)"geafd’ef—pﬂ’e'geﬁm ((Note: See fire board added In section | above.))

PROCEDURE FOR PROCESSING REQUESTS:

A. An eligible employee may request to participate in the Voluntary Retirement Program
by submitting a completed employee request form to human-reseurees the
Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director and by providing a copy to his or
her department head.

B. Upon receipt of the voluntary retirement request form, the department head will
determine if the employee is eligible and whether the department will realize
permanent cost savings. The department head will prepare and submit to human
resourees the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director a written budget
reduction plan including any reorganization, proposed changes in pay grades, job
descriptions, and authorized positions.

C. Any request approved by the department head and humanreseurees the
Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director must be given to the county
manager for review. If the county manager determines the employee is eligible and
approves the request, the employee will sign and agreement, waiver and release form.

The county manager will forward the completed packet to the board for review and
consideration.

D. The board musthave has the final review and may approve or deny the request for
purchase of service and the budget reduction plan. Changes in pay grades or
authorized positions must be approved by the board and reflected in the department’s
budget.

E. The employee may withdraw his or her request up until the decision by the board. If

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 5



VI

VIIL

the request is denied during the approval process (((something happens???)))

CALCULATION FOR PURCHASE OF SERVICE:

A.

B.
C:

The amount of the purchase of service given the employee is based on the cost of
PERS credit as of the effective date of the employee’s termination of employment
from the county.

The calculation of the PERS amount will be based on standard PERS requirements.
The payment to PERS will be made before the termination date

RESPONSIBILITIES:

A.

B.

(4

The human-resources-manager Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director is
designated by the county manager to administer the program.

The department head will review the employee s requests before they are submitted to
the human resources office.

Human-resoureces The Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director will accept
and process requests, determine eligibility, and consult with Nevada PERS to
calculate years of service.

. The employee is responsible for signing all necessary paperwork and, if approved for

the program, separating from the county.
The human resources office will work with the affected department to make sure that
any change in pay grades, reassignment of duties, updated job descriptions and

authorized positions are appreved-by-the Beard: completed in accordance with the
county administrative policies and any bargaining agreement.

VIII. FORMS:

A.
B.

Employee request form.
Waiver and release form.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Manager or his or her designee will review
this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 3 of 5



Request Form

Name of employee:

Position:

Department:

Years of full-time continuous service: (to be verified)

Date of requested separation:

[ am requesting participation in Storey County’s voluntary retirement program by the purchase by
the County of up to 2 years of service in the Nevada PERS system not to exceed $30,000. I am
requesting the purchase of years.

Attach the department head written budget reduction plan including any reorganization, proposed
changes in pay grades, job descriptions, and authorized positions.

This request is estimated to cost $ (to be verified)
Employee’s signature: Date:
Department head signature: Date:
County manager signature: Date:

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 4 of 5



Storey County voluntary retirement program agreement
and

Waiver and release agreement.

Storey County and (employee)

Agree as follows:

1. Employee has requested participation in the voluntary retirement program. Employer
(specific department head and county manager) has approved the request and will forward this
agreement to the Board of County Commissioners (Board) for final approval. This agreement is
effective on the Board’s approval and no payment will be made to PERS until after the effective
date.

2. Employee has reviewed, understands and agrees to all the terms and conditions of the
program. A copy of the voluntary retirement program policy is attached and incorporated into
this agreement.

3. Employee acknowledges that he or she has been given adequate time to review the
program before signing this agreement.

4. Employee has up until the Board approves this agreement to rescind his or her
acceptance.

5. Employee waives, releases, and agrees never to assert claims against employer and the
termination of employment under this program. These claims include but are not limited to,
claims arising under federal, state, and local statutory or common law, such as the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 1991 and the
law of contract and tort. This waiver extends to all claims presently known or unknown.

Employee’s signature: Date:
Approved by:

Department head signature: Date:
County manager: Date:
Board Chair: Date:

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 5 of 5



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 000

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 1-16-2018
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOC

((DRAFT: Blue italics/strike: Austin/Black: Bob Morris)) COUNTY MANAGER:
SUBJECT: SEPARATION AGREEMENTS

L PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding separation agreements
between an employee and the county.

IL PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. The Board, or its designee, must approve all separation agreements. Only the board of
county commissioners and board of fire commissioners ((or its designee)) is
authorized to approve separation agreements. The county manager may, after review
by the appropriate county officers, recommend to the board that an employee that is
separating from employment with the county receive a separation bonus for
outstanding service to the county. The bonus is limited to additional payment of up to
$20,000 830,000 to be paid either to PERS or to the separating employee’s deferred
Compensation account. (wote: The PERS buyout in Policy 000 and this policy should be the same amount.))

B. All separation agreements entered into by the board, or its designee, on behalf of the
county must be filed in the County Clerk’s office.

C. All contracts must be reviewed by the District Attorney, County Manager,
Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director, and County Comptroller before
consideration by the board.

D. Once approved by the board, the board chair er-if-designatedthe-County- Manager-or
another-designee-will sign-the agreement.

E. The County Clerk will make a certified copy of the contract or agreement and deliver
it to the County Recorder for recording.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The county manager or his or her designee will review
this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 1 of 1



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 042

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 7-3-2012
REVISED: 9-29-2017
AUTHORITY: BOC

((DRAFT: Blue, Austin; Black and Red. Bob Morris)) COMPTROLLER:

SUBJECT: CONTRACTS and AGREEMENTS

IL

PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding Storey County contracts and
agreements.

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. TheBeard its-designee, must approve a ntracts-and-ag - On the board
is authorized to approve contracts and agreements, exceplt as otherwise provided in this
policy.

B. All agreements and contracts entered into by the board, or its designee, on behalf of
the county must be filed in the County Clerk’s office.

C. All contracts must be reviewed by the District Attorney, County Manager and County
Comptroller before consideration by the Board. Contracts involving personnel, temporary
and permanent staffing, labor relations and bargaining agreements, staffing budgets, and
matters impacting the county position classification plan must also be reviewed by the
Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director.

D. Once approved by the board, the board chair or if designated, the County Manager or
another designee will sign-the agreement/ or contract. The County Manager is authorized
to sign, on behalf of the Board, agreements and contracts that are valued less than
$10,000 and sign change orders on construction projects if the change order is no greater
than 10% of the total amount bid on the for the project. Nothing in this policy prohibits
the County Manager from having the board review, vote on, and sign contracts and
change orders, including those in which s/he is normally authorized to engage the county.
Additionally, this policy does not prohibit the board from requesting certain agreements,
contracts, and change orders be approved by a vote of the board or reviewed if alrcady
signed by the County Manager. The County Clerk will retain the original agreement-or
contract. The document will not be removed from the Clerk’s office once all parties have
signed it.

E. The originating department must obtain the signatures of the second parties prior to
presenting the agreement-or contract to the Board. If they are unable to obtain the
necessary signatures of the second parties, the County Clerk will retain a copy the
document and notify the originating department that they will need to obtain the
signatures and return an original to the County Clerk.

F. The County Clerk will make a certified copy of the contract or agreement and deliver
it to the County Recorder for recording.

G. The Clerk’s office will notify the originating department once the documents have
been signed. This will keep the department informed and allow them to schedule the

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page I of 2



commencement of the project.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Comptroller or his or her designee will
review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of 2



4. Staff summary continued:
The included policies are:

Existing No. 001 FUNCTION OF THE POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL
Existing No. 002 CREATUNG, REVIEWING AND MODIFYING POLICIES
Revised No. 008 Agenda requests for the Board of County Commissioner’s meetings
Revised No. 042 CONTRACTS and AGREEMENTS

Existing NO. 042 CONTRACTS and AGREEMENTS showing changes

Proposed No. 000 VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

Proposed No. 000 SEPARATION AGREEMENTS



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 000

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 1-16-2018
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:

SUBJECT: VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

IL.

I11.

IV.

PURPOSE: The voluntary retirement program is designed to encourage eligible
employees to voluntarily agree to leave county employment as a budget reduction
measure.

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. The Board, or its designee, must approve all agreements.

B. Participation in the program is voluntary, . The employee, department head or the
county manager may initiate the process of selecting participants for consideration in
the program. : )

C. Upon final approval of the Board of County Commissioners, eligible employees may
receive up to 2 years of time in the Nevada PERS system purchased on their behalf by
the county. ;

D. The purchase of service payment will not be included as compensation for the purpose
of PERS.

E. The Board must approve changes in pay grades, job descriptions, and authorized

positions before the positions become final.

F. The Board, in its sole discretion, may modify or cancel this program at any time.

Participation by the County is also dependent on the County’s fiscal ability to fund any
proposed purchase of service. A

PROGRAM CONDITIONS:

A. An employee’s participation in the program is requires the separating employee’s
-position being downgraded at least 3 pay grades.

B. The drop in pay grades may be justified through a reduction in job dutics and
responsibilities and:may be reflected in a revised job description.

C. The amount of purchase of service is conditioned on the ability of the department to
recover the purchase of service expense within three years and the department being
able to show an on-going personnel cost reduction to cover the expense.

D. The maximum purchase of service payment is $30,000.

ELIGIBLE PARTICIPANTS:

A. Full-time regular employees who have 10 years of continuous service with the county
and are vested in the PERS system are eligible to participate in the program.
B. The county manager may determine certain positions as critical and are not eligible to

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page I of 5



VI.

VIIL.

participate in the program. Critical positions may include, but are not limited to,
those with supervisory duties and responsibilities, positions providing mandated or
critical services, and positions related to public health, safety and welfare

Elected officials, unclassified employees, contract employees, or employees hired
with or paid by a grant are not eligible for the program

Employees of the Storey County Fire District may be eligible provided they meet the
criteria for the program (including section B above) and are approve by the Storey
County Board of Fire Commissioners.

PROCEDURE FOR PROCESSING REQUESTS:

A.

An eligible employee may request to participate in the Voluntary Retirement Program
by submitting a completed employee request form to human resources and by
providing a copy to his or her department head.

Upon receipt of the voluntary retirement request form, the department head will
determine if the employee is eligible and whether the department will realize
permanent cost savings. The department head will prepare and submit to human
resources a written budget reduction plan including any reorganization, proposed
changes in pay grades, job descriptions, and authorized positions.

Any request approved by the department head and human resources must be given to
the county manager for review. If the county manager determines the employee is
eligible and approves the request the employee will sign and agreement, waiver and
release form. The county manager will forward the completed packet to the Board for
review.

D. The Board must have the final review and may approve or deny the request for

Es

purchase of service and the budget reduction plan. Changes in pay grades or
authorized positions must be approved by the Board and reflected in the department’s
budget.

The employee may withdraw his or her request up until the decision by the Board. If
the request is denied during the approval process

F. The department head is responsible for implementing the budget reduction plan

including updated job descriptions or reorganization of affected positions.

CALCULATION FOR PURCHASE OF SERVICE:

A

B.
C.

The amount of the purchase of service given the employee is based on the cost of
PERS credit as of the effective date of the employee’s termination of employment
from the county.

The calculation of the PERS amount will be based on standard PERS requirements.
The payment to PERS will be made before the termination date

RESPONSIBILITIES:

A.

B.

The human resources manager is designated by the county manager to administer the
program.

The department head will review the employee requests before they are submitted to
human resources.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 2 of §



C. Human resources will accept and process requests, determine eligibility, calculate
years of service.

D. The employee is responsible for signing all necessary paperwork and, if approved for
the program, separating from the county.

E. Human resources will work with the affected department to make sure that any change
in pay grades, reassignment of duties, updated job descriptions and authorized
positions are approved by the Board.

VIII. FORMS:

A. Employee request form.
B. Waiver and release form.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Managcr or hlb or her designee will review
this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 3 of 5



Request Form

Name of employee:

Position:

Department:

Years of full-time continuous service: (to be verified)

Date of requested separation:

[ am requesting participation in Storey County’s voluntary retirement program by the purchase by
the County of up to 2 years of service in the Nevada PERS system not to exceed $30,000. Tam
requesting the purchase of years.

Attach the department head written budget reduction plan including any reorganization, proposed
changes in pay grades, job descriptions, and authorized positions.

This request is estimated to cost $ (to be verified)
Employee’s signature: Date:
Department head signature: Date:
County manager signature: Date:

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 4 of 5



Storey County voluntary retirement program agreement
and

Waiver and release agreement.

Storey County and (employee)

Agree as follows:

1. Employee has requested participation in the voluntary retirement program. Employer
(specific department head and county manager) has approved the request and will forward this
agreement to the Board of County Commissioners (Board) for final approval. This agreement is
effective on the Board’s approval and no payment will be madeto PERS until after the effective
date. L

2. Employee has reviewed, understands and avgrccs to all the terms and conditions of the
program. A copy of the voluntary retirement program policy is attached and incorporated into
this agreement. )

3. Employee acknowledges that he or she has been given adequate time to review the
program before signing this agreement. :

4. Employee has up until the Board approves this agreement to rescind his or her
acceptance. .

5. Employee waives, releases, and agrees never to assert claims against employer and the
termination of employment under this program. These claims include but are not limited to,
claims arising under federal, state, and local statutory or common law, such as the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and 1991 and the
law of contract and tort. This waiver extends to all claims presently known or unknown,

Employee’s signature: Date:
Approved by:

Department head signature: Date:
County manager: Date:
Board Chair: Date:

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page 5 of 5



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 000

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 1-16-2018
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER:

SUBJECT: SEPARATION AGREEMENTS

I. PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding separation agreements
between an employee and the county.

IL. PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. The Board, or its designee, must approve all separation agreements. The county
manager may, after review by the appropriate county officers, recommend to the .
Board that an employee that is separating from employment with the county receive a
separation bonus for outstanding service to the county. The bonus is:limited to
additional payment of up to $20,000 to be paid either to PERS or to the separating
employee’s deferred compensation account.. : '

B. All separation agreements entered into by the Board or its designee, on behalf of the
county must be filed in the County Clerk’s office."

C. All contracts must be reviewed by the District Attorney, County Manager and County
Comptroller before consideration by the Board. i

D. Once approved by the Board, the board chair or if demgnated the County Manager or
another designee will sign-the agreement.

E. The County Clerk will make a certified copy of the contract or agreement and deliver
it to the County Recorder for recordmg

RESPONSIBILITY FORREVlEW The county manager or his or her designee will review
this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures Page Il of 1



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

POLICIES:

Existing No. 001 FUNCTION OF THE POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL
Existing No. 002 CREATUNG, REVIEWING AND MODIFYING POLICIES
Revised No. 008 Agenda requests for the Board of County Commissioner’s meetings
Revised No. 042 CONTRACTS and AGREEMENTS

Existing N0. 042 CONTRACTS and AGREEMENTS showing changes

Proposed No. 000 VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT PROGRAM

Proposed No. 000 SEPARATION AGREEMENTS



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 001

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 9/18/07
REVISED:
01/16/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: __ PAW_

SUBJECT: FUNCTION OF THE POLICY AND PROCEDURE MANUAL

I. PURPOSE: This procedure describes the purpose and format of the Storey
County Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual.

I1. POLICY: The Storey County Policies and Procedures Manual is designed to be a
comprehensive manual incorporating all policies, procedures, commission
regulations and directives that affect and guide the actions of all county
departments. They are intended to respect department specific approved policies
and adhere be consistent with the provisions of t collective bargaining
agreements. eontracts:

A. DEFINITIONS:

1. Policy: A basic rule established to govern functions so that they are
performed in line with desired objectives. A general guideline that
rcgulates organization actions.

2. Procedure: The act, method or manner of proceeding in some process
or course of action; the sequence of steps to be followed.

III. PROCEDURE:

A. FUNCTION:
1. The Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual will be a resource
for all countywide procedures, policies and directives.

B. REASONS FOR ESTABLISHING A POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
MANUAL:
1. To improve communications.
2. To promote uniformity of action.
3. To improve direction setting.

C. CONTENT: The following types of policies and procedures will be
included in the manual.

1. Those policies and/or procedures, which cross department lines and
require action, compliance or give direction to more than one
department.

2. Those policies and/or procedures that provide information of value to
all county departments.



IV.

D. County Policies and Procedures shall be reviewed and signed by the
County Manager, and authorized by the Board of Commissioners prior to
implementation.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Manager’s office will review
this policy every §S years.



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 002

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 9/18/07
REVISED; 01/16/18
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: _ PAW._

SUBJECT: CREATING, REVIEWING AND MODIFYING POLICIES

IL.

I1I.

PURPOSE: To establish guidelines for departments to use for proposing,
reviewing, modifying or deleting policies or procedures from the Storey County
Administrative Policies and Procedures Manual.

A. DEFINITIONS:
1. Originating Department Head/Elected Official: That department or
office that is the source of a proposed or revised policy or procedure.

POLICY: County policies and procedures are the primary reference for direction
that applies to county administration. As such, it is essential that they be
consistently reviewed and updated as needed to reflect current pelicies;
procedures-and practices, legal requirements, issues, and trends. Any department
or office may propose a policy or procedure or revision of an existing policy
related to their departments.

PROCEDURE:
A. PROPOSING OR REVISING POLICIES:

1. Originating Department/Elected Official
e Propose Policy draft or revision.
e Type in policy format.

e Proposed amendments to existing policies and procedures
or the addition of new policies and procedures shall be
shown in the following formal: Policy language to be
deleted must be shown with a strike-out line through each
word and character to be deleted: and policy language to
be added must be shown in italics and underlined for
regular text and bold italics and underlined for any text
which is to be bolded in the final document.

e Send to County Manager or designee for review
2. County Manager’s Office (or designee)
e Forward to District Attorney if there are legal implications.
e TForward to Human Resources if there is employee relations,
benefit or personnel related impact.




¢ Revise draft if necessary.

e Upon preliminary approval, submit to the affected wnpacted
department heads for review and comment.

e Revise as appropriate.

e Review final draft.

e Prepare actionsheet g board agenda request form, schedule on
ecommission-board agenda and obtain approval for policy from the
board of county commissioners.

e Provide documentation of Eemmission hoard approval and copy
of policy on a computer disk to all departments.

B. DELETING A POLICY OR PROCEDURE:
1. Deletion of an existing policy or procedure requires the same procedure
as draft of proposal or revision. Thorough justification for deletion must
be presented.

C. REVIEW OF POLICIES:

1. At the time of proposal of a policy or procedure a specific time period
will be assigned for review and discussion.

2. The County Manager’s office will establish and maintain a ‘tickler’
file to identify and pull out those policies due for review.

3. Implementation of all changes will follow procedures outlined under
proposing or revising policies.

4. Policies shall be reviewed at least once every five years or as needed.

IV. RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Manager’s office is
responsible for review at least every 5 years.



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER:

008 POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 10-
6-2009

REVISED: 11-6-
2017

AUTHORITY:
BOC

COUNTY MANAGER

SUBJECT: Agenda requests for Board of County Commissioners’ meetings.

IL

PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding request for placement
of items on the Board of County Commissioners’ agenda.

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:
A. The county manager is responsible for the agenda of the Board meetings and
the approval of agenda items to be placed on the agenda.

B. All requests for agenda items must be made in writing on approved agenda
action report forms and must be submitted to the clerk’s office for placement on
the agenda. The request must include all supporting documentation and must be
submitted by noon on Monday of the weck preceding the Board’s meeting. On
receipt, the clerk will send the item to the county manager. The county manager
will review the item and either approve the item for a subsequent meeting agenda
or disapprove the item and respond to the requester in writing the reasons why it
is being denied. If the county manager, or his designee, is unavailable or there is
a conflict, the chair of the Board may approve items for the agenda.

C. Any member of the public, the Board, or County staff may request an agenda
item. All agenda item requests by County staff must be approved by the
employee’s immediate supervisor or department head and the county manager.

D. All ordinances and resolutions must be reviewed, approved, and signed off on
by the District Attorney’s office before placement on the agenda. Once approved
for placement on the agenda the clerk’s office will issue a number. A resolution
may be approved by the Board after a public hearing. An ordinance may be
approved by the Board in the required form after a first reading and a second
public hearing in conformance with NRS 244. The person requesting the
ordinance must provide the clerk with a version showing changes by red cross-out
for deleted text and underlined blue italics for new text. The person is also
responsible for providing a clean copy of the ordinance for the agenda packet
before the public hearing and for signature by the Board.

E. Items, including those involving personnel matters, may be subject to closed
meeting provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes and the Open Meeting Law.



F. Matters raised during public comment that are not on the agenda may not be
acted on by the Board until the matter is placed on subsequent agenda as an action
item.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Manager or his or her designee will
review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Staff Report

Meeting date: Time requested: 5
min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Administrative [ | Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve ...
2. Recommended motion: I move to approve ...
3. Prepared by: (name)
Department: Tel:

4. Staff summary:

S. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund:
6. Supporting materials: (item and list of supporting materials)

7. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
Comptroller
County Manager Other agency review:

District Attorney
8. Board action:

Approved with Modifications

Continued

[] Approved
[] Denied

—
[ Sy —

Agenda Item No.



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 042

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 7-3-2012
REVISED: 9-29-2017
AUTHORITY: BOC
COMPTROLLER:

SUBJECT: CONTRACTS and AGREEMENTS

L. PURPOSE: To outline procedures and policies regarding Storey County
contracts and agreements.

II. PROCEDURE OR POLICY:
A. The Board, or its designee, must approve all contracts and agreements.

B. All agreements and contracts entered into by the Board, or its designee, on
behalf of the county must be filed in the County Clerk’s office.

C. All contracts must be reviewed by the District Attorney, County Manager and
County Comptroller before consideration by the Board.

D. Once approved by the Board, the board chair or if designated, the County
Manager or another designee will sign-the agreement/ or contract. The County Manager
is authorized to sign, on behalf of the Board, agreements and contracts that are valued
less than $10,000 and sign change orders on construction projects if the change order is
no greater than 10% of the total amount bid on the for the project. Nothing in this policy
prohibits the County Manager from having the Board review, vote on, and sign contracts
and change orders. Additionally, this policy does not prohibit the Board from requesting
certain agreements, contracts, and change orders be approved by a vote of the board or
reviewed if already signed by the County Manager. The County Clerk will retain the
original agreement-or contract. The document will not be removed from the Clerk’s
office once all parties have signed it.

E. The originating department must obtain the signatures of the second parties
prior to presenting the agreement-or contract to the Board. If they are unable to obtain
the necessary signatures of the second parties, the County Clerk will retain a copy of the
document and notify the originating department that they will need to obtain the
signatures and return an original to the County Clerk.

F. The County Clerk will make a certified copy of the contract or agreement and
deliver it to the County Recorder for recording.

G. The Clerk’s office will notify the originating department once the documents
have been signed. This will keep the department informed and allow them to schedule
the commencement of the project.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Comptroller or his or her designee
will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTATIVE NUMBER: 042

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 7-3-2012
REVISED: 11-7-2017
AUTHORITY: BOC
COMPTROLLER:

SUBJECT: CONTRACTS and AGREEMENTS

IL.

PURPOSE BRIEF-DISCRIPTION: To outline procedures and policies
regarding Storey County contracts and agreementss-adways-deferring to-the NRRS
Statttes-on-the same,

PROCEDURE OR POLICY:

A. The Board. or its designee. must approve all contracts and agreements.

B.—NevadaRevised-Statutesreguires—a All agreements and contracts entered into
by the Board, or its designee, on behalf of the county must be filed in the County

Clerk’s office.

C. All contracts shalt must be reviewed by the District Attorney, County Manager
and County Comptroller prior-to signing before consideration by the Board.

D. Once approved by the Board, ef-County-Commissioners the board chair or if
designated, the or-County Manager or thei-another designee will signs-aw-the
agreement/ or contract. The County Manager is authorized to sign, on behalf of
the Board. agreemenis and contracts that are valued less than 810,000 and sign
change orders on construction projects if the change order is no greater than
10% of the total amount bid on the for the project. Nothing in this policy
prohibits the County Manager from having the Board review., vote on. and sign

contracts and change orders. Additionally, this policy does not prohibit the Board
from requesting certain agreements, contracts, and change orders be approved by

a vole of the board or reviewed if already signed by the County Manager. tThe
County Clerk will retain the original agreement/ or contract. The document will
not be removed from the Clerk’s office once all parties have signed it. it-has-been
stened-by-allparties:

E. The originating department shewld must obtain the signatures of the second
parties prior to presenting the agreement/ or contract to the Board €eunty
Commissioners. [f they are unable to obtain the necessary signatures of the
second parties, the County Clerk will retain a copy the document and notify the
originating department that they will need to obtain the signatures and return an
original to the County Clerk.

F. The County Clerk will make a certified copy of the contract/ or agreement and
deliver it to the County Recorder for recording.



G. The Clerk’s office will notify the originating department once the documents
have been signed. This will keep the department informed and allow them to
schedule the commencement of the project.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Comptroller or his or her designee
will review this policy every S years or sooner as necessary.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required | |

1. Title: Discussion and possible action. Approval of revised county manager’s job description.

2. Recommended motion: [ move to approve the county manager’s job description revised January
16,2018 .

3. Prepared by: Prepared for Marshall McBride, Chair, by Robert Morris, outside counsel.
Department: County Commissioners Tel: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: On August 15, 2017, the Board held a workshop on the county manager’s job
description. NRS 244.135 states: “The county manager shall perform such administrative functions
of the county government as may be required by the board of county commissioners.” Storey County
currently has a job description for the county manager position. The revised county manager’s job
description was discussed at the meeting as well as alternatives including using a contract or putting
the job duties in an ordinance. On November 7, 2017 the Board again considered the county
manager job description and after discussion continued the item to this meeting. The Board will not
consider the current county manager’s job performance in connection with this agenda item.
(Continued on next page)

5. Supporting materials: The county manager job description revised January 16, 2018. Clean
copy and copy showing revisions.

6. Fiscal impact: None
7. Legal review required: No District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

/ \ f/g ,Q{ny Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications

Continued
Agenda Item No. ‘ b

——
[y —



4. Staff summary continued:

After the November 7, 2017 meeting some minor changes to the proposed job description have
been made and these are shown in blue underlined italics in the attached document as well as in the
clean copy. The Board’s use of policies in conjunction with the job description was also discussed
during the workshop in August and the meeting in November. The workshop item on policies
following this item deals with administrative policies that give the county manager either
significant duties or the responsibility for making sure the policies are followed.



Storey County Job Description

County Manager

Class Title: County Manager

Reports to: Board of Storey County Commissioners
FLSA Status: Exempt

Represented Status: Non-Represented

Created: March 2007

Last Revised Draft 1-16-2018

1. JOB SUMMARY

The county manager is the county’s chief administrative officer and reports to the Storey County
Board of County Commissioners (board). The board considers and sets policy and the county
manager is tasked with implementing these policies. Without limiting the specific duties and
responsibilities that the county manager may be assigned by the board, the broad activity areas
for measured achievement are:

A. Executive leadership

B. Managerial and organizational effectiveness
C. Financial planning

D. Human resource development

E. Public service and communication

F. Economic development in the county

G. Emergency management

2. DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS: The county manager is responsible for the
leadership, supervision, and management of county staff, and management of county resources
consistent with the administrative and policy direction of the board. An employee in this position
is unclassified and "at-will," serving at the pleasure of the Storey County County
Commissioners. The county manager will be given a yearly evaluation by the board after the
end of the fiscal year and a consideration of an increase in salary and possible performance based
bonus.

3. EXAMPLES OF DUTIES: The county manager’s duties are authorized by action by the
board. The duties listed below are examples of the work typically performed by an employee in
this position that are authorized by the board. The board may take action to include or
elimminate other duties for the county manager.

A. Assists the board in the development of overall goals of the county; provides
leadership and direction in the development of short- and long-range plans for achieving overall
goals; works with the board and others to develop community and economic development plans.

B. Develops, evaluates, and implements administrative policies based on federal and state
law and regulations, and the organizational goals and objectives of the board. Recommends
policy changes where appropriate to the board for approval. Informs the board of operational

Draft 1-16-18 1



problems.

C. Facilitates team management approach for decision making; promotes opportunities
for employee involvement in collaborative and participatory problem solving; selects, directs,
develops, and evaluates management personnel and other staff; administers discipline for
inadequate performance or improper behavior.,

D. Subject to the limitations of law and board direction; is designated the authorized
representative to be responsible for the development, award and proper administration of all
purchases and contracts made pursuant to the local government purchasing law, negotiates and
supervises county contractual agreements, and after approval of the contract by the board,
administers the agreements and if authorized by the board, enforces agreements.

E. Oversees the development of the annual county budget for approval by the board;
monitors expenditures to ensure compliance with budgets; accounts for variances between
projected and actual expenditures, initiates remedial action, and reports significant variances to
the board.

F. Administers the preparation of board meeting agendas; attends board meetings; makes
oral and written presentations to the board of county commissioners and to other public and
private groups; provides information to the news media and the public regarding County
operations; represents the County with other government agencies and in meetings with the
public.

G. Analyzes proposed legislation and administrative regulations for their impact on
County operations; reviews and makes recommendations to the board regarding legislative
activitics; participates in the lobbying process by presenting oral and written testimony to
appropriate bodies.

H. Receives, investigates, and resolves complaints and concerns regarding County
programs, services, employees, and facilitics; acts as liaison with cities, counties, regional, state,
and federal agencies on a broad range of matters.

I. Engages with the county economic development team: transfers knowledge to
attracting and enhancing private enterprise and building public-private relationships.

J. May respond to call out in emergencies, other than during normal working hours, as
needed. For example, may respond to and actively participate in all hazard Incident Command
Systems.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT:
Knowledge and Ability:

The county manager must have knowledge of: public administration and public finance
principles and methods; organizational principles and relationships, principles of strategic
planning; Nevada public finance laws, regulations and practices; conflict resolution techniques;
principles and practices of supervision and employee development.

The county manager must have the ability to: synthesize large volumes of data, interpret and
evaluate; exercise initiative, ingenuity, independent analysis and judgment in solving difficult
and complex administrative, managerial and technical problems; understand and interpret
complex regulations, laws and policies; demonstrate executive leadership and management
skills; supervise effectively; establish and maintain effective community relations; make

Draft 1-16-18 2



effective oral and written presentations; advocate effectively for the benefit of the county's
interest; gain and maintain the confidence and cooperation of elected and appointed officials and
the public.

5. LICENSING, EDUCATION & OTHER REQUIREMENTS

A county manager must have:

Any combination of training, education, and experience that would provide the required
knowledge and abilities. A typical way to gain the required knowledge and ability is:

o Bachelor’s Degree or equivalent from an accredited college or university with
coursework in public or business administration, management, accounting,
cconomics, or a similar field. Other education may be considered based on other
qualifications and experience.

o Master’s Degree or higher with such major or significant coursework may be
preferred.

o Atleast 5 years of increasingly responsible professional experience in
management, human resources, or administrative capacity that includes
experience in supervision and/or personnel management in an open political
environment.

o Professional certifications, such as [CMA Credentialed Manager, applicable to the
position may be preferred.

Must possess a valid Nevada Class C Driver License.

Ability to pass a criminal background investigation.

6. PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The requirements described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of the job.

Physical Requirements. Strength, dexterity, coordination, and vision to use keyboard
and video display terminal for prolonged periods. Strength and stamina to bend, stoop,
sit, and stand for long periods of time. Dexterity and coordination to handle files and
single pieces of paper; occasional lifting of files, stacks of paper or reports, references,
and other materials. Some reaching for items above and below desk level. Some
reaching, bending, squatting, and stooping to access files and records is necessary. The
manual dexterity and cognitive ability to operate a personal computer using word
processing and databases. The ability to communicate via telephone. Light lifting (up to
50 pounds) is occasionally required. In compliance with applicable disability laws,
reasonable accommodations may be provided for qualified individuals with a disability
who require and request such accommodations. Incumbents and individuals who have
been offered employment are encouraged to discuss potential accommodations with the
employer.

Working Environment. Work is typically performed indoors in an office environment
where a portion of work is performed at a desk and on a computer. Work is typically

Draft 1-16-18 3



performed independently with reporting directly to the board of county commissioners as
appropriate. Position may occasionally be required to travel by motor vehicle to on- and
off-site locations. Environment is generally clean with limited exposure to conditions
such as dust, fumes, noise, or odors. Frequent interruptions to planned work activity by
telephone calls, office visitors, and response to unplanned events.

Effective this  dayof , 2017.

Marshall McBride
Commission Chairman

Jack McGuffey
Commission Vice-Chairman

Lance Gilman
Commissioner

Austin Osborne
Human Resources Director

Draft 1-16-18 4



Storey County Job Description

County Manager
Class Title: County Manager
Reports to: Board of Storey County Commissioners
FLSA Status: Exempt
Represented Status: Non-Represented
Created: March 2007
Last Revised Drafi 1-16-2018

1. JOB SUMMARY

The county manager is the county’s chief administrative officer and reports to the Storey County
Board of County Commissioners (board). The board considers and sets policy and the county
manager is tasked with implementing these policies. Without limiting the specific duties and
responsibilities that the county manager may be assigned by the board, the broad activity areas
for measured achievement are:

A. Executive leadership

B. Managerial and organizational effectiveness
C. Financial planning

D. Human resource development

E. Public service and communication

F. Economic development in the county

G. Emergency management

2. DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS: The county manager is responsible for the
leadership, supervision, and management of county staff, and management of county resources
consistent with the administrative and policy direction of the board. An employee in this position
is unclassified and "at-will," serving at the pleasure of the Storey County County
Commissioners. The county manager will be given a yearly evaluation by the board afier the
end of the fiscal year and a consideration of an increase in salary and possible performance based
bonus.

3. EXAMPLES OF DUTIES: The county manager’s duties are authorized by action by the
board. The duties listed below are examples of the work typically performed by an employee in
this position that are authorized by the board. The board may take action to include or
elimminate other duties for the county manager.

A. Assists the board in the development of overall goals of the county; provides
leadership and direction in the development of short- and long-range plans for achieving overall
goals; works with the board and others to develop community and economic development plans.

B. Develops, evaluates, and implements administrative policies based on federal and state
law and regulations, and the organizational goals and objectives of the board. Recommends
policy changes where appropriate to the board for approval. Informs the board of operational

Draft 1-16-18 1



problems.

C. Facilitates team management approach for decision making; promotes opportunitics
for employee involvement in collaborative and participatory problem solving; selects, directs,
develops, and evaluates management personnel and other staff, administers discipline for
inadequate performance or improper behavior.

D. Subject to the limitations of law and board direction; is designated the authorized
representative to be responsible for the development, award and proper administration of all
purchases and contracts made pursuant (o the local government purchasing law, negotiates and
supervises county contractual agreements, and after approval of the contract by the board,
administers the agreements and if authorized by the board, enforces agreements.

E. Oversees the development of the annual county budget for approval by the board,;
monitors expenditures to ensure compliance with budgets; accounts for variances between
projected and actual expenditures, initiates remedial action, and reports significant variances to
the board.

F. Administers the preparation of board meeting agendas; attends board meetings; makes
oral and written presentations to the board of county commissioners and to other public and
private groups; provides information to the news media and the public regarding County
operations; represents the County with other government agencies and in meetings with the
public.

G. Analyzes proposed legislation and administrative regulations for their impact on
County operations; reviews and makes recommendations to the board regarding legislative
activities; participates in the lobbying process by presenting oral and written testimony to
appropriate bodies.

H. Receives, investigates, and resolves complaints and concerns regarding County
programs, services, employees, and facilities; acts as liaison with cities, counties, regional, state,
and federal agencies on a broad range of matters.

[. Engages with the county economic development team: transfers knowledge to
attracting and enhancing private enterprise and building public-private relationships.

J. May respond to call out in emergencies, other than during normal working hours, as
needed. For example, may respond to and actively participate in all hazard Incident Command
Systems.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT:
Knowledge and Ability:

The county manager must have knowledge of: public administration and public finance
principles and methods; organizational principles and relationships, principles of strategic
planning; Nevada public finance laws, regulations and practices; conflict resolution techniques;
principles and practices of supervision and employee development.

The county manager must have the ability to: synthesize large volumes of data, interpret and
evaluate; exercise initiative, ingenuity, independent analysis and judgment in solving difficult
and complex administrative, managerial and technical problems; understand and interpret
complex regulations, laws and policies; demonstrate executive leadership and management
skills; supervise effectively; establish and maintain effective community relations; make

Draft 1-16-18 2



effective oral and written presentations; advocate effectively for the benefit of the county's
interest; gain and maintain the confidence and cooperation of elected and appointed officials and
the public.

5. LICENSING, EDUCATION & OTHER REQUIREMENTS
A county manager must have:

¢ Any combination of training, education, and experience that would provide the required
knowledge and abilities. A typical way to gain the required knowledge and ability is:

o Bachelor’s Degree or equivalent from an accredited college or university with
coursework in public or business administration, management, accounting,
economics, or a similar field. Other education may be considered based on other
qualifications and experience.

o Master’s Degree or higher with such major or significant coursework may be
preferred.

o Atleast S years of increasingly responsible professional experience in
management, human resources, or administrative capacity that includes
experience in supervision and/or personnel management in an open political
environment.

o Professional certifications, such as ICMA Credentialed Manager, applicable to the
position may be preferred.

e Must possess a valid Nevada Class C Driver License.

e Ability to pass a criminal background investigation.

6. PHYSICAL DEMANDS

The requirements described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of the job.

e Physical Requirements. Strength, dexterity, coordination, and vision to use keyboard
and video display terminal for prolonged periods. Strength and stamina to bend, stoop,
sit, and stand for long periods of time. Dexterity and coordination to handle files and
single pieces of paper; occasional lifting of files, stacks of paper or reports, references,
and other materials. Some reaching for items above and below desk level. Some
reaching, bending, squatting, and stooping to access files and records is necessary. The
manual dexterity and cognitive ability to operate a personal computer using word
processing and databases. The ability to communicate via telephone. Light lifting (up to
50 pounds) is occasionally required. In compliance with applicable disability laws,
reasonable accommodations may be provided for qualified individuals with a disability
who require and request such accommodations. Incumbents and individuals who have
been offered employment are encouraged to discuss potential accommodations with the
employer.

¢ Working Environment. Work is typically performed indoors in an office environment
where a portion of work is performed at a desk and on a computer. Work is typically

Draft 1-16-18 3



performed independently with reporting directly to the board of county commissioners as
appropriate. Position may occasionally be required to travel by motor vehicle to on- and
off-site locations. Environment is generally clean with limited exposure to conditions
such as dust, fumes, noise, or odors. Frequent interruptions to planned work activity by
telephone calls, office visitors, and response to unplanned events.

Effective this _ dayof , 2017,

Marshall McBride
Commission Chairman

Jack McGuffey
Commission Vice-Chairman

Lance Gilman
Commissioner

Austin Osborne
Human Resources Director

Draft [-16-18 4



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 16, 2018 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: File 2016-030-A1-2017. A request to amend Special Use Permit
2016-030, Condition 5, by the applicant Sally Summers to allow for additional time for the onsite
temporary trailer (watchperson’s dwelling) to remain on the property. No other changes or
modifications to the original Special Use Permit are proposed. The property is located at 199 Scales
Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-331-08, 004-331-22 & 004-331-40,
Amended Special Use File 2016-030-A1-2017.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning
Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, 1 (county commissioner), move to approve amended Special Use Permit 2016-030,
Condition 5, by the applicant Sally Summers to allow for additional time for the onsite temporary
trailer (watchperson’s dwelling) to remain on the property until January 31, 2020. No other changes
or modifications to the original Special Use Permit are proposed. The property is located at 199
Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-331-08, 004-331-22 & 004-331-40,
Amended Special Use Permit File 2016-030-A1-2017.

3. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

5.  Staffsummary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-030-A1-2017

6. Supporting materials: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2016-030-A1-2017

75 Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8.  Legal review required: District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
A :: Department Head Department Name: Planning
/)—\)Lﬂ, (m‘nly Manager _ Other agency review: -
10. Board action:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[] Approved [
[] Demed [

[ —

Agenda Item No.

17



26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Storey County

Planning Department
Storey County Courthouse

Phone 775-847-1144 — Fax 775-847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

To:
From:

Meeting Date:

Meeting Location:

Staff Contact:
File:
Applicant:

Property Owner:

Property Location:

Request:

1. Background

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department

January 16, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada
Kathy Canfield

2016-030-A1-2017 Special Use Permit Condition Amendment

Sally Summers

Comstock Mining, LLC

199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-331-08, 004-
331-22 & 004-331-40.

A request to amend Special Use Permit 2016-030, Condition 5, by the applicant
Sally Summers to allow for additional time for the onsite temporary trailer
(watchperson’s dwelling) to remain on the property. No other changes or
modifications to the original Special Use Permit are proposed. The property is
located at 199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-
331-08, 004-331-22 & 004-331-40, Amended Special Use File 2016-030-A1-
2017.

The Special Use permit for the proposed project was approved by the Board of County
Commissioners in December 2016. The original project description is as follows:

The applicant proposes to construct a single-family residential dwelling on the subject
property. The dwelling will be combined with a non-dwelling use (barn) that will house
animals and agricultural equipment. The applicant also proposes to maintain up to 80
horses or other large domestic animals on the property and construct various accessory
structures for sheltering, protecting, and servicing the animals. The animals will be fed in
a controlled manner and, therefore, there will be no pastures created or mass grading
on the premises. The proposed use is non-commercial and, therefore, will not facilitate
commercial business or public visitors, except volunteer and other works caring for the



animals and providing maintenance and security. A travel trailer providing for a site
security person is proposed to be located at the site for up to one year. The proposed
uses may only occur on the subject property with a special use permit.

The applicant has commenced the animal use on the property and has installed the temporary
trailer. Construction on the residence and the barn has not yet occurred and the applicant has
requested additional time to keep the temporary trailer in place.

Storey County staff conducted a compliance review of the site during the Fall of 2017. The
results of the review confirmed that the operation was complying with the Conditions of
Approval of the Special Use Permit and the results were presented to the Planning Commission
at their November 16, 2017 meeting.

Proposed Request

During the compliance review it was determined that the temporary trailer (watchperson’s
dwelling) time frame was ending and the construction of the residence and barn had not yet
commenced. The applicant has requested additional time for the temporary trailer
(watchperson’s dwelling) to remain until the residence/barn can be constructed. Staff concurs
with the request and are recommending an approximate two year extension of time be given for
the temporary trailer (watchperson’s dwelling). As depicted in the revised Condition 5 language,
Staff recommends the temporary trailer (watchperson’s dwelling) be allowed until January 31,
2020.

No other conditions of approval are proposed or recommended to be modified from the original
approval.

Staff recommends the following change to Condition 5 from the original Special Use Permit
2016-030:

5. Temporary watchperson'’s trailer

A travel trailer/recreational vehicle may be placed on the subject property and

occupied by a resident/watchperson ferup-te-one-yearcommencing-on-the-day
efthisspecial-use-permit-approval-until January 31, 2020. The use must be

connected to a permitted well and septic system (later to be serve the
permanent dwelling) if the use is to provide residential quarters for the
watchperson during the allowed time. The temporary dwelling must be
disconnected from the well and septic after this time and it must be converted
to a non-occupancy use (stored) as allowed by the applicable Storey County
code or removed from the property.



+
-

-

i Amarican Fiat Rd.

" L -
TR0 Couriany OFf LINCES B couky ¢ of 010 Nevacks Sty Magxsng Advisdry Consrition Eets’ v/ ogrgi.cs SI0 © 2010 Microooft Cor parion

toncl Correraiion 808 ERE © AND

¥ Cerrieey of LSO S ciaiiny (f (o Mevards Siale Mo Aoy Correniie PlsSnts Coory atscs SIO B X095 M

Yellow outline is the parcel, dotted yellow is the location of the first phase of development.
Compatibility and Compliance

No modifications or impacts to compatibility with surrounding uses, zoning or the master plan
are expected with the modification to the time frame for the temporary trailer.

Findings of Fact

A. Motion for approval. The following Findings of Fact are evident with regard to the
requested amended special use permit when the recommended revised conditions of
approval in Section 4, Revised Recommended Conditions of Approval, are applied.

1. The amended special use permit does not conflict with the provisions of the 2016
Storey County Master Plan including the goals and objectives listed in Chapter 3
Land Use and Chapter 11 Cultural and Historic Resources, including as related for
the maintenance of an orderly, efficient, and sustainable development;
compatibility between existing and future uses; the advancement and diversity
of the local economy from tourism and other sources; and for the preservation of
historic and cultural resources for the subject area.

2. The amended special use permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or
safety hazards on the adjacent properties or the surrounding area.



3. The conditions of the special use permit adequately address potential structure
and wildland fire hazards and require compliance with the applicable fire codes,
including setback and fire protection ratings.

4. The conditions of this special use permit do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code 17.32 F Forestry Zone, or any other federal,
state, or county regulations, including building and fire codes.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the Special Use Permit request,
the following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

(1) Substantial evidence shows that the amended special use permit may conflict
with the purpose, intent, and other specific requirements of Storey County Code
17.32 F Forestry Zone, or any other federal, state, or county regulations,
including building and fire codes.

(2) The conditions under the amended special use permit do not adequately
mitigate potentialadverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against
potential safety hazards for surrounding uses.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

A.

Amended Special Use Permit. This approval is to amend Special Use Permit 2016-030,
Condition 5, by the applicant Sally Summers to allow for additional time for the onsite
temporary trailer (watchperson’s dwelling) to remain on the property. No other
changes or modifications to the original Special Use Permit are proposed. The property
is located at 199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-331-08,
004-331-22 & 004-331-40, Amended Special Use File 2016-030-A1-2017.

Comstock Historic District. The Permit Holder shall provide a copy of an amended
Certificate of Appropriateness from the Comstock Historic District within 30 days from
this Amended Special Use Permit approval date.

Temporary watchperson’s trailer. A travel trailer/recreational vehicle may be placed on
the subject property and occupied by a resident/watchperson until January 31, 2020.
The use must be connected to a permitted well and septic system (later to be serve the
permanent dwelling) if the use is to provide residential quarters for the watchperson
during the allowed time. The temporary dwelling must be disconnected from the well
and septic after this time and it must be converted to a non-occupancy use (stored) as
allowed by the applicable Storey County code or removed from the property.

Special Use Permit 2016-030 Conditions of Approval. All Conditions of Approval
identified in the original Special Use Permit 2016-030 shall remain in effect with the
exception of Condition 5, Temporary watchperson'’s trailer, as modified above. In
addition, this permit does not authorize any modifications to the previously approved
project description or use of the property as depicted in the original Special Use Permit.




Public Comment
As of December 26, 2017, Staff has not received any comments from the public.
Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such action
thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by
formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Board of County
Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report.
Those findings should be made part of the approval motion. A motion for denial may be made
and that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown in Section 3.B. Other findings of
fact determined appropriate by the Planning Commission should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion for approval

In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the
Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate
by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of
approval, | (county commissioner), move to approve amended Special Use Permit 2016-
030, Condition 5, by the applicant Sally Summers to allow for additional time for the
onsite temporary trailer (watchperson’s dwelling) to remain on the property until
January 31, 2020. No other changes or modifications to the original Special Use Permit
are proposed. The property is located at 199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County,
Nevada, APNs 004-331-08, 004-331-22 & 004-331-40, Amended Special Use Permit File
2016-030-A1-2017.

B. Alternative motion for denial

Against the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, but in accordance
with the Findings of Fact under Section 3.2 of this report, and other findings deemed
appropriate by the Planning Commission, | (county commissioner), deny amending
Special Use Permit 2016-030, Condition 5, by the applicant Sally Summers to allow for
additional time for the onsite temporary trailer (watchperson’s dwelling) to remain on
the property until January 31, 2020. No other changes or modifications to the original
Special Use Permit are proposed. The property is located at 199 Scales Road, American
Flat, Storey County, Nevada, APNs 004-331-08, 004-331-22 & 004-331-40, Amended
Special Use Permit File 2016-030-A1-2017.



APPENDIX 1

Staff Report 2016-030



CASE No.:
APPLICANT:
PROPERTY OWNER:

PROPERTY LOCATION:

REQUEST:

MEETING LOCATION:

MEETING TIME & DATE:

STAFF CONTACT:

Storey County

Board of County Commissioners

Staff Report Addendum

2016-030
Sally Summers
Comstock Mining, LLC

199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada (APNs
004.331.40; 004.331.08; and 004.331.22)

The applicant requests a special use permit allowing: (a) a single-
family dwelling combined with a non-dwelling use (combined
residence-barn) that will separately house humans, animals, and
agricultural equipment; (b) the maintenance of up to 80 large
domestic animals and various accessory structures for sheltering,
feeding, watering, protecting, and servicing the animal; and (c) a
temporary (up to one year) occupancy watchperson’s travel trailer
on property located at 199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey
County, Nevada (APNs 004.331.40; 004.331.08; and 004.331.22).

Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

County Commission: 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, December 6, 2016

Austin Osborne, Planning Director 775.847.0968

SUMMARY OF PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:

The planning commission at its 12/01/16 meeting heard testimony
from the applicant, property owner, county staff, and the public
regarding the subject special use permit request. Concerns were
brought forth about the applicant’s request to restrict public access
to Scales Road, visual impact of the use to the abutting V&T
Railroad corridor, animal density, management of animal manure
and invasive weeds, and humane treatment of animals. The
planning commission voted five to one, with one absent, to
approve the use with changes to the conditions recommended in
Staff Report No. 2016-030. The recommended changes to those
conditions are shown in the following addendum and are hereby
recommended to the board of county commissioners for approval.



AMENDED RECOMMENDED MOTION:

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, the findings of fact under Section 3.1
of Staff Report No. 2016-030, and other findings deemed appropriate by the planning
commission, and in compliance with the conditions of approval as amended pursuant
to Staff Report Addendum No. 2016-030, I [commissioner] motion to approve with
stated conditions Special Use Permit No. 2016-030 allowing: (a) single-family
dwelling combined with a non-dwelling usc (combined residence-barn) that will
separately house humans, animals, and agricultural equipment; (b) the maintenance of
up to 80 large domestic animals and various accessory structures for sheltering,
feeding, watering, protecting, and servicing the animals; and (c) for a temporary (up to
one year) occupancy watchperson’s travel trailer on property located at 199 Scales
Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 004.331.40; 004.331.08; and
004.331.22).

AMENDED RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

The following conditions of approval were amended pursuant to the recommendation by the
planning commission. Text shown bold italics is added, and text shown as stréke-o#t is deleted.

1 RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable county department, unless
otherwise stated.

1. Purpose

This special use permit is granted for the purpose of allowing: (a) permanent single-
family dwelling combined with a non-dwelling use (combined dwelling and agriculture
barn) that will separately house humans, animals, and agricultural equipment; (b) the
maintenance of up to 80 large domestic animals (e.g., horses) and various accessory
structures for sheltering, feeding, watering, protecting, and servicing the large domestic
animals; and (c) a temporary (up to one year) watchperson’s travel-trailer on property
located at 199 Scales Road, American Flat, Storey County, Nevada (APNs 004.331.40;
004.331.08; and 004.331.22).

2. Transfer of rights

This special use permit belongs exclusively to Sally Summers and/or Horse Power and
the real property associated with this permit so long as the permit holder owns or leases
the property. This special use permit is non-transferable.

3. Compliance

The special use permit must comply with federal, state, and county codes and regulations
and the submitted plans and reports, as approved. The permit holder must provide the
building department site plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining a building permit.

Page 2 of 8



10.

Permits and expiration

The permit holder must apply for all building and fire permits for the structures
associated herewith within 24 months from the date of board (Board of Storey County
Commissioners) approval, and continuously maintain the validity of those permits, as
appropriate, or obtain a certificate of occupancy or equivalent approval, or this special
use permit approval will become null and void.

Temporary watchperson’s trailer

A travel trailer/recreational vehicle may be placed on the subject property and occupied
by a resident/watchperson for up to one year commencing on the day of this special use
permit approval. The use must be connected to a permitted well and septic system (later
to be serve the permanent dwelling) if the use is to provide residential quarters for the
watchperson during the allowed time. The temporary dwelling must be disconnected
from the well and septic after this time and it must be converted to a non-occupancy use
(stored) as allowed by the applicable Storey County code or removed from the property.

Animal density and use

Up to 80 large domestic animals may occupy the entire subject property. Large domestic
animals are those listed in the Storey County code, including but not limited to, horses,
burrows, donkeys, and cattle, whether domesticated or not. Up to 10 large domestic
animals may be kept on any one acre of graded corral area, and there must be a minimum
0f 400 square-feet of area that is less than 10 percent slope provided to each animal in
these penned areas. Penned areas must be situated such as to allow the animal(s) inside
to run. The density of large domestic animals outside of graded and corral areas on the
subject property must not exceed 2.5 (16 animals per 40 acres).

Accessory structures

The subject property may be developed with accessory buildings and structures providing
shelter, food and water, and security for the large domestic animals. These structures will
be in addition to the proposed principal residence and barn. The accessory structures will
be required to conform to setback distance and height limitations in Storey County Code
17.32.041 Setback Requirements in the Forestry Zone and 17.12 General Provisions for
accessory structures. Other accessory structures must comply with SCC 17.32 and 17.12.

Improvements

The property must be developed with a domestic well and septic system adequate in
capacity to meet the minimum requirements for a single-family residence and other

permitted uses on the subject property. There must also be adequate water supply, as
determined by the fire district, for on-site fire suppression.

Restrooms

The permit holder must provide an adequate and properly maintained permanent or
portable restroom facility on the subject property for occupants and visitors.

Record of survey

The applicant must submit to the building department a Record of Survey or proof of
property corners by a licensed surveyor with the building permit application. The
evidence must show existing parcel boundaries, easements, and right-of-ways within 100

Page 3 of 8



11.

12.

feet of all permitted structures. No building may be constructed over an casement or
right-of-way, or within a building setback area.

Public access ways

This condition is subject to review by the planning department and district attorney’s
office. This condition becomes effective immediately upon acceptance of the special use
permit and remains in effect indefinitely or until the district attorney’s office
determines that Scales Road is not a public road. All public right-of-ways including, but
not limited to Scales Road, and access easements must remain open to the public and not
be gated, fenced, barricaded, or otherwise made to be inaccessible to the public. Signs
indicating no trespassing and other such restrictions o the subject property shall not be
situated such as to imply restrictions to public access on the right-of-ways and access
easements. The permit holder may, however, realign Scales Road and other roads within
the subject property as desired as long as the realigned road(s) is developed to standards
similar to the road(s) existing at the time of submittal of the special use permit
application, and provides equivalent access to existing start and end points. In
accordance with Storey County Code Title 6 Animals, the permit holder must ensure
that no dog or other animal that is a danger to the public (e.g., vicious dog) enters or
occupies any public access way or easement on the subject property.

Emergency plan

An emergency plan must be submitted to the Storey County Fire Protection District for
review and approval prior to obtaining rights to develop the land pursuant to this special
use permit. The permit holder and the subject property must be in compliance with the
approved emergency plan. The plan must include:

* Basic company owner, site, and emergency contact information.

* Plot plan including detailed sketch drawings of the premises, areas of activity
including structures, corrals, and other accessory uses.

e Emergency contact procedure, including for Emergency 9-1-1 and Storey County
Emergency Direct-Connect 775.847.0950 from cellular telephone; documenting
and reporting procedures, and other items determined appropriate by the fire
district. All personnel and clients on the property must be informed by the permit
holder to dial Emergency Services Direct-Connect 775.847.0950 (in lieu of
Emergency 9-11) from cellular telephones during times of emergencies.

¢ Wildland fire prevention and suppression, including water storage and flows for
wildland fire suppression and fire fuels management.

e Emergency vehicle access, circulation, and staging.

Documenting and reporting of emergency situations.

e Documenting and reporting of Nevada Division of Environmental Protection and

other environmental permits and notices.
Noxious weed management.
Environmental management and Best Management Practices (BMP).

Page 4 of 8



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Signage

Legible signage shall be placed at appropriate entry points of the premises. The signage
must state the name of company/organization, street address (or descriptive location),
contact phone number(s), and other information required by the fire district.

Site inspections

The permit holder must provide the building department and planning department site
plans (hand-drawn is acceptable) reasonably drawn to scale, of the overall site layout,
animal shelters, and other accessory structures associated with this special use permit.
The property layout and design, construction, and placement of each shelter/accessory
structure will be subject to inspection and approval of the building official, director of
planning, or their designees. The building official and director of planning or their
designees shall reserve the right to make periodic inspections and impose requirements as
thereby deemed appropriate.

Emergency access

The permit holder must develop sufficient access, circulation, and staging areas for
emergency vehicles and equipment. The surfaces must be maintained at all times as
required by the fire district. The access plan needs to be included in the emergency plan.

Noise management

The use of motorized generators and equipment is limited to daytime hours between 7:00
a.m. to 6:00 p.m. and Monday through Saturday. Noise on the subject property is
otherwise limited by Storey County Code 8.04 Noise Limitations.

Dust management

This special use permit recognizes that the subject property is almost entirely covered in
natural vegetation and that this vegetation effectively prevents soil erosion from wind and
stormwater. Mass grading shall not occur on the property, except as may be necessary for
principal and accessory structures, corrals, and driveways. Up to 5 cumulative acres of
the subject property may be graded. Appropriate dust and erosion control shall be applied
to areas where grading does occur.

Stormwater management

Any increased stormwater from development of the land must be detained on-site or
directed appropriately to the abutting public right-of-ways and not allowed to enter
abutting private properties. Stormwater drainage onto the right-of-way must be to the
satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

Site sanitation

The entire premises and areas around the premises must be kept clean at all times. There
shall be no trash, rubbish, or junk allowed to accumulate on the subject property or
fugitive trash allowed to exit the premises without immediate removal. Trash shall be
properly disposed of in a licensed landfill facility each week.

The permit holder is responsible for picking up all manure from animal enclosures egef-
day-twice per week and removing all collected manure from the property within each 2
week period. No manure shall be permitted to accumulate on the property and on-site

Page 5 of 8



20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

composting shall not be deemed an appropriate method of disposal. Manure shall be
deposited in a licensed landfill facility either by prescribed trash pick-up or personal
transport to said facility or transfer station.

Noxious weed abatement

The permit holder must submit to the planning department a plan to mitigate the
proliferation of invasive weed species (with emphasis on hoary cress and perennial
pepperweed). The plan must address the weed-seed management of imported hay and
other seed-containing feed and how graded and disturbed surfaces will be managed to
prevent the germination and proliferation of invasive weed species. The plan will apply to
entire subject property and must conform to the applicable state or federal regulations,
and the requirements imposed by this special use permit and the fire district. The permit
holder must conform to the plan.

QOutdoor lighting management

The subject use may include lighting typically found on residential and commercial use,
including building and field lighting. Outdoor lighting must comply with Storey County
Code 8.02 Outdoor Lighting in order to prevent unnecessary glare and light trespass onto
area properties and minimize its visual impact in the region.

Visual impact

Earth-tone and non-reflective coatings and colors must be applied to all structures on the
subject property in order to lessen visibility from Gold Hill, Virginia City, and the V&T
Railroad. Structures on the subject property must otherwise conform to the requirements
of the Comstock Historic District Commission.

Animal health

All large domestic animals on the subject property must meet all equivalent Nevada State
health regulations regarding examinations and immunizations.

Animal humane treatment

The permit holder shall be responsible for assuring that each animal living on the
premises (up to 80 large domestic animals) is treated humanely and is provided adequate
and appropriate nourishment, nutritional supplements, water, and shelter. Specifically, all
animals must receive the following treatment:

a. Appropriate medical care.
b. High quality, clean, and mold free hay/grain, at least twice daily.

c. Clean, safe, and-fee-fiee accessible water and salt blocks (as applicable). Ice shall
be removed from water troughs or containers each day.

d. Adequate shelter from wind, rain, snow, direct sun, heat, and other weather
elements. Shelters shall be appropriately designed for the type of animal and such
as to protect them from predators. Sheep and goats shall be provided at least one
companion, of similar or different breed or species, in its living quarters. No
animal may be tethered except temporarily during training exercises and when
directly supervised.

Page 6 of 8



25.

26.

27.

28.

29,

[¢]

Carson River Mercury Superfund Site (“CRMSS”)

By accepting this special use permit, the permit holder acknowledges that portions of the
subject property may be within or applicable to the CRMSS. Properly managing
disturbances of existing and former mine and mill sites, mill tailings, mine waste, mine
material, and other areas that are found to contain Contaminant of Concern (CoC’s) as
applicable to the CRMSS will be the sole responsibility of the permit holder as
communicated thereto by the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection. Handling,
redistributing or reprocessing CoC impacted materials by the holder must be completed
in accordance with the requirements of the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection.

Taxes paid

Before obtaining a building permit, the holder of the special use permit must show the
building department valid evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

Indemnification

The holder of the special use permit agrees to hold Storey County, its officers and
representatives harmless from the cost and responsibilities associated with any damage or
liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this
special use permit.

Compliance Review

At a regularly scheduled public meeting on or about the months of April 2017 and
December 2017, the permit holder shall provide the planning commission a public
report stating whether the subject use has or has not complied with the conditions of
approval. The presentation must disclose evidence of known failure to comply with the
requirements. If a violation is found to have occurred, the report shall explain what
measures, and to what degree of expediency and success, the permit holder employed to
remedy the violation. The planning commission may recommend a show-cause hearing
to the board of county commissioners pursuant to Storey County Code 17.03
Administrative Provisions and condition 29 of this special use permit if one or more
violations to the conditions are found. Alternatively, the planning commission may
require the applicant to provide subsequent public compliance reports at six month or
twelve month intervals.

Non-Compliance Show-Cause

Storey County may refer this special use permit to the board of county commissioners
Jor show-cause hearing for revocation based on reasons listed in this section. The
procedures for show-cause will be pursuant to Storey County Code 17.03
Administrative Provisions. The continuance of uses of a revoked special use permit is a
violation of Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning and will be punishable as provided for
therein or other applicable codes. The special use permit may be referred to show-
cause for the following reasons: (a) failure to comply with the special use permit
conditions, or federal, and county regulations, without appropriate remedy; (b) any
misrepresentation made in the application for the special use permit or in other official

Page 7 of 8



documents, or amendments thereof, submitted to a federal, state, or local agency; (c)
Sailure to provided notice to the county on violations, disasters, notices of decisions,
and other such correspondence from federal, state, and local agencies as required in
the special use permit.

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director

Page 8 of 8



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 01/16/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-279 amending
Storey County Code Title 16 Subdivisions to adopt new codes for land subdivisions, parcel maps,
division of land into large parcels, surety requirements, land readjustments, boundary line
adjustments, and reversions to acreage/lot consolidations. In addition to provisions of the NRS,
any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement supporting
or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code. Additional information may be obtained
from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

2, Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning
commission, I [commissioner] motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-279
amending Storey County Code Title 16 Subdivisions to adopt new codes for land subdivisions,
parcel maps, division of land into large parcels, surety requirements, land readjustments, boundary
line adjustments, and reversions to acrcage/lot consolidations

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 16 to adopt new codes for
land divisions and providing for other properly rclated matters.

6. Supporting materials: Drafts have been and remain posted at
https://www.storeycounty.org/517/Updates and will also be available at the 01/16/18 meeting.

7. Fiseal impact: None on local government,
Funds Availablc: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
.Z,, ymcm Head Department Name:

/7 /
/_,/ M ounty Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Oy gy
[u—E—

Agenda Item No.

Page 1 of 1

13



Ordinance No. 18-279

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code title16 to adopt
new codes for land divisions.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code title 16 to adopt new codes for land divisions
and providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION I: Title 16 is amended by adding the following language:

Chapter 16.10
General Provisions

Sections:

16.10.010 Declaration

16.10.020 Policy

16.10.030 Purpose

16.10.040 Authority and jurisdiction
16.10.050 Interpretation, conflict
16.10.060 Classification of division of land
16.10.070 Incorporation of standards by reference
16.10.080 Review by other agencies
16.10.090 Subdivision name

16.10.100 Effect of recordation

16.10.110 Prohibited activities

16.10.010 Declaration
This title is known as and may be cited in all proceedings as the "Procedures for Division of
Land." and includes Storev County Code 17.03 Administrative Provisions.

16.10.020 Policy
A. It is declared to be the policy of the county to consider the division of land and the




subsequent development of the divided land as subject (o the control of the county pursuani 10
the master plan for the orderly. planned, efficient, and economical development of the county.

B. Land to be divided must be of such character that it can be used safely for building
purposes without danger to health or peril from fire, flood. slope instability or other menace, and
land may not be divided until adequate public facilities and improvements exist and proper
provision has been made for drainage, water, sewerage, and capital improvements such as
schools, parks, recreation facilities, transportation facilities, and improvements in accordance
with the provisions of this code.

C._The existing and proposed public improvements must conform to and be properly related
1o the proposals shown in the master plan and it is intended that these regulations will
supplement and facilitate the enforcement of the provisions and standards contained in building
and housing codes, zoning ordinance, master plan, land use plan. and capital improvements plan
and programs of the county.

16.10.030 Purpose

The general purpose of this chapler is to safeguard the public health, safety and general welfare
by regulating the division of land and requiring certain necessary improvements as a
consequence of the division of land. The specific purposes of this title are as follows:

A. To promote public health, safety, convenience and general welfare by ensuring
development of land in a manner consistent with community objectives as set forth in the master
plan and community plans.

B. To preserve and protect the natural environment, including the water and air. and (o
safeguard against excessive storm water runoff, erosion, flooding, wildfire and the depletion or
pollution of water resources.

C. To encourage conservation of natural resources, including but not limited to. water, land.
streambeds. ridge lines, hillsides and scenic areas, and concurrently assuring that open space
and trails are established within a coordinated system.

D. To facilitate, through orderly design and development, law enforcement. fire protection,
and other services.

E. To safeguard the general welfare by limiting the division of land in areas where excessive
costs and low efficiency services may resullt.

F._To ensure at the time of land division the provision of adequate water supply. storm
drainage and sewer disposal, and other utilities, services and improvements needed as a
consequence of any change or intensification of the land use.

G. To ensure that governmental maintenance costs are minimized by requiring the
installation of improvements adequate in size and qualily.

H. To provide streets of adequate capacity fo give access to abutting property as well as to
carry anticipated increased traffic.

[_To ensure that roadways are designed to minimize safety hazards to vehicles and their

occupants as well as to cyclists, pedestrians and equestrians.

J._To encourage an organized pattern of urban development and ¢efficient provision of utilities
and public services.

K._To conserve agricultural resources.

L. To prevent the pollution of air, streams, and ponds: to safeguard the water table; and to
encourage the wise use and management of natural resources throughoul the county in order to




preserve the integrity, stability, and beauty of the community and the value of the land.

M. To preserve the topography of the county and to insure appropriate development with

regard 1o these natural features.
N. To provide for open spaces through the most efficient design and layout of the land.

16.04.040 Authority and jurisdiction

A. Authority. The design. improvement, mapping and sale of subdivision lots, parcel map lots,
or land division map lots, are regulated by NRS chapters 117, 278 and 2784, and by the
provisions of this code.

B. Jurisdiction. These procedures will apply uniformly to all divisions of land within the
county. No land may be divided within the limits of the county after the effective date of these
regulations until:

1. _The owner or owner's agent submits a lentative map application to the county through
the planning department.

2. The tentative and final maps are approved.

3. Subdivision improvements have been constructed as follows:

a. On and off-site water and sewer improvements are complete including all necessary
improvemenis for fire flows.

b. Streets are complete or at minimum sub-base is in place and is adequate to support
emergency access vehicles to the satisfaction of the fire district before a building permit for the
construciion of any structure in the project is issued. The streets that access a lot with permitted
construction must be completed before a certificate of occupancy may be issued.

¢. Street identification signs are in place.

d. Drainage conveyance facilities and other improvements have been constructed and
are fimctional.

4. The approved final map is recorded with the county recorder.

C. No building permit will be issued for any parcel or lot created afier the effective date of
these regulations until the conditions in subsections 1, 2, 3. and 4 above are met.

D. The term “subdivision” does not apply to any division of land into large parcels subject to
chapter 16.40 Division of land into Large Parcels.

16.10.050 Interpretation and conflict

A. _In their interpretation and application. the provisions of these regulations are the minimum
requirements for the promotion of the public health, safety, and general welfare.

B. Conflict with other law. These regulations are not intended to interfere with, abrogate, or
annul any other ordinance, rule or regulation, statute, or other provision of law. Where any
provision of these regulations impose restrictions different from those imposed by any other
provision of these regulations or any other ordinance, rule or regulation, or other provision of
law, whichever provisions are more resirictive or impose higher standards will control.

16.10.060 Classification of division of land

A. Whenever any division of land is proposed, before any contract is made for the sale of any
part thereof. and before any permit for the erection of a structure in such proposed division is
granted, the owner, or his authorized agent, must apply for and secure approval of the proposed
division of land in accordance with the procedure required in this title. For the purposes of this




title, land proposed to be divided may be classed as follows:
1. Subdivision map, 5 or more parcels,
2. Commercial subdivision map. 5 or more parcels;
3. Parcel map, 4 parcels or fewer parcels:
4. Division of land into large parcels. parcels of 40 acres or more.

16.10.070 Incorporation of standards by reference

The standards to be applied for approving divisions of land relating to adequate public facilities,
improvement and design standards, environmental performance standards and other substantive
criteria established elsewhere in the land development code are incorporated by reference.

16.10.080 Review by other agencies
Tentative map applications will be submitted to other agencies for review, comment, and
approval, as prescribed by NRS, or as otherwise provided by law.

16.10.090 Subdivision name distinction

The name of any proposed subdivision shall not duplicate, or closely approximate the name of
any other subdivision in the area covered by these regulations. The county will be responsible
[for assigning a unique map reference number (o each tentative map filed.

16.10.100 Effect of recordation

The title of any property dedicated 1o the county by the owner must pass to the county when the
approved map is recorded_If. at the time of final map approval. any properties or improvements
are rejected. offers of dedication must remain open and the board may, by resolution, at any
later date and without further action by the land divider, rescind its action and acce
improvements for public use, which must be recorded in the official county records.

16.10.110 Prohibited activities

A. An owner, or agent of the owner, of any parcel of land located in a proposed subdivision of
land may not transfer or sell a parcel before a map of the division has been approved by the
county, and recorded by the county recorder.

B. The division of any lot or any parcel of land. by the use of metes and bounds description
for the purpose of sale. transfer, or lease with the intent of evading these regulations is
prohibited.

C. No building permit may be issued for the construction of any building or structure located
on a lot or parcel divided or sold in violation of the provisions of these regulalions. except as
otherwise provided in this titl

Chapter 16.20
Subdivision Application Procedure and Approval Process

Sections:
16.20.010 General requirements



16.20.020 Tentative subdivision map procedures

16.20.030 Tentative subdivision map findings

16.20.040 Conditions and phasing of maps

16.20.050 Duration, extension, and amendment of tentative subdivision map
16.20.060 Procedures for final subdivision map

16.20.070 Effect of approval

16.20.080 Signing and recordation of final subdivision map

16.20.090 Reversion of final subdivision map

16.20.010 General requirements

A. General procedures. All subdivision applications must be processed in 2 stages:

l._Application for tentative map approval,; and

2. Application for final map approval.

The board is the final decision maker for purposes of tentative and final subdivision maps. The
planning commission will take action and provide a recommendation to the board on all
tentative subdivision maps.

B. Pre-application conference. Before preparing the tentative subdivision map. the subdivider
may file a preliminary review application with the department (o discuss the procedure for
approval of a tentative subdivision map and the requirements as to the general lavoul of streets
and for reservations of land. street improvements, drainage, sewerage, fire protection, and
similar matters, as well as the availabilily of existing services, including schools.

C. Applicability. All owners of land or their authorized representatives who propose to divide
any land or portion thereof, vacant or unimproved, for transfer or development into 5 or more
lots, parcels. sites. units or plots, or to create a commercial subdivision, pursuant to NRS
278.325. musi file an application for approval of a tentative subdivision map.
disposition is adopted for the purpose of evading this chapter or would have the effect of evading
this chapter, the provisions of this part do not apply to:

1. A division of land into large parcels which creates lots, parcels, sites, units or plots of
land. each of which comprises 40 nominal acres or more of land including roads and roadway
easements, and is subject to chapter 16.40 Division into Large Parcels;

2. Any division of land which is ordered by any court in this state or created by operation
of law:

3. A lien, mortgage, deed or Irusi, or any other security instrument, provided that creation
or foreclosure of such an instrument on a portion of a larger parcel will not result in the division
of the larger parcel;

4. A security or unit of interest in any investment trust regulated under the laws of the siate
or any other interest in an investment enlify.

3. Cemetery lots; or

6. Aninterest in oil, gas, minerals or building materials, which are now or later severed
from the surface ownership of the real property.

D. The filing of a tentative map for 5 or more new condominium or townhouse dwelling units,
or for the conversation of multi-family dwellings (apartments) (o 5 or more condominium or
townhouse dwelling units shall follow the procedures which pertain to the subdivision of land as
outlined in this title unless stated otherwise.




16.20.020 Tentative subdivision map procedures
A. Application. The landowner or his/her authorized representative must submit a complete
tentative map application with the department of planning in accordance with the established
and published submittal schedule. The application must contain the following ifems:
1. A description of all contiguous holdings of the owner, including land in the same
ownership with indication of the portion of the property that is to be subdivided.
2. The number of copies of the tentative subdivision map. with contents as prescribed. in the
application form.
3. A certificate from the county treasurer stating that no taxes or assessments are
delinquent;
4. A statement as to whether the subdivision is to be developed in phases.
5. Written evidence indicating that all applicable fees and application materials have been
submitied to the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection, Water Quality Division.
6. Copies of all applicable “will serve” letters.
7._Copies of all applicable special studies and reports.

B. Tentative map feasibility report. The first formal step in land development by subdivision is
the preparation of a tentative subdivision map. At the time of the filing of the application for the
tentative subdivision map. the developer musi file a feasibility report with the department of
planning. The tentative subdivision map will not be accepted for filing by the director of
planning unless the feasibility report is included with the application. The feasibility report must
include the following information:

1. Information as to how domestic water service will be provided including staius and
availability of water which may serve the proposed development that meets applicable health
standards and is sufficient in quantity for the reasonably foresecable needs required for the land
development and proposed land use, and a written statement of ability and willingness of any
applicable municipal agency to provide water service to the proposed development.

2. Electrical availability. Name of electrical utility that will serve the area and a written
statement of ability and willingness of such company lo provide electrical power to the proposed
development. '

3. Telephone availability. Name of the telephone company that will serve the area and a
written statement of the ability and willingness of such company to provide telephone service to
the proposed development,

4. Natural gas availability. Name of utility company that will serve the area and a written
statement of ability and willingness of such company to provide natural gas service to the
proposed development.

5. Sewage disposal. Information as to how sewage disposal will be provided and a written
statement of the ability and willingness of any applicable municipal agency to provide sewage
disposal to the proposed development.

6. Fire protection and emergency medical services. Distance of the proposed project from
the nearest fire district station providing necessary fire suppression and emergency medical
services to the proposed development. Identify the availability and accessibility of fire protection
including, bul not limited to, the availability and accessibility of water and service for the
prevention and containment of fires. including wildland fires.,

7. Road construction. Existing legal access from the proposed development to county or
State maintained roads.




8. Schools. Proximity to existing schools and school bus service, if such service is operated
within the vicinity of the proposed development.

9. Parks and recreation. Parks and recreation facilities in the general area of the proposed
development; distance and access to such facilities.

10. Road construction and maintenance. Proposed maintenance plan for both access roads
and roads within the subdivision: general timetable for construction of such roads; plan for
maintenance until public maintenance is secured if dedication to the county occurs; tvpe of
anticipated public maintenance — state or general improvement district, etc.

12. Restriciive covenants. Proposed restrictive covenants applicable ot the subdivision or
development.

13. Traffic impacts. Identify all roads, streets, and highways that will be affected by the
development. Identify the effect of the proposed subdivision on existing public roads and streets
and the need for new roads, streets, or highways, or improvements thereof. (o serve the
development. Provide a traffic study prepared by a Nevada licensed traffic engineer if the
subdivision will meet or exceed 80 peak hour vehicle trips or 500 average daily vehicle trips.

14. Stormwater impacts. Identify existing natural and constructed siormwater structures,
proposed stormwater management concepts, and general impacts from an on surrounding
property.

15. Other information necessary for review of the tentative subdivision map required by
administrative regulations or this code.

C. Contents of tentative subdivision map. The tentative subdivision map must show, al
minimum, the following information:

1. _List of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of the owners of record, the
subdivider, and the engineer or surveyor preparing the map.

2. A north point, scale, date. boundary line and dimensions of the project. The direction of
the north arrow should be shown pointing towards the top or right hand side of the map.

3. Show the entire assessor’s parcel. identify any remainder portion, and any contiguous
properlies under common ownership (whole or partial ownership).

4. Legal description of the land included within the tentative subdivision map sufficient to
define the boundaries of the map. Note: A portion of a section is not sufficient. If the boundary is
by metes and bounds. that description must be on the tentative map.

5. The parcel layout, the approximate dimensions of each lot, where pads are proposed for
building sites, the approximate pad elevation, the elevations of all adjacent parcels, the top and
toe of cut and fill slopes to scale, preliminary design and approximate finish of all grading, and
a number for each parcel on consecutive numbers. Any portion of property in common
contiguous ownership not included in the map must be labeled as a remainder parcel.

6. In tabular form, indicate the approximate acreage, the number of lots, proposed density,
existing and proposed zoning and master plan designations, proposed use of lots. number of
lineal feet of new streets. and acreage of any remainder parcels.

7. Zoning and master plan designations and land uses of adjoining properiies, including
across any rights-of-way. Indicate distance fiom property line 1o any off-site structures that are
within 25 feet of property line.

8. Note and dimensions of all existing structures, indicating the use of each structure and
whether structure is to remain or to be removed. In addition. show all parking facilities and

driveways.




9. The street, approximate gradient or centerline profile for each proposed highway, streel
easement and drainage improvement shown of the tentative subdivision map.

10._Note the width and approximate locations of all existing and proposed easements or
rights-of-ways, including any proposed to be abandoned as part of the subdivision map whether
Jor public or private roads, drainage, sewers, or flood control purposes, shown by dashed lines.
Overhead utility lines on peripheral streets must also be indicated_Existing easements musl
show the name of the easement holder, purpose of easement, and legal reference (official
records) for the easement. If an easement is blanket or intermittent in nature, a note to this effect
musi_be placed on the tentative map.

11. Note of the approximate radius of all centerline curves on highways, sireels or ways.

12, The locations of all areas subject to inundation or flood hazard and the locations,
width, and directions of flow of all watercourses and flood control areas within and adjacent to
the property involved. Include community panel number, date of the Flood Insurance Rate Map
(FIRM) index map. and the method for handling storm water.

13. Locate, by distance from existing and proposed property lines and other above ground
structures, the placement on the property of all existing structures and other manmade fealures
including buildings, utility poles, fences, driveways. signs, existing wells, sewers, septic systems
(including leach lines), culverts, bridges, drain pipes. fire hydrants and sand, gravel or other
excavations within the subdivision. Indicate which existing structures will remain and which will
be removed,

14. The tentative subdivision map must show contour of land at intervals of not more than 2
feel if the general slope of the land is less than the 10 percent and S feet for all other areas. This
shall include an area of not less than 100 feet surrounding the lentative subdivision map.
Indicate contour interval and the source and date the contours were compiled.

13, Vicinity map of the area showing the proposed subdivision map in relation (o any
established roads or other landmarks so that the site can be easily located. Indicate the proposed
aceess route to the site firom the nearest public maintained road.

16._On a subdivision map consisting of a condominium project or a planned development,
the tentative subdivision map must show, by dashed lines, the approximate location from all
existing and proposed property lines and other structures to be erected.

17. The clazmant number under any court deu e, zdemzly and location af any e,\zsumz m

admcem to the proposcc/ subdivision. The subdivision map must also provide dzmensmned

typical channel cross sections with centerline, average slope through the property, arrows

indicating direction of irrigation flow, and design flow capacity of conveyance siructures.
18. Storm and surface water drainage systems including:

i. Dedication of rights-of-way, easements, design criteria. In the event that a proposed
subdivision or any part thereofis traversed by a major watercourse channel, stream or
creek, gulch or other natural drainage channel, the subdivider must dedicate adequate
rights-of-way or easements for storm drainage purposes. Easements for drainage (o
natural drainage channels are required. If a comprehensive drainage plan is not
available for a particular area, the design criteria for storm walter runoff should follow
that established as standard practice and approved by the county engineer.

ii. Historic use of water. No development may interfere with the historic custom and use of
waters adjacent to and upstream and downstream from the development. Any changes




in convevance facilities or the course of conveyance facilities, including the

abandonment of part or all of a conveyance facility, must be done in a reasonable

manner with due regard to the rights of the owners of the easement or right-of-way.
iil. R/gh/s of-way for conveyance. Develavmenls must designate zrrzgatzon and a’ramaee

plan {m the development. Righis-of~way must be appropriate for the operation and

maintenance of the facilities. In no case may the rights-of-way be less than 20 feet in
width. IFor rights-of-way dedicated to the county, open irrigation or storm drainage
ditches rights-of-way width must equal al a minimum the top width of the diich plus 32
feet with the width centered on the centerline of the ditch. For underground
conveyvance, a minimum right-of-way width must be no less than 20 feet.

iv. Flood control. No subdivision application may be considered for a final approval until
the subdivider submits a report from an appropriately registered engineer concerning
the ability of existing watercourse chunnels, drainage tiles, storm sewers, culveris,
other works and structure design pertaining to drainage or flood control within the
subdivision to handle anticipated flows with no significant impacts without appropriate
mitigation.

19. Concurrently with the filing of a tentative subdivision map for new condominium or
townhouse dwelling units, or for the conversion of multi-family (apartment) dwelling units, the
following information must also be incorporated into the application:

a. 2 sets of the following graphic information in the form legible, scaled drawings:

i. Site plans clearly showing setbacks, yards, and grades;

ii. Floor plans:

iii. Parking layout indicating stall and aisle sizes as well as indicating whether enclosed
or covered:

iv. Landscaping, exterior design, and other elements set forth in the design manual.

b. A general identification and statistical information report which contains:

i. Streel address;

ii. Number of stories in each building:

iii. Density in dwelling unils per acre;

iv. Overall heighi;

v. Total number of parking spaces:

vi. Total number of unilts;

vii. Area of site (percentage and square feet/acres) io be covered by buildings;
viii. Floor area per dwelling unit;

ix. Type of construction,

x. Total amount of storage space per unit;

xi. Location of trash enclosures;

xii. Location of amenities including, but not limited to, clubhouse, laundry facilities,
indoor and outdoor recreation facilities, parks and playgrounds, swimming pool, etc.
D. Processing by director. The director or his or her designee will distribute copies of the
tentative subdivision map and accompanying materials to all agencies charged with review by
statute including:
1. County engineer or contracted consultant for technical review,
2. Nevada division of consumer health;




Appropriate local water and/or sewer disiric;
State division of water resources.
Superintendent of Storey County school district;
County fire district chief:
County public works department:
Countv community development department:;
Applicable irrigation districts within 1 mile of the proposed development:
1 0 Nevada division of environmental protection,
11, Nevada public utilities commission;
12, Nevada department of transportation.

The director will determine within 3 working days whether the application for a tentative
subdivision map is complete, and notify the applicant. in writing, of his or her finding. If
complete, and the applicable fees are tendered and collecied, the director will file his or her
report with the planning commission and board and schedule the application for public hearing.

E. Hearing notice and procedure. Notice of the hearings before the planning commission and
the board must be provided in accordance with chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions. In
addition to the notice otherwise required. notice must be given to any convevance ditch users
adjacent to or downstream of the proposed map. The ditch users to be notified will be
determined from the list of water right owners compiled by the Federal Water Master's Office, or
for those conveyance facilities not covered by decree from the list of water right owners
maintained by the state engineer. All hearings must be held in accordance with the procedures
established in chapter 17.03 Adminisirative Provisions.

F. Planning commission recommendation. Within 60 days afier the official filing date, the
nlanmng commission must hear the application and recommend to the board app: oval

\0.00.\1.0\51'.*%

roval of the tentative subdivision ma,
pr()cedw -es established in chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions, unless the rime period is

extended by mutual consent of the applicant and the planning commission. The planning
commission must sel forth findings and reasons for its decision in accordance with the criteria
identified in chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions.

G. Decision by board. Within 30 days afier receipt of the planning commission’s
recommendation, unless the time is extended by mutual consent of the applicant and the board,
the board must conduct a public hearing, and approve, conditionally approve or disapprove the
lentative subdivision map. The review and decision of the board must conform to the provisions
of chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions and include findings and reasons for its decision in
accordance with the criteria identified in chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions.

16.20.030 Tentative subdivision map findings

A. The planning commission in making its recommendation and the board in rendering a
decision on the tentative subdivision map must base its decision on the requirements of NRS and
make affirmative findings on the following factors, taking into account the recommendations of
reviewing agencies:

1. The property to be subdivided is zoned for the intended uses and the density and design
of the subdivision conforms to the requirements of the zoning regulations contained in the county
code.

2. If planned unit development is proposed. the tentative subdivision map conforms to the
density requirements, lot dimension standards and other regulations applicable 1o planned unit

10



developments.
3. The tentative subdivision map conforms to public facilities and improvement standards

contained in the county code and in the counlv master plan.

district regarding new school facilities and potential impacts to existing school facilities.

5. The tentative subdivision map conforms to the improvement and design standards
contained in the county code and adopted design criteria and improvement standards.

6. If applicable, that a phasing plan has been submitted and is deemed acceplable.

7. The approval contains terms that plan for the possibilily of abandonment or termination
of the project.

8. There are no delinquent taxes or assessments on the land to be subdivided, as certified
by the county treasurer.

9. The project is not located within an identified archeological or cultural study area, as
recognized by the county. If the project is located in a study area, an archeological resource
reconnaissance has been performed on the site by a qualified archeologist and any identified
resources have been avoided or mitigated 1o the extent possible per the findings in the report.

10. The applicant of the tentative subdivision map has shown in accordance with chapter
16.50 of this title that there is sufficient availability of uncommitted and unappropriated water
which reasonably meelts the foreseeable needs of the development and that the use of water for
the development will cause no adverse impacts (o existing surrounding residents, properties, and
uses. The applicant is not required to procure the necessary water until before filing for the final
subdivision map.

11, The tentative subdivision map conforms to the county design standards manual.

[ 2. The tentative subdivision map will cause no substantial adverse impact to access to
public lands. aceess to public lands provided before the subdivision map will be mitigated, or
reasonable alternative access to the adjacent public lands exists in the immediate vicinity.

13. The tentative map for new condominium or townhouse dwelling units, or for the
conversion of multi-family (apartment) dwelling units, contains the information required in
section 16.20.020 of this title.

16.20.040 Conditions and phasing of maps

In addition to all other conditions that may be recommended by the planning commission and
required by the board pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative Provision in reviewing a
tentative subdivision map, the following actions may be taken:

A. Except as otherwise provided, as a condition of tentative subdivision map approval, the
planning commission may recommend and the board may require that the subdivider install and
dedicate to the county all public_ improvements, whether on-site or off-site. prior to the signing of
the final subdivision map by the chairman of the board._In lieu of such requirement, the board
may require that the subdivider provide adequate assurances for completion and maintenance of
improvemenis.

B. The planning commission may recommend and the board may reguire as a condition of
tentative subdivision map approval that the subdivider divide the subdivision into 2 or more
phases. provided as follows:

1. Each phase must be designed to meet the public facilities and improvement standards
independently and as part of the overall design.

11



2. The final map must be approved and recorded for the initial phase within 4 years of
tentative subdivision map approval, and the final map for each subsequent phase must be
approved and recorded within 2 years following recording of the final map for the previous
phase. The board may grant a single extension of 2 years for final map approval for each phase.

3. All phases must be completed,_and all final maps approved and recorded. within ten
vears of the date of initial subdivision map approval by the board.

4. Amendment of the approval to permit development beyond the initial ten year period will
require submission and approval of a new tentative subdivision map application. and the
approval may be conditioned on compliance with statutes. codes. design standards. fees and
capital improvements plans current at the time of application for the amendment.

3. The board and the applicant may enter and adopt a development agreement, pursuant to
NRS 278.0201 to implement the provisions of this chapter.

6. Procurement of sufficient water which reasonable meets the foreseeable needs of the
subdivision and which will cause no adverse impacts to existing surrounding residents,
properties, and uses must be submiited to the director for review and validation before filing of
the final map.

C. Where a commercial subdivision is proposed and the subdivider desires to record a single
final map without the completion or securing of improvements. the board may approve the map
and allow recording of the final map subject to the following:

1. A conceptual development phase plan is submitted concurrently with the tentative map
indicating the proposed development phasing. including a general description of improvements,
on-site and off-site to be constructed with each development phase.

2. Improvement plans are to be submitted and approved for the entire project site. The
improvement plans are subject to modificalion, based on changes to title 16 and title 17 or the
county desion criteria and improvement standards as they relate to public health and safety.

3. A security agreement must be prepared and approved subsequent to the filing of the final
map, consistent with title 16. In addition to the standard provisions, the plan must provide a
detailed description of on-site and off-site improvements to be provided prior to the issuance of a
building permit within a given development phase.

4. A building permit will not be issued on the site until any and all required improvements
are constructed or secured, and provided that those improvements required for fire protection
and emergency access are in place.

5. Procurement of sufficient water which reasonable meels the foreseeable needs of the
subdivision and which will cause no adverse impaclts to existing surrounding residents,
properties. and uses must be submilted (o the director for review and validation before filing of
the final map, and other requirements sei forth in chapter 16.50 of this title.

16.20.050 Duration, extension, and amendment of tentative subdivision map

A, The subdivider must present to the director a final subdivision map, prepared in
accordance with the tentative subdivision map. The map must cover the entire area for which the
tentative subdivision map was approved. or one of a series of final subdivision maps. each
covering one or more phases of the approved tentative subdivision map. Unless a longer time is
provided in a development agreement or an agreement pursuant o NRS 278.350, the final map
covering the entire subdivision or the first of a series of final maps covering a portion of the
approved tentative map shall be recorded within 4 vears after the date of approval of tentative
subdivision map by the board, or if the subdivider elects 10 present a successive map in a series

12



of final maps. the subdivider shall present, on or before the second anniversary of the date on
which the subdivider presented to community development the first in the series of final maps,
the nex! final map covering a potion or the entire area of the approved tentative map.

inal successive subdivision ma,
covering a portion of the approved tentative map for not more than 2 years afier the expiration

of the 2-vear period for presenting the successive final subdivision map. If the subdivider is
presenting in a timely manner a series of final maps, each covering a portion of the approved
tentative map, no requirements other than those imposed on each of the final maps in the series
may be placed on the map when an extension of time is granted unless the requirement is directly
attributable to a change in applicable laws which affect the public health, safety or welfare.
Extension applications must be accompanied by the applicable fee and written statement of
justification and must be filed 45 days prior to the expiration of the final map.

C. At any time afier tentative subdivision map approval, and before the time required for
presentation of a final subdivision map, the subdivider may request amendment to the approval
or conditional approval of the 1entative subdivision map. The director may approve minor
tentative subdivision map amendments in accordance with section 17.03 Administrative
Provisions,_ subject to appeal to the board,_in accordance with chapter 17.03 Administrative
Provisions. Major amendments must be determined in accordance with the procedures for
original approval of the tentative subdivision map under this chapter. Additional conditions may
be attached to approval of the tentative subdivision map amendment, which are reasonably
related to the proposed amendment. A subdivider who is unwilling to accept conditions attached
10 the proposed amendment may withdraw the amendment. Action on the application for
amendment of the tentative subdivision map must not stay the period for presenting the final
subdivision map,. unless a request for extension pursuant to paragraph B is approved,

16.20.060 Procedures for final subdivision map

A. Application requirements. Following approval of the tentative subdivision map, a
subdivider who wishes 1o proceed with the subdivision must file with the director an application
for final approval and recordation of the final subdivision mup, prepared on standardized forms
available at the office of the department. The application must contain the following
information:

1. The original signed linen or Mvlar and at least 5 black line copies of the final
subdivision map in the form required by paragraphs B and C._containing all required certificaies
and acknowledgments required by paragraph D.

2. A certificate from the county treasurer stating that taxes and assessments are paid in

3. Improvement plans approved by the county engineer. and other agencies required to
approve the construction plan along with either a signed executed improvement agreement or a
certificate of satisfactory completion issued by the county engineer.

4. Written documentation that all conditions of the tentative map have been mel.

S. Other items listed on the application form.

B. Form of final subdivision map. The entire final subdivision map must be clearly and legibly
drawn or stamped in black waterproof India ink upon good tracing linen or Mylar. Each sheet
must be 24 inches by 32 inches in size: a marginal line must be drawn completely around each
sheet leaving an entirely black margin of one inch at the bottom, top and right edge and 2 inches
at the lefi edge on the 24-inch dimension. A colored border must indicate the exterior boundary

13



of land included within the subdivision.
C. Final subdivision map contents. Every final subdivision map must show all data required
for the tentative subdivision map except contour lines, position of buildings, relationship to

streets and highways beyond areas shown on the map and the proposed use of building sites and
must contain in addition the following data:

1. The map must show all details clearly with the necessary information for intelligent
interpretation of the items and location of points, lines and areas shown. All streets, drives.
walks. alleys. parks, easements, etc., must be designated as such and be definitely established
with bearings and distances. The subdivision must show bearings and lengths of all lines and the
radius, central angle, length of curve and tangent length for all curved lines. The calculated
closure must be mathematically exact to the nearest one-hundredth foot and to one-second of
angle. The scale and basis of bearing must be shown. Ties must be made to the USGS Control
Points or Nevada State Coordinate System Points by the State Highway Depariment or other
engineers, whenever these controls are available. The map scale should not be smaller than 100
feet to one inch.

2. The location and description of monuments or other evidence bound upon the ground
and using the terrain the boundaries of subdivisions. The exterior boundaries of subdivisions
must be indicated by a colored border and any land included within the boundary, which is not a
part of the subdivision or any adjoining subdivision, must be sufficiently identified in order to
locate precise limits of the proposed subdivision.

3. The title of the final subdivision map musi be the same of the subdivision map as it
appears on the approved tentative subdivision map, with all conditions satisfied, and must be
shown together with the scale used on each sheet of the final subdivision map and the number of
the sheets totaled.

4. _If any portion of the land within the boundaries of the final subdivision map is subject to
inundation, storm flow conditions, geologic hazard or other hazard. the land so affected must be
clearly marked by prominent note on each sheet.

5. A reference to any private covenants. conditions and records to be recorded with the
map.

6. A signed statement indicating a petition of annexation into any special taxing district, if
the subject property is so located.

7. A certificate by the division of water resources of the state department of conservation
and natural resources showing that the final subdivision map is approved concerning water
quality and quantity, dedication of necessary water to serve the project. and any other matlers in
its jurisdiction.

8 Other items listed on the application or required by conditions of approval.

D. Final subdivision map certificates. The following certificates and acknowledgments must
appear on the final subdivision map and may be combined when appropriate:

1. A certificate signed and acknowledged by all parties having any record title interest in
the land subdivided. consenting to the preparation and recordation of the map.

2. A certificate signed and acknowledged as above, offering for dedication for certain
specified public uses those certain parcels of land which the parties desire so dedicated.

3. A certificate of title indicating:

a. That each person signing the final subdivision map owns a record of interest in the
land and that all the owners of record of the land have signed the final subdivision map.

14



b. Listing of any lien or morteage holders of record, if any. If there are no lien or
mortgage holders of record. the fact that there are none must be stated in the certificate.
¢. The certificate of Iz!le mus/ be signed and dated by an oﬁ‘ icer of the litle company

4. A cerrlftcare by the surveyor responsible for the survey and final subdivision map as
prescribed by state law;

5. A certificate by the county engineer stating that s/he has examined the final subdivision
map. that he is satisfied that the map is technically correct, and that subdivider has complied
with one of the following alternatives.

a. All the improvements have been installed in accordance with the requirements of these
regulations: or

b. Adequate assurances have been provided that improvements will be completed and
maintained in accordance with this title.

6. A certificate by the state health division of the department of human resources indicating
that the final subdivision map is approved concerning sewage disposal, water pollution, water
quality and water supply facilities.

7. A certificate by the division of water resources of the state department of conservation
and natural resources showing that the final subdivision map is approved concerning water
quality and quantity. dedication of necessary water to serve the project, and any other matters in
its jurisdiction.

8. A certificate of the district that the map conforms to the approved tentative subdivision
map and all conditions imposed upon the approval have been satisfied.

9. A certificate for execution by the county clerk stating that the county has approved the
map and accepted (or deferred) on behalf of the public the parcels of land offered for dedication
- public use in conformity with the terms of the offer of dedication.

10. A certificate by the appropriate public utilities accepting the designated easements.

11, _Proper certificates of a notary public as required.

12. A certificate for execution by the county recorder concerning the appropriate recording
data required by NRS 278.460.

13. A certificate of the fire district chief concerning necessary fire suppression and
emergency medical services will be available to the development.

14. A certificate of the director of planning and community development concerning
conformance with zoning, land division, and other applicable ordinances. and the county master
plan.

15. A certificate granting rights-of-way for water conveyance and maintenance. The grant
of the right-of~way will run to the benefit of all persons entitled to the use of the conveyance
ditch under the Alpine Decree, Orr Ditch Decree, or other court decree and their successors in
interest, or to the Truckee River Operating Agreement (TROA) or successor agreements, or 1o
any ditch company or similar entity having an interest in or responsibility for the water
conveyance ditch and associated struclures.

16._Other certificates as may be required.

E. Filing of final map review.

1. Not less than 60 days prior to the consideration of any final map, the developer must
submit the original proposed final map and 10 prints of the same to the department of planning.
The director of planning will distribute the copies of the proposed map to:

15



i. County engineer or cOntract consullant for the project;
it. County public works department;

iii. County fire protection districl;

iv. County assessor;

v. Storey County school district superintendent.

2. The county engineer must check said map as to accuracy and dimensions, placing of
monuments, establishment of survey records and conformance of the map (o the tentative map as
approved. Data concerning closure calculation. construction plans, estimates of quantities and
the like must also be required by the county engineer.

E. Board's decision.

1. Unless a longer time is provided in an agreement and entered into pursuant to this title
and NRS 278.0201 or 278.350. the subdivider must present (o the board within 4 years after
approval of a tentative map a final map, prepared in accordance with the tentative map, for the
entire area for which a tentative map has been approved; or the first of a series of maps covering
a portion of the approved tentative map. (a) a final map, prepared in accordance with the
tentative map, for the entire area for which the tentative map has been approved: or (b) the next
final map in a series of final maps covering a portion of the approved tentative map. If the
subdivider fails to comply with the provisions of this subsection, all proceedings concerning ihe
subdivision are terminated.

2. The board may approve the map only if it finds that.

a. The map conforms in every respect to the approved tentative subdivision map. as
amended.

b. All conditions established upon approval of the tentative subdivision map, as
amended._have been satistied.

c. The final subdivision map conforms to all county ordinances applicable at the time of
the decision on the final subdivision map.

d. The final subdivision map conforms to the tentative map approval in accordance with
the design standards manual.

d.__All required improvements have been installed as certified by the county engineer, or
sufficient assurances for completion and maintenance of improvements have been made pursuant
{o_the county code.
e. All necessary certificates required by state law or by the county code have been
presented with the application of approval of the final subdivision map.
3. The board must, at the time of approval of the final subdivision map, reject any or all offers
of dedication. Acceptance maybe made in accordance with adopted board policy.

16.20.070 Effect of approval

No vested right will accrue o the owner, subdivider or developer of any subdivision by reason of
tentative or final subdivision map approval until the actual signing of the final subdivision map
by all parties required to sign the map. All requirements, conditions, or regulations adopted by
the county applicable to the subdivision or on all subdivisions generally must be deemed a
condition for any subdivision prior to the time of signing of the final subdivision map by the
county engineer. Where the county has required the installation of improvements prior to signing
of the final subdivision map. and improvements have, in fact, been completed, the subdivider may
be required to comply with the local laws and regulations in effect at the time when the final

16



subdivision map is considered for approval only if the commission makes a finding on the record
that such compliance is necessary to prevent a substantial risk of injury to the public health,
safety and general welfare.

16.20.080 Signing and recordation of final subdivision map

A. Signing of map.

1. When an improvement agreement and security are required, the county engineer musit
endorse approval of the map only after security has been provided and all conditions of the map
have been satisfied.

2. When installation of improvements is required, the county engineer must endorse
approval on the map only after all conditions of the map have been satisfied and upon issuance
of a notice of completion.

3. The county engineer may sign the map only after determination in cooperation with any
utility providing water service to the subdivision or accepting improvements for maintenance
that the map is in compliance with the county code relating to the dedication of facilities, water
rights and rights-of-way.

B. Recording of the map. It is the responsibility of the director to file the original map with
the county clerk for signing and submission to the county recorder within 15 working days of the
date of approval of the final subdivision map by the board_Simultaneously with the filing of the
map the department must cause (o be recorded any other legal documents as may be required to
be recorded by the county.

16.20.090 Reversion of final subdivision map

A final subdivision map which has been recorded may be revoked pursuant to chapter 17.03, and
the subdivision reverted to acreage, pursuant to chapter 16.60 Land Readjustment, where
applicable, in the event that the subdivider or his successor in interest fails to complete
improvements as required by the subdivision improvement agreement, development agreement
or as otherwise provided by law. The proceeding may be initiated by either the owner or the
county. At the initiation of proceedings to revoke or revert to acreage, the county must record a
document with the county clerk and recorder's office giving notice thereof. If final subdivision
approval is revoked or the property reverted to acreage. the board order to that effect will be
recorded with the county clerk and recorder's offices. the subdivision will no longer be valid and
further sale or development of lois or parcels within the revoked subdivision is prohibited

without approved division of land pursuant to this development code.

16.20.100 Procedures for planned unit development applications

Whenever an application for planned unit development proposes the division of land into 3 or
more parts, the applicant must include with the application a tentative subdivision map. to be
processed in accordance with the provisions of chapter 17.03 Adminisirative Provisions and
chapter 17.56 Planned Unit Development and this chapter. Consideration of the tentative
subdivision map will be reviewed in conjunction with the application for planned unit
development approval, and approval of the tentative subdivision map must be conditioned upon

final approval of the plunned development.

Chapter 16,30

17



Parcel Maps

16.30.010 General requirements

16.30.020 Application for tentative parcel map
16.30.030 Procedure for tentative parcel maps
16.30.040 Waiver requests

16.30.050 Procedure for referral and processing as subdivision
16.30.060 Findings for tentative parcel maps
16.30.070 Amendment of parcel map approval
16.30.080 Procedures for final parcel map
16.30.090 Effect of final parcel map approval
16.30.100 Reversion of final parcel map

16.30.110 Signing and recording of final parcel map

16.30.010 General requirements

A. The board is the final decision-maker, with action by the planning commission. for the
purposes of applications for parcel maps.

B. All owners of land or their authorized representatives who propose to divide any land for
transfer or development into 4 or fewer lots musi file with the department of planning an
application for a parcel map.

C. Unless a method of dividing land is adopted for the purpose or would have the effect of
evading this chapter. no parcel map is required when the division of land is for the express
purpose of the following:

1. _The creation or realignment of a public right-of-way by a public agency:

2. The creation or realignment of an easement,;

3. An adjustment of the boundary line or the transfer of land between 2 owners of adjacent
property which does not resull in the creation of any additional parcels;

4. The purchase, transfer or development of space within an apartment building or an
indusirial or commercial building.
5. Carrying out any order of any court or dividing land as a result of the operation of law:
6. _The following transactions involving land.:

a. The creation of a lien, mortgage, deed of trust or other security instrument, provided,
that foreclosure of an interest in a portion of a parcel will not result in the lawful division of the
parcel;

b. The creation of a security or a unit of interest in any investment trust regulated
pursuant to the laws of the state of Nevada or any other interest in an invesiment entity.
¢. The conveyance of an interest in oil._gas. minerals or building materials, which are
severed from the surface ownership of the real properiy:
d._ The conveyance of an interest in land acquired by the Nevada Department of
Transportation pursuant to NRS 408;
e. The filing of a certificate of amendment pursuant to NRS 278.473;
7. A division of land into large parcels, pursuant to chapter 16.40 Division into Large
Parcels:
8. A lien, mortgage. deed or trust, or any other security instrument provided that the

18



creation of foreclosure of such an instrument on a portion of a larger parcel does not result in
the division of the larger parcel.
D. When 2 or more separate lots, parcels, sites, unils or plots of land are purchased, they

remain separale /m !he pul poses of this chapter and NRS 278.468. 278.590 and 278.6310). When

of this chapter until further dzvzded

16.30.020 Application for tentative parcel map

A. Contents of application. Prior to dividing land by parcel map, the landowner or his or her
authorized representative. must file an application for approval of a parcel map with the director
of planning. The application may be made on forms supplied by the department of planning and
must contain the following information:

1. _List of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of the owner of record, applicant
and the engineer or surveyor preparing the map.

2. List of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of public utility companies which
will serve the subject property. including water supply and method of sewage disposal.

3._A north point, scale. date, boundary line and dimensions of the project. The direction of
the north arrow should be shown pointing towards the top or right hand side of the map.

4. The entire assessor's parcel,_identify any remainder portion, and any contiguous
properties under common ownership (whole or partial ownership).

5. Legal description of the land included within the tentative parcel map sufficient to define
the boundaries of the map. Noite: A portion of a section is not sufficient for the description. If the
boundary is by metes and bounds. that description must be on the tentative parcel map.

6. The parcel layout. the approximate dimensions of each parcel (ditto marks not
acceplable) where pads are proposed for building sites, the approximate pad elevation, the
elevations of all adjacent parcels. the top and toe of cut and fill slopes to scale. preliminary
design and approximate finish of all grading, and a number for each parcel in consecutive
numbers. Any portion of property in common conliguous ownership not included in the map must
be labeled as a remainder parcel;

7. In tabular form. indicate the approximate acreage, the number of parcels, proposed
density, existing and proposed zoning and master plan designations. proposed use of parcels.
number of lineal feet of new streets, and acreage of any remainder parcel.

8. Zoning and master plan designations and land uses of adjoining property. including
across any rights-of-way. Indicate distance firom property line to any off-site structures that are
within 25 feel of property line.

9. Note and dimension of all existing structures, indicating the use of each structure and
whether structures are 1o remain or to be removed. In addition, show all parking facilities and
driveways.

10. The street approximaie gradient or centerline profile for each proposed highway, street
casement and drainage improvement shown on the tentative parcel map.

11. Note the width and approximate locations of all existing and proposed easements or
rights-of-way whether for public or private roads, drainage, sewers, or flood control purposes,
shown by dashed lines. Overhead utility lines on peripheral streets must also be indicated.
Existing easements must show the name of the easement holder, purpose of easement, and legal
reference (official records) for the easement. If an easement is blankei or intermittent in nature,

19



a note to this effect must be placed on the tentative map:

12. Note the approximate radius of all centerline curves on highways. streets or ways.

13. The locations of all areas subject to inundation or flood hazard and the locations,
width, and directions of flow of all watercourses and flood control areas within and adiacent 1o
the property involved. Include community panel number, date of most recent revision per Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), and the method for handling storm water.

14. Locate, by distance from existing and proposed property lines and other above ground
structures, the placement on the property of all existing structures and other manmade features
including buildings, utility poles, fences, driveways. signs, existing wells, sewers, seplic systems
(including leach lines), culverts. bridges. drain pipes. fire hydrants and sand, gravel or other
excavations within the subdivision. Indicate which existing structures will remain and which will
be removed.

15. Vicinity map, such as an assessor s office vicinity map, of the area showing the
proposed parcel map in relation to any established roads and other landmarks so that the site
can be easily located. Indicate the proposed access route (o the site from the nearest public
right-of-way.

16. The number of copies of the tentative parcel map, with contents as prescribed in the
application form.

17 A certificate from the county treasurer stating that no taxes or assessments are
delinguent.

18. Written evidence indicating that all applicable fees and application materials have
been submitted to the Nevada division of environmental protection, water quality division.

19. Copies of all applicable “will serve” letters.

20._Copies of all applicable special studies and reports.

21. _Any other information necessary for review of the tentative subdivision map that may
be required in accordance with administrative regulations or this code.

22. For parcels proposed to be divided and which contain 15 percent or more slope on 50
or more percent of the parcel. the director of planning may require the application to include a
contour of land at intervals of not more than 2 feet if the general slope of the land is less than the
ten percent, and 5 feet for all other areas. This must include an area of not less than 100 feet
surrounding the tentative parcel map. Please indicate contour interval and the source and date
the contours were compiled.

22, The claimant number under any court decree. identity and location of any existing or
proposed drainage convevance ditches, or other irrigation waler conveyance structure within or
adjacent to the proposed parcel map. The parcel map must also provide lypical channel
centerline, right-of-way and diich width of the conveyance ditch through the property. and
arrows indicating direction of irrigation flow. The director may. when necessary for review,
require additional information documenting existing and proposed conveyance ditch capacity. If
the proposed parceling includes water impoundment there must be identification of the source of
water and documentation of the state engineer’s approval.

B. Certification. If a survey is not required for the preparation of a parcel map, the map must
be prepared by a registered land surveyor, and contain a certificate which includes substantially
the following: “This map was prepared from existing information (identifving it and stating
where filed or recorded). and the undersigned assumes no responsibility for the existence of
monuments or correctness of other information shown on or copies of any such prior document.”

20



16.30.030 Procedure for tentative parcel maps

A. Action by board and planning commission. The director of planning or his or her designee
must process the application for tentative parcel map approval._and the board with action by the
lanning commission must have a hearing on the application pursuant to chapter 17.03
Administrative Provisions.

B. Duration of approval.

1. Unless the time is extended in the manner set forth in paragraph C, the applicant must
present a final parcel map which conforms to all conditions of approval to the director for
processing and recording, excepl as provided in subsection 2, within one year from the date of
the final decision on the tentative parcel map application. If the applicant fails to submit a
conforming map within the above time limits, all proceedings concerning the parcel map are
terminated. If the final parcel map is submitted within one year and conforms to all conditions of
approval. the extension of time for the parcel map may be considered at public hearing by the
board with action by the planning commission in accordance with chapter 17.03 Administrative
Provisions.

2. Unless the time is extended in the manner set forth in paragraph C, the applicant must
present a final parcel map which includes a conservation easement totaling 50 acres or greater
and which conforms to all the conditions of approval to the director for processing and
recording within 3 years from the date of the final decision on the tentative parcel map
application. If the applicant fails to submit a conforming map within the above time limits, all
proceedings concerning the parcel map are terminated. If the final parcel map is submitied
within 3 vears and conforms to all conditions of board approval, it must be approved by the
director and recorded.

a. As used in this subsection, “conservation easement” means an easement that
permanently preserves or protects open space, da floodplain or agricultural land from being
parceled, subdivided or otherwise developed in a manner incompatible with the preservation or
protection of the open space. floodplain or agricultural land.

C. Extension. For good cause shown. the board may extend the period for presentation of a
conformmg final parcel map for not more than one year afier the expzratzon of the initial one-

am)/zcable policies of the master plan cmd may include condztzons requiring compllance with
current provisions of the development code. The filing and noticing of an exiension will be as
provided for in chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions.

16.30.040 Waiver requests

A. A person proposing to divide land subject to these parcel map regulations may request in
writing a waiver from the requirement of a survey or a waiver of adequate public facility
standards for roads. The request will be considered by the planning commission and the board
as part of the tentative parcel map application.

B. Before the director may recommend to the planning commission a waiver the survey
requirement, s/he musi obtain a written finding from the county surveyor or other professional
land surveyor that a survey is not required to accomplish the purposes of NRS 278.010 1o
278.630, inclusive.

21



Jfor a land survey and adeguate

C. Waiver of adequacy standards for roads may be made in the areas of off-site access
requirements, street alignment, surfacing and width, only if the applicant demonstrates that:

1. The proposed parcel map. if approved, does not result in the creation of any parcels less
than 3 acres in size;

2. The land lies outside the boundaries of urban service areas designated in the adopted
master plan;

3. The waiver of one or more adequate facilities standards for roads does not resull in road
improvements which are inconsistent with any existing use of land zoned for similar use that lies
within 660 feet of any proposed parcel.

If the waiver request is denied. the tentative parcel map application must meel all requirements
ublic facilities standards for roads.

16.30.050 Procedure for referral and processing as subdivision

If the tentative parcel map application or applications constitute a scheme for avoiding the rules
governing the subdivision of land within the meaning of this title, the application may be deemed
incomplete and the director must notify the applicant or applicants that the proposed division of
land must be processed and evaluated as a subdivision pursuant to chapter 16.20.

16.30.060 Findings for tentative parcel maps

The board in rendering a decision on the application for tentative parcel map approval and the
commission on appeal must base the decision on the requirements of NRS and make affirmative
findings on the following factors, taking into account the recommendations of reviewing

agencies:

A. The property to be divided is zoned for the intended uses and the density and design of the
division conforms to the requirements of the zoning regulations contained in the county code.

B. The proposed parcel map conforms to public facilities and improvement standards of this
county land development code.

C. The proposed parcel map conforms to the design standards manual.

D. The developer and successor owners of each new parcel created understand that the
county, county fire protection district, county school district, and special districts in the county
are not obligated (o furnish any service, specifically mentioning fire protection and roads, to the
land so divided_and that any public utility may be similarly fiee from obligation.

E. There are no delinquent taxes or assessments on the land (o be divided, as certified by the
counly lreasurer.

F. The project is not located within an identified archeological or cultural study area, as
recognized by the county. If the project is located in a study area, an archeological resource
reconnaissance has been performed on the site by a qualified archeologist and any identified
resources have been avoided or mitigated to the extent possible per the findings in the report.

G. The proposed parcel map that is adjacent to public lands will not cause substantial
adverse impact to access to public lands. access (o public lands provided before the parcel map
will be mitigated, or reasonable alternative access to the adjacent public lands exists in the
immediate vicinity.

H. The proposed parcel map conforms to the county zoning ordinance and master plan.

1 The proposed parcel map accounts for physical characteristics of the land including
floodplains. slope. and soils.

22



J_Applicant for the parcel map will relinguish to the stale division of water resources waier
rights necessary to ensure an adequate water supply for the domestic use of the newly created
parcel(s) from within the water basin in which the parcel map is located. Necessary water rights
shall be a minimum of 2 acre-feet per year valid underground waler rights for each new parcel
created.

16.30.070 Amendment of parcel map approval

At any time before the recording of the final parcel map. the owner may apply to the director for
a planning commission recommendation to the board to amend the tentative parcel map
approval in accordance with section 17.03 Administrative Provisions. Minor amendments may
he approved by the board in the context of final parcel map approval. For any proposed major
amendment (o the map or lerms of approval, the director may require resubmission of a tentative
parcel map application.

16.30.080 Procedures for final parcel map

A. Application requirements. Following approval of the tentative parcel map, an owner who
wishes to proceed with the parcel map shall file with the director of planning an application for
final approval and recordation of the final parcel map, prepared on standardized forms
available at the office of the department. The application must contain the following
information:

1. The original signed linen or Mylar and at least 5 black line copies of the final parcel
map in the form required by paragraphs B and C. containing all required certificates and
acknowledgments required by paragraph D.

2. A ceriificate from the county treasurer stating that taxes and assessments are paid in
full_

3. Improvement plans approved by the county engineer. and other agencies required to
approve the construction plan along with an approved and executed improvement agreement and
required securily or a certificate of satisfuctory completion issued by the county engineer.

4. Written documentation that all conditions of the tentative map have been met.

5. Other items listed on the application form.

B. Form of final parcel map. The parcel map must be drawn in black waterproof India Ink on
tracing cloth or Mylar, or produced by the use or other materials of a permanent nature
generally used for such purposes in the engineering profession, the size and border of which
must conform to the requirements of this title. and musi, in addition, include the following:

1. If a survey is required.

a. All monuments found, set, reset, replaced or removed, describing their kind, size and

location and giving other data relating thereto.
b. Bearing or witness monuments, bases of bearings, bearings and length of lines and

scale of map.

¢. Name and legal designation of tract or grant in which the survey is located and ties (o
adjoining tracts.

d._ Memorandum of oaths.

e. Signature of surveyor.

£ Date of survey.

g Sionature of the owner or owners of the land (o be divided, witnessed by a notary.

23



h. Any easement granted or dedications made.

i. The exterior boundary of the land to be divided shall be indicated by a graphic
border.
' Any other data necessary for the intelligent interpretation of the various items and
locations of the points, lines and areas shown.

2. If a survey is not required:

a. The tract to be divided and the resulting lot, by appropriate reference to the existing
information on which it is based.
b. _The means of access to the severed lol.
c. The signature of the owner or owners of the land to be divided. witnessed by a notary.
d.Any easements granted or dedications made.
e. Anv other daia necessary for intelligent interpretation of the division and access.
C. Signing of map. The director must assure that the following signatures and certificates
appear on or accompany the approved final parcel map prior to recordation:

1. When financial security is required, the county engineer musi endorse approval of the
map afier the security has been provided and all the conditions of the map have been satisfied.
2. When installation of improvements is required, the county engineer must endorse
approval of the map afier all conditions of the map have been satisfied and all improvements
satisfactorily completed. The county engineer must have writien evidence that the required
public facilities have been installed in a manner satisfactory to the county as shown by a
certificale signed by the county engineer.

3. The county engineer must sign the map only after determining in cooperation with any
utility providing water service to the parcel that the map is in accordance with title 15 water
rights dedication.

4. The following certificates and acknowledgments must accompany the final parcel map:

a. A certificate signed and acknowledged by all parties having any record or title of
interest in the land subdivided, consenting the preparation and recordation of the map.
b. A certificate signed and acknowledged as above. offering for dedication for certain
specified public uses those certain parcels of land which the parties desire so to dedicate.
c. A certificate of title indicating:
i. That each person signing the final parcel map owns a record of interest in the land
and that all the owners of record of land have signed the final parcel map.
ii. Listing of any lien or morigage holders of record. if any. If there are no lien or
mortgage holders of record_the fact that there are none must be stated in the certificate;
iii. The certificate of title required by this title must be signed and dated by an officer
of the title company responsible for these statements contained within the title certificate;
d__A certificate by the surveyor responsible for the survey and parcel as may be
prescribed by Nevada state law.
e. A certificate by the county engineer stating that he/she has examined the parcel map.
that the map is technically correct, and that the applicant has complied with each of the
following alternatives.

i. All the improvements have been installed in accordance with the requirements of

these regulations: or
il Security in conformance been posted with the board in an amount sufficient to

assure completion of all required improvements.

24



£ A certificate by the director stating that he has examined the final parcel map and that
he is satisfied that the map is in conformance with all applicable provisions of state and local
law.

o A certificate for execution by the county clerk stating that the county has approved the
map and accepted (or deferred) on behalf of the public any parcels of land offered for dedication
for public use in conformity with the terms of the offer of dedication.

h. Certificates from the division of water resources of the state department of
conservation and from the health division of the stale.

i. A certificate by the appropriate public utilities accepting the designated easements.

i. Proper certificates of a notary public as required.

k. A certificate for execution by the county recorder concerning the appropriate
recording data required by law.

I__If the property includes. impacls. or is adjacent to a conveyance ditch that all
irrigation water convevance facilities and associated access and maintenance easements or
rights-of-way are depicted on the map.

D. It is the responsibility of the director (o file the original map with the county clerk for
signing and submission to the county recorder within 15 days of the date of presentation of the
conformity map to the department. Simultaneously with the filing of the map. the department
must record any other legal documents required to be recorded by the county.

16.30.090 Effect of final parcel map approval

No vested right will accrue to the owner or developer of any parcel map by reason of map
approval until the actual signing of the conforming final parcel map by all parties required to
sion the map. All requirements, conditions, or regulations adopted by the county applicable to
parcel maps are deemed a condition for any parcel map prior to the time of signing of the map
by the county engineer. Where the county has required the installation of improvements prior to
signing of the final parcel map, and improvements have, in fact. been completed, the developer
may be required to comply with the local laws and regulations in effect at the time when the
parcel map is presented for signing only if the board determines that such compliance is
necessary to prevenl a substantial risk of injury to the public health, safety and general welfare.
16.30.100 Reversion of final parcel map

A final parcel map which has been recorded may be revoked pursuant to chapter 17.03, where
applicable, and the parcel map reverted o acreage, pursuant to chapter 16.60. in the event that
the owner or his successor in interest fails to complete improvements as required by the parcel
map and any improvement agreement, development agreement or as otherwise provided by law.
Either the owner or the county may initiate the proceeding. Al the initiation of proceedings (o
revoke or revert to acreage. the county must record a document with the county clerk and
recorder's office giving notice of the reversion. If final parcel approval is revoked or the
property reverted 1o acreage, the board order to that effect will be recorded with the county
clerk and recorder's offices. the parcel map will no longer be valid and further sale or
development of lots or parcels within the revoked parcel are prohibited without approved
division of land pursuant to this development code.

16.30.110 Signing and recording of final parcel map
A. Signing of the map.

25



1. When an improvement agreement and securily are required, the county engineer shall
endorse approval of the map only afier security has been provided and all conditions of the map
have been satisfied.

2. When installation of improvements is required. the county engineer shall endorse
approval on the map only after all conditions of the map have been satisfied and upon issuance
of a notice of completion.

3. The county engineer shall sign the map only after determination, in cooperation with any
utility providing water service to the subdivision or accepting improvements for maintenance
that the map is in compliance with the county code relating to the dedication of facilities, water
rights and rights-of-way.

B. Recording of the map. It shall be the responsibility of the department to file the original
map with the county clerk for signing and submission to the counity recorder within 15 working
davys of the date of approval of the final subdivision map by the commission. Simultaneously with
the filing of the map the department shall cause to be recorded such other legal documents as
may be required to be recorded by the county.

Chapter 16.40
Division of Land into Large Parcels

Sections:

16.40.010 General procedures

16.40.020 Applicability

16.40.030 Tentative land division map procedure

16.40.040 Findings for tentative map

16.40.050 Duration, extension, and amendment of a tentative map of division into large
parcels

16.40.060 Final land division map procedure

16.40.070 Effect of approval

16.40.080 Recording

16.40.010 General procedures
All land division applications must be processed in 2 stages, except as provided in section
16.40.030:

A. Application for tentative map of division into large parcels; and

B. Application for final map of division into large parcels. The board following action by the
planning commission is the final decision-maker for purposes of final maps of division of land
into large parcels.

16.40.020 Applicability

All owners of land or his/her authorized representatives who propose to divide any land or
portion of the land. vacant or improved, for transfer or development into lols or parcels, each of
which is at least: 1) one-6teenth (1/16) of a section as described by U.S. government land office
survey. or 2) 40 acres in area. including roads and easements. must file an application for
approval of a tentative map of division into large parcels; provided thal. the provisions of this

26



chapter does not apply to the proposed division of land where each lot is at least one section or
640 acres.

16.40.030 Tentative land division map procedure

A. Application. Prior to dividing land pursuant o the provisions of this chapter, the owner of
the land. or his or her authorized representative, must submil to the department of planning a
completed application for a tentative map of division into large parcels in accordance with
chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions. The application must he made on forms supplied by the
department and must contain the following information:

1. A description of all contiguous holdings of the owner, including land in the same
ownership. with indication of the portion of the property that is 10 be subdivided.

2. The number of copies of the teniative land division map, with contents as prescribed in
the application form.

3. A certificate from the county treasurer stating that no taxes or assessments are
delinquent.

4. Any other information necessary for review of the tentative lund division map as may be
wired in accordance with administrative regulations or this code:

5. The claimant number under any court decree, identity and location of any existing or
nroposed drainage convevance ditches, or other irrigation water conveyvance siructure within or
adjacent to the proposed land division map. The land division map must also provide typical
channel centerline, right-of-way and ditch width of the conveyance ditch through the property.
and arrows indicating direction of irrigation flow. The director may, when necessary for ils
review. require additional information documenting existing and proposed conveyvance ditch
capacity. If the proposed parceling includes water impoundment there must be identification of
the source of water and documentation of the state engineer's approval.

6. Any other information necessary for review of the tentative map established by the
director.,

B. Form and contents of tentative map of division into large parcels. Every tentative map
must be entitled: “Tentative Map of Division into Large Parcels” and be prepared and certified
by a professional land surveyor, and must show the following data and information:

1. The approximate, calculated or actual acreage of each lot and the total acreage of the
land to be divided.

2. All roads or easements of access. which exist, are proposed in the applicable master
plan or are proposed by the person who intends to divide the land.

3. Any easements for public utilities, which exist, or which are proposed.

4. Any existing easements for irrigation or drainage, and any normally continuous flowing
watercourses and the claimant number under any court decree. identity and location of any
conveyvance ditches or other irrigation water conveyance structure within the proposed land
division map. The land division map must also provide typical channel centerline, right-of-way
and ditch width of the conveyance ditch through the property, and arrows indicating direction of
irrigation flow.

5. Anindication of any existing road or easement which the owner does not intend (o
dedicate.

6. The name and address of the owners of the land.

C. Processing by director. The director must process the application for tentative map

27



approval pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions, and the director must schedule
the application for public hearing before the planning commission and board.

D. Hearing notice and procedure. Notice of the hearings before the planning commission and
board._and the associated hearings. must conform to the procedures established in chapter 17.03
Administrative Provisions.

E. Board and planning commission action. Within 60 days after the official filing date, unless
the time is extended by mutual consent of the applicant and the board, the board after action by
the planning commission must, following a public hearing, approve. conditionally approve or
disapprove the lentative map of division into large parcels by a majority vote of the members
present. The review and decision of the board and recommendation by the planning commission
must conform to the provisions of chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions. The board and
planning commission must set forth findings and reasons for its decisions in accordance with the
crileria identified in chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions.

16.40.040 Findings for tentative map
A. The board and planning commission, in rendering its decision on the tentative map, must
hase approval on finding in the affirmative the following:

1. The tentative map meets the formal requirvements of this chapter and NRS.

2. The tentative map secures adequate access for subsequent purchasers.

3. Where applicable. the tentative map secures the ability to irrigate and drain each parcel,
consistent with the water rights appurtenant, and that the rights of downsiream users are
secured and not impaired.

4. The location and width of easements for roads and public utilities are adequate for the
area 1o be divided.

5. The location and width of easements for drainage and irrigation purposes are adeguate
for the area to be divided.

6. There are no delinquent taxes or assessments on the land 1o be divided, as certified by
the county treasurer.

16.40.050 Duration, extension, waiver, and amendment of a tentative map of division into

large parcels
A. Time for submission of final map. Unless the time is extended by the board in the manner

sel forth in paragraph B, the applican! must present a final map of division inlo large parcels,
prepared in accordance with the tentative map, to the board. The final map must include the

entire area for which a tentative map has been approved. The final map must be filed within one
vear from the date of approval of the tentative map by the board ov the date that the requirement

of its filing was waived pursuant to this chapter.

B. Extension of tentative map. The board may extend the period for presentation of any final
map of division inlo large parcels for not more than one year afier the expiration of the initial
one-year period for presenting the final map, upon application to the department. The extension
must be consistent with any applicable policies of the master plan and may include conditions
requiring compliance with the current provisions of the land development code. Extension
requests must be filed within the time provided in chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions.

C._Waiver of tentative map requirement. The board may waive the requirement of filing for a

28



tentative map. Following the recommendation for approval, conditional approval, or
disapproval of the tentative map by the planning commission, the applicant may file for the final
map through the department of planning for the board to consider approval, conditional
approval, or disapproval decision of the final map. The final map must conform (o the standards
set forth in section 17.40.060. If the board at its public hearing does not waive the requirement
of filing for a tentative map. the board will proceed with the hearing and make its determination
1o approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove the tentative map in accordance with the
application provisions of this chapter and chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions.

D. Amendment of tentative map. At any time after tentative map approval, and before the time
required for presentation of a final map, the applicant may request amendment to the approval
or conditional approval of the tentative map. The director may approve minor tentative map
amendments, subject o review and approval by the board with action by the planning
commission, in accordance with chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions. Major amendments
must be determined in accordance with the procedure for original approval of the tentative map
under this chapter. Additional conditions, which are reasonably related to the proposed
amendment, may be attached to approval of the tentative map amendment. An applicant who is
unwilling to accept conditions atiached to the proposed amendment may withdraw the
amendment. Action on the application for amendment of the tentative map does not stay the
period for presenting a final map, unless a request for extension pursuant (o paragraph B is

approved.

16.40.060 Final land division map procedure

A. Application requirements. Following approval of the tentative map, or approval of the final
map following waiver of the tentative map by the board. the applicant must complete the land
division must file with the board through the department of planning an application for final
approval and recordation of the final map, prepared on standardized forms available at the
department. These requirements musi be met at the time of filing for a request for board wavier
of tentative map if the applicant desires 1o request a waiver of the lentative map. The application
must be filed in accordance with the scheduled set forth in chapter 17.03 Administrative
Provisions. The application must contain the following information:

1. The original linen or Mylar and at least 5 black line copies of the final map in the form
required by paragraph B, containing the information and the certificates of acknowledgment
required by paragraphs C and D.

2. The fee for final map approval set by resolution of the board.

3. A certificate from the county freasurer stating that no taxes or assessments are
delinquent.

4. Other items listed on the application form.

B. Form of final map. The final map must:

1. Be clearly and legibly drawn or stamped in black waterproof India ink upon good
tracing cloth or produced by the use of other materials of a permanent nature generally used for
such purposes in the engineering profession.

2. Be entitled, "Map of Division into Large Parcels”.

3. Be 24 inches by 32 inches in size. a with a marginal line drawn completely around each
sheet leaving an entirely black margin of one inch at the bottom, top and right edges and 2
inches at the lefi edge along the 24-inch dimension.

29



4. Be of a scale large enough 1o show clearly all details.

5. Be prepared by a registered land surveyor.

6. Be based upon an actual survey by the preparer which shows the date of the survey, or
based upon the most recent governmenl survey.

7. Show the date of approval of the government survey and contain a certificate by the
preparer that the parcels contain the number of acres shown for each parcel.

8. Clearly state the particular number of the sheet and the total of sheets comprising the
final map on each of the sheets. and its relationship to each adjoining sheet.

C. Contents of final map. Every final map must include all data required for the tentative map
and all changes required as conditions of teniative map approval. and in addition mus(_conlain
the following:

1. All lots by number and actual acreage of each lot.

2. All roads or easements of access which exist and which the owner intends to offer for
dedication, all roads or easements or access which are shown on the applicable master plan,
and all roads or easements of access which are specifically required by the board with action by
the planning commission.

3. Any easements for public utilities which exist or are proposed.

4. Any existing easemenis for irrigation or drainage, and any normally continuously
flowing watercourses and the claimant number under any court decree, identity and location of
any convevance ditches or other irrigation water structure within the proposed land division
map. The land division map must also provide typical channel cross sections with dimensions,
centerline, average slope through the property and designed flow capacily of conveyance
structures and arrows indicating direction of irvigation flow. If the proposed division of land
includes water impoundment there must be identification of the source of water and
documentation of the state engineer’s approval.

5. An offer or offers to dedicate the utility and right-of-way easements.

D. Final map certificates. The following certificates shall appear on the final map and shall
be combined when appropriate.

1. A certificate signed and acknowledged by the owner of land consenting to the dedication
of the roads and granting of the easements.

2. A certificate signed by the clerk of the governing body that the map was approved. or the
affidavit of the person presenting the map for filing, that the time limited by this title for action
by the governing body has not expired.

3. Ifthe property includes, impacts, or is adjacent to a conveyance ditch that all irrigation
conveyance facilities and associated access and maintenance easements or righis-of-way are
depicted on the map.

4. A certificate granting rights-of-way for water conveyance and maintenance. The grant of
the righi-of-way must run to the benefit of all persons entitled to the use of the conveyvance ditch
under any court decree and their successors in interest or to any ditch company or similar entity
having an interest in or responsibility for the water convevance ditch and associated structures.

E. Action by board.

1. Unless the time period is extended by a mutual conseni of the developer applicant and
the board. the board must approve, conditionally approve or disapprove the final map by the
majority vote of the members present within 60 days of the official filing date.

2. Ifthe board does not approve. approve with conditions or disapprove the final map

30



within 60 days. the final map must be deemed approved unconditionally.
3. The board must approve the map only if it finds as follows:

a. _The final map conforms in every respect with the approved ientative map.

b. All conditions established upon approval of the tentative map have been satisfied.

¢._The final map conforms ro all county ordinances applicable at the time of the hearing
on the final map.

d._All necessary certificates required by state law or by the county code have been
presented with the application for approval of the final map.

4. The review and decision of the board must conform to the provisions of this title. The
board must set forth findings and reasons for its decision in accordance with the criteria
established in this title. If the map is disapproved, the board must also provide the applicant with
a writlen statement of what changes would be necessary to render the map acceptable.

5. The board must, at the time of approval of the final map, accept or reject any or all
offers of dedication. The decision to accept or reject offers of dedication must be made in
accordance with adopted board policy.

16.40.070 Effect of approval

No vested rights will accrue to the owner or developer of any division of land into large parcels
by reason of the approval of a tentative or final map for division into large parcels approval
until the actual signing of the final map by all parties required o sign the map. All requirements,
conditions or regulations adopted by the county applicable to the division of land are deemed a
condition for any division prior to the time of signing of the final map by the county engineer:.
Where the county has required the installation of improvements prior Lo signing of the final map,
and improvements have, in fuct, been completed, the applicant may be required to comply with
the local laws and regulations in effect at the time when the final map is considered for approval
only if the commission makes a finding on the record that the compliance is necessary to prevent
a substantial risk of injury to the public health. safety and general welfare.

16.40.080 Recording

A. Recording of the map. Upon approval, it is the responsibility of the director or his designee
to file the official final map with the county recorder within 15 working days of the date of board
approval. Simultaneously with the filing of the final map. the department of planning must cause
to be recorded any other legal documents required to be recorded by the county.

B. Effect of recording. Filing with the county recorder operates as a continuing:

1. Offer to dedicate for public roads the areas shown as proposed roads or easements of
access, which the governing body may accept in whole or in part at any time or from time to
time._

2. Offer 1o grant the easements shown for public utilities, which any public utility may
similarly accept without excluding any other public utility whose presence is physically
compatible.

C. Conveyvances. After a map has been filed with the county recorder, any lot shown on the
map may be conveyed by reference to the map, without further description.

Chapter 16.50

Water Resource Requirements

31



Sections:

16.50.010 Purpose and Intent

16.50.020 FExceptions

16.50.030 Definition

16.50.040 Applicability

16.50.050 Water Rights and Water Resource Satisfaction

16.50.060 Authority to Utilize Dedicated Water Rights and Applicant’s Responsibilities
16.50.070 Water Delivery Facilities

16.50.010 Purpose and Intent
The purpose of this section is o manage the practices and procedures related (o water resources

requirements associated with the division of land and development in the county Lo ensure
adequate water supply to protect the public health, safety, and general welfare.

16.50.020 _Exceptions
The provisions of this section do not apply to the following:

A.  Development within any community with a public water system which is receiving or
will receive a valid will-serve leiter issued by the public water system;

B.  Development within a general improvement district which is receiving water from the
general improvement district as demonstrated by: (a) a will-serve letter from the general
improvement district; or (b) a note on the final map stating that the applicant is responsible for
complying with the requirements of the general improvement district at the time of applying for a
building permit.

16.50.030 Definition
A, “Relinquishment”’ means the relinguishiment of groundwater rights to the State of Nevada

Division of Water Resources within a hydrographic basin for the purpose of offsetting the
impacts of additional groundwater withdrawn from proposed domestic wells to serve individual
residential dwellings. Relinquishment of groundwater rights are a prerequisite (o approval of
newly created residential lots utilizing individual domestic wells as their source of water supply.
Proof of relinguishment is satisfied when the appropriate approval affidavit from the Nevada
Stare Division of Water Resources is recorded with Storey County.

16.50.040 Applicability
The provisions of this section apply to all development projects of any kind in Storey County
which require permits or approvals of the county and which require the use of water resources
or require water supply delivery. Adequate water resources are required for all new
development including:

A. Subdivisions and new residential parcels which will be served by individual domestic
wells;

B. Subdivisions and new residential parcels which will be served by a communily water
system,

C. Development creating new multi-family residential dwelling units or mobile home
residential dwelling units. which will be served either by individual wells or a community water

32



system.

D. Developments creating new commercial._industrial, or civic buildings or uses which will
be served by either an on-sile well or a community water system; and

E. Any other development requiring a permil or approval of the county with a requirement
for. or an impact on, water resources.

16.50.050 Water Rights and Water Resource Satisfaction

A. Prior to accepting an application for a tentative subdivision map, tentative parcel map, or
tentative map of division of land into large parcels which creates additional parcels within the
county, excepl for the areas of the county served by a public water system or general
improvement district water system, the applicant must submit to the director of planning a
wrilten and binding statement of intent 1o Storey County al the time that the final map
application is approved. the type and amount of water necessary to serve each parcel.

B. The transfer of water rights to Storey County must be completed before filing for a final
subdivision map, final parcel map, or final division of land into large parcels map.

C. The amount of water to be transferred is 2.0 acre-feel for each new parcel allowing for a
single-family residential use served by a domestic well, and 2.0 acre-feet for each dwelling unit
that will be served on the parcel.

D. The amount of water Lo be transferred for land subdivision will be determined by Storey
County.

E. The developer is required to dedicate or submit proof of relinquishment to Storey County,
as a condilion precedent to anv permit or approval, any waier righl reasonably necessary (o
ensure an adequate water supply for the intended or permitted use. The amount of water rights
necessary will be determined by the director of planning and the Nevada division of water
resources; said water rights amount are singular and not cumulative. In the event that the
Nevada division of water resources and the county have different requirements under this
section, the most stringent of the county or state requirements must be satisfied. No building
permit or recordation of a subdivision map (including condominium and townhouse project),

parcel map (except divisions of land which are exempt from the parcel map process), or map of
division into large parcels may be granted until the dedication or the proof of relinquishment of
water rights is accepted by the director of planning. Presentation of a valid will-serve letter from
a water purveyor approved and under public utilities commission jurisdiction or the submittal of
proof of the relinquishment of water rights may substitute for the dedication of water rights to

the countv. The director of planning will evaluate the proof of dedication of water rights. or the
waler rights offered for dedication to the county or to a water purveyor as described above
based on, but not limited to,_the following criteria:

1. Water resources requirements. In accordance with this section, in those instances
where the county's water resources requirements are more stringent than the
Nevada division of water resources. additional water rights will be dedicated as
appropriate;

2. Adeguacy of amount of water. The amount of water resources for the intended use
is adeguate to provide a reliable water supply as is offered for dedication to the
county or proof of the relinquishment of waler rights is submitted lo the county.

3. Proximity of source. The proximity of the hydrographic basin or source of water
offered for dedication to the county or proof of the relinguishment of water rights

33



for the intended use:

4. Proof of ownership. Valid proof of ownership, including a chain of title to the
original water right holder, for the water rights offered jor dedication to the
county or proof of the relinquishment of water righis;

5. Status of water right. The priority and yield of the water right, the current manner
and place of use. and the status of the permits or certificates used by the Nevada
division of water resources, or the status of the water right established in a court
decree, which are offered for dedication to the county, or proof of the
relinquishment of water rights:

6. Point of Diversion. The ability of the purveyor, the developer. or the property
owner to obtain from the Nevada division of water resources the necessary permits
to change the point of diversion, and the manner and place of the use of the water
rights for the intended use: and

7. Relinguishment. In the case of parcel or subdivision maps creating new
residential parcels with an individual domestic well as their source of water
supply, the applicant must deliver proof of the relinguishment of the water rights

Lo the county.

16.50.060 Authority to Utilize Dedicated Water Rights and Applicant’s Responsibilities
The director of planning, or any other appropriate county department, division, or agency. may:
1. Applications to the Nevada division of water resources. File applications with the

Nevada division of water resources to change the point of diversion, and the

manner and place of use of the dedicated water right to put the water resources to
validity of the dedicated

water rights; and

2. Applicant’s responsibilities. Require the development owner or property owner
{o.!

a. Pay all application. transfer. dedication, and other fees of the Nevada
division of water resources;

b. Ifapplicable, allow county staff to enter the property in order 10 read
water meters on all wells and delivery facilities, or perform other
related inspections as necessary; and

¢. Comply with the terms of the water right permits or certificates issued by
the Nevada division of water resources.

16.50.070 Water Delivery Facilities
A. The development owner or property owner is required (0.

1. Petition the public utilities commission or otherwise cause the creation of a public
water system under the jurisdiction of the public utilities commission, or

2. Operate and maintain, in accordance with applicable regulatory reguirements and
standards, any facilities for water treatment. supply, storage. transmission and distribution. and
appuritenances such as wells, pipelines, pumps, and storage tanks located within or outside the
property boundary or subdivision which are necessary lo ensure an adequate water supply 1o a

development, which have nol otherwise been dedicated to and accepted by a water purveyor.
This section also anplies to facilities that will be constructed to serve one single-family dwelling
on an existing parcel of land approved with an individual domesiic well as its source of water

34



supply.

Chapter 16.60
Assurance for Completion and Maintenance of Improvements

Sections:

16.60.010 Required improvements and agreement to complete
16.60.020 Improvement agreement

16.60.030 Security

16.60.040 Site improvement permits

16.60.050 Security for temporary improvements
16.60.060 Remedies

16.60.070 Acceptance of dedication offers

16.60.080 Inspection and certification of improvements
16.60.090 Reduction of escrowed funds and security
16.60.100 Security for warranty of improvements
16.60.120 Issuance of building permits for model homes

16.60.010 Required improvements and agreement to complete
A. Applicability. The requirements of this chapter apply in all instances where improvements
are required to be constructed in conjunction with the division of land pursuant to this title and

where improvemenls are proposed in conjunction with other development permits.

B. Completion of improvements. Before a final map, parcel map or final map for division of
land into large parcels is signed by the county engineer, and any easements offered for
dedication to the public are accepted by the county. or before a final certificate of occupancy is
issued for a new structure, all developers are required to complete, in accordance with the
applicable development approval and to the satisfaction of the county engineer, all project
improvements, sysitem improvements and lol improvements on the individual lots. as required in
this title and as specified in the conditions of approval of the applicable map, and to dedicate
those public improvements (o the county. free and clear of all liens and encumbirances on the
dedicated property and public improvements. The developer also must construct al his or her
sole cost all temporary improvements required as a condition of approval of the applicable map
or development and must maintain those temporary improvements for the period specified in
such approval.

C. Deferral of required improvements. As an alternative to completion of improvements prior
(0 final map approval, or issuance of a permaneni certificate of occupancy. the board with
action by the planning commission may permit the developer to enter into an improvement
agreement prepared. in conformance with section 16.60.020 and secured pursuant to 16.20.030
by which the developer covenants to complete all required improvements.

D. Failure to complete improvements. For divisions of land and other development projects
for which no improvement agreement has been executed and no security has been posted

pursuant to this chapter, if the required improvements are not completed within the period

35



specified in the applicable approval conditions, or within 2 vears following the date of
recordation of a final map or issuance of a building permit, the applicable map or development
approval is deemed Lo have expired.

16.60.020 Improvement agreement

A. Agreement. The developer must agree to construct and complete all required
improvements no later than 2 years following the date of recordation of a final map or issuance
of a building permit. The developer also must agree to warrant that all required public
improvements are fiee firom defect in design, workmanship and materials for a period of ai least
one year following acceplance of the offer of dedication of the last completed public
improvement by the appropriate authority. The improvement agreement must include, but may
not be limited to, the following:

1. A detailed reference to the improvemenis requiring completion, including an engineer's
cost estimare.

2. A specific date for completion of all improvements, fixed by the county engineer, which
date may not be longer than 2 years from the date on which the county engineer signs the map.

3. A reguirement for a certificate from the developer's engineer stating that all work has
been completed in accordance with the improvement drawings and specifications.

4 A requirement that a notice of completion issued by the county engineer be submitted
indicating that all improvements comply with the applicable map approval requirements and this
code.

5. A requirement for wrilten acceptance of all public improvements by the board or
governing body of the agency or political subdivision having jurisdiction of the improvements on
their completion.

6. An explanation that the financial security may be withdrawn upon final completion of the
improvements only after the written approval of the board or following reduction of security as
provided in this chapier.

7. A provision that the applicant must repair, at his or her sole cost and expense. any
hidden defects in design, workmanship and materials which appear in the work within one year
following acceptance by the county.

8. A provision requiring financial security for the warranty obligation for specified
improvements which must be submitted to the board prior to withdrawal of the original financial
security.

9. The agreement may include a provision requiring the developer to maintain each
required public improvement for a period of one year following acceptance of the dedication of
that completed public improvement.

10. Where temporary improvements are reguired. a provision agreeing to maintain such
improvements.

B. Covenants to run. The improvement agreement must provide that the covenants contained
in the improvement agreement run with the land and bind all successors. heirs and assigns of the
developer. The agreement will be adopted by the board and must be recorded with the county
recorder.

16.60.030 Security
A. Whenever the hoard permits a developer (o enler into an improvement agreement. (he

36



developer musi provide a letter of credit,_cash escrow, or certificate of deposit as security for the
improvement completion and warranty and maintenance promises contained in the improvement
agreement, including those pertaining (o temporary improvements. A developer who wishes to
secure for improvements lotaling in excess of $250,000 must provide security in the form of a
letter of credit, cash escrow or certificate of deposit. A developer who wishes to secure for
improvements totaling $250.000 or less may provide security in the form of a performance bond.
Whichever form of security chosen must be an amount equal to 150 percent of the approved
engineer's cost estimate, including lot improvements. The security must name Storey County
exclusively as the beneficiary of the security. The issuer of the letter of credil or certificate of
deposit or the escrow agent, as applicable. must be acceptable to the county. Where a
performance bond is utilized, each insurance company’s rating as shown in the latest Best's Key

rating guide must be fully disclosed and entered on the required certificate of insurance. The
adequacy of the insurance supplied by the developer, including the rating and financial health of
each insurance company providing coverage, is subject to the approval of the county.

1. Letter of Credit. If the developer posts a letter of credit as security for his improvement
agreement, the letter of credit must (1) be irrevocable; (2) be for a term sufficient to cover the
completion and warranty periods in subsection 16.60.01 (B): (3) require only that the
government present the leiter of credit with a sight draft and an affidavit signed by ihe director
or district attorney attesting to the county's right to draw funds under the credit; and (4) be
through a Nevada federally insured lending or banking institution.

2. Cash. If the developer posts cash as security for its promises contained in the
improvement agreement, the developer has no right to return of any of the funds except that as
provided in subsection 16.50.030(C). and the funds will be held in noninterest bearing account.

3. Certificate of deposit. If the developer posts certificates of deposit as security for the
improvement agreement, the certificates of deposit must (1) be irrevocable: (2) be for the deposit
time stated in the executed improvement agreement,; and (3) provide that all interest will inure to
the benefit of the developer or his successor in interest.

4. Performance bond. If the developer posts a performance bond as security for his
improvement agreement, the performance bond must (1) be irrevocable; (2) be for a term
sufficient to comply with the completion and warranty periods in subsection 16.60.010(B). and
(3) be issued through an insurance company.

The insurance company must rate the contractor for the amount required to be bonded.

B. Governmental units. Other governmental units to which these improvement agreement and
security provisions apply may file, in lieu of the improvement agreement and security, a certified
resolution or ordinance from officers or agencies authorized to act in their behalf. agreeing to
comply with the provisions of this chapter.

16.60.040 Site improvement permits

A. Prior to the commencement of any work on improvements, the developer must obtain a site
improvement permit firom the county engineer. accompanied by a fee, as set by resolution of the
hoard. All costs for inspection services provided by personnel not emploved by the county
engineering depariment shall be contracted for and paid by the developer.

B. The developer's engineer must provide as-built construction drawings to the county
engineer and other applicable utility.

37



16.60.050 Security for temporary improvements

If the developer has not entered into an improvement agreement addressing temporary
improvements pursuant to section 16.60.020. prior to construction of a temporary facility or
improvement, the developer must file with the county a separate improvement agreement and a
letter of credit, certificate of deposit or cash in the amount appropriate for temporary facilities,
which agreement and credit or escrow must ensure that the temporary facilities will be properly
constructed, maintuined and removed.

16.60.060 Remedies

In those cases where an improvement agreement has been executed and securities have been
posted and required public improvements have not been installed within the terms of the
agreement, the county may then:

A. Declare the agreement to be in default and require that all the improvements be installed
regardless to the extent of the building development at the time the agreement is declared to be
in defaull.

B. Suspend map approval until the improvements are completed and record a document to
that effect for the purpose of public notice.

C. Obtain funds under the security and complete improvements itself or through a third
party.

D. Assign its right to receive funds under security to any third party, including a subsequent
owner of the land to be divided for which improvements were not consiructed, in whole or in
part, in exchange for that subsequent owner's promise (o complete the required improvements.

E. Exercise any other rights available under the law.

16.60.070 Acceptance of dedication offers

Acceptance of formal offers of dedication of streets, utilities, public areas, easements, and parks
must be made in accordance with adopted board policy, by the board, commission or official
authorized by this title to approve the applicable map. The approval of any map authorizing the
division of land. or approval of a site improvement or building permit must not be deemed to
constitule or imply the acceptance by the county or other entity of any public improvement on the
map. The county engineer may require a final map 1o be endorsed with the appropriate noles (o
this effect.

16.60.080 Inspection and certification of improvements

A. General procedure and fees. The county engineer or building official, where applicable,
shall provide for inspection of required improvements during construction and ensure their
satisfactory completion. Prior to the commencement of any work, the developer must obtain a
site improvement permit or building permit, where applicable, and pay a fee set by resolution of
the board. All costs for inspection services provided by personnel not employed by the county
engineering division must be contracted for and paid for by the developer. Where the
improvements are completed prior (o approval of the applicable map. the county engineer may
not sign the map unless the inspection fee has been paid at the time of application. No building
permits or certificates of occupancy may be issued until all fees are paid. If the county engineer
finds upon inspection that any one or more of the required improvements have not been
constructed in accordance with the county's construction standards, design criteria and

38



improvement standards and specifications, the applicant is responsible for properly completing
the improvements.

B. Notice of completion. The dedication of required improvements will not be accepted, nor
the amount of any remaining security posted by the developer be reduced until the county
engineer or other utility has submitted a notice of completion stating that all required
improvements have been satisfactorily completed and until:

1. The applicant's engineer or surveyor has certified 1o the county engineer and other
utility. through submission of a detailed "as-built” survey, indicating location, dimensions,
materials and other information required by the county engineer, that the layout of the line and
rade of all public improvements is in accordance with the construction plans:

2. A title insuranc
attorney indicating that the improvements have been completed. are ready for dedzcalzon to the

county and are firee and clear of any and all liens and encumbrances. Upon the approval and
recommendation by the county engineer and district attorney, the board, commission or official
authorized by this code to approve the applicable map may accept the improvements for
dedication in accordance with the established procedure.

3. A warranty bond or other form of security in conformity with the provisions of sections
16.60.090 and 16.60.100 is posted for the warranty period.

16.60.090 Reduction of escrowed funds and security

A. If the security posted by the developer was a cash escrow, the amount of that escrow may
be reduced upon aciual acceptance as completed, of public improvements and then only to the
ratio that the costs of public improvements for which dedication was accepted bears to the total
cost of public improvements for the land division. In no event may a cash escrow be reduced to
less than 10 percent of the original amount unless and until a warranty bond or other form of
security established in the improvement agreement, if required, is posted for the warranty
period.

B. If the security provided by the developer was a letter of credit, or a certificale of deposit
the county must execute waivers of the county's right to draw funds under the credit upon actual
acceptance of the dedication of public improvements and then only to the ratio that the cost of
the public improvemenis for which dedication was accepted bears to the total cost of public
improvements for the land division. No waivers may be executed that would reduce the security
below 10 percent of its original amount unless a warranty bond or other form of security
established in the improvemen! agreement is posted for the warranty period.

16.60.100 Security for warranty of improvements

If a developer has not entered into an improvement agreement pursuant to section 16.50.020, he
must provide a warranty bond or other acceptable form of security if required for warranty of
improvements. The amount of the warranty bond must be equal to an amount established by an
approved engineer’s estimate for cost of replacement of improvements. The issuer of the
security. as applicable, musi be acceptable to the county.

16.60.110 Issuance of building permits and certificates of occupancy

A. Except as otherwise provided in section 16.60.120 below, when an improvement agreement
and security has been required by this chapter, no certificate of occupancy for any structure or

39



Jacility built on the project covered by such agreement may be issued prior to the completion of
the required public improvements and the acceptance and dedication of the required
improvemenis.

B. _Building permits may not be issued for the final 10 percent of lots in a land division, or if
10 percent be less than 2, for the final 2 lots of the land division, until all required improvements
have been fully completed and the developer's offers to dedicate the improvements have been
accepled. by the appropriale authority.

Chapter 16.70
Land Readjustment

Sections:

16.70.010 Amending maps

16.70.020 Modifications to approved tentative maps

16.70.030 Reversion of maps or reversion of division of land to acreage

16.70.040 Merger and re-subdivision of land without reversion to acreage

16.70.050 Vacation or abandonment of street or easement

16.70.060 Administrative vacation or abandonment of public utility easements owned or
controlled by Storey County

16.70.010 Amending maps

A. Certificate of amendment. If an_error or omission is found in any subdivision map. record
of survey, parcel map, map of division into large parcels, or reversionary map, and the
correction does not change or purport to change the physical location of any survey monument,
property line or boundary line, the error or omission may be corrected by the filing and
recordation of a certificate of amendment authorized by the board. The certificate of amendment
must contain the items required by NRS 278.473(2).

B. Amending map. If an error or omission is found in any recorded subdivision map, record of

arcel map, map of division inio large parcels, or reversionary map, and the correction
changes or purports to change the physical location of any survey monument, property line or
bhoundary line. the correction may be effected by the filing of an amended map pursuant to the
procedures of this section. This procedure may be utilized only to correct errors or omissions
that do not result in a change of the number of lots, result in significant changes to the area of
any lot or the amount of land reserved or dedicated for public use and improvements, or result in
the removal of any covenants or restrictions attached to the final approved or recorded map.

C. _Procedures for amending map. The same procedures and requirements must be applied to
the application for an amended map as (o the original land division, except, in the case of
subdivisions. only those procedures for the approval and filing of a final subdivision map may
apply. The amending map must be in the format and contain the certificates required by NRS

278.477(2).

16.70.020 Modifications to approved tentative maps
A. Applicability. Whenever the owners of land or their representatives desire to modify an

40



approved tentative map or conditions of approval, an application must be filed with the
department. The requests resulting in no net change or reduction in the number of parcels, the
re-design of the map involving less than ten percent of the total number of parcels or land area,
minor clarification of a condition resulting in no impact to public health or safety, or changes to
map design resulting from the mapping of environmental constraints or historic sites, an
application for a minor amendment may be filed. All other requests will constitute a major
amendment.

B. Procedures for processing a minor amendment. An application for a minor amendment
must be filed with the department, on the form provided, with the applicable fees. The director is
the designated authority for minor amendments. The applicant must be notified in writing of the
decision regarding the request within 30 working days of the official filing date. The decision of
the director may be appealed.

C. Procedures for processing a major amendment. Major amendments must be processed in
the same manner as the original application for division of land. With the consent of the director
the applicant may incorporate the previous applications and procedures by reference, to the
extent that the amendment makes no material changes on the matiers addressed by reference.

16.70.030 Reversion of maps or reversion of division of land to acreage

A. All applications for a reversion of map or reversion of division of land 1o acreage must be
filed with the planning department on the appropriate forms and meet all applicable submittal
requirements. The board is the final decision maker regarding reversion of maps or reversion of
division of land to acreage.

B. The applicant must pay a fee as set by resolution of the board.

C._All applications for reversion of maps or reversion of land to acreage must comply with
NRS 278.490.

D. Easements. Reversion of maps or reversion of division of land to acreage does not
automatically eliminate any public utility, irrigation, or other private easement thal may exisi
along a lot line. It is the responsibility of the property owner(s) to resolve any and all interest of
record,

E._All applications of reversion of maps and lot consolidation or reversion of division of land
Lo acreage must include a reversion to acreage map which contains the same survey dimensions
as the pervious recorded map.

F. Appeal. A decision of the director made under this section may be appealed in the matter
provided for in chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions.

16.70.040 Merger and re-subdivision of land without reversion to acreage
A. _An owner or governing body that owns 2 or more contiguous parcels may merge and
resubdivide the land into new parcels or lots without reverting the preexisting parcels to acreage
pursuant to NRS 278.490.
B.  Parcels merged without reversion to acreage pursuant 1o this section must be re-subdivided
and recorded on a final map, parcel map or map of division into large parcels, as appropriate,
in accordance with NRS 278.320 to 278.4723, inclusive, and this chapter. The recording of the
'e-‘subdlwc{ed 17(1)cels or lots on a final map, parcel map or map of division into large parcels, as
jsti arcels into a single parcel and the

smmllaneous re- subdlwszon of that single parcel into parcels or lots of a size and description set

41



forth in the final map, parcel map or map of division into large parcels, as appropriate.

C. Streets and easements will remain in effect afier the merger and re-subdivision of land,
unless abandoned in accordance with the provisions of this code and NRS.

D. All applications of a merger and re-subdivision of land must be filed with the department
of planning on the appropriate forms meeting all applicable submittal requirements.

E. The applicant must pay a fee as sel by the board.

F._All applicants for merger and resubdivision of land must comply with NRS 278.4925,
278.4955, 278.496 and 278.4965.

G. All gpplications for merger and resubdivision of land must follow the same county
approval process as the initial tentative map.

16.70.050 Vacation or abandonment of street or easement

Any abutting property owner desiring the vacation or abandonment of any street or easement or
any portion of a street or easement musit file a petition in writing with the department. The
pelition for vacation or abandonment of the street or easement will be processed in accordance
with the procedures sel forth in NRS 278.480. A vacation or abandonment of a street easement
may be approved in conjunction with the approval of a tentative map pursuant to NRS 278 349.
The board may initiate the vacation or abandonment of a street or easement by resolution.

16.70.060 _Administrative vacation or abandonment of public utility easements owned or
controlled by Storey County

A. Purpose. For the purposes of this section, a public utility easement is un easement owned
or_controlled by Storey County and which runs in favor of the county. Pursuant to NRS
278.480(11) and through the use of the procedure contained in this section, the director of the
community development department, or his designee, is authorized to take final action on the
vacation or abandonment of a public utility easement owned or controlled by the county.

B. General procedure. The owner of property who seeks abandonment of a public utility
eusement involving his property must file an application with the community development
department on the forms provided by the department. The applicant must pay a fee as set by
resolution of the board. The applicant must provide written verification that all public utility or
video service providers have approved the application. The application must also include a
legal description and exhibit prepared and signed a surveyor licensed in the state of Nevada,
unless the county engineer waives the requirements of retaining a state licensed surveyor for the
preparation of the documenis. The director must provide all conditions of approval (o the
applicant in writing within 60 days of receiving an application.

C. Decision. The director of planning, or his/her designee. may issue a written order
abandoning a public utility easement afier:

1. Receiving a complete application.

2. Providing notice to each owner of property abutting the easement to be abandoned. The
notice must be provided by mail pursuant to a method thal provides confirmation of delivery and
does not require the signature of the recipient. Property owners are given 10 days to respond.

3. Obtaining wrilten approval from all public utility or video service provides indicating
that they no longer request the reservation of the easements.

4. Verification that the applicant has fulfilled all prescribed conditions.

5. A determination that the subject public utility easement is no longer necessary or useful

42



(o the county and that the public will not be materially injured by the proposed vacation

D. Other easements. The abandonment of a public utility easement pursuant to this section
does not affect an easement held by a private utility company even if such private utility
easement was created by the same instrument or it has same legal description, and also does not
affect an easement held by the public as distinguished from an easement held by the county or a
public utility owned or controlled by the county.

E. Appeal. A decision of the director made under this section may be applied in the manner
provide for in chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions.

Chapter 16.80
Boundary Line Adjustment and Lot Consolidations

Sections:

16.80.010 Applicability

16.80.020 Exclusions

16.80.030 Standards for approval
16.80.040 Approval by director

16.80.010 Applicability
This chapter applies to an adjustment of the boundary line between 2 abutting parcels or the
ranster of land between 2 owners of abulting parcels.

16.80.020 Exclusions

A. An adjustment of the boundary line between abutting parcels or the transfer of land
between 2 owners of abutting parcels may not be approved if it reduces the size of a non-
conforming parcel or results in the creation of a non-conforming parcel.

B. An adjustment of the boundary line between abutting parcels or the transfer of land
between 2 owners of abutting parcels may be disapproved if it does not contain adeguate access,
utility, water conveyance and drainage easements to serve the resulting parcels.

16.80.030 Standards for approval

A. The adjustment of the boundary line between abuiting parcels or the transfer of land
between 2 owners of abutting parcels may be approved without conditions or further
administrative proceedings when:

1. It does not result in the creation or reduction in size of non-conforming lots.

2. The map meets the formal requirements of NRS 278.5693.

3. The map is not in conflict with the provisions of this title and Title 17 of the county code,
and NRS 278.010 to 278.630, inclusive.

B. If the proposed configuration results in the creation of parcels subject 1o new residential,
commercial or industrial development, the director or his or her designee may require, prior to
approval and recordation of the map, that public facilities and improvements be constructed, in
the manner and at the same level as if parcel map approval had been sought.

16.80.040 Approval by director

43



The adjustment of the boundary line between abutting parcels or the transfer of land between 2
owners of abutting parcels may be approved. approved with conditions pursuant to this section,
or disapproved by the director. Appeal of the director’s decision is to the planning commission
and board.

16.80.050 Lot consolidation
The purpose of this section is to allow an owner of contiguous lots in the same zoning district to
consolidate the lots into a single parcel.

A. Applicability.

1. The lots involved must be within the same zoning district and master plan designation
and the proposed lot consolidation must meet all the requirements of the zone.

2. The lots involved musi be existing platted lots.

3. The lots must be under unified ownership.

B. Application Requirements.

1. An applicant must complete an application for a lot consolidation on a development
application form approved by the director of planning and pay any required fee.

2. The applicant must include a record of survey by a professional land surveyor that
shows the consolidation of the lots into a single parcel and meets the requirements of a boundary
line adjustment under NRS 278.5693.

C. Administrative Lot Consolidation Procedure.

1. The direcror of planning may determine that an administrative lot consolidation
procedure may be used instead of a record of survey if:

a. The lots were created by a map before the county adopted a subdivision approval
process:

b. The consolidation of the lots will result in elimination of potential water well; or

¢. The consolidation of the lots will reduce the density of the lots or bring the lots into
conformance with existing zoning.

2. The application for the administrative lot consolidation procedure must include:

a. A completed development application.
b. A completed lot consolidation agreement with Storey County to create an equitable
servitude.
¢. An 8-and-one-half-inch by eleven-inch plot plan drawn to show the lots with
identifving legal description and measurement of the property. The map must:
i. Include an arrow indicating north on the plot plan.
ii. Identify the lot, block, adjacent roadways, access roads, and easements.
iii. Show the 2 or more adjoining lots with middle lines designated for removal as a
dotted line.

3. The plot plan and the lot consolidation agreement must meet the general recording
requirements of NRS 247.1110).

D. Investigation. Following the submission of a complete application for a lot consolidation
or an administrative lot consolidation procedure. the director of planning will investigate the
application to determine that the proposal meets the requirements of this code. Afier the director
determines the application meets the requirements of this code, the application must be sent to
the recorder for review to determine that the documents for recording are in an acceptable form.
After the application has been investigated by the director, determined to be complete and in

44



acceplable form, the application is ready for decision.

E. Decision. The director of planning is the final decision maker on an application for lot
consolidation. The director musi review the application within a period of 30 days afier the
determination of the complete application and by written decision must approve or disapprove il.
The director must cite findings of fact in the decision.

F. Findings. The director’s decision must be based on findings that indicate that the proposed
lot consolidation:

1. Complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the county
master plan, this title. and any other plan, program. map. or ordinance adopted.

2. Will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent properties. the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public improvements, public sites. or
right-of-way. or other maltters affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare.

The findings listed in this subsection are the minimum to be czted in an approval; the director
may include additional findings in the decision.

G. Final Approval and Recording Procedures.

1. When director approves a lol consolidation, either a record of survey or a lot
consolidation agreement and plot plan must be recorded in the office of the county recorder. If
the recorder does not maintain a cumulative index for these lot consolidation documents, the
recorder must make written notations of the fact on each sheet of the previously recorded maps
affected by the latest recording. If such an index is maintained, the recorder must make an
appropriate entry for the amendment.

2. The recorder must within 7 working days afier he or she records the lot consolidation
documents, provide to the county assessor at no charge:

a. A duplicate copy of the map and any supporting documents, or
b. Access Lo the digital map and any digilal supporting documents.

3. A plot plan presented to the county recorder for the recording must include a certificate
by the director on the plot plan stating that the director approved the map.

4. Lot consolations become effective upon the record of survey or the lot consolidation
agreement ana’ plot plan being recorded by the county recorder. This lot consolidation process

ecord.
H._Any further subdzwston of a consolidated lot using this section musi be done by subdivision

map, parcel map, or division into large parcels and meet the requirements of this title and NRS
Chapter 278.

SECTION II: Title 16 is amended by deleting the following language:

—Chapter-16:04
GENERAL-PROVISIONS
16:04:010-Fitle:

45



1004020 Statutory authority—Purpeose:
1604030 References-to-master plan:
16.04.040 Complinneewith-applieabledaws required:

FOrek-42-5-1 4971

1604020 Statutory authority—Purpose.

A The design. improvement. maps and sales o subdivisions-are governed-by-the Planning
andZonig-Act{Chapter 278 Nevada-Revised-Statutes)-and-ChapterH 6 NevadaRevised
Statutesrelating-to-plats-and-subdivistons-and-the-provisions-of-this-title:
——B--Thepurpose-olthistitle-is-to-sateguard-the-public health—safety-and-general welare by
establishing-certain-additional standards-of designhmprovement. survey-and-development-of
subdivistons-hereafterplatted-and-presented-for-approval-and-H ing-in-the-county-in-orderto
proncide and thsure-the-orderhrand-proper-growili and-devel opment-thereot:

(Ord: 42-§ 2(a): 1971

16.04.030-References-to-master-plan.

Any references-to-a-master-plan-are-to-a-master-plan-that-may-be-hereafter-adopted-or
placed inte-effect by-the county:-and-are-not eHeetive-until-sueh-a-master-plan-has-been-adeopred
by the-county.

mw%ﬂmwmpﬁhwm laws—requwed—

Heis-untawfulHorany-tndividue ssoetation-syndicate-copartnership—rust-or-any
other legalemm—anap&—dgen&—m—n&ha%@—k%e%e%4l o comtract-to sell-or-fease-or
transler-any-subdivision-of land.-or-any part thereobi-inthe-county-unless-and-untit-all
requirements-provided in-this-title-have beencomplied-with:

—Chapter-16:08
DEFINFFIONS

16.08.010 Generally.
1608020 Kinalmap-
16.08.050-Print:
Ho48-080-Swreet:

46



H6-08.090-Subdivider.
16:08-100-Subdivision:
16:08.110-Fentativemap.

(Ord—42-§-4(party97H)

“Hinabmap means a-map-prepared in- accordanee-with-provisions of state statutes-and
(Ord—42-8-HHH97H

1608030 - hinprovement

"lmprovement refers-only-to such-work-and-materialsto-be-installed-by-subdividers-on
handste-beused-Hor-public-orprivate streetswiys and-casements-as-are Recessarytor-genert-tse
of-otowners-inthe subdiviston—and-trathic-and-drainage-needs:

Ord—42-§-4He)197h

16:08.040 Lot
“Lotmeans-any-distinet-parcel-or-portion-of reab-property-divided with intentto-transter

ownrership-ortor-puilding development:

(Ord- 42§ 4(h). 1971

"Print-means-a-blueprint-photostat-direct-process-print-or-other-copy-which-reproduees
exacthv orteinal drawines from-which made:

Ord42-$40)- 1971
melequwed—m;\—

HHRTRI m—mea—reqm}ed—bwnﬁa&bcm ASHORZ0R] uw—or—mhei—fegal Mﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁgﬁk«the-&ma—e{—&he
ereation-of the-lotorparcel-and-occupied-or-intended-o-be-oecupied-by-buildings:
Hrdd 28 ey

16.08.070-Shall and-may.
"Shalis-mandatory:-"may" is-perrissive:
(Ord—42-$-HH197h

"Street“means-land-devoted primarihy-to-vehieular- traffic-use—extending to-the

phaceJate driverete:

(Ord-42-$ 4H197H)

47



16.08.090 Subdivider.
"Subdivider"-means-a-personHrmscorporation -partnership-or-assoctation-who-causes
Land to-be-divided-into-asubdivision-for-himsefor-for-others.

(Ord-42-§ 4(b)- 1971

"Subdivisionmeans-any-land or portion-thereo f-shown-on-the ast-preceding-tierol-asa
unitoras-contiguous-units-which-are-divided-for-any purpese-of-sale-or-tease-whether- immediate
or-futureby-any-subdivider-into-S-or-more-parcels-within-any-one-calendar year—"Subdiviston”
does-not-inctude:

A Anyparcelofand-inwhich-al-of thefollowing-conditions-exist:
———————Contatnsless-than-S-aeres:
Abuts dedtentedsiehts-olway:
— 3 Nestectopenings arerequired to divideJots:
— 4. —botdesign meets the-approval-of-the-governing body.
e B Ay dtird-platted-Ho F e@mMe e EY-pHIPOSES RO VO VRS aiy-sHee oPeRINRS -oF

2 Mo

casements ol any-kind.
(Ore—42AA9T78:- Ord-A2-§Ha)H978)
16.08:H 0 - Fentutivemap:

“lentatbee tapmeans-rmap-madeder-the-prepos ster-of-a-propesed
subdivisionand existing condiions-in and-around-it apd- meeLHe{ be based opdn-acciate of
ée&&;led—hnal—wwey—e#—pw%y—

(Ord. 42 §He) 1971

—Chapter-16-42
16-12:010-Advisory-ageneies.
1612:020-Authority-to-grant-modifications:

Ho42:050 Violation-—Pennlty:

16.12.010 Advisory agencies.
—A——the-county-planning-commission-is-designated-the-advisory-ageney-charged-with-the
duty-of-making-investipations-and-reports on-the-desien-and-improvements-of-aH-proposed
stbdivisions
—B—Lheﬁmm%ﬂw%wms%h&%e&ﬁddﬂmm#&éwsweﬂmwm
identical- duties-within-the confines-of the-historicabdistri edhin NRS
384100 and +1-that historical-area-of the county e)\tendmg—#ﬂm}—l-he—(ﬂe%ei—%mée AWaslioe
Storey-hne Highway 17 tothe Lyon-Storey County-LineHighway 17 -encompassing-the

48



seneral areas-of-the Getver-Grade- Virgima Ciiv—and- Gold-Hilkand-extending S-miles-on-either

side-of- Highway- 17 the above areas:
(Ord.42-§3(part). 1971

Mmmlamedmwm
anc-prrpose-of thistides

—BAllLreports and-recommendations-of the planningcommission-and-historicalcommission
shall-be submitted to-the- county-commissioners.

— (—~~\M}efe4ﬂeehﬁwﬂoﬁﬂe &hw EH](—hH\. peﬂfﬁ%@d—ﬂ}e report-shall state-in-detall the nature-of

16.12.030-Plannine-commission-and-historien commission-reports-and-recommendations.

- A——Fhe-county-planning-commissionis-responsible-for-investigating-proposed-subdivisions
and-reportig-its-deetsion to-the county-commisstoners:
— B+ Fhe county historical commission s responsible for an additional reportin line with-its
duties-and-within-itsjurisdiction-as-enmnerated--thistitle:
(Ord- 4246197

1642040 State Health- Departmentreports.

The county commissioners shall-obtain-a-writtenreportrom the-State-Health-Department
Mwa%e—w&#wgmaemmwammmwwd%ew%
abide by-anyrecommendations-therein unless specifically waived-by-the-county commissioners.
(Ore-42-§24197H

16.12.050-Violation—Penalty:

Hos-unlawfal-for any-person-to sell-contract to selb-or transter-any-subdivision-or-any-part
MWMiH%HMMH%W%MWRHHMMM&MMG
required-map-thereolin-full- comphance-with-the-appropriate-statutory-provisions—has-been
recorded-n-the office-of the-countvrecorder-Any-violation-of this seetion-is-punishable-as-a
isdemeanor-and-further-may-resul-in-a-civib-penalty-of-notmore-than-3-hundred-doHarsfor
each-ot-or-parcelsold-or-transterred:
£ords 420 1UR6)

Chapter-16:16

TENTATIV-MAPS

16.46:020-General requirements.
16:16.030 Preparation.

49



16-46.010 Pre-filing consultation.
Before-a-subdivider files a tentatbe-phan—itissugpested that-he-contact the planning
emmnissiaﬂﬂld—&he—himn%a#emnmia:ion where apphicable. 1o acquainthimseHwith-the

ree whi ve imposed-andwhich-may-influenee-the-design-and-developmentof-the
i—)l—(—)p(}&td—%h‘bd*l-‘r}‘ﬂﬁﬂ"

(=288 (part)- 971

16:16.020-Genernlrequirements:

—A—Fhe—subchwdet—sha%!eam%eﬂanmm 3
and-submita-copy-ofrestrictons-plieit-to 4heprﬂpeseel—qabdw+s+mwrua%&y-eﬁgmeel—aﬂd
to-atr-other persor-of-agency-tvotved- i-the-proposal:
— B the-tentative-plan-is submitted-to-the-planning commission ten-days prior to a regular
meetine-the-commission-witbsubmitity recommendationsto-the-county-conmssioners-within
thirty-days-alter suchregubarneeting:
»wG.—'Fhe—pkﬂmiﬁg-emmﬂiss%en—\#l}-disappmve—a%m&iaseﬁ%mr il itdoes noteomphowith-the
— P Hasubdivideris-dissatistied-with-the report-of-the planning-commission-or-historieal
comin msnen—where«tppheable—hehwmu v days o appeal the action-ataregularmecting-ofthe

: i nm#eheum&y—eewewﬂ%e%eﬁmﬁmnee—\ﬂm
eﬁ&m‘v {wdiﬂﬁﬁeeﬁ—aﬁd—%d%e—%&u%e%—
—E-A-faverable recommendation-ofa-tentative-plan-by-the-planning-commission-shal-impese
no-oblieation-on-the-part-of the-count - commissioners-to-approve-the-plan-or-te aceept-any pubhe
dedicationshown-thereon.

(Ord, 428514970

16:16:030-Preparation.

—Ac — —Plans-shal-be-submitied-on-durable-paper-twenty-d-inches-by-thirty-2-inehes;-and

drawn-in-appropriate-seale-to-show-clearty-al-required-data—Any-number-ofsheets-may-be-used;

but-cach-sheet should-show-the-total-pumber-otsheets-and-the-number-of-each-sheet—H-a-traet-is-a

pottion-ola-larcer-area-which-may-be-subdivided-aterthe-tentative plan-should-ndicate-its

relation to-the-futwre development.

---—B-.—A—{entaﬂ'v&p&aﬂslr}au—ﬁhewme—tbl-lHwi-ﬁg-enneemaéiﬂh&#bH{awiﬂgJ}Mbmaaﬂ'ou-%

— b —Name-of the subdiviston

------ %——N&me-&nd—add%e#—lhe—stﬂadmdei—

o B Name-and address-of surveyor-or-engiieer-who-prepared-the - mrapand-sertal
numberissued-by-the-state:

e Patesnorthpeitand-seale:

e 4—ega4+lesenp{+eﬂﬂ4—s{+bd l’o-I-bKH»l subficient to desertbesubdivision boundaries-and

owner nnll ~STranaie-ocEhasea

e {}———h)edh(m—nameb—.md—m&hb—e%eheﬁnﬁgﬁeadways;

—* Location-and-outhine-to-scale-of-existing-buildings-or-structures not-to-be-moved-in
the-developient:
approval-ofthe State-Sanitary-Engineer:
9. Contours-at- 5-foot intervals when-the slope-is--excess-of ten-percent-and-2-foot

50



subdiviston desion:

10 Widths-of all readways.-propesed-names—and-approximate-radius-of roadway
CHEVeST

e Widths-and-Hocations-of -all-existing-or proposed-casements—(public-or private)-tor
roads—dratnage—sewers—irrigation-or-pubhe-utHity-purposes:

————— 12— The sethack-distance,-or- that- distance-between-the-right-o-way-tor-the-street-and
the-nearest part of the-proposed-structure-to-thatright-ofway:

13— Size-and-location-of dedicationsHor-parks—reereational-areas—sehools-or-other
public purposes. I the proposal-is over forty-acres—there-shat-be-included-a
statement-showing-comphiance-with NRS-H-6.020vegarding-oHers-ol dedication
fora-possible-schoolsiterwith-final-deeision-for-the-school-board:

e Number-of Hotssize-and-proposed-use-ofHots-and-any-zoning features—Lot
numbers-consecutive-within-each block—Blocksnumbered-or-lettered

S 15— Streets: zoninguse-and-ownership of adjoinine subdivisionsinrelationto
a{haeem—sﬂes m—p: oposed subdivision;

ig-runeti-or

ot hd'b“d"&“(‘ﬁ'l'd‘lﬁbd-
—EH the-tentative-plan-is-propesed-to-be-part-ofan-eventual-arger- designmovement—a
tentative-design-arrangement-of the-entive-parcel-indicating-the-relation-of-that part-thereof-shall
be-sbarted:
Rl
— e State Diviston-of Water-Resourees:
22— Division-ol-Envirormental-ProtectionState-Department of Conservation-and
Natura-Resourees:
— 3 Health-Division-State Department-of-Human-Resourees:
—— 4 Boeard-of-trustees- Storey-County-Sehool-District
(Ord-42B1986: Ord- 42§ 8a-e)1971)

16:16:040-Feess
Belore otficial-consideration of-a-tentative plan-the-subdividerwitl-pay-a-minimum-filing
fee-of-twenty-S-dollars 1 the-subdivision-consists of more-than-tenty-SHots; an-additionalHty

—Chapter-16:20
SURVEY-REQUIREMENTS
Seections:
16.20.0H)- Survey-required.
16:20.020 Forwarding-of survey-and-map-to-planning-conumission.

51



16.20.030-Monument requirements.

16:20:010-Survey-requireds

Before-a-inal-map-ofa-subdivisioncan-be-prepared-or-submitted—an-accurate-and
£—GH+H—H—€ beuﬁdar»+u+&~eyﬂt—ﬂa& l@&» bl@t—k"r maéaﬁ—a«ements—and—beuﬂd&ﬁewsl the

16:20.020 Forwarding-of survey and-map-to-planning commission:

Evervdicensed surveyor-who-surveys-a-parcel of-dand-in-the-county-into3-or-mere
separate-pareels-and-prepares-a-map-of such-surveys-shall-send-adegible copy-of sueh-mrap-to-the
planning-commission-within-thirty-days-after completion-of-completion-of-such-map:
(Ord42-§-9e)H97Hh

16:20:030-Monumentrequirenients.
marked-or-tageed with-theregistration-and-icense-number-of the-surveyor-underwhose
supervision the survey was made,-and a-description-of each-monumentto-be-setsubsequent-to
shatl-be-1410:000—Femperature-and-tenston-correction shall-be-applied-to-all-racasured-distanees
inconformance-with-the-standard-ado pted-by-the-Federal Board-oF-Surveys-and-Maps-i-Map
125
——13. The licensed surveyor-in-charge of-the-survey shall-cause-permanent-monuments-to-be-set
astoHows:
1o Acclass "A" monument shall be set:
4. On-each boundary-corper-of-the-subdivision:
b Along-boundary-lines-of-the subdivision-atintervals-ofnotmore-than-ene-
(rarter-arde:
e e e — - A SHEEEHRERF SECORs - OF- Dy reterence-thereto:
d- At “*e—begnmg—ané—enémg—e@eﬁt—hﬁmm%peaal—eeﬂehhem
require-an-alternate setting:
e ———Onall-block-eorners-in-the subdivision.
—_— # —A—e%a%lBﬁﬂﬂeﬁumeﬁHha#b&s%en—eaeMe%eemeH}Hhe—subdww

&&Hmde—drametewklﬁwheﬁn—mme—ei—aﬁ—meh—lw—me%eﬂﬁeh
coneretemonument-or-a-mateable-metal-capped-steel shatt-or-its
equivalent-fifty-inehes-long-driven-at-Jeast-twenty-4-inches-hr-the-ground:

b A-class "B -menument shall-consist ofan-iron-pipe-having an-inside
diameterof 3-quarters-of an-inch-ormore-or-5-8hs-inehrebar-at-Heast-Seen
inchestong-drivenat teast-twehve dnches-in-the groumd:-extending
registration-and-lieense-number-of the-surveyor:

— e Where-a-mopumentis-setin-a-paved-street—itshall-be-setwith-top-at-east
6-inches-below-finish-grade and-be-covered-with-a-cast-iron-coverset-ush

52



with-the finished street erade.
et By order-entered-in-the minutes;-the county-comnitssioners-may—authorize
placementototherspecitied-kinds of-monuments-of-a speeitied subdivision:
Ord. 42 § 9tb-d). 197H)

~Chapter 16.24
FINAL-MAPS

16:24:010-Filing and-cheeking procedures—Fees.
16:24:030-Subdivisions-within-separately taxed-distriets:
16.24.040- Certifieates and-acknowledgments.
16:24050-Recommendationsfrom state ngeneies:

16.24.060-Distributionfor-cheeking—Finalapproval:
1624070 Reversion-to-nerenge.

16:24:072 Domestic-use-and-purpose-defined:
1624074 Pareel-maps:

16240 ¥8A'laeg-:\ L

162400 Kikine-and-cheeking-procedures—Iiees,

— A Notlessthanten-dayspriorto-the-fihng-of any final-map with-the county
commissioners; the-subdividershall-submit the original-prepesed-finalmap-and-2-prints-of-the
same to an independent-engineer-designated-by-the-county-commissioners. who-shal-cheek-said
miap-as-to-geedracy-of-dimensions—placing-of meonuments-establishments- o survey-records-and
the-conformance-of-the-map-with-the- tentative -map-as-approved-

—— B In-addition-to-otherfees-and-charges-asrequired-by-tawthe subdivider-shal-pay-a-cheel
tee which shall be tweniy-3 dollas-{or-each-map—phus 2-dolarsforcachidotshovi-thereon-Such
feeshall-be-due-and-payable-at-the-time-sueh-niap-is-presented-to- the county-commissionerstor
approval—the county-recorder shal-celect-a-S-doHarfee-forrecording-a-tinal-plan-—bata
concerntng-closure-caleulations—construetion-plans—estimates of quantities-and-the ke shall-also
be required-by the-envineer-when-the-sHuation- warrants:

tOrd—42-8-Ho(ay 97

16.24.020 Preparation—Data to be shown.

—A—The-entire-finab-map-shatb-be-cleash andHegibh-dravwn-or-stamped-in-black-waterproot
India-ink-upon-good-tracingtine-Each-sheet-shat-be-twenty-4-inches-by-thirty2-inches-in-size—A
marsinal-Hine-shatl-be drowhcompletelv-around-cach-sheet-Heaving-an-entirely-blank margin-of
(-me—lﬂe—h—&l—{-he—bel{ﬂﬁ},—“ﬂa—aﬂtWH%H%&HHM#P@(&;@—H{HMW—FH}L%
dimension—TFhe-exterior-boundary-of thedand-included-within-the subdivision-shal-be-indicated
by-a-colored border:

~ Bo Every final map-shall show all data required-for-the tentative map exeept contour-lines;

53



and-the-proposed-use-of lots-and shall-contain-in-addition-the following-data:

——— | TFhe-map-shall show-all- details-clearhywith-the necessary-information for-the
inteligentinterpretation-ol-the Hems andHocation-ol pomts—tines-and-areas
shown: Albstreets—drivess walks -aHeys parks—easements.-etes —mast—be
designated-as-such-and-be-definttehy-established-with-bearings—
mbdmmlamh&%ewb&mww%e&%h&ﬂ—&#ﬁn%h%&w
central-angle-length-ofcurve-and-tangent-length forateurved ines Al
distances shall-be-to the-nearest- one-hundredth-ofa-footand-beshown-infeetand
decimals-thereof-Allanglesshall be-shown-to-the nearest second-by-degrees:
minutes. and seconds. Hie scale shall beshown—Hesshalbbeamade-to- LS E-und
GS-peints-or-Nevada-State-Coordinate-Systent-points-established-by-the-State
Hizghway-Departnent-or-otherengineers—wheneverthese-controls-are-avatkable:
Fhe-map-seate shalh not be smatler- thdn—eﬂehbmd{ed—}eet—w{he mel

——2——Jhedecattonand-deseription-of-menumentsorother :
vreund-and-used m{lwmmw»me%mdﬂﬁe%ubd%wﬂs%eeﬁenm
boundary of the-tand-tnetuded within-the-subdivision-shall-be-tndieated-by the
colored border and all land within said boundaries and not a part of the
subdivisionshal-be-marked-"Nota-Part"H-other subdivisions-adjoin-the-map
shatl show-sufficient corners-of-such; adequately identiied tetoeate precisely-the
limits-ol-the-proposed-subdiviston:

— 30— bacheity boundarv-and-government-and-survey-Hne-crossing-oradjoiing-the
subdivision, with-adequate tics to monuwments-set-or-found with the same: No lot

shal-t—he—em—bg,—-a—eewoee%boandaﬁ—hae—

A_oortifisnio. Axf_i_u_l.a_x_u_nl_\_l IJ_\_LA.‘_LJ.LLQ_LIALLJJ_Q_IA.I_Q_LK_L_IJA{_“L!QJ_}_L

U CUOT \lll\_llt\( U otnurw v }l \/) LI LIuIw T Hiour Uiy g ll\.l\z\./ IILAIIV
authorized-by-the laws-of Nevada. that-the-map-has beare*eammed—aﬂd—@l&a{-the
ﬂmde—eﬂeﬁnwmeﬁtheewnem%d% 50 delineated-with-exceptionot
' ahuttinedandso-dehneated-on-thewap:
—e—ieeeSemm——the mle—e{ {he—tm&l—nmp shath be-l-hejmmw@tathesubchwsmﬁ map as-it ﬂppem s

L

I3

b H-any-portion-of thedand-within-the-boundaries of the-finalmap-is-subjectto
nundationstorm-How conditions—geologic-hazard-or-other-hazard—the-tand-se
attected shall-be-clearly marked-by-a-prominent-note on-cach-sheet:

(Ord 42988106y L 19

16.24.030-Subdivisions within separately taxed distriets.

Wherever the—subdiviston-ts contatred-within-the-boundaries of more-than-one district-for
which-separate-taxes-are-levieds-the-boundaries-ofsuch-districts shall-be-located-and-shown
aectrately-on-the-final anap-togetherwith-dirpensionsshowine-the-sexerance of lot-ines

16:24.040-Certifientes-and-acknowledgments.

54



The-toHowing-certthcates-and-acknowledgments-shall-appear-on-the-hinabmap-and-may
be-combined-when-appropriate:
———A——A-certificate signed-and-acknowledeed-by-al-parties-having-any-record-title
terest-in-the-land-subdivided-consentingto-the-preparation-and-recordation-of

the- mﬂp

Me&e&&en—im—eeﬂmweaﬁeehmbhe—uses—those ce&am—pafeel-s—ﬁl—}dﬁd-whieh
the-partiesdesire-to-sodedieate:

e A-certificate by-a-surveyor—duly-Heensed-as-such-in-the state--who-is-responsible
for me-stmfe\&—and-tmahmp—wwng—theém Hae—sm-\-ey—ané—ﬂawrg&hal—ﬂw

S VeY AWds iidde he-—strvey-ts-tie-id
complete as-shown-and-bearing hiﬂegwmaen sumber-and-seak:

—l)—A—ew&He&e—by&eﬂgmeeﬁppmmed—by—!heWﬁMyﬂ%haWﬁgﬂme}a&mﬁﬁ

the-subdivider or-otherparties-in-interest: stating that-he-has-examined-the-final

map-aind-that-he-issatistied-that-the map-istechnicaly-correet;
ko A-certificate for-exeeution-by-the-county-elerk-stating-that-the-county-has

approved-the-map-and-accepted-or-deterred-on-behal-of the public-any-pareels-of
land-offered-for dedication-tor-public use-in-conformity-with-the-terms-of-the-otfer
ol-dedication:
R Accertificate-of the-planning commnission-that the map-eonforms-to-the-approved

tentative-map-and-that all-conditions-imposed-upon-such-approval-have-been
Feefu—l-reel—
apptirtenances asneecessaryfor ﬁ%p%@%h&&ubgee{»am

(Ord. 42 §12-197H

1624050 Recommendationsfrom-state ngencies:

PHINNINE-COMNHSSION-OF- COURR-COMITHSS Kmmwreque%aﬂ%opuaw—reemmendaammm
the-following stute-agencies:

————2—State-Pivision-eftorestry:

e 3 State-Planting -Boasc:

4 State DepartinentoFCommeree:

S5 State-Pivision-ol-Environmental-Protection:

o Larson-River-Counctl o Goverinmentss
——7——9&he¥—appheable—w»emmem agencies,
—B-Such-recommendations-shall-be-comphied-with-unless-waived-by-the-county
COMMPSSHOREEs:

Upon-completion-and-checking-by-the-engineer;-the-original-and 2-copiesshall-be

55



presented-to-th
the-original-and-r anSIMIt one- pnm temeagmeei—aﬁdww 1o-the-planning commission-tor-tinal
cheek—n-the-eventthateither-finds-that-the final-map-does not comply-with-the-faw-as-te-all
malters-under-theirjurisdiction—each-shal-make-areport (0 thateffectin-writing to-the
commissioners: H-no-such-report-is-so-transmitted-within-S-days-from-receiptof-the tinal print;
the cotnty-commissioners-may-approve- the-map-bytixing-an-affidavitand-directing-that-it-be
recorded—he-commissioners-shal-refusetinab-map-approvabwhen-a-reportof error-is-made-and
shatl-continue to-refuse-to-approve untint-dehietenetes-are-resolveed:

(el 42§10 19714
The purpose-of this-seetion-is-to-allow an owner of contiguous-lots-in-the same zoning district-to

< "'e‘l'.‘

—"""'./&T’ o "i‘\' *?I}]ieab i'{ it’)‘?
b he lotinvolved-mustbe-within the-same zoningdistrict-and-the-proposedot
eeﬂwhéa&%@n—mwmﬂaw%e—re(wm nents-olthesone.
<Ae-—Fhe-lots-velved-must-be-existing-platted-ots:
—Q—Lhums—must—be—aﬂde—umheé—ewaewhm-

H%—Apphea&e&%qwremeﬁkr

l~-— An—qpphmm TSt (70*“131’&{9‘&“ ﬁﬁphea{wn for a- lot u:msehéamm -on-a-development

L\'

E—l—he—&gapheam—mm&—mblmic—a-reﬂwm suwey—bv—a—ﬁrefesﬂemal—taﬁ&ﬁu#ey%ﬂm

%WHH&G@M&*&H@H-G-P%L@%&H(O -astagle-pareel-and-mects-the requirements-o ba-boundary
Hne-adjustmentunder NRS2785693-

— C— Administrative Lot Consolidation Procedure:

~e—omed—"fhe plaamnw«hfee—tm (dweum} Y de&emnﬁethahm administrative Jot-consolidation
proeceduret :
-——H%WMW%%W&&WMWW

proeess:

confor e -MHH—Mstmz, %ﬂmg—

—a—A—c—emﬁ%e&e(LdMepmem—dpphw&%

ey Accompleted-Jot-consolidation-agrecimentwith-Storey-County-to-ereate-arreguitable
tdentifyng-lepal-deseription-and-measurement-of-the-property—the-map-must:

— ———t—Inelude-an-arrow-indicating north-on-the plot-plan.

dotted-Hne:

———3—TFhe-plotplan-and-thedot-consolidationagreementmust-meet-the-general-recording
requircments o NRS- 247140
— D Investigation—Folewing the submission-of a-complete-apphecationforalotconsolidation

56



appheation to-determine that the proposal meets the-requitements-of-this-code~Atter-the director
determines-the-application-meets the requirements ol this-code- the-application-must-be-sent-to

therecordertorreview-to-determinethat-the-documents forrecording are in-an aceeptable-form:
Adter the-application-hus- beepr mveﬂw d%eé bv the-{hreemr—-detennmed to-be-conmplete and-in

de%e*mmﬁ&eaﬂ—ﬂwwmp#e&&awlw&mwaﬂ%mmW deamenﬁm(—appmv&er{hsaﬁpmve—rt—
Fhe director-musteite {indings-of-factin-the-decision.

—b—hinbpes e dhector’s deciston must-be-based-on find hes that-ndieate that the
pmpmed—le{—eeﬂsehdahew

—l—eempl—l

c%ﬁ%rwh%%%ﬁ%%éhmﬂmw&%&mmﬁm&w
Frehit-o fvays or other matters d”CLﬂHE the- publ*e—--health safety. and general welfare.

Hhe fadires bstede-this t-to-becited-pean-approvas the divector
may—maﬂde—aédﬂmﬂal%néﬂw—(hedeaﬂew

—G——-Fnal-Approval-and-Reeording Procedures:

b When-diveetor-approves-atot-consehdationetthera-record-of survey-or-alot
eemehelaﬂen agreement-and-plobplan must-bevecorded in-the-oftice ol the countyrecorder—H
the-recorder-does-not-maintatn-aeumtlative index-tor-these-tot consolidation-documents ~the
recordermusimake writtennotations of the luct on each sheet ol the previoushyvrecorded-maps
alfected by the latest recording. I such an index is maintained. the recorder must make-an
appropriate-chiry-fosthe amendment
———2—VFhe-recorder mustwithin7-working-davs-after-he-or-she-reeords-the-dot-consolidation
Mameimﬂmrd&mh%emmmn—&ﬁa charge:

—— —A-duplicate-copy-ofthe-map-and-any-supporting-doewments:- of
—b—AeeesHHhe&h@H#nﬁwﬂd—dm—&gMpeﬂmgdeamem
3 A platplan-presented-to-the county vecorder-tor the recording must include a
eertiticate by the director on-the plot-plan-stating-that the-director appreved the map-
——4—hoteconsolations become-effeetive-upon-the record-of survey-or-thedoteonsehidation

@Wwwwwmrdwwmwidwwwtw»mw
as ~dedication-ofrecord:

—H—Aﬂv—mﬂheH&bmwm%%mhdamHaw%eehmwb&deﬁehy
subdivisi sor-diviston into larpe parcels and-meetthe requirements of this title
and-NRS-Chapter- 278 (Ore- No-13-254-§ 2 4 2014)

1624070 Reversionto-nereage:

Fhe-parpose-of-this-section is-to-abow-the-reversion-of-any-subdivtsion map;-parce-map—ap
ol diviston-tno-farge-parcels-to-dereage.
—AAnewnerorgoverning body-desiringlorevertany ' '
map-of-division tnto-darge parcels-orany part-of-sueh- &mﬂﬁ—ﬁ%&ﬁ@rﬁh&ﬂ—%& mzqa—H—t-l-}e—pafeeh
are-contigtious must subnita-written-apphcationaccompanied-by-a-map-o! e proposed

57



same-stvey-dimensions-as-the recordedmap-and-be-in-a-form-aceeptable-to-the county-recorder
and-assessor

—BFhe-governing body - must review the-map-within 30 days-ol the-filing of-the map-or-at-its
next-meeting:-whicheveroceurs later:-and-approve - condiionalby-approves-or-disapprove it
—C No-other-provision-of NRE278:010-10-278:630-apply-to-a-map-of reversion—except-tor-the
provisions-of NRS-ontesubdivision-andreversion-and-the-provisions-of this-chapter and
mechiding the paymento Heestaconjunction-with fihingrecording-or cheeking of- the-map—

—— D On-approval-ofthe-map-oFreversionttmust be-recordedhe-county-recorder-mustalse
make-a-wittten-notation-of-the-fact-on-cach sheet-olthe previously recordedbmap-i the recorder
does-not-matatain-a-cumulative-index-tor these-maps-H-an-index-isanaintained-therecorder must
make-an-entry for-the-amendment.
—t—he-county-recorder—within7-werking-days-ofrecording-a-map-ef reversion—must provide
the assessor at-no-charge:

2 Aceessto-a-dietalmap-and-supporting digitabsupporting documents:
{Ord-No—13-254.-§-1- 242044 Ord-42-§ - 10(e)- 197 1:-Ord- 42 £ 10(e).- 1971

}672+07-2—l)0mestie—umnd—pu rpose defined-
‘-'BOme‘;{%e-us cmé —elomesﬂc pulpeses—e\’ceﬁdaﬂe hmheheld pufpeﬁes emectky -related

memému—w%heﬂHmaﬂamthe—wawmweH—mHﬂv—&udelmwdwﬂ—wukmaeﬂﬂg&t
Hvestock-and-any-other-domestic animal-or-household pet-i-the-ameunt-of water-drawn-does-not

1624074 Pareel- maps.

A-person who-proposesto-divideanyland-for-transter-or-developmentinto-4-or-lesstots:
whichis-not-within-the-existing-boundaries-ofa-munictpalor private-water systenr-and-is-to-be
served-by-a-domestic-wel-shathdedicate-orrelinguish-water-eights-as-foHows:
———k——Fhe pareelownershall-prepare-a-parcel map-and fle-the-pareelmapwith-Storey

Cotyi-aid

e 22— the-parcelmap-must be accompanied-by-a-written statement-signed-by-the
MWMWHMLHMMMH&{%WMWMW

ﬁmeel(&HmmwhuHhe—“mepbawWh—me—pmedﬂH%ﬁed—and
-+ Lor-the-purposes-of-this section, necessary-water rights required by Paragraph

HAHthis seetion}-shal-be-a-mintmum-of 2-acre-feet-per-yearvalid-underground
waterrightsforenchnewparcelereated:and
———3——the-parcelowner-shall-prepare-and-HHe-aPoint-of Diversion-Map-with-the
Bivisionof-Water Resources-of the-State-Department-of Conservation-and Natural
Resources-and-obtain-a certificatefrom-the Division indicating that the parcelmap
isapproved-as-to-the-quantib-ofwater avatkabletortse HINRS 27846182941

58



e dadisni Earic] g -
Hﬂ!—&&m%—byan—aﬁphe&b%e&l—méﬂmﬂee—aﬂé

—— 6. No-Point-of-Diversion Map shall be-recorded-by-Storey-County-untit-all-ofthe
aboverequivements-have-been-satishied=and

——7-—— Relinquishment of water rights as-required-by Paragraph-HA)-Hthisseetion]—all
requirements-of-this-ordinanee—and-alrelated-feesimpeosed-on-the-pareelowner
shaH-be-futiHed-a-the-parcelowner's-expense:

(Od-No- H-236- 1 8-2-204-1)

A-varaneemay-be obtained-t parceling isHor-lood-control-or-to-enhance-widhite A
vaﬁanee—m&m%eﬂbmined—hﬁuses-w'h ich-promote residential uses and/or uses which require
iehtdadiceation:
{Orel: Ne—l+-236 1 8-2-2011)

1624078 Legal

— - Hany seetion-of this-ordinance-or-portion-thereos-forany reason-held-mvalid-or
wnconstitutional- by-amy-courtobcompetentjurisdictionsuch-holding shatb-notimeahidate-the
rematning-parts-of-this-ordinance:

(Ord-No-14-236.-§- 1822041

Fhe-tinal-map-otasubdbaston-must-be recorded-withii-one-year-atier-the approval-or
conditional-approval-ofthetentative-map ol said-subdivision batlure-to so record terminates-4H
O 423 Fey 197 H)

—Chapter-16:28
DESIGN-SFTANDARBS
Sections:
~L6.—28—.0-L0«S+Feets-«aml-h-ighways;
46—284)30—!4%%&%

16:28.040-Revervestrips-to-control-necess-proliibiteds

16.28.050 Kire protection necess-easements.

16:28:070 Flood damage prevention:

1628 4109-Cut-and-fil slopes—Iicompaetion.

16284 20-Water supph-and sewage disposal-- Minimum-lot size.

59



1628 010 Streets-and-highways.

A saeh-streetand-highway shall- conform i width-and alignment to the specifications of

any-master-plan-thatmay be-in-existence-at-the-time-the subdivisionis-presemted-fortentative-and

Hinal-approvak

—— B Whenever any st feeHthighWﬁH%ﬁGﬁe%eqﬂmﬂWﬁﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁﬂéeﬁ-@Hﬂﬁpe&&

form-olintersection-design-the subdiviston shatl

HHWWM%%MW%WF@*MWM

ehsewhere—Amy-sireet-or-highway-Hitersecting-arm-other-streetor-hehway shathnterseet-atan

angle-as-nearly-a-rightanele-asshalk-be practicable

—CCenterline-eurves-ofaslow-as7v-5-feet-may-be-aHowed-in-local-residential-streets—Major

streets-shatbbe subject-to speeie-tndividuabdesion-eenterhnes.

D, Each street and highway. except-under steep slope conditions. shall conform to the

following mininmns:

————————Secondary-readsas-designated-by-the-county-commissioners-or-by-a-master-plan
thakmawb&ad@p&ﬁwm&eﬁhmbmm«m%ﬂ%w&md—hm#—m&pﬂad
approval-ther
imp} m«ed 'SL,LUOH-(-‘A not- 1(}‘15 t—hdﬂ-élj -5 foet:
sing le—family dwelling purposes shall have o dedieated rightol-way-ofnotdess
(han—Sy—k)&r Jce—be-used {()F{:d m#e—tam il*—dwel-hng—pwﬁeses-onh—-&hal Jheve-i
deehea(edﬂghmﬁ\wyetﬂeuesﬁhawhﬂy—fea—w&haﬁamﬁ%ed—wemmﬁnm
less-than-thirty-6-feet:

Y | —— Y (8 B PN

T T OITOTTSav o v G VGO WA RaTeHREe 8 TULTCY T oTAOUTTT AT G e y o =

Hﬁ&%(%%@%ﬁ%ﬂ(%ﬂ%ﬁmem%fmiﬁ—é
teet—providingnot-more-than-tivelhve-single-untts-are served-thereby-and-otal

wﬂwmne leﬂgth is-pot-mere-than-6-hundred- teet:

5 %y—be—akeied-aﬁmemw—m)enﬁaw%w—e{—the

Hﬂpmeheable—mme—}ﬂd*&meﬁ{—(ﬁ%eweﬂﬂﬂ g~bed—y ~%e)—meﬁele+:&eeh+>ﬂhe
meastrements-established-in-this-section:
—E-Ateach street-itersection-the-property-Hine-ateach-block-cornershall-be-rounded-by-a
curve-having a radius-ofFnotess than filicen-feetfor right-angle corners—Where-streets-nterseet
at-angles ol ess than-avightangle at-major-interseetions-orwhere other peeuhiar conditions-of
interseetion oceur. Lhe pliniiig-cConmission or-county cormissionersmav-reguire a different
rad s
— A the name-ofany streetor highway is duplicated elsewhere-or by reason of spelting or
pronunciation-ishkely-to-cause-contusion-or uneertainty—another name-shall-be-substituted—Hae
emmﬁ&cmeﬁ &l—ewﬁ—em%lﬁgﬁ—twed-%&eet or-highway-shatbear-the-pome-of-the-Streetor

16.28.020-Aleys.

60



Anralley-oFnotess-thap-bwenty-feet--width-ray-be required-through-the-approximately

transverse ecnter of-amy block longerthan-one-thousand 2-hundred-feet:

(Ord42-$-B3(dH97H

16:28:030-Pedestrian ways.

A-pedestrian-way-often-feet-minimum-width-may-be-required-threugh-the approxtmately
transverse-center-ofFany-bloek-tonger-than-one-thousand 2-hundred-feet:

(Ord-42-§ 13 -197H)

16:28.040-Reserve stripsto-control neecess-prohibited.
Reserve-strips-of-fand-controting aceessto-oregress-from-otherproperty-or to-or-{from

any-street-or alley shall not be permitted.

16:28:050-Fire protection necess easements:

In-areas-of-possible-fire-hazards—unobstructed-ire-protectionequipmentaccess
casements: notHess than-fifteenfeet wide, shalk be-dedicated from the public street to- the
subdivision-boundary—Such-easements-shall belocateddesiened-and-graded-as-determined-by
the planning commission and the county commissionersin-cooperation-with-foresteyHand
manacentent-and-other-Hire- protection agencies.

(Ord42-$ 13()- 1971

16:28:060-Sidewalks.
Stdewalk-tmprovements-when requiredshallb-be-conerete oFnotless than 4eet i width
%%WHM%MWWMWMW

commission-ir-all-othercases

(Ord—42-§3-3(p)+97H

16.28.070-Flood-damage prevention:
H-anv-portion-ot-thedand-within-the-boundaries-asshown-on-a-tentative map-of-a
stthdivision-orrecord-olfsurvey-is subjec o Hood hazardinundation. geological husard,
execessive-depth-obslope of ruts-or BHs-eroundwaler or Seepage -conditions—shdes orsimilar
hazards-to-publiesatety-and-the probable-use-ol the-property-will-requive structures-thereon—the
planning-commission-and-county-commissioners-may-disapprove-said-map-or-record-of-survey-of
that-pordon so-abfected and-require-protective-Hmprovements-to-be-constrieted-as-a-condition
precedent-to-the-approvalolthe remaimderofthenap:
(Ord-4Z- 336197

16:28.080 Drainage-ways:

Alnaturab-drainape-ways—where showiron-the-tentative-or-final- map-or-i-any- master
plar-existing-at-the time the satd maps are presented-for appreval and-recordation-shatk-be
presepved-with-appropriate-width-dratnage-easements-and/or-pedestrian-waltkways:

(Ord—423-3(r)197H)

61



conditions specialbywarrant otherwise. in the judement of the planning board or county
commissioners

1628 100-Cut-and-fill- slopes—Eil compaetion:
—A.—Ne—e*%s&hmﬂape—e%mp@se&«et%s%peﬁmﬂ—be—s{eeﬁe%ﬂaaﬂ—l——k#}hmiymﬂai—m—k
»eme&kmle%emmeadeéby&eeﬂmemﬁm%wgmee—aeewm&wm&e%nﬁ-

commissioners-and-plannig commission.
— B Where a cut or fill slope-is outside the normal right-ot-way-of the street-a-slope easement

shall-be provided of sulficient width-to-permit pmpel—m&m{emm&ef—thesk)pes-bﬂh&eom}t\L

—ERetatning-wals-may-berequired-whenever+ i

neeessary-toretotnfil-orentslopes-with-therig
B—MMH%MM&MM@%MM%W&&MHM%MWMHa

per-AASHO-Meodified Spec. 114957,

(Ord- 42843 (ke neo. )97

16281 H0-Lot width:

Eachdotshal-have-an-average-width-ofnot-tess than-6ty-5leet-except-thatin-steep-stope
areas—a-otmay-have-astrip-of-tand-not-less-than-twenty-feet-in-width-connecting-the-building
stte-with- the-street—-he-area ofsatd strip shall-be-exeluded-in-computing the-lotarea-and-the
length-of-saidstripshal-not exeeed 3 hundred feet:

(942813197 H

1028420-Water-supply-and sewage-disposal-Minimum-lot size:
Notwithstanding-the-other-terms-of-this-chapter-alsubdivisiondots-shal Fconform-to-the
foHowing-minimunrsize-requiremets:
——A—Whenthe-propesed-watersupply-is-a-welHocated-on-the-lotand-the proposed
sewase disposabsystem s aseptic-tank-located-on-the-lot- the lotshat-have a
minimam obone acre:

Mh%m%mwwmmmw
dis septie-tantk-on-thedotthe lot-shal-have-a-minimum-area-of

{Ord-42-8-14-197 1

IMEROVEMENTS-ANB-DEDICATIONS

Seetions:
1632010 General requirements.
16.32.030- Security-nsreement.
16:32.040 Streels.

62



16:32.060-Water supply-and distributionsystem:
16:32:070 Sewage collection.

16.32.090 Dedieation requirements generally.
1632 100-Passnge-of title to-dedieated-property.

A Asa-condition-precedentto-the acceptance-olany-easements-otfered-for dedicationto
the publicand priorto the-approval-ofthe finabmap of the subdivision thesubdivider-shall
agree- to-improve-athis owh expenseswithin-a-stated-time-ali-Hand so-dedicated=with such
mprovements-assetforth-in-this ehaptel-—and—the—fmal-mapof—anrs aeh—‘;ubckv m}enwyhall not-be
approved-unti-eithersuchroads-have-b ~the
subdivider-has execuied-an agreement-to ser- mpre«*e-«ﬂeh-mads-seeufed—b»—a-bené—eash-éqm%
or-othermeans Frupkline sewers—tmprovements not solehv—for the benelit efthe subject
subdiviston. shatlnot-be requiredexeept-that-the-subdividershall-be-held-to-his-propertion-ot
these-improvements-The amount-of suel participation shall-be- determined-by-the-county
commissioners—upon-the-recommendation of the-planning conmission

—B-When-the tentative-map-indieates-that the propoesed-water supphytor-any-lotin-the
subdiviston-hay-comefron-a-source-other-thandocatedupon-such-dot-the subdividershat-nstal
or-cause-to-be-installed-the-water supphy-and-distribution-system-needed-to-supply-domestic-water
to-allofsuch lotschraccordaneewith standardssettorth-in-this-code-and-ineluding-a-fire-system
Hreguired -by-the county fire-eliel-+he-finab map shalb-not be-approved until-an-encineer
WW%}MLH&MMM&Q%&M&%MMW%M!BH&%
contorms to the standards set-forth-and to sound-engineering practices: :
ecither beer-instatled-and-approved-or-the- subéw&éa-hase%ee&teéaa—a&reemw%amﬁﬂmleh
systenr-seetred-by-a-bond-or-cash-depositnoruntit-the-subdivider-has-executed-an-agreement-to

instat-such-system-seeured-by-a-bond-orcash-depostt-not-untit the subdivider subnits-writien
evidence-that some-utibity-or-public agency-is-willing to-matptain-and-operate-the sewage
collection-and-disposal-system-on completion.

(Ord: 428151971

16.32.020 Plan-submittal.

aectrate-protite-ofthe eenterhine-showine-roud-gradieptsand-verticat-eurve-data- usting true
elevations-above sealeveltorallstrecis-and roads ir-said subdivisionto-be-oftered for dedication
k)—ﬁ&bh(.—&h&—%@—p’:dﬁﬁ—%%—béﬁi e signature ofa Nevada-recistered-engineer:
(Ore-42-§-+7-1971)

agreemeﬂ{ o eemf)let&ﬁuehﬂmpfewemeﬁ%ﬁh&l—wie—im—theﬂwcp&mcﬁm1 thewefkﬂs H
progresses—and-the-withdrawal-of that-portion-of-any-seeurity-posted-as-required-equal to- Oty

63



of %heengmee«t——+heﬂgfeemem shatl-also-provide-that-the-subdivi K}ek shath fepan—dpm%em%
and-expenseanv-hidden defeetsinwerkmanship-ormaterinlswhich-appenrin thevworkowithin
one-year-foHowing-aceeptance-by-the-county—and-forthe retention-of ten percent of the-eriginal
cuneum—e{#w-ﬁeeuﬁh—pes&eé—{eJ:eaﬂe—sﬂbdmder—&ﬂbhgaheﬁﬂnepm ‘yue}rdeieets -H}e
sttbdividershat-furtherp
HMMHMW%M&HMWMG%WM
within-a-maxtmum-ol-one-year:

— B—Belore commencing am-work—the-subdividershall deposit with-the county-commissioners
eithera-fived-fee-oF twenty-doHars per-lot-or-the-sum-of 2-percent—whichever-is lower—ol the
estimated-total-projeet-improvement cost-to-cover-theinspection-costs oL alb-improvements
reetred-tnder this section.

Ord423-+6197h)

A —Albstreets andlorroads offeredto the comnty-for dedication-as shown on-a finalmap or
otherwise-shalk:

atdenst-2Heet-bevond-those places where the
H&&lHl—‘wﬂl—l—ﬁee—(-}Hhe—“Hﬂmd must-be excavated orcovered with hill dirt and
Hratertalstn-constructing-such cuts-and 1ts-as -are-necessary-to-provide the
roadbed-and-drainage ditches-required-in-this-titleprovided-that all sueh-rights-of-
way-shat-be-as-setHorth in-Chapter- Fo28-ofthis title:

w2 Have a-roadway- grudient (exeept as set-torth-in-this-section)-of a mxdmum-of:

——a—llﬂnwmaés—%hfeugh—subemﬁ—tewp&%m—

eh*e—and—eae—ha“—pe#eem-.

- J‘ —[-)L\l;t*e&d-&l)uw‘kﬂl}_\_lm d.l_ml_f&lﬂ.t_lﬂ

Lo
BTN S S e 3 S S R A L A P e R S AR e Y t;\.‘ \,vn(

M@easeﬁpshmﬁkadeﬁdﬁueeh—mﬁmﬁemwmemyﬂhﬁeﬂm

- ———desirable-as applied- 5€: s-whieh-do not —
—e*eeeeé—m-eﬁ&y—refeeﬂ{—ﬂ{—dﬁj—‘wueﬁ—reﬂ%
%umyss—and—e%hea—debn&-
bk Mk paved strtace ohaccess sireetsanid shaltb ot be dess than-twenin—eet
e-l—paa—eé—suﬁaee»
5- Be b.dd@%%%iﬁ—b%&bﬁﬂhbﬁﬂ%ﬁ-@h&p&i—%@%uue

to-the baekfiting of Mﬁ%ﬁ}&f&ha—@*&ﬂ#&twﬁ&%s—ml@ng—%lmdb@d
or-right-ofwav:

e e —Beprovidedwith-necessan-drainage-ditchess cubverts-and-struetures-butht
aceording-to-a-drainage-plan-approved by-anindependentengineer-appointed-by
&h&wmﬂy%mweq&%haﬁémn&g&pmﬁ—b&mepﬁed—bra-ewﬂeﬂgmw
registered-inthestate-duh-approveds priorto-the ¢ :

8 Besurfaced-as-toHows:

64




CORTHHSS O RIS, +hm+gh+he1ﬂanﬂmg-eefmmssmn-m—eagmeer—se
appoiteds may require s ation-test-data be submittedwith-the
een%metma—dmwn%&m%«k)%mekea%nd«m%m
bete-developed-On-the basis of-these tests-the-eng meer.-or phinnibrg
commission.and county commissioners shall determine the base thickness
e b e Aepavedsurface o plant-mixed -asphatt-pavement shall -be-apphed-toa
minimum-width-2-feet-tess-than-the minimum-widih of the roadbed-and 10
a-compacted-thickness oFatdeast 2 and-one-hallinches-4he design-ofthe
mix shall have the-written-approvab-ofaa-cngineerappeointed by—the county

bﬂemh&plac—mgei—p‘u—emem—
> le-liquid-asphalt-may-be-applied

o

at-the rate. 0# at-least-- ll&-gaHem per ‘Sﬁ’t‘l’d‘l'é}*-d{ d-to-the entive- width-of the
base-coat:
——BAnasubdivisionswherettis established-thateach-lottherein-contains-at-least 2-and-one-half

dC-H‘.“r&Hd—H Pe%l”(:&@el to-per ﬁ(:‘ludl sintlle—mmkl\ -uses-without 1esubdn ision-possibility: or

avarlable—tlw&wmea shaH—ne&—app,LyL ‘
(Ord-42-§18.1971)

1632050 Drainnge:
oA Blow heof corbahd-oatoreshat - haveaminimum-grade-of- 3-tenths-ol one-pereent:
—B—Guan%haH—hm—a—mmnmm—F&dms-&%ee&-

sub-bime-.-
—B—Valey-guttersshalt-be-3-thousand-pound-concrete-6-feet-in-width-at-street-tnterseetions
and-2-and-one-halifeet-inwidth-in-aleys-whererequired-by-the county-commissioners—through
H{tﬂ—ﬂpﬁem&dﬂ %meer —be{lﬂe-beé meheb {h{ek

d@ﬂ&%ﬁwﬂm«ﬁ%yﬂwwmﬁmdﬁmmmmwr
convtrreted trbutaries:

o Dratnage channels-shall be-so designed as-to maintain-aminimum-velocity of 2-feet-per
second-and-a-maxdimum-veloeity-o 8- feet perseeond.
—G—Mem&%ée&«haﬂ—wbm%%w&%bﬂw%ﬁe&kn—éwehﬂg—bﬂheﬁaﬂmﬂg

commisston-—and-an-enghieer-or survevor-appotinted by the-county-commissioner:
nmmmmwmm%wwm
melfe&te—thepf epei—dmnmge—af—the stEce-water-to natural drinage courses oy into eHy—eouty.

: is-across-lands intended- to be used-as private lotscrights-ot-way
m%mMm%m&mWheﬂﬁmed—MﬂeeaHmmﬂM%emm
Ise md mﬁed—eﬂ—khe-phuw -be-reeorded- aad»marl\ ed- bdseﬂ*en{-—iesewed—?emﬂtdee elfamage— “H

meé%&h&d%&m*h&#bm%e&%pwem&d&%w%&ﬂa%ﬂw&ﬂmm“md—w
the grade-und depth-required-by-the governmental-authority:
—HCirenlar cabverts shall be reinforced conerete pipe-with-comentjoints o corrtsated

65



mem—emem—mehﬁpe-

—f--No-dratnace structure shalh- be-permitted-with-a-dtameterof pipe-lessthan-twenty-4-inehes:
%M%MMMWWMMWMMWF
— K The design: siz seckshalb-be-approved-by-an-engineer-appointed by the
(:G!PH{-)'—GOH}HH&MHHQ‘F&T
(Ord 42§ 101071

Water supply-and distribution-systemsshalb-be-instaled-in-subdivisions-in-accordanee
with-the tTolewing standards:
———A——I*he—\'\ralei—'-d-kpﬁhed—l6H—%HM“A+H+GM%&¥H§&+MIH@44&)H—S@WL+H@E—FHMH

that 1b—wh(~)4659me—p@%able~and n-no-way-harmiuh-or dangerous-to- hechlth-
—B———I-Hm—%e—th&amnaval—eﬂhe—h nahﬂws—the—wbdw»der—shau—whmﬂ—&eweagiﬂe
appoied-bythe-e ;
supply md—eha,mbuu(m—s)%em ~'7H~H 1uem»m—aseeﬂd+m«—he&het saeha&&tems
contorm o aceeptable-engineering practice-and-sulficientio-aseertain-the quality
and-quantity of said-water.
(Ord. 42§ 211978

M%}G%ewage-eoueeﬂm
Sewage-cotection and disposal-systems-shat-be-installed-in-subdivistons naeccordanee
m{h—the—FeH%mg—%ané&da—aﬂmwmm
———A————Fhe means-used-to-dispose of sewase-shall have sulBelentcapacity—to-dispose-of
tH-sewave and-waste which-may-be reasonablyv-anticipateddron-the full expected
ase-of-the-subdivision—inadditon-to-any-otherarea-which-the-system-may-serve:

——— B, —The disposalsystem-shat-so-treat-all sewageineluding any-industrial-wastesso
that-aH-Hguidisolid- orpaseous residue-alter reatment with not-contaminate-any

(Ord42 §22.1971)

Fhe-tollowing Hems-are-also-reguired:

————A—Inalbsubdivisions-of-letsizes-of-Hess-than-twelve-thousand-square-feet-eurbs-and

vutters-und sidewalks-alsoshall-be required:
o= B Placement of at-Jeast one-street stgn-ateach-tnterseetions ol a-typeand
construetionapproved-by-the county-commissioners:
- C—Perpetuation-of albexisting-waterways-with-structures-of-proper-size:
P Providing -of necessary structures such- a&bﬂdueb —cotieret @—b()\{}%— cubverts.

plammg—eemm&swn—aﬁd&eaﬁ{»yeemmmneﬁ—
(Ord—42-$20.1971

66



16:32:090-Dedieation-requirements-generally:
Pedicatontfor watercourse-channels-and streams-or-ereeks-and-the-dedication-of land

for-parks—reereation—sehoolorother-public purposes-i-an-amount-and-location-consistentwith
the-masterplan-and-propesed-character and-location-and-engineering need-ol-each-subdivision
may-be-required-as-a-condition-precedenttotentative-and-final-platapprovak

(Ord. 42 8 3(c). 1971

1632 100-Passage-of-titheto-dedieated-property.
+Hitleto-dedicated-properties-shall-pass-when-the-final-plan-isrecordedHat the time-any

streets-arerejected-otter of dedication-shall-be-deemed-orematn-open-and the-governing body

may-by-resolution; at-any-later date-andbwithout-further-action-by-the subdivider: reseind-its

action-and-accept-and-open-streetsfor-public-use—which same-shall-be recorded-in-the-official

county records.

(Ord 20D 1971

~Chapter-16.36
SEATE-REVAEW-OK - SUBDIVISION-APPLICATIONS

Seetions:
16:36.010-Agreements-authorized:
16:36.020 Fee schedule,

+he-countyis-authorized-to-enter-into-apreements-with-the Nevada State Urban -Planning
waaﬁ—fef—the-rewewbw—&hm—ageﬂwm—q pheationstor-subdivision-of-tand-within-the
jurisdiction-of-the-county—inaceordance-with-theprovisions-of- Chapters278-and 34---of-the
Nevada-Revised-Stattes-

( (;*G‘. ‘;4‘ é,. > l': 'l‘;':;4j}

16.36.020 Fee sehedule:

—A-—+or the purpose of assisting in the defraying of costs to the state forsuchreview a fee
schedule assignable-tothe-applicantshall-be-established-asfoHows:

e -Foreachsubdivision-tup-to-fifiy-tots) 2-humdred Hifby-doHars:
——J—AekhkmnaHemey-eﬂe—wQ—hﬂﬂ(%m}—Iﬁ&s}%{meeHek
red-Hty-onedots-and-over)-one-dollar-periot

—wapmmem%a orwarded-with-the-request-for subdivisionreview-to-the-Urban
Planning-Pivision-Upon-completion-ofreview;-the-actual costs-of the review-to-the Urban

Phnning Diviston-and-other participating agencies-shall-be-determined-and-apportioned-on-an
equialmatehing-basis-bebtween-the- Urban-Planning Division-and-the-county—Any-portion-of the
fee-in-exeess-of the-county'sshare-ofreview-costs shall-be-returned-Horrefund-o-the-appheant

1636030 Applicability of-provisions.

67



coverning-subdivisions-withinthis-county:

(Ord-64-$41974)

Proposed on ,2018.

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2018.

Vote: Ayes Commissioners

Nays Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest;

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on ,2018.

68



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Mecting date: 01/16/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x|

1. Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-278 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning, including Chapter 17.56 Planned Unit Developments to
revise the procedure for approval and standards of planned unit developments. In addition to
provisions of the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission
a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning
ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-
1144 or planning @storeycounty.org.

2. Recommended motion: [n accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning
commission, | [commissioner] motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-278
amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning, including Chapter 17.56 Planned Unit
Developments to revise the procedure for approval and standards of planned unit developments.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4, Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 to adopt new codes for
planned unit developments other properly related matters.

6. Supporting matcrials: Drafts have been and remain posted at
https://www.storeycounty.org/517/Updates and will also be available at the board meeting.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:

7 Department Head Department Name:
7z, s\l County Manager Other agency review:
10. Board action:
[] Approved [ ] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [ ] Continued

Agenda Item No.

Page 1 of 1

\Q



Ordinance No. 18-278

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 17.56 Planned Unit Developments
to revise the procedure for approval and standards of planned unit developments.

Title
An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 17.56 Planned Unit

Developments to revise the procedures for approval and standards of planned unit
developments, and providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does

ordain;

SECTION I: Chapter 17.56 is amended as follows:

A planned unit development (PUD) is intended to further the public health, safety,

Draft 9-19-2017

Chapter 17.56

PUD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

Sections:

17.56.010 Purpose.

17.56.020 General provisions.

17.56.030 Procedure for application, noticing, hearing, and decision.
17.56.040 Required findings for application and approval.
17.56.050 Development plan components.

17.56.060 Minimum PUD development standards.

17.56.070 Density, intensity, and use standards.

17.56.080 Increases in density.

17.56.090 Common-area Open space requirements.

17.56.110 Common-area Open space organization of ownership.
17.56.120 Failure of an organization to act.

17.56.130 Action by the county.

17.56.140 Maintenance for succeeding years.

17.56.150 Expense of maintenance.

17.56.010 Purpose.



morals, and general welfare when considering residential and nonresidential subdivisions.
A PUD provides for diversified housing types and design; provides for necessary
commercial and industrial facilities conveniently located to that housing; encourages a
more efficient use of land, public services or private services; better conforms to the local
geography and topography; reflects changes in the technology of land development so
that resulting economies may be made available to those who need homes; to insures that
increased flexibility of substantive regulations over land development authorized in this
chapter is administered in such a way as to encourage the disposition of proposals for
land development without undue delay, and creates a mixture of uses in the adopted
ordinances. (Ord. No. 15-269, § I, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § I, 12-4-2012)

17.56.020 General provisions.

A. The board with action by the planning commission may only approve the level of
intensity or density that is appropriate for a particular location as allowable by the
provisions of this chapter. The body is not obligated to approve a PUD or the level of
development intensity or density requested for a PUD. The board with action by the
planning commission may require as a condition of approval any condition, limitation, or
design factor that will promote proper development and the use of effective land uses
transttioning. which are consistent with the county master plan.

B. The entire property proposed for development as a PUD must be under common
ownership or unified control to ensure unified development.

C. An application for a PUD may be accepted for any land in the county except for
land described in subsections D and E of this section.

D. The overall site of a proposed PUD must be at least five 5 acres in area. A PUD
application for areas of less than five acres may be considered by the director if the
applicant shows that the waiver of this requirement is in the public interest and that at
least one of the following conditions exists:

1. Unusual physical features of the site or the surrounding neighborhood are
such that development under the standard zoning provisions would not conserve the
unique physical features of the site or would not allow functional or environmental
compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood; or

2. The site is adjacent to an area which has been developed under the provisions
of'a PUD and will contribute to the amenity and functionality of the neighborhood.

E. PUDs are prohibited in the NR natural resources zone and P public zone, and
otherwise where they are not consistent with the county master plan.

F. PUDs-are-prohibited-withtn-the Vdirginta-City-township-boundaries-in-order-to
retain-the-historicaly-appropriategrid-pattern-development of the town. Historical
development patterns (e.g.. grid patiern) and historically compatible site design must be
considered by the board and planning commission when reviewing and approving PUDs
n-Gold-Hill-and other-land-in-the within the Comstock Historic District.

G. The PUD tentative map must show zones existing before the PUD ("existing
zones") and proposed zones within the PUD ("new zones"). Existing zones and land uses
within one thousand feet of the proposed PUD boundary must also be shown on the
tentative map. New zone classifications and uses may only be those included in this title.

H. The PUD development plan must show the proposed new zones and land uses and
provide development standards that will regulate those uses in conformance with this




chapter and title. The development plan must comply with or surpass the standards
established in the zones of similar uses in the county.

I. Commercial and industrial PUDs and those uses in residential mixed-use PUDs are
not allowed to abut existing E or R zones.

J. The density, intensity, and allowable uses in the PUD are regulated pursuant to
Section 17.56.070, Density, intensity and use standards, and by the design standards
manual.

K. Residential PUDs must comply with the requirements of NRS 116, Common
Interest Ownerships.

L. Except as prohibited by the provisions of this chapter, the board with action by the
planning commission has the authority, in connection with the granting of a PUD, to
change, alter, vary, or modify one or more of the provisions of this title as they deem
appropriate; provided, that the PUD complies with the required findings for approval in
Section 17.03.230(C) and the use under this title is not expressly prohibited in the zone.

M. The PUD project must be inaugurated within the time frame as established by a
development schedule pursuant to Section 17.03.230(F) (development schedule). (Ord.
No. 15-269, § 1, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § 1, 12-4-2012)

17.56.030 Procedure for application, noticing, hearing, and decision.

The procedure for a pre-application conference, application submittal and review,
noticing, hearing, and action of the board and planning commission is regulated pursuant
to Chapter 17.03, Administrative Provisions. (Ord. No. 15-269, § I, 10-20-2015; Ord. No.
12-244, § 1, 12-4-2012)

17.56.040 Required findings for application and approval.

The PUD application must show that the required findings of fact pursuant to Section
17.03.230(C) are met. The board and planning commission must, at a minimum, include
those findings in its approval of the PUD. (Ord. No. 15-269, § I, 10-20-2015; Ord. No.
12-244, § 1, 12-4-2012)

17.56.050 Development plan components.

The application for a PUD must include a development plan that meets the
requirements in this section and chapter. The community-development planning
department may require additional information in the application as it deems necessary to
evaluate the proposed development.

A. Subdivision layout and lot design. .

B. Existing and proposed public and private street, sidewalk, other right-of-way
improvements, including vehicular parking, interior traffic flows, and development
ingress and egress points. The plan must also include existing area road and highway
improvements (including necessary expansions and improvements) that will connect the
PUD with the surrounding communities and roadway systems.

C. Areas proposed to be dedicated or reserved for any public use including, but not
limited to, public utilities and easements, public buildings and facilities, and public
rights-of-way.

D. Areas proposed to be reserved for required eominen-area open space pursuant to
Section 17.56.090.



E. Existing land uses and zone classifications within one thousand feet of the
external boundary of the proposed development.

F. Proposed land use and zone classifications within the PUD.

G. A minimum of three house model plans and three elevations for each house model
for single-family dwellings, and a minimum of two building model plans and two
elevations for each multifamily building. Portions of a PUD for which only custom
homes are proposed or when lots are one acre or greater in area are exempt from this
requirement.

H. Maximum building heights.

I. Maximum coverage of lot areas.

J. Minimum distance between structures.

K. Minimum setbacks from interior lot lines.

L. Minimum setbacks from street rights-of-way.

M. Landscaping, screening, and outdoor lighting.

N. Projected population and population densities within the development, including
estimated population during each anticipated phase of development.

O. Projected vehicular traffic generation, including for different parts of the day such
as morning and afternoon commuting times.

P. Development schedule as described in €chapter 17.03, Administrative Provisions.

Q. Detailed written narrative discussing how the findings for approval in Ssection
17.03.230(C) will be met. (Ord. No. 15-269, § I, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § I, 12-4-
2012)

17.56.060 Minimum PUD development standards.

A. The PUDZs development standards will be those which are established by NRS;:
this chapter and title;; the approved development plans and tentative map pursuant this
title, Title 16, and the design standards manual; and other requirements of the board
with action by the planning commission.

B. The PUD must conform to all applicable county codes, including building and fire
codes. A PUD must comply with this title and Title 16 with respect to site development
standards, including parking, landscaping, screening, buffering, environmental standards,
signs, and maintaining a minimum ten-foot building setback from project parameters.
Variance or waiver applications to reduce requirements will not be accepted unless
expressly allowed within the respective regulations of this title.

C. All infrastructure and right-of-way improvements, whether public or private, are
required to meet full county standards pursuant to NRS 278.230 through 278.320
inclusive. The board with action by the planning commission may consider dedication of
roads and other rights-of-way. Private use and management of roads and rights-of-way
may be permitted upon approval by the board.

1. If determined by the board to be necessary for proper traffic circulation, the
applicant may be required to provide improved ingress and egress to the development,
including acceleration and deceleration lanes, traffic control devices, including
channelization and signalization. These improvements must be offered for dedication to
the county or state, whichever has jurisdiction.

D. Additional density than that allowed by the existing zone, except in E and R zones
in which increased density is prohibited, may be allowed as provided for in Ssections




17.56.070 and 17.56.080, if the board with action by the planning commission determines
the increase in density is justificd by the provisions of required eommen-area open space
and other design amenities that contribute positively to the beneficial effects of the
development for the community and its existing surrounding zones and uses.

E. Transition requirements from adjacent properties.

1. A proposed development must incorporate height and density transitioning
considerations along its perimeter o existing residential uses and zones to achieve an
orderly transition between it and existing residential developments and residential zones
on adjacent properties. Unless determined otherwise for good reason by the board with
action by the planning commission, buildings and units proposed to be located along the
perimeter of the proposed development to existing residential uses and zones must
maintain setback distances and stay within fifty percent tolerance range of the height and
density of residential development and residential zones that are adjacent to, or across the
street from, the proposed development's perimeter. This is not required when open space
creating 500 feet or more separation between the perimeter buildings and the existing
residential uses and zones is provided.

2. Transitioning considerations include a range of design features related to
existing and proposed development. These include, but are not limited to, height, mass,
density, appropriate buffers, architecture, landscaping, loss of privacy, unsightly views,
pedestrian and vehicular traffic circulation, parking concerns, and environmental impacts.

F. Development proposed on hillsides and other steep topography, and along
ridgelines, must meet the minimum requirements of this subsection. The board and
planning commission may consider alternatives proposed by the applicant to allow
necessary development in these areas when the development plan shows that the purpose
and intent of this section is met.

1. Grading and development of roads, structures, and building sites must be
minimized within slopes of fifteen percent or steeper grade; canyons and ravines;
prominent rock outcroppings; and other significant geographic features, in order to retain
ground stability and visual value and scenic character of the surrounding natural
landscape.

2. Building design and overall development must be of innovative techniques
and building design that responds to the natural topographic contours and pronounced
ridgelines. This is achieved by "clustering”" development into areas having lesser or no
slope; applying shapes and earth tone colors to structures that reasonably blend into the
backdrop hillside environment; increasing setback distances between perimeter structures
which may encroach into a ridgeline's sky backdrop; allowing only one-story buildings
boarding the natural ridgeline; and configuring roofs so that only roof face slopes (no
gables) are visible.

3. Landscaping must be designed and placed to mitigate soil erosion, lessen
visual impact of grading and other development, reduce conserve water eonsumption, and
lessen mitigate risk of fire to the development and surrounding area. Landscaping will
otherwise be reviewed in accordance with the design standards manual.

Gi-Uinless-provided-otherwise in-this-chapter-setbaek-distances-building-heights
distances between buildings. lot size and dimension. parking. and lot coverage must
conformr-to-the-reeulationsin-the respective zones-ir which-the-budings are located
withinthe-PUD.




H-Fhedolowing-minimum-standards apphy-to-allbsinele-tamih—esidential
developmentereating parcels less-than one-haltacre nsize and-allmultiFamiy
residential-developments-within the proposed development.
——l—émmaes—dﬂé—gdfage-l-mﬁ%

——a - Atleast-twenty-five percent-of the-garages-along-a-street-must-have
setbae—ks which-aretive feet-greater than-the mintum-trom-yard-setback-and-set back-a
mnmnmﬁ—ﬁw%e%emnd—m&baﬂdiﬂg—wmmdeﬂee—%wﬁﬂ—m%m
tlong the 5 Hﬁf"l—f'ftﬂihi“*b—ﬁ}d\—&l‘v&bt kemidered—tm-meeung thw+equemeﬁ%

———————— —b-A-parage may be-of any sizer provided. that the overal-structure
coformsto-the-design-requirements-of-this-chapler—the-provisions-of-this-title-and-the

Wemn%%wbseeﬁm&é%%ﬁmd—é&}e&%&eﬁ%ﬂmng

on lots five thousand square feet or less- One garage-doormust-be-recessed-or-otherwise
otf-set:

~—it:-Fhe combined-garage door width-may-not-exceed-thirty-two-feet-on
le%—beh&een%eﬂ«w&dwd—ww%hw%q&m&&e&@wemm&é&wmw%e
recessed-orotherwise ofi-set:

—— 2-kExeeptlor PUDprojectstor-which-onby-custem-homes-are-proposed.-there
must-be-a minimum-of three-house-model plans-andthree elevationsfor-each-house
model forsingle-family dwellings and-a minimum-of tweo-house- model-plans-and-twe
clevationstor-each-multifamily-developmentThe-same-elevations-mustnot-be-repeated
Mmmwmmmwwemwmw
and-two-story-houses—tront-porehes: ar uraged-as-ways-of
achieving variety:

- 3 - Windows-deors—and-garape-doors{exceptrecessed-garage-doorsy-on the front
clevation musthave raised-triny in-orderto-provide-visualinterest-and-rehiel

e Windows-and-door-fenestration-on-aH-stdes-o b unitstocated-along-the
MWW%MWMWWMﬂ
ahotherresidential-side-elevation mustbe-applied-to-butldings.

-5 Contrasting-eolor schemesvsedtoereatevisual-depth-around-windows:- doers;
and-corers must-be-apphed to-buildings.

O There-must-be-a-mintmum-of-one-prinetpab-window-treatiment-on-every
elevation-Uront-side-orrear)-that-faces-the-street-{publie or-private)-or required commen
area-that-may-include-butis-not-hmited-topop-outs: decorative-wronght-iron, wood trim.
shutters—plantshebves-and-otherfeatures-orembelishments-to-vary-and-sotten-the-visual
exterior
7 Fhe body-will-consider-the-telationship-of second-storv-windows- doors—and
baleonies-with-the privaey-of-neighbors—andmay-require that-these-features be
redesipned-or-omitted-from second-story-rear-and-side-walls The body may- also-prohibit
tmmﬁmﬂmw%nﬁ%ﬂmm@eﬁmm

- -——~—8 At 4edskthteeoiiﬁ+e—ieumg+lesigﬂ—{eﬂmeﬁﬂmswls&be-dpphed
——————a-Enhaneed-corners{pop-outs-embeHishments-ete-):




———————— beDeeprecessed-or-olt-set-parages:
e Oneormoredow-rools fone-story-reetsy.

e — . Second- story stacked-at greater-setback than-Frst Hoorto-faeHtate-first

Hoorreof-features. especiath-when docated-immediateh above-the-varage.
e—Roofoverhangs:

- Porehrorcourtvard-on-every-elevatton-pom-walls-and/or-decorative

wroueht-iron) mayv-be used-for-courtvard-enclosures:

storvawindowsFacing-a stre eroiregrired-cOMMen-area:

——————h. Deek; patio-or balcony-options:

L-Single—tamib-residential frontyards-must-be-landseaped-with-treescappropriate
groundeover—shrubbery:-and-irrtgationsystems - Fhedandseaprg-must beanstaled prior
to-ocetpaney-or-a-private-agreement(the CE&R Hnust-berecorded-establishing-that-a
homeowners association orother-private-oreanization-witbrequire-completion of-tront-
yard-landscaping within-one year ol oceupancy-and-matntenancetherealter.

%Wes@entmmksm}mmMMwmwwmw
sroundeover—shrubbery—and-irrigation-systems—Fhe landseaping must be installed prior
to-oeccupaney - A private agreement (e CC&R) must be recorded-establishing-that a
hormeowners-association-or-otherprivate-organization-witlrequire-maintenance-of-the

K—Theperimeterareas of the PUD that are-adjacentto public roads-and-rights-ol-
way-must-be-landseaped-with-trees, appropriate-proundeover—shrabberyand-trrigation
systems. The required-andscaping area-does notcount-toward-the-required-common-area
pusstant-to-Section+1-56:090Perimeter-landscaping-must-be-drrigated-with-reclaimed
I Wter:

L. Streets, highways, alleys, sidewalks, and pedestrian ways must conform to the
requirements in Title 16, Subdivisions. Collector and local roads in residential PUDs,
except in E zones, must be designed to avoid long, straight expanses which encourage
high speed vehicular travel and are not aesthetically appealing. Providing a minimum
twenty-five-foot lateral deviation from a straight course for every three hundred fifty feet
of street length or other design measures may be used to achieve this goal.

M-Pedestrian-travelProvisionfor bieyele-and-pedestrian-pathway-systems:
especialyto-designated-potentisl-common area-or park- areas-trads—seenie-sHess
viewpoinis—and-public-transitaceess to-the site-must-be-provided-Any-required
landseaping-may-be-within-a-tratb-dedication-however-it-may-not-obstruet-the-tntended
waters

N. Parking. Parking for commercial and industrial PUDs is pursuant to Title 16,
Subdivisions, and the provisions of this title. Parking for a single-family or multifamily
residential development must be provided as follows. Reduction to these standards may
only be permitted with an approval of a waiver of development standards by the board
with action by the planning commission.

1. Two spaces per dwelling unit must be provided. Both spaces must be on site
unless an alternative is specifically approved per subsection (N)(3) of this section.

2. One additional space must be provided for every five residential units which
may be off site of the residence, and within e designated visitor parking areas which are




within reasonable walking distance o the residences.

3. Exception. Where the on-street parking is legally allowed and functionally
feasible in terms of a PUD's overall design, each on-street parking space may be
substituted for on a one-for-one basis for each unit requirement; provided, that a detailed
parking analysis and plan that satisfies functional and safety standards is submitted and
approved.
——O-Optional-amenities—-addition-to-the requirements-ot this-secton-the-foHowing
optionabamenities-are-encotraged thut-notrequived - forall-PHPs.
———F-Enhanced paving and-desipn-features atinters eeonsccourtyards, deiveways:
etex

J—B]LDLW-LM

2-Staggered-setbacksfe adincenthomes:
m%%ﬂeﬁe»eﬂ{ﬂaakawrﬂéwlks—
- Recessed-orrear-e ey garages:

S linergy-consepyng-porm
sidewalks:

- 6. Retwewable-energy-systems-tor-heating-and-coohine.

—— 7 Renewable-energy-featuressuehaspreservationofselaraccesswith-seleetive

window orientation-and-added-glazing to-maximize-heating-and-cooling-efhiciency-

————8Alse-of- landscapingnatural-opography-and-energy-etficient-buildinglayouts
For-natural-windbreaks and-shade:
-9 Higher-insulation-levels:

L0 Resource-conserving desipns-and-use-ol reeyeled-construcion-materials:
- Preservation-of unique-historical cultural features—inclading natweal
topography-atr-sunheht-and scenie-resourees:

P. Flood control and drainage must conform to the regulations under Title 16,
Subdivisions, Title 15, Buildings and Construction, and other provisions of this code.

Q. The board with action by the planning commission may impose additional
requirements deemed necessary for consistency with the findings required by Section
17.03.230(C) and the design standards manual. These may include but are not limited to
amenities, such as recreation or play areas and common-area open space, 1o compensate
for any deviations that may be permitted.

R. Arrangement of light industrial uses in a residential PUD. Light industrial uses
listed in Section 17.34.020, Allowed uses, when allowed by this chapter within a
residential PUD, must be developed in park-like surroundings, utilizing landscaping,
commen-area open space, and the existing natural environment as buffers to screen
lighting, parking areas, loading areas or docks, and/or outdoor storage of raw materials or
products. Light industrial use within the residential PUD must provide for the harmony of
buildings and a compact grouping in order to economize in the provision of such utility
services required. Thoroughfares must be kept to a minimum throughout the planned
industrial area in order to reduce through traffic. At least one hundred feet of setback
distance must separate light industrial and residential uses within the PUD. All
intervening spaces between the right-of-way line and project building line and
intervening spaces between buildings, drives, parking areas, and improved areas must be
landscaped with trees and plantings and properly maintained at all times.

S. Arrangement of commercial uses in a residential PUD. Commercial and
commercial-residential mixed-use buildings and establishments must be planned as




groups having common parking areas and common ingress and egress points in order to
reduce the number of potential accident locations at intersections with thoroughfares.
Planting screens or fences must be provided on the sides of the commercial development
abutting existing and proposed single-family residential uses within the PUD. For
integrated commercial-residential mixed-uses, this screening is not needed when it
complies with the overall site design requirements of this subsection and the design
standards manual. The development plan must provide for the integrated and harmonious
design of buildings, and for adequate and properly arranged facilities for internal traffic
circulation, landscaping, and such other features and facilities as may be necessary to
make the project attractive and efficient from the standpoint of the adjoining, surrounding,
existing and potential developments. All areas designed for future expansion or not
intended for immediate improvement or development must be landscaped or otherwise
maintained in a neat and orderly manner as required by the County Code.

T, Irrigation plans, and specifications which comply with the International Plumbing
Code. must be submitted with the landscape plan to insure adequate irrigation coverage.
To increase water conservation, the system must be automatic drip, bubbler. or sprinkler
irrigation_ Sprinkler irrvigation is only allowed on lawn areas, except that some
groundcover may use sprinkler irrigation with the approval by the director. All drip and
bubbler irrigation systems must be installed separately from turf irrigation systems. All
irrigation plans must include the following:

1. Scale at the same scale as the landscape plan, north arrow, location of adjacent
streets, property lines. easements, sidewalks. drives, paved areas. lighting, signs.
buildings, all utilities and mechanical equipment within the landscape areas, existing
trees and other natural or man-made site features influencing the use of the site:

2. Identification and description of automatic irrigation companents o insure that
vegelation is adequately irrigated. All irrigation plans must incorporate water
conserving principles, including multiple program controllers with percent scaling, low
precipitation heads, drip irrigation, and check valves. Where applicable, irrigation
details must include the method for the watering of required street trees. All valves and
other devices are to be housed in a box of adequate size and design to protect the
components.

3. Indication of the system point of connection and size, water pressure available,
and maximum demand of the system in gallons per minute:

4. Irrigation equipment specified must be identified by manufacturer’s name and
equipment identification number;

5. Cross connection devices installed for all construction must have a reduced
pressure backflow device presented (ReP—deviees: except for single-family development;

6. All locations of irrigation valves, controllers, hose bibs, guick coupler valves,
and backflow preventers. Sprinkler location on plans must include typical pattern of
sprays (i.e., full circle, half circle), psi. radius of throw and gallons per minute:

7. Irrigation details must be used 1o clarify particular situations. Typical details
must include backflow prevention devices, valves. irrigation heads, and irrigation
controllers;

8 Sizes of irvigation lines. Schedule 40 P.V.C. is required for all pressure lines and
under all paved areas. Piping must be installed a minimum of 12 inches underground for
non pressure irrigation lines and 18 inches underground for constant pressure irrigation




lines.
9. Landscaping design standard will be pursuant to the applicable provisions in the
desion standards manual.

1 0. All landscaping must be properly installed and be according to approved plans
prior to final inspection and certificate of occupancy. An exception is allowed only when
the landscaping cannol be completed due to weather related delays. In lieu of the
installation of landscaping, financial security must be provided to Storey County at 150
percent of the estimated cost of installation. The owner must guarantee installation as
specified in the temporary certificate of occupancy agreement. and final inspection must
be completed within six months of the issuance of a temporary certificate. The estimated
cost of the landscaping is subject to verification by the planning department.

(Ord. No. 15-269, § I, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § 1, 12-4-2012)

17.56.070 Density, intensity, and use standards.

A. For purpose of calculating residential density, the plan must separately designate
a development envelope by phase of development for each type of residential use and
each arca to be developed for nonresidential use.

B. Except as provided for in subsections (B)(1) through (3) of this section, the uses
allowed in the zones existing prior to the PUD are those allowed in the PUD overlay zone,
including uses listed as permitted and accessory. Special use permit requirements for uses
in existing zones will also be required in the respective new PUD zones.

1. A special use permit pursuant to Chapter 17.32 (F Forestry Zone) is not
required for residential uses as part of the approved PUD in the F zone.

2. Up to twenty-five percent of a residential PUD (minus comimen-area open
space) proposed within existing A, F, and SPR zones may also include commercial,
commercial-residential, and light industrial uses in order to create a mixed-use residential
type-environment. Allowed light industrial uses are those listed as permitted uses (not
requiring a special use permit) under Chapter 17.34, 11 Light Industrial Zone. Light
industrial uses requiring a special use permit, heavy industrial uses, and special industrial
uses are prohibited in residential PUDs.

3. An additional ten percent of commercial and light industrial uses, inclusive,
may be added to the residential PUD if at least seventy-five percent of the area devoted to
the uses pursuant to subsection (B)(2) of this section includes combined commercial-
residential mixed-use.

C. The following are the allowed densities within a PUD:

1. Unless stated otherwise in subsections (C)(2) and (3) of this section, the
density allowed in the zone existing before the PUD is the density allowed in the PUD
overlay zone.

2. Where the PUD is located over existing A and F zones, the density of each
new zone in the PUD overlay zone may be increased to the level allowed in the approved
tentative map. The minimum commeon-area open space requirements in Section 17.56.090
still apply.

3. Density bonuses may be granted pursuant to Section 17.56.080 (Increases in
density) for PUDs applicable to subsection (C)(2) of this section. The minimum eommen
area open space requirements in Section 17.56.090 still apply.

D. The density of residential development within the PUD is calculated by dividing

10



the acreage of the residential development envelope by the minimum parcel size
authorized within the existing zone. The following steps are used to calculate the total
number of residential units allowable within the PUD:

1. Deduct areas devoted to nonresidential uses, such as commercial,
commercial-residential, and industrial uses from the total PUD site area. Commeon-area
Open space is not deducted from the total PUD site area.

2. Determine the number of residential units allowed under the existing zone by
dividing the net residential development envelope size determined in step-+—abeve
section 17.56.070(D)(1) by the minimum parcel size permitted by the existing zone.
Round down any fraction to the next lowest whole number to obtain the number of
allowable units.

3. The residential development envelope may bridge existing zone boundaries
and may be subdivided into phases; provided, that the density of any given phase does
not exceed that allowed under the provisions of this chapter within that phase of the PUD.

4. The average lot size or the lot size for particular tracts within the PUD may be
increased above or decreased below the average for the development envelopes in order
to ensure compatibility and appropriate transitioning with adjacent development within or
outside the PUD (see Section 17.56.060(E)). (Ord. No. 15-269, § I, 10-20-2015; Ord. No.
12-244, § 1, 12-4-2012)

17.56.080 Increases in density.

A. The allowed density may be increased as provided in Section 17.56.070(D) in
order to enhance development compatibility and appropriate transitioning between the
proposed PUD and existing E and R zones and their uses.

B. A density bonus of one-half percent for every one percent of the PUD that is
reserved for common-area open space beyond the minimum requirements of this chapter,
or agricultural easement area, may be granted in the PUD approval. The commen-area
open space must meet the requirements of this chapter and the agricultural area must
meet the requirements of Chapter 17.24, Agriculture Zone. Agricultural uses requiring a
special use permit pursuant to Section 17.24.025 are prohibited in PUDs.

C. The density bonus described in subsection B of this section may be increased
from one-half percent to one percent when at least ten percent of the PUD includes
integrated commercial, light industrial, and commercial-residential mixed uses. (Ord. No.
15-269, § 1, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § I, 12-4-2012)

17.56.090 Commen-area Open space requirements.

All planned-unit-developments PUDs with ten or more lots or units and at six or
more units per acre, regardless of how many lots or units, must have eemmeon-areas open
space reserved as provided in this section. The location of any eemmen-areas open space
is determined individually for each PUD and will be based upon geographic and
topographic characteristics of the site or other factors to meet the objectives of this
chapter. Commen-areas Open space within the PUD must meet the requirements of this
section.

A. In order to conform to the purpose and intent of the existing zone, and to make
PUDs compatible with existing surrounding uses and zones, the PUD must include
common-area Open space as required in the existing zone and shown in Table A. Each

11



building envelope in the PUD must include the required eommon-area open space for that
new zone. This common area requirement applies to residential, commercial, and
industrial PUDs.

Table A. Minimum commeon-area open space requirements

Required commeon Zon Required comnon
area gpen space one area open space

A 65 percent I 35 percent

C 25 percent P 0 percent

CR 25 percent R 35 percent

& 60 percent SPR 35 percent

F 60 percent

B. Commen-areas Open space in residential PUDs may not include streets or alleys

(public or private), sidewalks adjacent to streets, driveways, parking areas, storage,
laundry or utility facilities, RV and boat storage areas, public or private K-12 school
grounds, or areas covered by residential, commercial, or industrial structures, or their
accessory structures. Commen-area Open space may include the area between the curb
and detached sidewalk, excluding driveways, when that area is landscaped with trees and
appropriate groundcover. The board with action by the planning commission may allow
RV and boat storage areas (o count toward a portion of open space when the developer
demonstrates substantial enhancement for recreational purposes of a commensurale area
of land within the development.

sehooby—including reereation-areasathletictfields-and-playverounds—and-other-areas-not

B-C. Up to twenty percent of eomnon-areas open space in commercial and industrial
PUDs may include parking areas, utility facilities, and open drainage ways.

E:D. Comon-areas Open space within multifamily residential developments may
include landscaping, walking trails, swimming pools, and outdoor recreation facilities.

EE. Commen-areas Open space may include golf courses (public or private),
including fairways and other recreation arcas and facilities; provided, that the cumulative
area does not account for se more than fifty percent of the required commen-area open
space. Golf courses must be irrigated with reclaimed gray water.

G- F. Commen-areas Open space may include equestrian trails and uses when open to
the residents of the PUD.

H.G. At least twenty-five percent of the required common-areas open space must
have a slope of fifteen percent or less. At least fifty percent of the required eemmen-areas
open space having a slope of fifteen percent or less must be landscaped with trees, shrubs,
grass, or xeriscape landscaping, and have appropriate irrigation systems. A minimum of
one hundred square feet per residential unit must be designed for recreation, which may

12




include, but not be limited to, picnic areas, sports courts, a soft-scape surface covered
with turf, sand, or similar materials acceptable for safe use by young children, including
play equipment and trees, with a slope of five percent or less and no dimension less than
twenty-five feet, inclusive of the required landscaped area. The use of existing, native
vegetation may be used in conjunction with trails or other amenities not listed in this
subsection to satisfy the requirement for improved recreational areas.

LH. At least fifty percent of the required commeon-areas open space must consist of
connected, contiguous area that is greater than or equal to two hundred square feet with
widths no smaller than ten feet.

£I Common-areas Open space must be accessible to all property owners within the
PUD and connected by a comprehensive on-site pedestrian circulation system. Eommen
areas Open space must enhance circulation within the site, promote pedestrian use and
safety, and improve a site's aesthetic qualities.

K-J. Commen-areas Open space that are conveniently located, accessible, and visible
for the occupants of the PUD must be provided as required and may contain such
clements as public parks, pools, tennis courts, ball fields, and various buildings or
structures intended for recreational use.

=K. Commen-areas Open space including plazas and courtyards, should (but are not
required to) be designed, located, and landscaped to take advantage of solar orientation,
maximize water conservation measures, and afford summer shade and winter sunshine.

M:L. Where possible, on-site recreation areas should (but are not required to) be
linked with any appropriate transportation, bicycling, eommion-area open space, trails, or
other similar approved plan. When the property is on a trail designated by an adopted
plan, the trail must be provided and that area developed for the trail may be counted as
part of the required commen-area open space, even if the trail is dedicated. Similarly, if
the identified trail is planned for a natural drainage way adjacent to or bisecting the
development, the area of the drainage way developed as a trail or with other recreational
amenities may be counted as part of the eommeon-areas open space as well.

N-M. Allocation of eommeon-areas open space must be made to each development
envelope and for each phase of the PUD. The board with action by the planning
commission may require eemnon-areas open space beyond the requirements of this
chapter for particular development envelopes or phases of the PUD. In the event that
common-areas open space is not to be provided proportionally by phase, the developer
must execute a reservation of eommen-areas open space by grant of easement or
covenant in favor of the county authorizing the county to reserve all or a portion of the
reserved area to commen-areas open space in the event that the development is not
completed. (Ord. No. 15-269, § I, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § I, 12-4-2012)

17.56.110 €Ceommen-area Open space organization of ownership.
Commeon-areas Open space will not be accepted for dedication to the county.

The developer must provide for and establish an organization such as a homeowners
association for the ownership and maintenance for any and all-commeon-areas open space
and other common property which includes the following:

A. The form of document or covenant that will legally create an automatic
membership, nonprofit, homeowners, or occupants association.

B. The style of ownership in the commen-areas open space and other common

13



properties.

C. Restrictions on the use of the-commen-areas open space and other common
properties.

D. System for the operation and maintenance of the commeon-areas open space and
other common property.

E. System of charges or assessments on each PUD owner or occupant to assure
sufficient funds for maintenance of the eenrmen-areas open space and other common
property, and payment of county-assessed property taxes for the commen-areas open
space and other common property.

F. Residents or occupants of PUDs may, to the extent and in the manner expressly
authorized by the provisions of their conditions, covenants, and restrictions, modify or
remove their rights to enforce the provisions or their conditions, covenants, and
restrictions, but no such action may affect the right of the county to enforce the
provisions of this chapter.

G. The documents or forms must be reviewed by the district attorney and eomnunity
development-planning department prior to tentative approval. All documents required by
the county must be in a form that may be enforced by the county. (Ord. No. 15-269, § 1,
10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § 1, 12-4-2012)

17.56.120 Failure of an organization to act.

A. Prior to establishing an organization that will provide for the ultimate ownership
and maintenance of any commen-area open space and other common property, the
landowner will be responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of such
properties. Proper operation and maintenance must constitute full compliance of the plans
and schedules for such areas as approved by the board. The landowner must remain
responsible for the ownership, operation, and maintenance of the eemmeon-area open
space and other common property until a minimum of forty percent of the total PUD
units have been sold to individual buyers and the responsibility of the eemmeon-areas
open space has been transferred to the organization.

B. If an organization established by a landowner to provide for the ownership and
maintenance of any conumon-areas open space and other common property, at any time
after the reestablishment of a PUD, fails to maintain the eemmen-areas open space and
other common property in reasonable order and condition in accordance with the
development plan, the county may serve written notice upon such organization or upon
the residents of the PUD, setting forth the manner in which the organization has failed to
maintain the eemimen-area open space or other common property in reasonable condition.
The notice must include a demand that the deficiencies of maintenance be cured within
thirty days of the receipt of the notice and must state the date and place of a hearing
before the board, which must be within fourteen days after the expiration of the thirty-day
notice. At the hearing, the board may modify the terms of the original notice as to the
deficiencies and may give an extension of time within which they must be cured. (Ord.
No. 15-269, § I, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § 1, 12-4-2012)

17.56.130 Action by the county.
If the deficiencies set forth in the original notice or in the modification thereof are
not cured within the thirty-day period, or any extension, the board, in order to preserve

14



the taxable values of the properties within the PUD and to prevent the-connnon-area open
space and other common property from becoming a public nuisance, may direct county
departments or their designee to enter the eemmon-area open space or other common
properties and maintain it for a period of one year or less. This, however, does not release
the organization, residents, or occupants of the PUD from any liability which they would
otherwise have. (Ord. No. 15-269, § 1, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § I, 12-4-2012)

17.56.140 Maintenance for succeeding years.

Before the expiration of the period of maintenance the board must, upon its own
initiative, call a show cause public hearing upon notice to the organization or to the
residents of the PUD. At this hearing, the organization, residents, or occupants of a
planned unit development must show cause why maintenance by the organization or
residents of the PUD cannot be continued for the succeeding years. If the board
determines that the organization is ready and able to maintain the eemmen-area open
space or other common property in a reasonable condition, the county must cease its
maintenance at the end of the year. If the board determines that the organization is not
ready and able to maintain the eommen-area open space or other common properties in a
reasonable condition, the county may, at its discretion, continue the maintenance of the
eommen-area open space or other common property during the succeeding years. (Ord.
No. 15-269, § 1, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § I, 12-4-2012)

17.56.150 Expense of maintenance.

The cost of any and all maintenance and operations undertaken by the county must
be assessed proratably against all properties in the PUD and it must be a tax lien upon the
properties. (Ord. No. 15-269, § I, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-244, § I, 12-4-2012)

Proposed on , 2018.

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2018.
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners

15



Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County
Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storcy County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2018.

16



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Mecting date: 01/16/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

I Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-280 amending Storey
County Code Title 17 Zoning including chapters 17.03 Administrative Provisions, 17.10 Definitions, 17.12
General Provisions, 17.15 Public Zone, 17.24 Agriculture Zone, 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.30
Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32 Forestry Zone, 17.34 Light Industrial Zone, 17.35 Heavy Industrial
Zone, 17.40 bistate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning Review Zone; and 17.84 Signs and Billboards. In addition
to provisions of the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a
statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance,
Additional information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning
(@storeycounty.org.

2 Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning
commission, [ [commissioner] motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-280
amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including chapters 17.03 Administrative
Provisions, 17.10 Definitions, 17.12 General Provisions, 17.15 Public Zone, 17.24 Agriculture
Zone, 17.28 Commercial Zone, 17.30 Commercial-Residential Zone, 17.32 Forestry Zone, 17.34
Light Industrial Zone, 17.35 Heavy Industrial Zone, 17.40 Estate Zone, 17.44 Special Planning
Review Zone; and 17.84 Signs and Billboards.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 to adopt new codes for
zoning regulations other properly related matters.

6. Supporting materials: Drafts have been and remain posted at
https://www.storeycounty.org/517/Updates and will also be available at the board meeting.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

Dislrict Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
Z‘ ZDepartment Head Department Name:

U
A)\-‘ County Manager Other agency review: —-

10. Board action:
[] Approved

] Denied

Approved with Modifications

Continued
Agenda Item No. z b

Page 1 ol 1

PO —



Ordinance 17.280 Addendum
ADDENDUM

Meeting Date: 01/04/18.
To: Storey County Planning Commission.
Re: Addendum to Ordinance 17-280 (SCC 17.12 and 17.44 amendments).

Staff Recommendation: Add requested amendments to the update of said zoning chapters.

Note: Initial changes shown in blue italics and strikeout; addendum changes shown in blue bold
italics and blue bold strikeout.

SECTION I: Chapter 17.12 General provisions is amended as follows:

17.12.100

General Provisions for all zones

This section applies to all zones unless otherwise stated:

A. Noise, smoke, odor, gases, weeds, or other noxious nuisances must be controlled so as

C.

not to become objectionable, or adversely affect the properties in the vicinity, and
must not be detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare.

Marijuana

1. Uses involving the sale, display, dispensing, or cultivation of marijuana, regardless
of whether the marijuana is for medicinal, recreational or any other purpose is
prohibited and also is recognized by this ordinance as prohibited by federal
regulation.

2. The sale of items intended for use as marijuana paraphernalia to persons under the
age of 21 years is also a prohibited use.

3. Medical marijuana, as defined in SCC Section 17.10.030 and by Nevada Revised
Statute Chapter 453A Medical Use of Marijuana, is a prohibited use. Medical
marijuana establishments uses are unlawful and are prohibited as an allowed use,
special use, accessory use, or temporary use within all zoning districts.

4. Marijuana establishments, as defined in SCC Section 17.10.030 and by NRS
Chapter 453D, the Regulation and Taxation of Marijuana Act, including any
subsequent amendments or regulations is a prohibited use. Marijuana
establishment uses are unlawful and are prohibited as an allowed use, special use,
accessory use or temporary use within all zoning districts.

In zones where a commercial business is allowed, a special use permit is required for
the display, sale, barter, or trade of items asseeiated-with-a-business outside of a
permanent building, except for permitted temporary uses and farmer’s markets. A
business may not display items for sale or conduct any business on the public right-of-
way (See Figure 12.9.) or between the public traveled way and building, such as on
the boardwalk/sidewalk. Business including dining, customer seating, and other
uses, but not the display of merchandise and other items for sale, barter, or frade,
may occur in the front, side, and rear yards of the business where such area exists.
Recessed door openings and thresholds may be used to display items for sale, barter,
or trade and fo otherwise conduct business.

Page 1 of 3



Ordinance 17.280 Addendum

Items may be placed. dasplayed. or
stand witlun the doorway tlueshold

|

Ilems mmay
nol be

displayed Okay ~
0\"1;':” Itennss 1y not 4 Ttemas may be Ttems except
- be displayed = displayed $1gus Ay not
or hung ou the & S msicle the hang over
: 3
extenor or & = building nglu-of-way
bunlding wall k] 3 through
A 3
i) ‘.
\ & & wu
= -
¢ =

N\

N AN

Figure 12.9:; The dia shows where merchandise and other items may and may not be displayed. The diagram
does not ap signs and advertising devices which are regulated pursuant to chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

((In Figure 12.9, change hanging sign language to say “Signs, but not other items, may hang

over boardwalk and/or sidewalk where allowed by this code™.))

SECTION X: Chapter 17.44 SPR Special Planning Zone is amended as follows:

17.44.020 Allowed Uses
All allowed uses in the SPR special planning review zone must comply with the applicable
provisions of chapter 17.12 General provisions, and must be reviewed and approved by the board
with action by the planning commission. The allowed uses are as follows:

A. One single-family dwelling of permanent character in a permanent location.

B. Accessory use, buildings and structures if they are clearly incidental to a permitted use,
placed upon the same lot or parcel with a permitted use, and in compliance with section
17.12.045-046.

C. Agricultural and horticultural uses for domestic purposes and incidental to the
permitted uses. Uses included community gardens.

D. Private and commercial equestrian facilitiecs and uses, including riding arenas, rodeos
and equestrian events, stables, horse and pony rides, and carriage and stagecoach rides.

E. Chlldcare where 4 or less chlldren are cared for,

, ! filiepetent

.eq-mpmem—ewneéb' i y&heeeeupam—e#—&hepeﬂﬂmed-pnﬁamseﬂewdem - ; :

G.F. Museums including those related to history, natural resources, mining, milling,
trains, railroads, and other subjects.

H.G. Library and cultural services.

LH. Signs as regulated by chapter 17.84 Signs and billboards.

3.1 Any material or site improvement to enhance and promote the V&T Railroad and/or
V&T Railway.

k.J. Civic uses including:
1. Public facilities and offices for fire, emergency services, and sheriff. Jails are

prohibited.
2. Helipads and heliports for use only by medical evacuation transport services. These

uses are prohibited for any other purpose.
3. Crisis care use, temporary.

Page 2 of 3



Ordinance 17.280 Addendum

4. Libraries, governmental offices, post offices, and community centers.

5. Education including elementary, middle, and high (K-12) schools and academies,
colleges and higher education, technical and vocational education, apprentice
training, whether public, private, or parochial. A special use permit is required
student residential and boarding accommodations.

6. Picnicking areas, parks, dog parks, walking and bicycle trails, interpretive trails,
restroom facilities, and information kiosks.

H_The use of up to one shipping container as an accessory building. Review and
approval by the director of planning for conformance with section 17.12.045 is required if the
use exceeds 90 days or the period of an active building permit for the principal use on the

premises.
17.44.030 Uses Subject to Special Use Permit

A special use permit will be required for following uses or development which is determined by
the board with action by the planning commission to be potentially incompatible or detrimental
to the purpose and intent of the SPR special planning review zone.

A. Mining and extraction as regulated by chapter 17.92 Exploration, mining, and
extraction.

B. Milling and processing associated with mining and extraction.

C. Temporary (less than 1 year) concrete and asphalt batch plants when not incidental to
an on-site construction project or when located within 2,500 feet of a CR, E, R, or SPR
zone.

D. Bed and breakfast inns offering accommodations for up to 8 guests, subject to
providing one off-street parking space for each additional 10,000 square feet of lot area.

E. Education facilities that include student residential and boarding accommodations.

F. Indoor and outdoor archery clubs and indoor gun club for the sport of shooting at
moving or stationary targets or education related to the use and safety of firecarms and
archery.

G. The keeping of 5 or more dogs or 3 or more pot-belly pigs more than 12 weeks of age.
A minimum of 10 acres is required.

H. Commercial kennel. A minimum of 10 acres is required.

I. Cemeteries, but not columbariums, crematories, mausoleums, mortuaries, or funeral
parlors.

J. Congregational establishments, including religious institutions, fraternal lodges,
recreational and social clubs, labor halls, service clubs and facilities for other private
clubs.

K. Maintenance, display, or possession of one or more wild animals.

L. Open storage not directly associated with an active construction project on the
premises.

M. Storage parking for 2 or more recreational vehicles, boats, utility trailers, horse
trailers and similar equipmeni. or combination thereof, owned by the occupant of the
permitted principal use, provided that such items are stored entirely on private
property.

N. The use of two or more shipping containers as accessory buildings exceeding 90 days
or the period of an active building permit for the principal use on the premises.

M:O. Natural resources river restoration regulated under section 17.12.100.

N-P. Other similar uses to the above which are determined by the board with action by the

planning commission to be consistent with the uses permitted within the zone.

Page 3 of 3



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 01/16/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda |[x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-281 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.06 Nonconforming Uses pertaining to
legally nonconforming uses and adding language pertaining to substandard devclopment. In
addition to provisions of the NRS, any person may complete and return to the Board or Planning
Commission a statement supporting or opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and
zoning ordinance. Additional information may be obtained from thc Planning Dcpartment at 775-
847-1144 or planning (@storeycounty.org.

2 Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning
commission, I [commissioner] motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-281
amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.06 Nonconforming Uses
pertaining to legally nonconforming uses and adding language pertaining to substandard
development.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 to adopt new codes for
legally non-conforming uses and adding language pertaining to substandard
development and other properly related matters.

6. Supporting materials: Drafis have been and remain posted at
https://www.storeycounty.org/517/Updates and will also be available at the board meeting.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

District Attorney
9. Revicwed by:
—~¢ . Department Head Department Name:
m\“*/County Manager Other agency review: o

10. Board action:
(] Approved | Approved with Modifications

I
[] Denied | ] Continued
Agenda Item No, 1\

Page 1 of 1



Ordinance No. 18.281

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code title 17 Zoning Ordinance, to
amend requirements pertaining to legally nonconforming uses and to add
language pertaining to substandard development.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code title 17 Zoning Ordinance,

to amend requirements pertaining to legally nonconforming uses and to

add language pertaining to substandard development, and providing for
other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of
Nevada, does ordain to amend Chapter 17.06 as follows:

Chapter 17.06

Nonconforming Uses and Substandard Development

Sections:

17.06.010 Purposc.

17.06.015 Definitions.

17.06.020 Continuance of nonconforming use
17.00.025 Abandonment of nonconforming use
+7-06-025 Noenconforntng pareelsize

17.06.030 Expansion of nonconforming use
17.06.035 Nonconforming parcel size

17.06.040 Discontinuance of nonconforming use
17.06.050 Damaged nonconforming buildings
17.06.060 Procedure for loss of legal nonconforming use status
17.06.070 Substandard development

17.06.010 Purpose

The purpose of this chapter is to regulate and limit the continued existence of lawfully
created uses, and structures, and parcels, and legally created uses, structures and parcels
which do not satisfy the current provisions of this title regarding parking, landscaping,
signs. or other development siandards including building heighi. building design,

Page 1 of 5



setbacks. and other dimensional standards established before the enactment of this title,

or any amendments that do not conform to the provisions of this title.

These nonconforming uses may continue; but the intent is to limit substantial investment
in nonconforming uses and structures and when necessary to preserve the integrity of this
title to bring about their eventual elimination.

17.06.015 Definitions

1. A "nonconforming use"” means any use of land which was lawjfully established

prior to the adoption of this tille or amendments thereto, or lot which was created

on or after July 1, 1999, which would not be permitted under the current

provisions of this title. This includes any use which was lawfully established

without a discretionary review, and would require that review under the current

provisions of this tille.

2. A “substandard development” means a lawfully improved lot or parcel, including

any struclure thereupon, which does not satisfy the current provisions of this title

regarding parking. landscaping, signs, or other site development standards

including building height. building desien, sethacks or other dimensional

standards.

17.06.020 Continuance of Nonconforming Use
A lawful use of land or buildings not in conformance with the regulations prescribed in
this title but legally existing before the enactment of this title or any amendments may be
a continued nonconforming use.
17.06.025 Abandonment of Nonconforming Use

3. Abandonment is any cessation of a use regardless of intent 1o resume the use. In

considering whether a use is abandoned. the Administrator shall consider any

combination of the following:

a.

®

Failure to maintain regular business hours, typical or normal for the use;

Failure to maintain equipment, supplies or stock-in-trade that would be
used for the active operation of the use;

Failure to maintain utilities that would be used for the active operation of
the use;

Failure to pay taxes, including but not limited to sales iax, workers'
compensation taxes, corporate taxes that would be required for the active
operation of the use;

Failure to maintain required local. state or federal licenses or other
approvals that would be required for the active operation of the use;

Failure to maintain applicable business license(s),; and

Other relevant evidence.

Page 2 of §



4. If a nonconforming use ceases for a continuous period of more than iwo years, or
is superseded by a permitted use for a period of at least two vears. the
nonconforming use is deemed abandoned and shall not be reestablished.

17:06.025 Nonconforming Pareel-Size

Thearea-of any lotereated-alter the effective date-of this tile-mustnot be less-than-the
minirum-area required-by-the respective zone—Where-an-existing-lot-has-less-area-than
required-in-the-zone; but-wasrecorded-before-the-adopton-ef-this-title-or-any-amendments
that-make-the Jotnenconformingthe lotmay-remain-at-Hs-existing size-and-be-developed
with-the uses-alowable-in-the-zone—A-variance-pursuant-to-chapter 1 7-03-Administrative
provisions—will-berequired-H buildingsethack-requirements-cannot-be-met

17.06.030 Expansion of Nonconforming Use

1. A nonconforming use of land or building may not be extended or expanded more
than 10 percent of the area lawfully occupied by the nonconforming use as of the
date on which it became nonconforming. except with a special use permit. Ninor
modifications-orrepair-and-maiitenance-are-permitied: The extension or
expansion musi not extend onto an additional parcel.

2. _Any enlargement of a nonconforming use not requiring a special use permil must
be reviewed and approved by the director of planning for conformance with this

chapter.

17.06.035 Nonconforming Parcel Size

The area of any lot created on or after July 1, 1999 must not be less than the minimum
area required by the respective zone. Where an existing lot has less area than required in
the zone, but was recorded before July 1, 1999 or any amendments that make the lot
nonconforming, the lot_ may remain al its existing size and be developed with the uses
allowable in the zone. A variance pursuant to chapter 17.03 Administrative provisions,
will be required if building setback requirements cannot be met.

17.06.040 Discontinuance of Nonconforming Use

A lawful use of nonconforming land or buildings, including house trailers or mobile
homes, which is operationally abandoned or discontinued for a period of one year or
more, may not be resumed or re-established.

17.06.050 Damaged Nonconforming Buildings

Nonconforming buildings that have been damaged or destroyed by natural calamity may
be repaired or reconstructed within one year from the date of damage; provided the
repaired or reconstructed building is same as the previous use and the repairs cost less
than 50% of the fair market valuation.

17.06.060 Procedure for Loss of Legal Nonconforming Use Status

The building and planning departments have the responsibility to ensure compliance with
this chapter. If either or both department determine that a use or structure no longer
meets the requirements of a legally created nonconforming structure or use, the
department will file a report with the reason for the determination and a recommendation
with the board. Personal notice must given to the owner of the nonconforming structure
and a hearing must be set within 30 days of the date the notice is mailed specifying the

Page 3 of 5



time and place of the hearing. The board must decide whether the use or structure is
required to meet the provisions of this title.

17.06.070 Substandard Development

1. _Applicability. Substandard development means a lawfully improved lot or parcel,
including any structure thereupon, which does not satisfy the current provisions
of this title regarding parking, landscaping, signs, or other site development
standards including building height, building design. sethacks or other
dimensional standards.

2. _Alteration, extension, or expansion. A structural alternation, including an
extension or expansion of a nonconforming structure is allowed if'it:

a. Does not increase the applicable nonconformity: and

b. Does not involve or create a nonconforming use or substandard
development.

3. Muaintenance, repairs, and alterations. Routine maintenance of nonconforming
structures is permitted_including necessary non-structural repairs, paint, and
incidental alternation which do not extend or intensify the nonconformity.

4. Right to continue a substandard development. A substandard development may
continue (o be occupied and used for any purpose permitted by this tile unless it
becomes a public nuisance or is damaged or destroyed as provided in this title.

5. Intensification of a substandard development.

a. Intensification of a substandard development (order “intensify”) is any:

i. Increase in lot coverage;
ii. Increase in building floor area; or
iii. Increase in building heighi.

b. A substandard development must not intensify unless the incremental
changes and/or additions meet the current requirements of this title,
excepl _as provided below.

c. Ifthe development is substandard as to parking, the intensification is not
allowed unless the entire development provides ai least 75 percent of the
currently required parking.

d. Ifthe development is substandard as to landscaping requirements in the
county design standards manual , the intensification of the use is not
allowed unless the entire development provides at least 65 percent of the
county required landscaping.

e. Ifthe development is unable to meet the requirement of this section. the
changes or enlargements to a substandard development may be approved
through a special use permit when the proposed changes are not
detrimental to the public health, safely, and welfare.

Proposed on ,2018.

by Commissioner

Page 4 of 5



Passed on

Vote: Ayes:

Nays:

Absent

Attest:

, 2018.

Commissioners

Commissioners

Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Vanessa Stephens

Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2018.

Page 5 of 5



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 01/16/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-276 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning to provide for design criteria and improvement standards for
certain types of development and a design review process with review by the planning director
with appeal to the planning commission and board. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any
person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement supporting or
opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance. Additional
information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning
@storeycounty.org.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning
commission, [ [commissioner] motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-276
amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning to provide for design criteria and improvement
standards for certain types of development and a design review process with review by the
planning director with appcal to the planning commission and board.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: An ordinance amending Storey County Code Title 17 zoning to adopt new
codes allowing for the adoption by Resolution of the County Commissioners a

design standard manual for certain residential and non-residential
development in the county, and other properly related matters.

6. Supporting materials: Drafts have been and remain posted at
https://www.storeycounty.org/517/Updates and will also be available at the board meeting.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local govermment.

['unds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:

7 Department Head Department Name:
/8 JA/ County Manager Other agency review; B -
10. Board action:

[] Approved Approved with Modifications

|
| Continued

e g

[]  Denied

Agenda Item No.

Page 1 of 1

22



Ordinance No. 18-276

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code title 17 to provide for design
criteria and improvement standards for certain types of developments and a
design review process with review by the planning director with
an appeal to the planning commission and board.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code title 17 to provide for design
criteria and improvement standards for certain types of developments and
a design review process with review by the planning director
with appeal to the planning commission and board, and
providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTIONI:

Chapter 17.03 is amended as follows:

17.03.050 Applications.

A. Application deadline. An application for a variance, a special use permit, a zoning map
amendment, a master plan amendment, zoning code amendment, an amendment to this title, or
an appeal of an administrative decision must be filed with the director no later than five 5.:00
p.m. on the Friday of the third week before the planning commission meeting at which the
application will be heard. The director may under certain exigent circumstances make a
determination to accept an application after the deadline but before that planning commission
meeting.

B. Determination of a complete application. Within 5 working days after receiving an
application, the director will determine whether the application is complete. If the director
determines that the application is not complete, the director must contact the applicant during
that time period verbally or in writing and state the application's deficiencies and describe the
additional information required. The director may take no further action on the application unless
the deficiencies are remedied. An application may only be scheduled for hearing if the director
deems the application complete before the agenda deadline date of the planning commission or
board. A determination of completeness will not constitute a determination of compliance with
other requirements of this title or federal and state regulations.

Draft 9-14-2017



C. Fee submittal. The required application fee must be tendered to the planning department
with the submitted application.

D. Processing of an application. The director will review the application and prepare a report
for the planning commission and board recommending approval, approval with conditions,
denial, or continuance for redesign. The director will schedule the application for public hearing
within the time and in the manner required by this title and state statute. An application for a
planned unit development must be preceded by a pre-submittal conference pursuant to
Section 17.032.320(A).

E. Official filing date. The time for processing and acting on planning commission and board
applications as established by NRS or this title will commence on the date that the application is
deemed complete. Material modifications of any application by the applicant following the filing
of the application will re-establish the time for processing and acting on the application upon the
director's determination that the modified application is complete.

17.03.070 Notice provisions.

A. Published notice. Unless as otherwise provided by this title, any application, including
a zoning map or text amendment, tentative map, planned unit development, master plan
amendment (land use amendment or element text amendment), that requires a public hearing
to be held, a notice of the time and place of the hearing must be published in an official
newspaper of general circulation in the county at least ten days before the date for the hearing.

B. Personal notice. Whenever personal notice of a public hearing is required by this title or
NRS 278, in addition to the published notice, including an application for a variance, special
use permit, zoning map or text amendment, tentative map, planned unit development map,
master plan amendment (land use map amendment or element text amendment), appeal of
administrative decision or administrative permit, the director will mail notice of the hearing
not less than ten days before the public hearing date to:

1. The applicant;

2. All record property owners, as shown on the latest equalized assessment rolls,
within three hundred feet of the exterior boundaries of the subject property, to all property
owners of land within such area proposed for rezoning;

3. Each tenant of a mobile home park if that park is located within three hundred feet
of the property in question, written notice of the time, place and date of such hearing and the
general location of the property of the addressee with reference to the property proposed for
change; and

4. At least thirty unique property owners nearest the subject site if there are not thirty
unique property owners within three hundred feet of the subject site.

C. Notice for zoning map and text amendments. In addition to published and personal
notice required above, the notice for a zoning map or text amendment must set forth the time,
place and purpose of the hearing and a physical description of or a map detailing the proposed
change. It must indicate the existing zoning designation and the proposed zoning designation
of the property in question, and must contain a brief summary of the intent of the proposed
change. If the proposed amendment involves a change in the boundary of the zoning district
that would reduce the density or intensity with which a parcel of land may be used, the notice



must include a section that an owner of property may complete and return to the board to
indicate his or her approval of or opposition to the proposed amendment.

D. Notice for design review, excluding minor design review. The planning department must
send, by first class mail, notice of the filing of an application to all contiguous property owners.
Contiguous for the purpose of this section includes those properties that touch the parcel which
is subject to the land use request including those which would touch the property when projected
across a public or private easement or right-of-way. The notice must contain a brief description
of the request, the location of plans for review and a deadline for comment,

B E. When notice of a hearing is sent, the board or other entity must retain:
1. A copy of the notice;
2. A list of the persons or governmental entities to which the notice was addressed; and
3. A record of the date on which the notice was deposited in the United States mail
postage prepaid, or sent by clectronic means. (Ord. No. 15-269, § I, 10-20-2015; Ord. No. 12-
244,81, 12-4-2012)

17.03.135 Design Review

A. Design review is required for:

1. Subdivision maps (division into 5 or more parcels);

2. Parcel maps (division into 4 or less parcels);

3. Planned unit developments;

4. Multi-family complexes (consisting of 2 or more principal multi-family residential
buildings):

5. All uses located within the Industrial Professional zone; and

6. Shopping centers including: commercial neighborhood store or shopping center,
commercial regional store or shopping center, commercial shopping center, and commercial
super regional store or shopping centers.

B. A building permit may not be issued for a development subject 1o design review until a
desion review has been approved in accordance with this chapter and conditions of approval

have been met.

C. The following uses are exempt from the design review requirements:

1. Interior remodels which do not result in substantial changes in the character of the
occupancy or use, or cause greater impact on traffic, water or sewer usage, as determined by
the director.

2. Repair and maintenance of structures or parking areas constrained by the existing
structure and not altering existing drainage patterns or easements;

3. Replacement or repair of a structure partially destroyed by fire, flood or other
natural occurrence, when the repair of the structure is determined by the director to be
consistent with the design, use and intensity of the original structure and consistent with the

zoning and master plan designations:
4. Reductions of floor area or building area within a previously approved design review

where it is determined that the modification would not result in a significant change in site
design, building design, or functionality of the site;




D. The following projects are subject to minor design review:

1. Accessory dwelling units;

2. Expansions of uses listed in subsection (A) above of less than 25% in total floor area,
where the proposed expansion will not cause increased impacts on existing infrastructure and
public services, as determined by the director;

3. Changes in use requiring additional parking, where the proposed use will not cause
increased impacts on existing infrastructure and public services, as determined by the
director, and the use is proposed in existing structures;

4. Exterior remodeling;

5. Residential multi-family uses consisting of one building on a single parcel.

6. Wireless communication facilities as defined in section 17.10 Definitions and
regulated pursuant to chapter 17.12 General Provisions.

7. Non-commercial telecommunications site, multiple structures, or those not meeting
sethback or height requirements, including station antenna structures, as defined in section
17.10 Definitions and regulated pursuant to chapter 17.12 General Provisions.

8. All wind energy conversion systems regulated pursuant to chapter 17.12 General
Provisions.

17.03.136 Procedure for Design Review

A. The director will review the development application for conformance with the design
criteria manual, set forth findings in accordance with section 17.03.137. and make a
recommendation to the board and planning commission based on those findings. The board
and planning commission will consider those findings and make other findings necessary
before the decision on the development application.

17.03.137 Procedure for review for multi-family complexes
A. The director is the final decision-maker for design review applications. Design review
applications are subject to administrative review and do not require a public hearing.

B. The director will review the submitted site and building plans of the multi-family
complex for conformance with the design criteria manual, set forth findings in accordance
with section 17.03.137, and make a final decision.

17.03.138 Findings

When considering development applications and applications for design review, the
director,_board_and planning commission, as applicable, must evaluate the impact of the
design review on and its compatibility with surrounding properties and neighborhoods to
ensure the appropriateness of the development and make the following findings:

A. The proposed development is consistent with the goals and policies embodied in the
master plan and the general purpose and intent of the applicable district regulations.

B. The proposed development is compatible with and preserves the character and integrity
of adjacent development and neighborhoods and includes improvements or modifications




either on-site or within the public rights-of-way to mitigate development related adverse
impacts. such as traffic. noise. odors. visual nuisances. or other similar adverse effects to
adjacent development and neighborhoods. These improvements or modifications may include
but are not be limited to the placement or orientation of buildings and entryways, parking
areas, buffer yards, and the addition of landscaping, walls, or both.

C. The proposed development will not generate pedestrian or vehicular traffic that will be
hazardous or conflict with the existing and anticipated traffic in the neighborhood,

D. The proposed development incorporates roadway improvements, traffic control devices
or mechanisms, or access restrictions to control traffic flow or divert traffic as needed to
reduce or eliminate development impacts on surrounding neighborhood streels.

E. The proposed development incorporaies features to minimize adverse effects, including
visual impacts, of the proposed development on adjacent properties.

F. The project is not located within an identified archeological/cultural study area, as
recognized by the county. If the project is located in a study area, an archeological resource

reconnaissance has been performed on the site by a qualified archeologist and any identified

resources have been avoided or mitigated to the extent possible per the findings in the report.

G. The proposed development complies with all additional standards imposed on it by the
particular provisions of this chapter, the Storey County design criteria and improvement
standards and all other requirements of this title applicable to the proposed development and
uses within the applicable base zoning district; and

H. The proposed development will not be materially detrimental to the public heallh,
safety, convenience and welfare, or result in material damage or prejudice to other property

in the vicinily.

17.03.135 Decision on design review and appeal for multi-family complexes

A. The director must approve, deny, or conditionally approve the design review of multi-
family complexes within 30 working days of submittal of building and site plans. Appeal of the
director’s decision is lo the planning commission and board.

B. The director in his sole discretion may refer the design review of multi-family complexes
for review by the planning commission and decision by the board in lieu of rendering a
decision on the site plans. In such event, the planning commission must consider the design
review at a public hearing and render its recommendation to the board in accordance with
section 17.03. The decision of the board must be in accordance with section 17.03. The
planning commission and the board must apply the standards for design review set forth in
this title.

Proposed on , 2017.




by Commissioner

Passed on , 2017.
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent: Commissioners
Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Attest:
Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County
This ordinance will become effective on , 2017.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 01/16/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

= Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-282 amending
Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions to revise
the procedure for the expiration of development permits. In addition to provisions of the NRS, any
person may complete and return to the Board or Planning Commission a statement supporting or
opposing the proposed amendments to the county code and zoning ordinance. Additional
information may be obtained from the Planning Department at 775-847-1144 or planning
@storeycounty.org.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning
commission, [ [commissioner] motion to approve First Reading of Ordinance No. 18-282
amending Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning including Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions
to revise the procedure for the expiration of development permits.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4, Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: An ordinance amending Storey County Code Chapter 17.03 to address the
expiration of development permits, such as special use permits for which no
development occurs within 24 months, and other properly related matters.

6. Supporting materials: Drafts have been and remain posted at
https://www.storeycounty.org/517/Updates and will also be available at the board meeting,.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government,
Funds Available: Fund: ____Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
Z Z- Department Head Department Name:

,Ql) County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved | ] Approved with Modifications
[

[] Denied Continued
Agenda Item No. : ! %

Page 1 of 1



Ordinance No. 18-282

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 17.03 Administrative Provisions to revise
the procedure for the expiration of development permits.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 17.03.230 Administrative Provisions,
to revise the procedure for the expiration of development permits, and providing for other
properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION I: Chapter 17.03 is amended by adding the following sections:

17.03.112 Expiration of time for development permifs.

A. Unless otherwise specifically provided for in this title, development permits will
automatically expire and become null or void_and all activities related to the permit will be
deemed in violation of this title, if the applicant:

1. Fails to inaugurate the projeci;

2. Fails to pursue the project to completion;

3. Fuails to satisfy any condition that was imposed as part of the original or revised
approval of the development application or that was made pursuant to the terms of any
development agreement, within the time limits established in the agreement for satisfaction of the
condition or lerm; or

4. Fails to present a subsequent development application required by this title within the
time required or as may be required by law.

B. If no time limit for satisfaction of conditions is specified in the original or revised approval
of the development application, the time is deemed to be two years from the date the approval
was granted by the final decision-maker.

17.03.114 Extension procedures.

An applicant may request an extension of the following approved development permits:
design review. modification, sign permit, special use permit, or variance. The director may
grant one, two-year administrative extension of time from the original date of the development
permil expiration. The director may refer the extension application and decision to the final
decision maker who originally approved the development permit. An administrative extension
does not require notice to be provided or a public hearing. Subsequently. the final decision
maker who originally approved the development permit, may granl one additional extension of
time up to two years. All requests for an extension must include a letter of request, the
applicable fee, and a writien justification for the extension prior (o the expiration of the

Draft 9-21-2017



development permit. _In reviewing any extension, the final decision maker must consider the
continued appropriateness of the development permit and may add conditions, as necessary, (o
ensure the project does not adversely impact other properties in the area, protects the public
interest, and ensures the public health, safety. or welfare. No further extension may be granted
by the director or by the final decision maker except as provided by an adopted development
agreement or by law.

17.03.116 Revocation of development permits.

A. Duties of director. If the director or board determines. based on inspection by county
staff. that there are reasonable grounds for revocation of a development permit authorized by
this title, the director must set a hearing before the orviginal hearing body, or if the decision was
made by the director, to the body to which appeal may be taken under ihis title. If the board was
the original hearing body, it may refer the proposed revocation to the planning commission for
its report and recommendation prior (o the hearing.

B. Notice must be given in the same manner provided in chapter 17.03. The public hearing
must be conducted in accordance with the procedures established in chapter 17.03.

C. Required findings. The hearing body may revoke the development permit upon makin
one or more of the following findings:

L. That the development permit was issued on the basis of erroneous or misleading
information or misrepresentation by the applicant.

2. That the terms or conditions of approval of the permit relating to establishment or
operation of the use approved have either been violated or not met, or that other laws or

rulations of the county, state, f o or regional agencies applicable 1o the development have

been violated.

D. Decision and notice. Within ten working days from the conclusion of the hearing, the
hearing body must render a decision, and must notify the holder of the permit and any other
person who has filed a written request for the notice in the manner provided in chapter 20.20.

E. A decision to revoke a development permit will become final ten days afier the date of

notice of I/1e decision was szen unless appealed. Afier the effective date_all activities pursuant
eal of the director’s decision to revoke the

permil may he made (o the board and must conform to the procedures established in chapter
17.03. There is no appeal where the board has revoked a development permit. Whenever any
application for a development permit is revoked, an application for a development permit for all
or a part of the same property must not be considered for a period of one year from the date of
revocalion unless the subsequent application involves a proposal that is materially different from
the previously revoked proposal.

. The county’s right to revoke a development permit, as provided in this chapter, is
cumulative to any other remedy allowed by law.

Proposed on ,2018.

by Commissioner

Passed on ,2018.

Draft 9-21-2017 2



Vote: Ayes: Commissioners

Nays: Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on ,2018.

Draft 9-21-2017 3



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 01/16/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required {x]

1. Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: Approval of Resolution No. 18-474 to the Board
of County Commissioners with recommendation by the Planning Commission adopting a design
criteria and improvement manual setting forth certain development and design standards and
guidelines for residential and non-residential planned unit developments, multi-family residential
complexes, and other uses.

2. Recommended motion: I [commissioner] motion to approve Resolution No. 18-474
adopting a design criteria and improvement manual setting forth certain development and design
standards and guidelines for residential and non-residential planned unit developments, multi-
family residential complexes, and other uses.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osbome
4. Department; Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: See Enclosure A Staff Summary. Certain amendments to Title 17 Zoning must
complete before this resolution may be considered. See Ordinances 18-278

and 18-276.

6. Supporting materials: Enclosure A Staff Summary; and drafts of the design standards manual
have been and remain posted at https://www.storeycounty.org/517/Updates and will be available at
the board meeting.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: _____ Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
v%/ Department Head ‘ Department Name:

(me Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[ Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications

Continued
Agenda Item No. L

—_——

Page 1 of 2



Enclosure A: Staff Summary

PURPOSE

Storey County has experienced significant industrial, commercial, and residential growth over the past
two decades and this trend is expected to continue. This design manual was developed in accordance
with the goals and objectives of the 2016 Storey County Master Plan in order to provide property
owners, designers, and developers of industrial, commercial, and residential planned unit
developments, and developers of multi-family complexes, clear and concise development standards
that are consistent with the master plan.

The objective of the design standards manual is to enhance and promote the aesthetic and economic
viability of Storey County and protect its historic, cultural, and scenic resources. The design manual
also encourages the highest level of quality while also providing flexibility and uniqueness of
individual projects. The design manual will be used by community development and planning staff
during review of planned unit development proposals in the county.

APPLICABILITY

The design manual is not to be construed as a county code of regulations, but rather a document
providing county leaders, staff, and land developers guidelines for development to occur within the
goals and objectives of the county master plan.

This design manual applies to new commercial, industrial, residential, and mixed-use planned unit
developments and also to new multi-family complexes consisting of two or more principal buildings.
This design manual does not apply to new commercial, industrial, and residential construction, or
significant improvements or expansions to existing structurcs.

GOALS

The Planning Design Criteria attempts to achieve the following goals and objectives laid out in the
Storey County Master Plan.
1. Provide design standards which conform with and implement the goals, objectives, and
policies of the Storey County Master Plan.

Direct and manage orderly, efficient, and sustainable development in the county.
Create and maintain livable and sustainable communities,

Create and maintain complete communities,

Facilitate pedestrian-friendly communities.

Facilitate existing and future automobile-alternative transportation systems,

S

To ensure safe and sustainable water resources for each community and natural
ecosystem in the county.

8. Design communitics which attract diverse people and workforce.

9.  Create and maintain a diverse economy.

10. Create integrated public facilities.

I'1. Maintain distinct communitics in the county.

12. Maintain compatibility between uses.

13. Implement design and performance standards that minimizes use conflicts.

14. Balance renewable energy systems with other uses.

Page 2 of 2



Resolution Number 18-474

A Resolution adopting the 2018 Storey County Design Criteria

and Improvement Manual

Whereas, Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), sections 278.150 to 278.220 and Storey
County Code, 17.03.210, provides the procedure for the adoption and amendment of the Master
Plan by Planning Commissions and the Boards of County Commissioners; and

Whereas, NRS 278.160 requires the master plan to have a land use element, which must
include (1) provisions concerning community design, including standards and principles
governing the subdivision of land and suggestive patterns for community design and
development, (2) a land use plan, including an inventory and classification of types of natural
land and of existing land cover and uses, and comprehensive plans for the most desirable
utilization of land. The land use plan must, if applicable, address mixed-use development,
transit-oriented development, master-planned communities and gaming enterprise districts.

Whereas, NRS 278.230 requires the governing body, upon recommendation of the
planning commission, to put the adopted master plan into effect. The governing body shall
determine upon reasonable and practical means for putting into effect the master plan or part
thereof, in order that the same will serve as a pattern and guide for that kind of orderly physical
growth and development of the county which will cause the least amount of natural resource
impairment. The governing body may adopt and use such procedure as may be necessary for
this purpose; and

Whereas, Storey County has conducted hearings to obtain public input to ensure
consistency between the master plan, Storey County Codes, and the Design Criteria and
Improvement Standards Manual;

Now therefore, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners resolves to approve
the 2018 Storey County Design Criteria and Improvement Standards Manual attached to this
resolution as Exhibit A.

Adopted this day of , 2018, by the following vote:

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners:




Nays: Commissioners:

Absent: Commissioners:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Storey County Clerk



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 01/16/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

81
1. Title: Discussion/For Possible Action: Approval of Resolution No. 18-?6-1' determining
and consolidating all planning fees, including removing certain fees from code and placing them
into resolution.

2 Recommended motion:
Based on the recommendation from staff, [ [commissioner] motion to approve Resolution
No. 18-461determining and consolidating all planning fees, including removing certain
fees from code and placing them into resolution.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968

5. Staff summary: Planning and development fees are to be adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners by resolution. This action will not raise, reduce, or create new.
fees from what already exist by resolution or in county code. The amendments
are consistent with updates occurring to Storey County Code Title 16
Subdivisions and Title 17 Zoning.

6. Supporting materials: Enclosures: Draft Resolution 18-461 with fee schedule.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
I'unds Available: Fund; Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:

/—;<§SQ‘L/€(M)' Manager Other agency review: B

10. Board action:
[] Approved Approved with Modifications

[ |
[] Denied [ ] Continued 5
Agenda Item No. z

Page 1 of 3



431
Resolution No. 18-461
A resolution consolidating fees for Storey County services.

Whereas, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners (the Board) has determined
that the county has many different fees in various parts of the Storey County Code and that many
fees are set by resolution of the Board. The Board has determined that it would be more
effective to have a single resolution with all the fees for services contained in that resolution.

Whereas, the Board has determined that consolidating all the fees into the fee resolution is a
large project and that by incrementally adding the fees to the resolution as sections of the Storey
County Code are revised would be an effective method for consolidating fees that are set by
resolution. The Board has further determined that the fee resolution should be reviewed annually
in May or June before the start of the fiscal year.

Whereas, the Board is in the process of amending titles 16 and 17 of the Storey County
Code and finds that the fees for planning and zoning under NRS 278 and for signs should be
taken out of the Storey County Code and consolidated in a fee resolution. These fees are not
considered a rule and are exempt from the NRS 237 requirement of a business impact statement.

Whereas, the Board desires to review fees before adding the fees to the fee resolution.

The Board resolves and agrees to set the fees as follows:

Planning Department development application fees:

Application Type

Application Fee

Abandonment $200
Amended map No fee
Billboards See SUP

Boundary line adjustment

$250 + $25 per lot

Condition amendment

No fee

Development agreement

$1,000

Extension of time request
(one year only)

50% of original fee

Land division map creating 5 or
more parcels

$500 + $25 per lot

Lot consolidation No fee
Master plan map amendment $2,900
Master plan text amendment $800

Minor amendment/deviation No fee
Small Operations Mining Permit $65 per hour

Parcel map
Record of Survey

$250 + $25 per lot

Parcel map-final

No fee

Planned unit development (PUD)

$500 + $1 per lot




Tentative map

Planned unit development (PUD) $200 + $25 per lot
Final map

Signs No fee
Special use permit (SUP) minor $250
SUP routine $450
SUP major $750
SUP major industrial $2,500
Street name request No fee
Variance administrative No fee
Variance $100
Wireless communication facility No fee
Wireless communication facility No fee
modification

Zoning map amendment $1,000
Zoning text amendment No fee

This resolution will be considered for review by the board every 5 years.

Adopted and effective this day of

following vote:

Vote:

Attest:

Ayes: Commissioners:

2018 by the

Nays: Commissioners:

Absent; Commissioners:

Marshall McBride, Chair

Storey County Board of Commissioners

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1-16-18 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting, A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

_ District Attomey
8. Reviewed by:
x__ Deglarthent Wead Department Name:
% e,
,/%},Ceuﬁty Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:

(] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—_—
—_—

Agenda [tem No. 1b



Storey County G:nmmunitp Development
MBuginess §

P O Box 526 - Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 « mfield@storeycounty. org

0 Licenging

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office January 8, 2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the January 16, 2018 COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

B STREEET HOUSE BED & BREAKFAST - General / 58 N “B” St ~ Virginia City, NV
AIR GUYS LLC - General / 1211 Avian Dr. ~ Sparks, NV
NEW ELECTRIC STERLING HEIGHTS LLC- General / 6475 19 : Mi. ~ Sterling Hghts, MI
URTON LTD - Contractor / 1512 Hwy 395 N ~ Gardnerville, NV
SUGINO CORP - General / 1380 Hamilton Pkwy ~ Itasca, IL
LIBERTY INDUSTRIAL GROUP INC - Contractor/ 1132 S 500 W ~ Salt Lake City, UT
AQ&B, LLC - General / 5470 Sidehill Dr ~ Sun Valley, NV
KYYBA, INC — General / 28230 Orchard Lk ~ Farmington Hills, MI
YBD TECH MOVING, LLC - General / 1 East First St ~ Reno, NV
SHRED IT USA - General / 28161 N. Keith Dr — Lake Forest, [L
COMSTOCK COPYWRITING - General / 21335 Saddleback ~ VC Highlands, NV
GO SOLAR GROUP, LLC - Contractor / 4892 S Commerce Dr ~ Murray, UT
- TANAMERA CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 5560 Longley Ln ~ Reno, NV
GULF COAST PROTECTIVE WRAP, LLC - General / 5301 Longley Ln ~ Reno, NV
MASKINE LLC - General / 704 Mill Rd ~ Webster, IN
AMAZON.COM.KYDC, LLC - General / 410 Terry Ave N ~ Seattle, WA
COSCO FIRE PROTECTION INC - Contractor / 3620 W. Reno ~ Las Vegas, NV
COMSTOCK CRITTER TAXIDERMY — Home Business / 2247 S, Main St ~ Virginia City, NV
THERMAL RESOURCE SALES, INC - General / 750 Yellow Pine Rd ~ Reno, NV
ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS, INC - Contractor / 6265 San Fernando ~ Glendale, CA
TESLA, INC - General / 3550 Deer Cr Rd ~ Palo Alto, CA
. APPLIED MANUFACTURING TECHNOLOGIES LLC - 219 Kay Industrial Dr ~ Orion, MI
W CALIFORNIA-NEVADA ILLUMINATION, INC — General / 4000 Executive Pkwy ~ San Ramon, CA
X. QUALITY TELECOM CONSULTANTS, INC - Contractor / 3740 Cincinnati Ave ~ Rocklin, CA
Y. EAGLE NEST PARTNERS — General / 2255 Green Vista ~ Sparks, NV
Z. ELWEMA AUTOMOTICE GMBH - General / 21 Schneider-Strasse 21 ~ Ellwanger Wagst, Germany
AA.SPARKS ELECTRIC MOTOR REPAIR, LLC - General / 845 Marietta Way ~ Sparks, NV
BB. INMAN’S JEWELRY - Home Business / 204 Wagon Wheel ~ Dayton, NV
CC. BOURQUE ENTERPRISES - General / 5017 S 36™ St ~ Phoenix, AZ

EXCRYROROZEN AN TZOMES AW

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



@oo1

01/10/2018 WED 14:55 FAX
L2 R R T TR R R
*%% FAX MULTI TX REPORT ***
Je ke ke ok ok ok ko ok ok ok ok ok ok ko ke ok kR ok ok kb
JOB NO. 0478
PGS. 7
TX INCOMPLETE = =  ==—==
TRANSACTION OK 98470987 VC Fire Station #1
98470912 Highland Fire Station #2
93420213 Lockwood Fire Station @84

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
1/16/2018 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for

the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.




